# PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN

Volume 52 Number 14 Saturday, April 2, 2022 • Harrisburg, PA Pages 1967—2114

See Part II page 2095 for the Subject Index for January—March 2022

110 18/0

# Part I

Agencies in this issue The Courts Department of Aging Department of Banking and Securities Department of Environmental Protection Department of Health Department of Revenue Department of Transportation Environmental Hearing Board Environmental Quality Board Game Commission Independent Regulatory Review Commission Insurance Department Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Public School Employees' Retirement Board State Board of Crane Operators State Board of Vehicle Manufactures, Dealers and Salespersons State Board of Veterinary Medicine Susquehanna River Basin Commission Detailed list of contents appears inside.





Tatest Denus/Ivania Code Bebouter. (Waster Luansmittal Sheet): No. 269 Vabril 2005
--

### PENNSYLVANIA



# BULLETIN

(ISSN 0162-2137)

Postmaster send address changes to:

FRY COMMUNICATIONS, Inc. Attn: Pennsylvania Bulletin 800 West Church Road Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198 (717) 766-0211 ext. 2340 (800) 334-1429 ext. 2340 (toll free, out-of-State) (800) 524-3232 ext. 2340 (toll free, in State) The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is published weekly by Fry Communications, Inc. for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Legislative Reference Bureau, 641 Main Capitol Building, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120, under the policy supervision and direction of the Joint Committee on Documents under 45 Pa.C.S. Part II (relating to publication and effectiveness of Commonwealth documents). The subscription rate is \$87.00 per year, postpaid to points in the United States. Individual copies are \$2.50. Checks for subscriptions and individual copies should be made payable to *"Fry Communications, Inc."* Periodicals postage paid at Harrisburg, Pennsylvania.

Orders for subscriptions and other circulation matters should be sent to:

Fry Communications, Inc. Attn: *Pennsylvania Bulletin* 800 West Church Road Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198

Copyright © 2022 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Editorial preparation, composition, printing and distribution of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is effected on behalf of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania by FRY COMMUNICATIONS, Inc., 800 West Church Road, Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 17055-3198.

# CONTENTS

# THE COURTS

#### JUDICIAL SYSTEM GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### LOCAL COURT RULES

#### **Fayette County**

#### **Mercer County**

### EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT AGENCIES

#### **DEPARTMENT OF AGING**

#### Notices

Pharmaceutical	Assistance	Advisory	Board	virtual	
meeting					1994

### DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND SECURITIES

#### Notices

Actions on	applications	1994

#### DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION Notices

#### DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

#### Notices

Health Research Advisory Committee virtual public	
meeting schedule for calendar year 2022 20	)67
Long-term care nursing facilities; requests for ex-	
ception	)67
Spinal Cord Research Advisory Committee virtual	
public meeting schedule for calendar year	
2022 20	)68

#### DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

#### Notices

Pennsylvania Hot Streak fast play game 5158..... 2068 Pennsylvania Quick Buck fast play game 5159..... 2073 Pennsylvania Super Mom fast play game 5157..... 2077

#### DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

#### Notices

Contemplated	sale	of	land	no	longer	needed	for
transportatio	on pu	rpo	ses				2083
Findings							2083

#### ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

#### Notices

#### Notices

Meeting cancellation ...... 2085

## GAME COMMISSION

Notices

Rabbit hemorrhagic disease importation ban #  $2 \dots 2086$ 

#### INDEPENDENT REGULATORY REVIEW COMMISSION

#### Notices

Actions taken by the Commission ...... 2087

#### INSURANCE DEPARTMENT

#### Notices

United Healthcare, Inc.; small group quarterly update filing (UHLC-133185996); rate filing ...... 2087 United Healthcare of Pennsylvania, Inc.; small group quarterly update filing (UHLC-133185995); rate filing ..... 2088

### PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Notices

Service of notice of motor carrier applications	2088
Wastewater service	
Water service	2089

#### PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT BOARD

#### Notices

Hearing scheduled 208	39
-----------------------	----

### STATE BOARD OF CRANE OPERATORS

Proposed Rulemaking

Licensure by endorsement—crane operators ...... 1978

#### STATE BOARD OF VEHICLE MANUFACTURES, DEALERS AND SALESPERSONS

#### **Notices**

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs v. Melissa A. Kovalewski, respondent; file No. 20-60-001880.... 2089

#### STATE BOARD OF VETERINARY MEDICINE Proposed Rulemaking

#### Proposed Rulemaking

Euthanasia..... 1980

# SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION

#### Notices

Actions taken at March meeting ...... 2090

# Available Online at http://www.pacodeandbulletin.gov

# READER'S GUIDE TO THE PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN AND THE PENNSYLVANIA CODE

#### Pennsylvania Bulletin

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the official gazette of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. It is published weekly. A cumulative subject matter index is published quarterly.

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* serves several purposes. It is the temporary supplement to the *Pennsylvania Code*, which is the official codification of agency rules and regulations, Statewide court rules, and other statutorily authorized documents. Changes in the codified text, whether by adoption, amendment, rescission, repeal or emergency action, must be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

The following documents are published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*: Governor's Executive Orders; Summaries of Enacted Statutes; Statewide and Local Court Rules; Attorney General Opinions; Motor Carrier Applications before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission; Applications and Actions before the Department of Environmental Protection; Orders of the Independent Regulatory Review Commission; and other documents authorized by law.

The text of certain documents published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the only valid and enforceable text. Courts are required to take judicial notice of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

#### Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of Regulations

Generally an agency wishing to adopt, amend or rescind regulations must first publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a Proposed Rulemaking. There are limited instances when the agency may omit the proposal step; it still must publish the adopted version.

The Proposed Rulemaking contains the full text of the change, the agency contact person, a fiscal note required by law and background for the action.

The agency then allows sufficient time for public comment before taking final action. A Final Rulemaking must be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* before the changes can take effect. If the agency wishes to adopt changes to the Proposed Rulemaking to enlarge the scope, it must repropose.

#### Citation to the Pennsylvania Bulletin

Cite material in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* by volume number, a page number and date. Example: Volume 1, *Pennsylvania Bulletin*, page 801, January 9, 1971 (short form: 1 Pa.B. 801 (January 9, 1971)).

#### Pennsylvania Code

The *Pennsylvania Code* is the official codification of rules and regulations issued by Commonwealth agencies, Statewide court rules and other statutorily authorized documents. The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is the temporary supplement to the *Pennsylvania Code*, printing changes when they are adopted. These changes are then permanently codified by the *Pennsylvania Code Reporter*, a monthly, loose-leaf supplement.

The *Pennsylvania Code* is cited by title number and section number. Example: Title 10 *Pennsylvania Code* § 1.1 (short form: 10 Pa. Code § 1.1).

Under the *Pennsylvania Code* codification system, each regulation is assigned a unique number by title and section. Titles roughly parallel the organization of Commonwealth government.

#### How to Find Rules and Regulations

Search for your area of interest in the *Pennsylvania Code*. The *Pennsylvania Code* is available at www.pacodeandbulletin.gov.

Source Notes give the history of regulations. To see if there have been recent changes not yet codified, check the List of *Pennsylvania Code* Chapters Affected in the most recent issue of the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

A chronological table of the history of *Pennsylvania Code* sections may be found at www.legis.state. pa.us/cfdocs/legis/CH/Public/pcde\_index.cfm.

A quarterly List of *Pennsylvania Code* Sections Affected lists the regulations in numerical order, followed by the citation to the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* in which the change occurred.

The *Pennsylvania Bulletin* is available at www. pacodeandbulletin.gov.

### Subscription Information: (717) 766-0211 General Information and Finding Aids: (717) 783-1530

#### **Printing Format**

#### Rules, Regulations and Statements of Policy in Titles 1-107 of the Pennsylvania Code

Text proposed to be added is printed in **underscored bold face**. Text proposed to be deleted is enclosed in brackets [ ] and printed in **bold face**.

Proposed new chapters and sections are printed in regular type to enhance readability. Final rulemakings and statements of policy are printed in regular type.

Ellipses, a series of five asterisks, indicate text that is not amended.

In Proposed Rulemakings and proposed Statements of Policy, existing text corresponds to the official codified text in the *Pennsylvania Code*.

Court Rules in Titles 201–246 of the Pennsylvania Code

Added text in proposed and adopted court rules is printed in <u>underscored bold face</u>. Deleted text in proposed and adopted court rules is enclosed in brackets [ ] and printed in **bold face**.

Proposed new chapters and rules are printed in regular type to enhance readability.

Ellipses, a series of five asterisks, indicate text that is not amended.

#### **Fiscal Notes**

Section 612 of The Administrative Code of 1929 (71 P. S. § 232) requires the Governor's Budget Office to prepare a fiscal note for regulatory actions and administrative procedures of the administrative departments, boards, commissions and authorities receiving money from the State Treasury. The fiscal note states whether the action or procedure causes a loss of revenue or an increase in the cost of programs for the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions. The fiscal note is required to be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* at the same time as the change is advertised.

A fiscal note provides the following information: (1) the designation of the fund out of which the appropriation providing for expenditures under the action or procedure shall be made; (2) the probable cost for the fiscal year the program is implemented; (3) projected cost estimate of the program for each of the 5 succeeding fiscal years; (4) fiscal history of the program for which expenditures are to be made; (5) probable loss of revenue for the fiscal year of its implementation; (6) projected loss of revenue from the program for each of the 5 succeeding fiscal years; (7) line item, if any, of the General Appropriation Act or other appropriation act out of which expenditures or losses of Commonwealth funds shall occur as a result of the action or procedures; and (8) recommendation, if any, of the Secretary of the Budget and the reasons therefor.

The omission of an item indicates that the agency text of the fiscal note states that there is no information available with respect thereto. In items (3) and (6) information is set forth for the first through fifth fiscal years, following the year the program is implemented, which is stated. In item (4) information is set forth for the current and two immediately preceding years. In item (8) the recommendation, if any, made by the Secretary of the Budget is published with the fiscal note. "No fiscal impact" means no additional cost or revenue loss to the Commonwealth or its local political subdivision is intended. See 4 Pa. Code Chapter 7, Subchapter R (relating to fiscal notes).

#### **Reproduction, Dissemination or Publication of Information**

Third parties may not take information from the *Pennsylvania Code* and *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and reproduce, disseminate or publish information except as provided by 1 Pa. Code § 3.44:

#### § 3.44. General permission to reproduce content of Code and Bulletin.

Information published under this part, which information includes, but is not limited to, cross references, tables of cases, notes of decisions, tables of contents, indexes, source notes, authority notes, numerical lists and codification guides, other than the actual text of rules or regulations may be reproduced only with the written consent of the [Legislative Reference] Bureau. The information which appears on the same leaf with the text of a rule or regulation, however, may be incidentally reproduced in connection with the reproduction of the rule or regulation, if the reproduction is for the private use of a subscriber and not for resale. There are no other restrictions on the reproduction of information published under this part, and the Common-wealth hereby consents to a reproduction.

# List of Pa. Code Chapters Affected

The following numerical guide is a list of the chapters of each title of the *Pennsylvania Code* affected by documents published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* during 2022.

4 Pa. Code (Administration) Adopted Rules
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
607a       1454         Statements of Policy       1112, 1276, 1742
22 Pa. Code (Education)
Adopted Rules         356           741         356           741a         356
Statements of Policy 238
<b>25 Pa. Code (Environmental Protection)</b> <b>Adopted Rule</b> 121
Proposed Rules       361         92a       361         109       1245         121       689         129       689         261a       235         271       363         279       363         28 Pa. Code (Health and Safety)
Adopted Rules       359         1141       359         1151       359         1161       359         1171       359         1181       359         1191       359         1211       359         1230       359
Proposed Rules         1626           201         1626           209         1626           211         1626
<b>31 Pa. Code (Insurance)</b> <b>Proposed Rules</b> 90j
<b>34 Pa. Code (Labor and Industry)</b> <b>Adopted Rules</b> 101
401

#### 49 Pa. Code (Professional and Vocational Standards) Adopted Rules

3.			١.																																							14	48	38	5
13																																										1	6(	)(	)
16				,																																						1	8	99	)
17				,																																						1	8	99	)
18				,																																						1	8	99	)
19				,	•					•	•																															4	44	44	1
21				,	•					•	•																															1	9	16	3
37				,	•					•	•																																	17	7
41				,	•					•	•																															4	44	46	3
42				,	•					•	•																															4	44	48	3
47	•			,	•	•	•			•	•	•	•	•															•	•	•	•	•	•	•							1	6(	)8	3
48	•			,	•	•	•			•	•	•	•	•															•	•	•	•	•	•	•							1	6(	)8	3
49				,	•					•	•																															1	6(	)8	3
Pr		-																																											
1.	•	•		,	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•				•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		1′	7:	36	3
6.	•			,	•	•	•			•	•	•	•	•															•		•		•	•	•							1	9'	78	3
18				,	•					•	•																															9	98	35	5
31				,																																						1	98	3(	)
42																																										ł	8	38	5

#### 52 Pa. Code (Public Utilities)

Proposed	Rul	es
----------	-----	----

59	992
----	-----

#### 58 Pa. Code (Recreation) Adopted Bules

Auop																														
113				•				•								•													98	33
623b								•								•												 1	49	)1
627b		• •	•					•			•	•			•	•	 •			•				•			•	 1	49	)1
629b	•	•••	•		 •	•	•	•	 •	•	•	•	 •	•	•	•	 •	•	 •	•	•	 •	•	•		•	•	 1	49	)1

#### **Proposed Rules**

63	 						 			 				 								14	9	4
65	 						 			 				 				1	4	9	4.	14	.9	6

#### 67 Pa. Code (Transportation)

01		u.	00	uc	<b>\''</b>	un
Ad	lo	pt	ed	Rı	ıle	$\mathbf{s}$

55	• •	•		•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	•	• •		•	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	 •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	 •	6	8
10 <sup>-</sup>	1	Pa	۱.	С	c	od	le		((	G	eı	ne	eı	ra	ıl	ŀ	1	59	56	ıe	n	ıb	h	v	)																	

Statements of Policy	
31	1642

#### 204 Pa. Code (Judicial System General Provisions) Adopted Rules

Laoptea Lunico	
29	)
71 341	_
82	ŀ
83	ŀ

#### **Proposed Rules**

81		942
83	942,	965
303		583

# 207 Pa. Code (Judicial Conduct) Adopted Rules

•																																											
•		 •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		 		•	(	68	30	ļ

210 Pa. Code (Appellate Procedure) Adopted Rules 19	9
<b>Proposed Rules</b> 16	<b>2</b>
231 Pa. Code (Rules of Civil Procedure)Adopted Rules2002001044	

200	
400	
1915 826	
Part II	

### 234 Pa. Code (Rules of Criminal Procedure) Proposed Rules

1	 	 		 •									 			 •			.205,	346
																			.205,	

$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
237 Pa. Code (Juvenile Rules) Proposed Rules 5
<b>249 Pa. Code (Philadelphia Rules)</b> Unclassified230, 827
<b>252 Pa. Code (Allegheny County Rules)</b> Unclassified
<b>255 Pa. Code (Local Court Rules)</b> Unclassified 14, 15, 16, 231, 232, 233, 353, 443, 685, 828, 968, 969, 1111, 1453, 1599, 1734, 1975, 1976

# THE COURTS

# Title 204—JUDICIAL SYSTEM GENERAL PROVISIONS

### PART V. PROFESSIONAL ETHICS AND CONDUCT [ 204 PA. CODE CH. 83 ]

#### Order Amending Rules 102, 209, 215 and 402 of the Pennsylvania Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement; No. 220 Disciplinary Rules Docket

#### Order

#### Per Curiam

And Now, this 22nd day of March, 2022, upon the recommendation of the Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania, following publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* at 51 Pa.B. 1128 (March 6, 2021) and 51 Pa.B. 2486 (May 8, 2021):

It Is Ordered pursuant to Article V, Section 10 of the Constitution of Pennsylvania that Rules 102, 209, 215, and 402 of the Pennsylvania Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement are amended in the attached form.

This Order shall be processed in accordance with Pa.R.J.A. 103(b) and shall be effective thirty (30) days after adoption.

Additions to the rules are shown in bold and are underlined.

Deletions from the rules are shown in bold and in brackets.

#### Annex A

#### TITLE 204. JUDICIAL SYSTEM GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### PART V. PROFESSIONAL ETHICS AND CONDUCT

Subpart B. DISCIPLINARY ENFORCEMENT

#### CHAPTER 83. PENNSYLVANIA RULES OF DISCIPLINARY ENFORCEMENT

#### Subchapter A. PRELIMINARY PROVISIONS

**Rule 102. Definitions.** 

\*

#### \* \* \* \*

*"Formal proceedings."* Proceedings that commence with the filing of a petition for discipline. A formal proceeding does not include any of the submissions or documents generated during an informal proceeding unless they are made part of the record at the formal proceeding by motion, by stipulation, or by admission as an exhibit during a hearing. Pursuant to Enforcement Rule 402(a), formal proceedings are open to the public, except as provided in Enforcement Rules 402(b) and 402(k).

"Informal proceedings." Proceedings that commence with the submission of a complaint to the Office of Disciplinary Counsel or an investigation initiated by the Office of Disciplinary Counsel. An informal proceeding includes all proceedings up to the filing of a petition for discipline. Informal proceedings are not open to the public.

\* \* \*

#### Subchapter B. MISCONDUCT

#### Rule 209. Complaints and Immunity.

(a) Complaints submitted to the Board or Disciplinary Counsel shall be confidential [unless the matter results in the filing of formal charges]. See [Rule 402(a)] <u>Rule 402(e)</u> (relating to access to disciplinary information and confidentiality). <u>Unless and until formal charges are filed and the complainant is designated as a witness at the prehearing conference, or Disciplinary Counsel determines that the complaint contains exculpatory material, the complaint shall not be provided to the respondent-attorney. At or after the prehearing conference, the senior or experienced hearing committee member or the special master may enter a protective order on cause shown to prohibit disclosure of the complaint or parts of it to the public.</u>

(b) Members of the Board, members of hearing committees, special masters, Disciplinary Counsel and staff shall be immune from civil suit for any conduct in the course of their official duties. All communications to the Board, a hearing committee, special master, or Disciplinary Counsel relating to misconduct by a respondentattorney and all testimony given in a proceeding conducted pursuant to these rules shall be absolutely privileged and the person making the communication or giving the testimony shall be immune from civil suit based upon such communication or testimony. For purposes of this subdivision [ (a) ] (b), the staff of the Board shall be deemed to include conservators and sobriety, financial or practice monitors appointed pursuant to these rules or the rules of the Board.

[ (b) ] (c) Complaints against members of the Board involving alleged violations of the Disciplinary Rules or these rules shall be handled in the same manner as other complaints, except that if action is required by the Board, the Board shall notify the Supreme Court which shall appoint an Ad Hoc Disciplinary Board comprised of five former members of the Board who shall discharge the functions of the Board and have all the powers of the Board with respect to that one matter only.

[(c)] (d) Complaints against Disciplinary Counsel involving alleged violations of the Disciplinary Rules or these rules shall be submitted directly to the Board and assigned to a reviewing member of the Board for disposition.

(*Editor's Note*: Pa.R.D.E. 209 as printed in 204 Pa. Code reads "Official Note" rather than "Note.")

*Note*: The provisions of **[ subdivision (a) of the ] this** rule recognize that the submission and receipt of complaints against attorneys, and the investigation, hearing, decision and disposition of such complaints, are all parts of a judicial proceeding conducted pursuant to the inherent power of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania. The immunity from civil suit recognized to exist in **[ subsection (a) ] <u>subdivision (b)</u>** is that which exists for all participants in judicial proceedings under Pennsylvania law, so long as their statements and actions are pertinent, material and during the regular course of a proceeding.

#### Rule 215. Discipline on Consent.

\*

#### \* \*

(c) Confidentiality of resignation statement.-The fact that the attorney has submitted a resignation statement to Disciplinary Counsel or the Board for filing with the Supreme Court shall become a matter of public record immediately upon delivery of the resignation statement to Disciplinary Counsel or the Board. The order disbarring the attorney on consent shall be a matter of public record. If the statement required under the provisions of subdivision (a) of this rule is submitted before the filing and service of a petition for discipline and the filing of an answer or the time to file an answer has expired, the statement shall not be publicly disclosed or made available for use in any proceeding other than a subsequent reinstatement proceeding except:

> \* \*

(5) when the resignation is based on an order of temporary suspension from the practice of law entered by the Court either pursuant to Enforcement Rule 208(f)[(1)] (relating to emergency temporary suspension orders and related relief) or pursuant to Enforcement Rule 214 (relating to **attorneys convicted of crimes** a criminal proceeding).

#### Subchapter D. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

#### Rule 402. Access to Disciplinary Information and **Confidentiality.**

(c) Until the proceedings are open under subdivision (a)

or (b), all proceedings involving allegations of misconduct by or disability of an attorney shall be kept confidential unless:

(3) **[ the proceeding is based on ]** an order of temporary suspension from the practice of law is entered by the Court pursuant to Enforcement Rule [ 208(f)(1) ] 208(f) (relating to emergency temporary suspension orders and related relief) or Enforcement Rule 214(d) (relating to temporary suspension based on a criminal proceeding), in which case the proceedings and filings related to the petition, the order, and any petition to dissolve, amend or modify shall be public;

(d) This rule shall not be construed to: \*

\*

\*

(4) Prevent Disciplinary Counsel or the Board from notifying the complainant of the disposition of a complaint, including the type of discipline imposed and any condition attached to the discipline.

\*

(5) Prevent the Board from exercising its discretion to provide public access to a complaint or portions thereof, as the interests of justice may require. The affected parties shall be notified in advance of the intent to disclose otherwise confidential material.

(6) Prevent Disciplinary Counsel from making an informal referral of an attorney to Lawyers Concerned for Lawyers of Pennsylvania, Inc. (LCL-PA), if Disciplinary Counsel believes that the attorney may benefit from the services of LCL-PA. Disciplinary Counsel may share with LCL-PA information deemed confidential under these Enforcement Rules as part of the referral. LCL-PA shall not report information about the subject attorney to Disciplinary Counsel or to any staff of the Office of Disciplinary Counsel. The fact that a referral was made and its outcome shall not be relevant for any purpose and may not be considered or disclosed by Disciplinary Counsel in any proceeding under these Rules.

Note: Subdivision (d)(6) is intended to facilitate mental health and substance use referrals to Pennsylvania's approved lawyers' assistance program while preserving the confidentiality that is essential to that program's success. See Pennsylvania Rules of Professional Conduct, Rule 8.3(c) and Comment | 7 |.

(e) Subdivision (a) shall not be construed to provide public access to:

(1) the work product of the Board, Disciplinary Counsel, hearing committee members, or special masters;

(2) deliberations of a hearing committee, special master, the Board or the Court; **[ or ]** 

(3) information subject to a protective order issued by the Board under subdivision (f); or

#### (4) a complaint submitted to the Board or Disciplinary Counsel. \*

(*Editor's Note*: Pa.R.D.E. 402 as printed in 204 Pa. Code reads "Official Note" rather than "Note.")

\*

Note: Under subdivision (a), a petition for discipline is part of a formal proceeding; therefore, the petition is open to the public and part of the public record. See Enforcement Rule 102(a) (definition of "Formal Proceedings"); Enforcement Rule 208(b)(1) (formal proceedings instituted by filing a petition for discipline). However, the proceeding and the petition do not become open to the public until an answer is filed or the time to file an answer expires without an answer being filed.

[Paragraph] Subdivision (d)(2) is based on 18 Pa.C.S. 5108 (relating to compounding). Otherwise Disciplinary Counsel may be in the anomalous position of violating Rule 8.4 of the Pennsylvania Rules of Professional Conduct.

Although subdivision (k) provides that a formal proceeding that becomes open to the public under subdivision (a) will subsequently be closed if it results in the imposition of private discipline or dismissal of all the charges, the closing of the proceeding cannot change the fact that the proceeding was open to the public for a period of time. Thus, subdivision (k) makes clear that the respondent-attorney may request that the record of the proceeding remain open to demonstrate that the charges were dismissed or only private discipline was imposed.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-489. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### Title 255—LOCAL COURT RULES

#### **FAYETTE COUNTY**

Attorneys—Withdrawal of Appearance; F.C.R.Crim.P. 120(B); No. CP-26-AD-0000003-2022

#### Order

And Now, this 16th day of March 2022, pursuant to Pennsylvania Rule of Judicial Administration 103(d), it is hereby ordered that Fayette County Criminal Rule 120(B), Attorneys—Withdrawal of Appearance is adopted as follows hereto.

The Clerk of Courts is directed as follows:

(1) Two copies and CD-ROM of the Local Rule shall be distributed to the Legislative Reference Bureau for publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

(2) One copy of the Local Rule shall be filed with the Administrative Office of Pennsylvania Courts.

(3) One copy of the Local Rule shall be sent to the Fayette County Law Library and the Editor of the *Fayette Legal Journal*.

The Administrative Office of Fayette County Courts is directed as follows:

(1) Publish a copy of the Local Rule on the website of the Administrative Office of Fayette County Courts.

(2) Thereafter, compile the Local Rule within the complete set of local rules no later than 30 days following the publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

The adoption of the previously listed Local Rule shall become effective thirty (30) days after publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

By the Court

#### JOHN F. WAGNER, Jr., President Judge

#### Rule 120(B). Attorneys-Withdrawal of Appearance.

A motion to withdrawal an attorney's appearance shall include (1) the name, address, and telephone number of the defendant; (2) the date of birth of the defendant and the last four numbers of his or her Social Security Number; (3) if the defendant is incarcerated, the name of the facility and his or her inmate identification number; (4) a list of prior counsel who represented the defendant in the case; and (5) a list of co-defendants and the name of any other defendant who is charged in the same incident, including the name(s) of counsel for any other defendant identified. If the appointment of new counsel is required to continue the case, the motion to withdraw should include a request for appointment of new counsel.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-490. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### Title 255—LOCAL COURT RULES

#### MERCER COUNTY

# Amendments to Local Rules of Civil Procedure L319, L320 and L1920.60; 2022-593

And Now, this 15th day of March, 2022, the Court hereby Approves, Adopts and Promulgates the following Amendments to the Mercer County Local Rules L319, L320 and L1920.60 regarding Termination of Inactive Cases.

It Is Further Ordered and Directed that the Court Administrator of Mercer County shall file (1) certified copy of the Amendments with the Administrative Office of the Pennsylvania Courts and furnish two (2) certified copies to the Legislative Reference Bureau for publication in the Pennsylvania Bulletin.

It Is Further Order and Directed that these Amendments shall be kept continuously available for public inspection and copying in the Office of the Clerk of Courts of Mercer County and the Office of the Prothonotary of Mercer County. This Order shall be published in the *Mercer County Law Journal*.

By the Court

DANIEL P. WALLACE, President Judge

#### AMENDMENTS TO THE MERCER COUNTY LOCAL RULES REGARDING TERMINATION OF INACTIVE CASES

A. Local Rule L319 shall be deleted.

B. Local Rule L320 shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

#### Rule L230.2. Termination of Inactive Cases.

(a) At least once a year, the Prothonotary of Mercer County shall provide to the President Judge a list of all those cases that have had no activity of record for two years or more.

(b) Pursuant to Pa.R.C.P. Rule 230.2(b)(1), the Prothonotary shall then send Notices of Proposed Termination to counsel of record, or to the parties if not represented, for those cases having no activity of record for two years or more.

(c) Pursuant to Rule of Judicial Administration Rule 1901(c)(2), the Prothonotary shall advertise one time in the *Mercer County Law Journal* the list of all those cases where the Notice of Proposed Termination could not be given by mail or had been returned undelivered. In addition to the list of cases, said advertisement shall include a Notice of Proposed Termination and the statement: "You have thirty (30) days to respond to this Notice by filing a Statement of Intention to Proceed pursuant to Pa.R.C.P. Rule 230.2(g)."

(d) The Prothonotary shall comply with all other provisions found in Pa.R.C.P. Rule 230.2 when terminating inactive cases that have been properly served a Notice of Termination.

(e) The President Judge shall comply with Rule 230.2(d) regarding an aggrieved party seeking to reinstate a terminated case.

C. Local Rule L1920.60 shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

# Rule L1920.60. Termination of Inactive Divorce Cases.

(a) At least once a year, the Prothonotary of Mercer County shall provide to the President Judge a list of all those divorce cases that have had no activity of record for two years or more.

(b) Pursuant to Pa.R.C.P. Rule 230.2(b)(1), the Prothonotary shall then send Notices of Proposed Termination to counsel of record, or to the parties if not represented, for those divorce cases having no activity of record for two years or more.

(c) Pursuant to Rule of Judicial Administration Rule 1901(c)(2), the Prothonotary shall advertise one time in the *Mercer County Law Journal* the list of all those divorce cases where the Notice of Proposed Termination could not be given by mail or had been returned undelivered. In addition to the list of cases, said advertisement shall include a Notice of Proposed Termination and the statement: "You have thirty (30) days to respond to this Notice by filing a Statement of Intention to Proceed pursuant to Pa.R.C.P. Rule 230.2(g)."

(d) The Prothonotary shall comply with all other provisions found in Pa.R.C.P. Rule 230.2 when terminating inactive divorce cases that have been properly served a Notice of Termination.

(e) The President Judge shall comply with Pa.R.C.P. Rule 230.2(d) regarding an aggrieved party seeking to reinstate a terminated divorce case.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-491. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# **PROPOSED RULEMAKING**

# STATE BOARD OF CRANE OPERATORS

#### [49 PA. CODE CH. 6]

#### Licensure by Endorsement—Crane Operators

The State Board of Crane Operators (Board) proposes to add §§ 6.16 and 6.17 (relating to licensure by endorsement; and provisional endorsement license) to read as set forth in Annex A.

#### Effective Date

This proposed rulemaking will be effective upon publication of the final-form rulemaking in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

#### Statutory Authority

The provisions of 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 (relating to licensure by endorsement) require licensing boards to issue a license, certificate, registration or permit to an applicant to allow practice in this Commonwealth provided the applicant meets the following criteria: holds a current license, certificate, registration or permit from another state, territory or country whose licensing requirements are substantially equivalent to or exceed the requirements in this Commonwealth; demonstrates competency; has not committed any act that constitutes grounds for refusal, suspension or revocation of a license, certificate, registration or permit to practice that profession or occupation in this Commonwealth, unless the Board determines such conduct is not an impediment to granting the license, certificate, registration or permit; is in good standing and has not been disciplined by the jurisdiction that issued the license, certificate, registration or permit, unless the board or commission determines such conduct is not an impediment to granting the license, certificate, registration or permit; and the applicant pays fees, as established by regulation. Additionally, 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 authorizes boards to issue a provisional license, certificate, registration or permit while an applicant is satisfying remaining requirements for licensure by endorsement, for which the Board must set by regulation the terms of expiration.

The act of July 1, 2020 (P.L. 575, No. 53) added 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 as part of the consolidation of the act of July 2, 1993 (P.L. 345, No. 48) (Act 48) into 63 Pa.C.S. Chapter 31 (relating to powers and duties). The text of 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 was originally added to Act 48 by the act of July 1, 2019 (P.L. 292, No. 41).

#### Background and Need for the Amendments

This proposed rulemaking is needed to effectuate 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111, which requires the Board to issue a license to applicants who meet the requirements for licensure by endorsement as set forth in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111. Under 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111, the Board must determine whether standards for licensure are substantially equivalent to or exceed those established by the Board. Additionally, 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 requires the Board to determine the methods of competency, including completion of continuing education or experience in the profession or occupation for at least 2 years of the 5 years immediately preceding the filing of the application, and must establish, by regulation, the expiration of a provisional endorsement license. This proposed rulemaking sets forth the criteria for eligibility for licensure by endorsement, including the specific methods required for an applicant to demonstrate competency as well as requirements for granting a provisional endorsement license. The fee for submission of an application for licensure by endorsement is the same fee set for the initial licensing application fee under § 6.4(a) (relating to fees).

An exposure draft of the proposed annex was sent out to stakeholders on July 8, 2020. On August 7, 2020, comments were received from the National Commission for the Certification of Crane Operators (NCCCO). NCCCO recommended that the Board include the Occupational Safety and Health Administration's (OSHA) language regarding government-issued licenses in 29 CFR 1926.1427(c) (relating to operator training, certification, and evaluation) as a component of being considered substantially equivalent, including: a written exam, a practical (hands-on) exam, exams covering the topics in 29 CFR 1926.1427(j)(1) and (2), a determination by the entity overseeing the licensure program that it meets OSHA's requirements, and an official statement from the other jurisdiction's licensing body that it has been deemed compliance would be ideal in this regard. Under the substantial equivalent requirement of § 6.16(a)(1) of this proposed rulemaking, the Board will review all the requirements for licensure in the jurisdiction from which the applicant has received licensure. The Board is aware of OSHA's requirements and is required to implement Federal mandates when reviewing applications. As it currently does for all applications, the Board will ensure that all the necessary components of the original licensing jurisdictions certification, including a written and practical exam and other OSHA requirements, are included as part of that certification.

The next comment recommended that the Board include additional language to assure that the Board only considers a "license, certification, registration or permit" issued in another jurisdiction as substantially equivalent if the certifying agency accepted in the jurisdiction that issued the licensee, certificate, registration or permit was "[a]ccredited by the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) or the National Commission for Certifying Agencies (NCCA) at the time of the issuance of the certification." This suggestion has already been established in the definitional sections of section 102 of the Crane Operator Licensure Act (act) (63 P.S. § 2400.102), and § 6.2 (relating to definitions) of the Board's regulations, which are applicable to any applications made under this new provision. NCCCO also recommended that the Board "[i]nclude a reference to 29 CFR 1926.1427(c)(1)—(c)(4) 'Operator certification or licensing,' within § 6.16(a)(1)(i)." In response, the Board notes that the Board will be reviewing the requirements of the original licensing jurisdiction to ensure that the applicant is eligible to receive a license in this Commonwealth in accordance with the requirements of the act and current regulations, and the licensure process of the other jurisdiction is substantially equivalent of that of the Commonwealth. The referenced CFR section is included in the substantial equivalent standards referenced in § 6.16(a)(1). The Board is duty-bound to enforce and implement Federal requirements that must be met and will continue to do so for all applications, including

licensure by endorsement applications. Accordingly, the Board does not believe it is necessary to add these provisions as doing so would be duplicative.

#### Description of the Proposed Amendments

Proposed § 6.16 would establish the definition of "jurisdiction" as to be applied in any applications made under this new section and requires an applicant to satisfy six criteria required for licensure by endorsement. The first criterion, as set forth in § 6.16(a)(1), requires an applicant to provide proof of a current license, certification, registration or permit in good standing to practice in another jurisdiction whose standards are substantially equivalent to or exceed standards under section 502 of the act (63 P.S. § 2400.502) and § 6.11 (relating to general requirements). Section 6.16(a)(1)(i) further requires an applicant to submit a copy of the current applicable law, regulation or other rule governing licensure, certification, registration or permit requirements and scope of practice in the jurisdiction that issued the license, certificate, registration or permit. This proposed rulemaking would also require that the copy of the applicable law, regulation or other rule include the enactment date. Additionally, because 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 is applicable to territories and other countries that use languages other than English, where the applicable law, regulation or other rule is in a language other than English, the Board would require, at the applicant's expense, translation of the applicable law, regulation or other rule by a professional translation service.

Proposed subsection (a)(2) would require demonstration of competency. Under this provision, an applicant must provide proof of competency by demonstrating experience in the practice of the profession. To demonstrate competency by experience, an applicant must demonstrate active engagement in the practice of crane operation for at least 2 years of the 5 years immediately preceding the filing of the application in the jurisdiction that issued the license, certificate, registration or permit.

Proposed subsection (a)(3) and (4) would incorporate the statutory prohibitions in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 pertaining to conduct that would constitute grounds for refusal, suspension or revocation of a license, certificate, registration or permit to practice the profession or occupation and prior discipline by the jurisdiction that issued the license.

Proposed subsection (a)(5) would provide for payment of an application fee, as required under 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111(a)(5). The applicable fee for licensure by endorsement under 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 is the same fee set for the initial licensing application fee under § 6.4(a) of the Board's current fee schedule of \$100.

Next, proposed subsection (a)(6) would require the applicant to apply for licensure in accordance with the act and Chapter 6 (relating to State Board of Crane Operators) in the manner and format prescribed by the Board.

In proposed § 6.16(b), the Board may require a personal interview or additional information to assist the Board in determining eligibility and competency. When a personal interview is necessary, the applicant may request the interview to be conducted by video teleconference for good cause shown.

As authorized by 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111(a)(3) and (4), § 6.16(c) gives the Board the discretion to determine that an act prohibited by § 6.16(a)(3) or (4) are not impediments to the granting of a license, certification, registration or a permit.

Consistent with section 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111(b), proposed § 6.17 would provide that the Board, in its discretion,

may issue a provisional endorsement license while an applicant is satisfying remaining requirements of 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 and proposed § 6.16. Section 6.17(b) would set the expiration of a provisional endorsement license at 1 year, unless the Board determines that an expiration date of less than 1 year is appropriate. Additionally, upon a written request, the Board may extend the term of the license on a showing of good cause. Section 6.17(c) would set forth reasons for which a provisional endorsement license will be terminated by the Board, including when the Board denies or grants a license, or the provisional endorsement licensee fails to comply with the terms of a provisional endorsement license. Finally, § 6.17(d) would clarify that while an individual may reapply for a license by endorsement under § 6.16, the Board will not issue a subsequent provisional endorsement license to an applicant who previously held a provisional endorsement license that expired or was terminated.

#### Fiscal Impact and Paperwork Requirements

This proposed rulemaking will have no adverse fiscal impact on the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions. The costs to the Board related to processing applications for licensure by endorsement will be recouped through fees paid by applicants. Applicants who apply for licensure by endorsement will be impacted by the \$100 application fee in § 6.4(a).

#### Sunset Date

The Board continuously monitors the cost effectiveness of the Board's regulations. Therefore, no sunset date has been assigned.

#### Regulatory Review

Under section 5(a) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5(a)), on March 10, 2022, the Board submitted a copy of this proposed rulemaking and a copy of a Regulatory Analysis Form to the Independent Regulatory Review Commission (IRRC) and to the Chairpersons of the Senate Consumer Protection and Professional Licensure Committee and the House Professional Licensure Committee. A copy of this material is available to the public upon request.

Under section 5(g) of the Regulatory Review Act, IRRC may convey comments, recommendations or objections to this proposed rulemaking within 30 days of the close of the public comment period. The comments, recommendations or objections must specify the regulatory review criteria in section 5.2 of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5b) which have not been met. The Regulatory Review Act specifies detailed procedures for review, prior to final publication of the rulemaking by the Board, the General Assembly and the Governor.

#### Public Comment

Interested persons are invited to submit written comments, recommendations or objections regarding this proposed rulemaking to Dean F. Picarella, Board Counsel, P.O. Box 69523, Harrisburg, PA 17106-9523 or RA-STRegulatoryCounsel@pa.gov within 30 days of publication of this proposed rulemaking in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Reference 16A-7104 (Licensure by Endorsement), when submitting comments.

> ANDREW S. GOULET, Chairperson

**Fiscal Note:** 16A-7104. No fiscal impact; (8) recommends adoption.

#### Annex A TITLE 49. PROFESSIONAL AND VOCATIONAL STANDARDS

#### PART I. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

#### Subpart A. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL AFFAIRS

#### CHAPTER 6. STATE BOARD OF CRANE OPERATORS

#### LICENSURE

(*Editor's Note*: The following sections are proposed to be added and are printed in regular type to enhance readability.)

#### § 6.16. Licensure by endorsement.

(a) *Requirements for issuance*. To be issued a license by endorsement under 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 (relating to licensure by endorsement) as a professional crane operator, an applicant shall provide proof satisfactory to the Board, that the applicant has met all of the following conditions:

(1) Has a current license, certification, registration or permit in good standing to practice as a professional crane operator in another jurisdiction whose standards are substantially equivalent to those established by the Board under section 502 of the act (63 P.S. § 2400.502) and § 6.11 (relating to general requirements). The following apply:

(i) An applicant must submit a copy of the current applicable law, regulation or other rule governing licensure, certification, registration or permit requirements and scope of practice in the jurisdiction that issued the license, certificate, registration or permit.

(ii) If the applicable law, regulation or other rule is in a language other than English, at the applicant's expense, the applicable law, regulation or other rule shall be translated by a professional translation service and verified to be complete and accurate.

(iii) The copy of the applicable law, regulation or other rule must include the enactment date of law, regulation or other rule.

(2) Demonstrates competency by the following: experience in the profession of crane operating by demonstrating, at a minimum, that the applicant has actively engaged in the practice of crane operating under a license, certification, registration or permit in a substantially equivalent jurisdiction or jurisdictions for at least 2 years of the 5 years immediately preceding the filing of the application with the Board.

(3) Has not committed any act that constitutes grounds for refusal, suspension or revocation of a license, certification, registration or permit to practice crane operating under section 703(a) of the act (63 P.S. § 2400.703(a)) or § 6.41-6.44 (relating to disciplinary actions).

(4) Has not been disciplined by the jurisdiction that issued the license, certificate, registration or permit.

(5) Has paid the initial licensing application fee as required under 6.4(a) (relating to fees) of the act.

(6) Has applied for licensure in accordance with this chapter in the manner and format prescribed by the Board.

(b) *Interview and additional information*. An applicant may be required to appear before the Board for a personal interview and may be required to submit additional information, including supporting documentation relating

to competency and experience. The applicant may request an interview by video teleconference for good cause shown.

(c) Prohibited acts. Notwithstanding subsection (a)(3) and (4), the Board may, in its discretion, determine that an act prohibited under subsection (a)(3) or disciplinary action by a jurisdiction is not impediment to licensure under 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111.

(d) *Definition*. As used in this section, the term "jurisdiction" means a state, territory or country.

#### § 6.17. Provisional endorsement license.

(a) Provisional endorsement license. The Board may, in its discretion, issue a provisional endorsement license to an applicant while the applicant is satisfying remaining requirements for licensure by endorsement under 63 Pa.C.S. § 3111 and § 6.16 (relating to licensure by endorsement).

(b) Expiration of a provisional endorsement license.

(1) An individual holding a provisional endorsement license may practice for up to 1 year after issuance of the provisional endorsement license. The Board, in its discretion, may determine that an expiration date of less than 1 year is appropriate.

(2) On a written request and a showing of good cause, the Board may grant an extension of no longer than 1 year from the expiration date of the provisional endorsement license.

(c) Termination of a provisional endorsement license. A provisional endorsement license terminates if any of the following occurs:

(1) The Board completes its assessment of the applicant and either denies or grants the license.

(2) The holder of the provisional license fails to comply with the terms of the provisional endorsement license.

(d) *Reapplication*. An individual may reapply for licensure by endorsement under § 6.16 after expiration or termination of a provisional endorsement license. The individual may not be issued a subsequent provisional endorsement license.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-492. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# STATE BOARD OF VETERINARY MEDICINE

#### [49 PA. CODE CH. 31]

#### Euthanasia

The State Board of Veterinary Medicine (Board) proposes to add Subchapter B (relating to animal protection organizations and euthanasia technicians), §§ 31.101—31.115 and 31.121—31.130 to read as set forth in Annex A. This proposed rulemaking will implement the act of October 24, 2012 (P.L. 1452, No. 182) (Act 182) by providing for the licensure and regulation of animal protection organizations to purchase and possess drugs for euthanasia, and of euthanasia technicians to administer drugs for euthanasia.

#### Effective Date

This proposed rulemaking will be effective upon publication of the final-form rulemaking in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

#### Statutory Authority

Act 182, which amended the Animal Destruction Method Authorization Law (ADMAL) (3 P.S. §§ 328.101-328.1102), requires the Board to promulgate by regulation the requirements for licensure and regulation of animal protection organizations to purchase and possess drugs for euthanasia and euthanasia technicians to administer drugs for euthanasia. See 3 P.S. § 328.304. Section 5(1) of the Veterinary Medicine Practice Act (act) (63 P.S. § 485.5(1)) authorizes the Board to adopt rules and regulations governing the practice of veterinary medicine as are necessary to enable it to carry out and make effective the purpose and intent of the act. Section 13(a) of the act (63 P.S. § 485.13(a)) authorizes the Board to fix the fees required for examination, licensure, certification, registration, renewal of licenses and registrations, renewal of certificates and temporary permits.

#### Background and Purpose

Act 182 prohibited the use of carbon monoxide chambers for euthanasia of small domestic animals in this Commonwealth. Act 182 also provided a legal means for animal protection organizations that operate shelters in which sick, injured or unwanted animals are euthanized to purchase and possess drugs for euthanasia. Act 182 also created a new class of licensee, to be regulated by the Board, who are individuals who have completed a training program qualifying them to humanely perform euthanasia of small domestic animals. Prior to enactment, licensure was not required, and training was not uniform for these individuals. Act 182 gives the Board broad authority to develop criteria for licensure, regulation of the performance of euthanasia consistent with ADMAL and the act and for institution of discipline against these new classes of licensees regulated by the Board.

The Board consulted with the Department of Agriculture to obtain a list of non-profit kennels licensed in this Commonwealth, and sent a draft rulemaking to these parties, as well as numerous animal protection organizations and veterinarians practicing in the field of shelter medicine. The Board met with interested parties on no less than three separate occasions, and after allowing all interested parties to provide input, a draft was completed. Thereafter, the Board voted to adopt this proposed rulemaking.

#### Description of Proposed Amendments

Proposed §§ 31.101—31.104 (relating to general provisions), set forth general provisions applicable to animal protection organizations and euthanasia technicians. Section 31.101 (relating to applicability of subchapter) sets forth the applicability of the subchapter.

Proposed § 31.102 (relating to definitions) would include definitions for the following key terms used in the regulation: ADMAL (The Animal Destruction Method Authorization Law), animal protection organization, certificate holder, chemical restraint, DEA (The United States Drug Enforcement Administration), drug for euthanasia, euthanasia technician, OSHA (The Occupational Safety and Health Administration within the United States Department of Labor), PDA (The Pennsylvania Department of Agriculture), restraint, shelter, small domestic animals and supervisor of animal care services.

Proposed § 31.103 (relating to applicability of other laws and rules) would note the applicability of other laws relevant to the purchase, possession and administration of drugs for euthanasia. The act regulates the practice of veterinary medicine, which includes the administration of drugs to animals, including drugs used for humane euthanasia. ADMAL is the foundational statute for these proposed regulations. The Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic Act (Drug Act) (35 P.S. §§ 780-101-780-144) includes provisions related to controlled substances and other drugs that animal protection organizations would be authorized to purchase and possess under Act 182. The Dog Law (3 P.S. §§ 459-101-459-1206) provides for licensure and regulation of kennels, including nonprofit kennels that are operated as animal shelters by animal protection organizations. Section 31.103 also provides that individuals and certificate holders subject to the provisions of this proposed rulemaking may also be subject to State or local/municipal laws or ordinances relevant to the subject matter addressed by this proposed rulemaking. Finally, § 31.103(b) provides notice that activities and proceedings before the Board are subject to 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501-508 and 701-704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law) and 1 Pa. Code §§ 31.1-35.251 (relating to General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure).

Proposed § 31.104 (relating to schedule of fees) would provide the schedule of fees for animal protection organizations, to include a fee for application for certificate of registration (includes initial inspection), re-inspections, biennial renewal fee of the certificate of registration and a late renewal fee. For euthanasia technicians, this section would provide a fee for application for initial licensure, application for approval of employment change, verification of licensure, biennial renewal and a late renewal fee. The initial certification and licensure fees are considered "fees for services" performed by the Board staff, and thus are calculated by the Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs Revenue Office by estimating the cost to provide the specific service, to include reviewing the application and accompanying documents to determine compliance with Act 182 and the regulations. The fee for processing the application for certificate of registration (for animal protection organizations), as compared to the application for initial license (of euthanasia technicians), is considerably higher because the fee for processing the application for certificate of registration includes the cost of an initial inspection of the shelter premises. The late renewal fee is set forth in section 225 of the Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs Fee Act (63 P.S. § 1401-225) and is incorporated here for ease of reference.

Proposed §§ 31.105—31.115 (relating to certificate of registration for animal protection organizations) would set forth provisions related to animal protection organizations. Section 31.105 (relating to application for certificate of registration) would address the application for certificate of registration, which would be the organization's authorization from the Commonwealth to purchase and possess drugs for euthanasia within the shelter facility. Section 31.106 (relating to qualifications for a certificate of registration; duty to update certification information) would provide details on the qualifications that an animal protection organization must meet to be granted a certificate of registration.

These organizations have not previously been able to purchase and possess drugs, including controlled substances. However, once an organization has obtained a certificate of registration from the Board, it will be able to purchase drugs; and once the organization also obtains a Certificate of Registration from the United States Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), it will be able to purchase certain controlled substances. The Board believes it is important to proceed cautiously to ensure that no fraudulent organization will be able to obtain a certificate of registration that would allow them to purchase drugs. To provide this protection, the Board determined that an inspection of the shelter facility was required. Section 31.106(d) would set forth the inspection requirement and provides that an organization may not commence operations until the organization has been inspected and found compliant.

Proposed § 31.107 (relating to authority of certificate holders to purchase, possess and administer controlled substances; limitations on authority) would set forth the authority of certificate holders to purchase, possess and administer controlled substances and limitations on that authority. Subsection (a) would provide that a certificate holder who holds a current unrestricted DEA Certificate of Registration may purchase, possess and administer drugs for euthanasia and may transfer drugs for euthanasia to a currently licensed euthanasia technician or veterinarian employed by or under contract with the certificate holder to provide euthanasia services. Subsection (b) would provide limitations, including that a certificate holder may not purchase, possess or administer any controlled substance or other legend drug under the authority of the certificate of registration that is not for euthanasia. This provision would not prohibit a certificate holder that has a staff veterinarian to possess drugs used for other purposes acquired under the authority of the staff veterinarian's license and DEA registration. Subsection (b) would also prohibit a certificate holder from transferring a drug for euthanasia to anyone other than a euthanasia technician or veterinarian; and would prohibit the certificate holder from allowing any drug for euthanasia to leave the shelter premises. Subsection (b) would also prohibit the disposal of drugs in any manner other than that required by Federal regulation and would prohibit the certificate holder from allowing any other organization or individual to use the certificate holder's certificate of registration from the Board or the DEA to purchase, possess, administer or transfer a drug for euthanasia or any other controlled substance or legend drug.

Proposed § 31.108 (relating to duties of certificate holders) would set forth duties of certificate holders, which include ensuring that euthanasia technicians are competent to humanely administer euthanasia, to provide a suitable area for activities related to euthanasia and to obtain a DEA certificate of registration. This section would also provide details of paperwork required to be submitted to the Board. Certificate holders will be required to obtain separate certificates of registration from the Board and DEA for each address where euthanasia drugs are stored or administered, and certificate holders will be required to submit a copy of the DEA Certificate of Registration to the Board within 5 business days of receiving each initial Certificate of Registration and within 5 business days of the renewal of each Certificate of Registration. The Board proposes to require certificate holders to provide a hard copy of the controlled substance log for drugs for euthanasia to the Board every 60 days, along with a summary report showing the total number of animals euthanized by species and amount of drugs administered, and the invoices for each drug ordered. These summary reports would also inform the Board of physical facility and personnel changes relevant to the

provision of euthanasia as well as any criminal convictions or disciplinary actions taken against any euthanasia technician, the supervisor of animal care services or the executive director of the certificate holder by a licensing agency of another jurisdiction.

Proposed § 31.109 (relating to area used for animal euthanasia; required equipment and supplies) would set forth requirements for the area, equipment and supplies needed to humanely perform euthanasia. This proposal is intended to provide for minimum acceptable standards.

Proposed § 31.110 (relating to approved drugs for euthanasia) would provide that the Board will publish the list of approved drugs for euthanasia that certificate holders may purchase, possess and administer in the Pennsylvania Bulletin and on the Board's web site. The Board anticipates that the list will include sodium pentobarbital and drugs that are used to sedate animals prior to administration of the sodium pentobarbital agents. This section would also provide that a certificate holder may petition the Board for the addition or deletion of drugs from the approved list. This section would limit certificate holders to using drugs for euthanasia only to provide humane euthanasia of small domestic animals at the shelter. Finally, the section would provide that certificate holders shall use drugs for euthanasia that are within their expiration date.

The provisions in proposed §§ 31.111 and 31.112 are essentially standard across all types of organizations, including both shelters and veterinary hospitals, for the storage and record keeping related to controlled substances and other drugs.

Proposed § 31.111 (relating to storage and security of drugs for euthanasia, certificates of registration and drug order forms) would direct certificate holders to the regulations of the DEA, which sets rules for the storage, security and disposal of controlled substances; would make the certificate holder the party responsible for ensuring proper storage, security and disposal of drugs for euthanasia at the shelter; would provide minimum security measures for storage of drugs for euthanasia; and would provide rules for handling paperwork associated with ordering controlled substances.

Proposed § 31.112 (relating to maintenance of records and inventories of drugs for euthanasia) would require that certificate holders comply with applicable Federal and State laws related to registration, ordering and receiving, security, record keeping and disposal of drugs for euthanasia. Furthermore, subsection (b) would require the certificate holder to maintain all drugs for euthanasia in their original container, clearly marked as to contents, until the drugs are ready to be used or reconstituted for use. Subsection (c) would require the certificate holder to maintain current and accurate records of the purchase, administration, transfer and disposal of drugs for euthanasia, to include a master logbook, drug administration records and a weekly physical inventory. Subsection (d) states the master log shall be created and maintained as required by the DEA, and subsection (e) would require a certificate holder to provide the required records to the Board or its agents upon demand, and to keep the required records as a separate form for each container of a drug for euthanasia. Furthermore, subsection (e) provides a list of information that is required to be recorded on the forms and requires records to be maintained at the shelter facility in a readily retrievable file. Subsection (f) sets forth requirements for weekly physical inventory of drugs for euthanasia. Subsection (g) requires the supervisor of animal care services or his or her designee to report

suspected or documented theft and or diversion of drugs for euthanasia to the Board and DEA immediately, and subsection (h) states a certificate holder shall maintain original copies of the records at the shelter for not less than 2 years. If a certificate holder surrenders its Board or DEA Certificate of Registration, subsections (i) and (j) state the original copies of the records required by § 31.112 shall be retained at the shelter facility if the shelter is a subsequent certificate holder, or with a custodian of records if there is no subsequent certificate holder, and the certificate holder shall dispose of drugs for euthanasia in accordance with DEA regulations and shall send a copy of the disposal documentation to the Board.

Proposed § 31.113 (relating to renewal of certificate of registration) would provide for the biennial renewal of certificates, as is the case with all of the authorizations/ licenses issued by the 29 licensing boards and commissions within the Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs. Certificates of registration would be renewed biennially before December 1 of each even-numbered year, by filing a biennial renewal application provided by the Board and paying the biennial renewal fee in § 31.104. An initial certification of registration issued at any time after June 1 of an even-numbered year would not be subject to renewal until the next even-numbered year. A certificate holder would renew the certificate prior to the expiration date of the certificate. Applications for renewal would be submitted in accordance with Board regulations and in the manner and format prescribed by the Board, and a renewed certificate of registration would be valid for a period of 2 years.

Proposed § 31.114 (relating to grounds for refusal, suspension, revocation or imposition of other disciplinary sanction) would provide that certificate holders are subject to all applicable disciplinary provisions and penalty provisions in the act, ADMAL and other laws applicable to licensees of the Board. Subsection (c) would prohibit a certificate holder or other animal protection organization from providing euthanasia to small domestic animals unless a current certificate of registration is held by the licensee or organization. Subsection (d) would provide that a certificate holder is subject to discipline for failing to admit agents of the PDA to conduct investigations or inspections that agency is authorized to conduct, for having the organization's DEA Certificate of Registration disciplined, for any enforcement action by the PDA, for failing to ensure that euthanasia technicians employed by the organization hold current licenses, and for conduct of a euthanasia technician who performs duties in an unsafe or inhumane manner, or in a manner that violates applicable law.

Proposed § 31.115 (relating to disciplinary sanctions) would explain the disciplinary sanctions the Board may impose when it finds that a certificate holder has violated the act or ADMAL, and the legal process by which the Board may take action against a certificate holder. Subsection (c) would give notice that the Board may summarily revoke the certificate of a certificate holder if the PDA revokes the organization's kennel license.

Proposed §§ 31.121—31.130 (relating to euthanasia technicians) would govern euthanasia technicians. Section 31.121 (relating to application for licensure) would set forth the application process for an individual seeking licensure as a euthanasia technician, to include filing an application, paying the required fee, and demonstrating the applicant meets the requirements of ADMAL and the applicable Board regulations. Subsections (b) and (c) would explain what may be done should the Board deny the application.

Proposed § 31.122 (relating to qualifications for licensure) would set forth the qualifications an applicant would be required to meet to be granted a license. The qualifications would include being over 18 years of age. In addition, the proposal would require an applicant to have either a high school diploma or its equivalent or, if the applicant had neither, three letters of recommendation including one letter from a licensed veterinarian. The reason for this requirement is that the duties of a euthanasia technician will include calculating the correct dosage of drugs to administer to animals based on the strength of the drug, the animal's weight and condition, and the desired effect.

Proposed § 31.122 would also provide two pathways for an applicant to demonstrate the requisite knowledge to practice as a euthanasia technician. First, as provided in ADMAL, the applicant could show completion of a euthanasia technician certification course. The Board approved a course submitted by the Humane Society of the United States and the course has been offered in several locations in this Commonwealth. The Board would also provide, by regulation, a second pathway to licensure for individuals who have been licensed under the laws of another state or territory of the United States that had similar requirements and who has been engaged in the practice for at least 1 year out of the last 5 years.

Proposed § 31.122 would also preclude licensure for an applicant who has been convicted of a drug trafficking offense as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(i) (relating to consideration of criminal convictions), a crime that directly relates to the profession as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3102 (relating to definitions), or a crime of violence as defined in 42 Pa.C.S. § 9714 (relating to sentences for second and subsequent offenses). ADMAL does not prohibit the licensure of individuals with criminal convictions, however section 304(c)(1)(ii)(C) of ADMAL (3 P.S. § 328.304(c)(1)(ii)(C)) does suggest that applicants must meet other requirements established by the Board. Section 9(b)(4) of the act (63 P.S. § 485.9(b)(4)) prohibits the licensure of individuals convicted of a felony under the Drug Act. However, the act of July 1, 2020 (P.L. 575, No. 53) (Act 53) states "provisions of the respective practice acts relating to felony drug convictions under" the Drug Act, or similar statute if convicted in another jurisdiction, "shall only apply to an individual who has been convicted of a drug trafficking offense" as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(i). It is for this reason § 31.122(a)(4) specifies that applicants for licensure as a euthanasia technician may not have been convicted of a drug trafficking offense as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(i). Furthermore, 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(b)(1) states there is a "rebuttable presumption that licensure of the individual with a criminal conviction that directly relates to the occupation, trade or profession would pose a substantial risk to the health and safety of the individual's patients or clients or the public or a substantial risk of further criminal convictions" in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(b)(1), which is why § 31.122(a)(4) precludes the licensure of individuals convicted of a crime that directly relates to the profession as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3102. Finally, 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(e) empowers the Board to license applicants convicted of a crime of violence only if the applicant meets certain enumerated criteria in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(e), which is why § 31.122(a)(4) precludes the licensure of individuals convicted of a crime of violence as defined in 42 Pa.C.S. § 9714. The Board recognizes that under certain conditions, individuals convicted of the offenses listed in § 31.122(a)(4) may still be issued a license. For this reason, the Board added language clarifying that, should

an applicant be able to demonstrate, at a hearing before the Board or its designee, the required mitigating or rehabilitative criteria as enumerated in Act 53 and 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(b)(1), as applicable, the underlying conviction need not present a barrier to licensure.

Subsection (b) would notify applicants that the Board will not consider an incomplete application. An application is not complete until all supporting documents, such as the criminal history record check or verification of licensure in other states, has been received. Subsection (c) would notify applicants that applications will be thoroughly investigated to determine the accuracy of information submitted. Subsection (d) would notify applicants that the Board may require the submission of additional information or may require an applicant to appear before the Board to provide additional information. Finally, subsection (e) would notify applicants that an application will be active for 12 months.

Proposed § 31.123 (relating to educational programs and examinations for euthanasia technicians) would address educational programs and examinations. The proposed provisions track the language of Act 182. In addition, the proposed provisions provide direction to organizations that might wish to submit a euthanasia technician training course to the Board for approval, by listing the material that must be submitted, including a copy of the evaluative tool used to measure competence of students who have completed the certification course. An examinee may be provided no more than three attempts at demonstrating competence through utilization of the administrator's evaluative tool without a requirement that the student retake the training course prior to being reevaluated. This section also notifies the public that the list of approved courses will be posted on the Board's web site.

Proposed § 31.124 (relating to reports to be filed with the Board) would notify licensees of the reports they will be required to file with the Board, within 30 days of an occurrence, including the licensee's conviction of any felony or misdemeanor offense, imposition of disciplinary or corrective action on any license from this Commonwealth or any other state, a change in employment or a change in name or mailing address.

Proposed § 31.125 (relating to employment required; services to be provided at shelter only) would notify licensees that their license authorizes them to administer drugs for euthanasia only on the shelter premises at which the licensee is employed, or with which the euthanasia technician has a contract for the provision of humane euthanasia services.

Proposed § 31.126 (relating to renewal of license, inactive status and reactivation of license) would set the biennial renewal period to match that of the other licenses issued by the Board. A euthanasia technician license would be renewed biennially before December 1 of each even-numbered year, by filing a biennial renewal application provided by the Board and paying the biennial renewal fee in § 31.104. An initial euthanasia technician license issued at any time after June 1 of an even-numbered year would not be subject to renewal until the next even-numbered year. A euthanasia technician would renew the euthanasia technician's license prior to the expiration date of the license by submitting a renewal form provided by the Board and paying the biennial renewal fee. Applications for renewal must be submitted in accordance with Board regulations and in the manner and format prescribed by the Board. A renewed license would be valid for a period of 2 years.

Proposed § 31.127 (relating to duties of euthanasia technicians) would set forth the duties of these licensees. The overarching guide to conduct, set forth in subsection (a), is to perform all euthanasia services humanely. Humane euthanasia is further defined in § 31.128 (relating to standards for euthanasia of small domestic animals). Subsection (b) provides a list of nine specific duties for licensees, including maintaining security of drugs for euthanasia, accurately recording drug administration information, and making reports as appropriate to the Board or other agency.

Proposed § 31.128 would set forth the minimum standards that must be followed in providing euthanasia services. "Humane" euthanasia would be elucidated to include language referencing the character of the services provided and the purposeful outcome of the services. Subsection (f) would provide a list of licensees authorized to administer drugs for euthanasia.

Proposed § 31.129 (relating to standards for administration of drugs for euthanasia) would provide direction to individuals administering drugs, including the requirement that an animal be held or restrained, as defined in § 31.102, unless restraining the animal would either increase the anxiety or fear of the animal or would place the person holding or restraining the animal in physical danger. In these cases, the animal must be placed alone in an enclosure appropriate for its species and size, except for dogs or cats under the age of 16 weeks or other animals that have not been weaned, which may be placed together in an enclosure with their littermates or dam. Paragraph (3) would require that an animal handler be available to assist the individual administering drugs for euthanasia.

Paragraph (4) would require chemical restraint to be used consistent with accepted standards to minimize distress to the animal or danger to the staff. This provision represents the Board's judgment, based on current available information, that the provision of chemical restraint prior to euthanasia is the prevailing and acceptable standard of practice that must be followed unless to do so would be likely to cause more distress to the animal. The objective is to minimize distress and maximize safety.

Paragraph (5) would echo the statutory mandate that intravenous injection be the standard method of euthanasia for dogs and cats, unless the age, physical condition, size or behavior of the animal presents a danger to the individual performing the injection or the animal handler, or if the physical restraint necessary for intravenous injection would cause unnecessary fear or anxiety in the animal. Paragraph (6) would address the limited circumstances under which intraperitoneal injection may be used, and it sets forth what must be done after an intraperitoneal injection.

Paragraph (7) would require the gauge and length of the needle or catheter used to be appropriate to minimize pain and distress for the size and species of the animal and the method of injection. Paragraph (8) would require a new, unused disposable needle or catheter of medical quality to be used for the administration of drugs for euthanasia for each animal, with each needle or catheter being disposed of in a commercial sharps container immediately after a single use.

Proposed § 31.130 (relating to grounds for refusal, suspension, revocation or imposition of other disciplinary sanction) would provide notice that licensed euthanasia technicians are subject to all of the disciplinary and penalty provisions in the act, ADMAL, this chapter and other applicable law. Furthermore, this section prohibits an individual who is not licensed by the Board or otherwise authorized by law to perform euthanasia from providing euthanasia to animals subject to ADMAL. Violations may be prosecuted before the Board and may be referred for criminal prosecution.

#### Fiscal Impact

This proposed rulemaking is not expected to have a fiscal impact on the general public. Animal protection organizations that seek a certificate of registration and individuals who seek a license as a euthanasia technician will be required to pay fees set forth in this proposed rulemaking. There may be costs associated with compliance with the facility and equipment requirements for existing facilities that do not currently comply. An estimate of the cost of compliance with this proposed rulemaking is set forth in the Regulatory Analysis Form (RAF) required by the Independent Regulatory Review Commission (IRRC), which is available on request.

#### Paperwork Requirements

This proposed rulemaking does not create additional paperwork for the Board, the Board's licensees or the general public. Certificate holders and licensed euthanasia technicians will be required to complete required paperwork relating to the purchase, dispensing and disposal of drugs used for euthanasia, but these requirements are set by Federal regulations and are included in this proposed rulemaking for ease of reference. Certificate holders and licensed euthanasia technicians will be required to complete biennial renewal applications and to submit updated information to the Board as set forth in this proposed rulemaking.

#### Sunset Date

The Board continuously monitors its regulations as required by Executive Order 1996-1. Therefore, no sunset date has been assigned.

#### Regulatory Review

Under section 5(a) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5(a)), on March 10, 2022, the Board submitted a copy of this proposed rulemaking and a copy of the RAF to IRRC and to the Chairpersons of the Senate Consumer Protection and Professional Licensure Committee and the House Professional Licensure Committee. A copy of this material is available to the public upon request.

Under section 5(g) of the Regulatory Review Act, IRRC may convey any comments, recommendations or objections to the proposed rulemaking within 30 days of the close of the public comment period. The comments, recommendations or objections shall specify the regulatory review criteria in section 5.2 of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. § 745.5b) which have not been met. The Regulatory Review Act specifies detailed procedures for review, prior to final publication of the rulemaking by the Board, the General Assembly and the Governor.

#### Public Comment

Interested persons are invited to submit written comments, suggestions or objections regarding this proposed rulemaking to the Board Counsel, State Board of Veterinary Medicine, P.O. Box 69523, Harrisburg, PA 17106-9523 or by e-mail at RA-STRegulatoryCounsel@pa.gov, within 30 days of publication of this proposed rulemaking in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. Reference No. 16A-5726, Euthanasia, when submitting comments.

> THOMAS N. GARG, VMD, Chairperson

**Fiscal Note:** 16A-5726. No fiscal impact; (8) recommends adoption.

#### Annex A

#### TITLE 49. PROFESSIONAL AND VOCATIONAL STANDARDS

#### PART I. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

#### Subpart A. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL AFFAIRS

#### CHAPTER 31. STATE BOARD OF VETERINARY MEDICINE

#### Subchap.

#### A. VETERINARIANS, CERTIFIED VETERINARY TECHNICIANS AND VETERINARY ASSISTANTS

# B. ANIMAL PROTECTION ORGANIZATIONS AND EUTHANASIA TECHNICIANS

(*Editor's Note*: The following subchapter is proposed to be added and is printed in regular type to enhance readability.)

#### Subchapter B. ANIMAL PROTECTION ORGANIZATIONS AND EUTHANASIA TECHNICIANS

#### GENERAL PROVISIONS

- Sec.
- 31.101. Applicability of subchapter.
- 31.102. Definitions.
- 31.103. Applicability of other laws and rules.31.104. Schedule of fees.

#### CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION FOR ANIMAL PROTECTION ORGANIZATIONS

- 31.105. Application for certificate of registration.
- 31.106. Qualifications for a certificate of registration; duty to update certification information.
- 31.107. Authority of certificate holders to purchase, possess and administer controlled substances; limitations on authority.
- 31.108. Duties of certificate holders.
- 31.109. Area used for animal euthanasia; required equipment and supplies.
- 31.110. Approved drugs for euthanasia.
- 31.111. Storage and security of drugs for euthanasia, certificates of registration and drug order forms.
- 31.112. Maintenance of records and inventories of drugs for euthanasia.
- 31.113. Renewal of certificate of registration.
- 31.114. Grounds for refusal, suspension, revocation or imposition of other disciplinary sanction.
- 31.115. Disciplinary sanctions.

#### EUTHANASIA TECHNICIANS

- 31.121. Application for licensure.
- 31.122. Qualifications for licensure.
- Educational programs and examinations for euthanasia technicians.
- 31.124. Reports to be filed with the Board.
- 31.125. Employment required; services to be provided at shelter only.
- 31.126. Renewal of license, inactive status and reactivation of license.
- 31.127. Duties of euthanasia technicians.
- 31.128. Standards for euthanasia of small domestic animals.
- 31.129. Standards for administration of drugs for euthanasia.
- 31.130. Grounds for refusal, suspension, revocation or imposition of other disciplinary sanction.

#### GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### § 31.101. Applicability of subchapter.

Subchapter B shall apply to all animal protection organizations operating in this Commonwealth and all individuals, except those exempted by statute, that provide, either personally or through contract or other arrangement, euthanasia for small domestic animals, whether or not the animal protection organization orders drugs for euthanasia under the certificate granted by the Board.

#### § 31.102. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this subchapter, have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

ADMAL—The Animal Destruction Method Authorization Law (3 P.S. §§ 328.101—328.1101).

Animal protection organization—A nonprofit society or association incorporated under 15 Pa.C.S. Chapter 53, Subchapter A (relating to incorporation generally) for the purpose of the prevention of cruelty to animals or a municipality which operates an animal shelter.

*Certificate holder*—An animal protection organization that holds a current certificate of registration issued by the Board.

*Chemical restraint*—The use, through administration by routes recommended by the manufacturer, of drugs for euthanasia to sedate or tranquilize an animal prior to the provision of euthanasia.

 $D\!E\!A\!-\!\!$  The United States Drug Enforcement Administration.

Drug for euthanasia—A commercially available injectable drug or combination of drugs approved by the Federal Food and Drug Administration and the Board for the purpose of euthanasia of small domestic animals and chemical restraint approved by the Board for use in conjunction with the euthanasia of small domestic animals.

*Euthanasia technician*—An individual who holds a current euthanasia technician license issued by the Board.

OSHA—The Occupational Safety and Health Administration within the United States Department of Labor.

PDA-The Pennsylvania Department of Agriculture.

*Restraint*—A safe and humane method of restricting an animal's movement, including holding the animal or placing the animal in an appropriately-sized enclosure.

*Shelter*—The physical facility at which a certificate holder provides humane euthanasia in accordance with ADMAL.

*Small domestic animals*—Cats and dogs, and any of the following animals whose general intended purpose is to be kept and cared for as household pets: rabbits, mice, rats, hamsters, guinea pigs, ferrets, birds, reptiles and amphibians.

Supervisor of animal care services—The individual who is generally onsite at the shelter facility of a certificate holder and who is responsible to the animal protection organization for animal care services including euthanasia and supervision of euthanasia technicians.

#### § 31.103. Applicability of other laws and rules.

(a) Individuals and certificate holders are subject to the act, ADMAL, this chapter and all other applicable law. For purposes of this section, applicable law includes all of the following:

(1) The Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic Act (35 P.S. \$ 780-101—780-144).

(2) The Dog Law (3 P.S. §§ 459-101-459-1206).

(3) Regulations of the PDA, the DEA and OSHA.

(4) Any other or subsequent statute, rule or regulation of any government entity, whether Federal, State or local, relevant to the purchase, possession and administration of drugs for euthanasia of animals covered by ADMAL, the handling of animals, or the disposal of animal remains.

(b) Except as set forth in ADMAL, activities and proceedings before the Board are subject to 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law) and 1 Pa. Code §§ 31.1—35.251 (relating to General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure).

#### § 31.104. Schedule of fees.

The Board will charge the following fees for the administration of this subchapter:

Animal protection organizations:

Application for certificate of registration (includes initial inspection)\$244
Re-inspection fee\$216
Biennial renewal of certificate of registration \$50
Late renewal fee—per month or part of month \$5
Euthanasia technicians:
Application for initial license \$87
Application for approval of employment change \$81
Verification of licensure \$15
Biennial renewal \$25
Late renewal fee—per month or part of month \$5

#### CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION FOR ANIMAL PROTECTION ORGANIZATIONS

#### § 31.105. Application for certificate of registration.

(a) An applicant for a certificate of registration from the Board shall file an application in accordance with this chapter and in the manner and format prescribed by the Board.

(b) An applicant for a certificate of registration with the Board shall pay the fee set forth in § 31.104 (relating to schedule of fees) upon submission of the application.

(c) An applicant for a certificate of registration with the Board shall demonstrate that it meets the requirements of ADMAL and this chapter.

#### § 31.106. Qualifications for a certificate of registration; duty to update certification information.

(a) The Board may issue a certificate of registration to an animal protection organization that meets all of the following requirements:

(1) Demonstrates that it is a nonprofit society or association incorporated in this Commonwealth for the purpose of the prevention of cruelty to animals or is a municipality which operates an animal shelter.

(2) Demonstrates that the supervisor of animal care services has completed the didactic portion of a Boardapproved euthanasia technician certification course.

(3) Demonstrates, by submission of a criminal history record check, that the supervisor of animal care services has not been convicted of a drug trafficking offense as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(i) (relating to consideration of criminal convictions), a crime that directly relates to the profession as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3102 (relating to definitions), or a crime of violence as defined in 42 Pa.C.S. § 9714 (relating to sentences for second and subsequent offenses), unless the supervisor of animal care services demonstrates, at a hearing before the Board or

its designee, the required mitigating or rehabilitative criteria as enumerated in the act and 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(b)(1), as applicable.

(4) Demonstrates, through a precertification inspection by agents of the Board, that the animal protection organization has adequate shelter facilities to safely and humanely purchase, possess and administer drugs for euthanasia.

(5) Submits the names of all euthanasia technicians employed by or under contract with the animal protection organization to administer euthanasia drugs to animals.

(6) Submits the names of any licensed veterinarian associated with the animal protection organization, along with a description of the association.

(b) An application will not be considered until the application is complete and is accompanied by the required fee set forth in § 31.104 (relating to schedule of fees).

(c) An application for certificate of registration will be thoroughly investigated.

(d) An animal protection organization applying for a certificate of registration will be inspected by agents of the Board to determine if the equipment and facilities of the organization meet the requirements of this subchapter. An animal protection organization that does not meet the requirements of this subchapter may not commence or continue operations until the organization has been inspected again and found to be compliant. An animal protection organization shall pay the re-inspection fee set forth in § 31.104 prior to re-inspection.

(e) The Board reserves the authority to require an applicant to provide additional information or evidence to support the application for certificate of registration. The Board may require an applicant to appear before the Board to provide the Board this additional information or evidence.

(f) An application submitted to the Board will be active for a period of 12 months from the date the application is signed and verified by the applicant. If an application is dormant for a period of more than 12 months, it will be deemed withdrawn and a new application, including payment of the application fee, will be required should the applicant later seek registration.

(g) An applicant shall update the application if any information on the application changes prior to issuance of the certificate of registration.

#### § 31.107. Authority of certificate holders to purchase, possess and administer controlled substances; limitations on authority.

(a) A certificate holder that holds a current, unrestricted DEA Certificate of Registration may do all of the following:

(1) Purchase, possess and administer, through its authorized agents, drugs for euthanasia.

(2) Transfer drugs for euthanasia to a currently licensed euthanasia technician or veterinarian who is employed by or under contract with the certificate holder to provide euthanasia to animals for the purpose of administration to animals; provided, however, that the drugs for euthanasia may only be used to provide euthanasia at the shelter.

(3) Dispose of drugs for euthanasia in accordance with law.

(b) A certificate holder may not do any of the following:

(1) Purchase, possess or administer any controlled substance or any other legend drug which is not a drug for euthanasia.

(2) Transfer a drug for euthanasia to anyone other than a currently licensed euthanasia technician or veterinarian employed by or under contract with the animal protection organization to provide euthanasia on the premises of the certificate holder.

(3) Authorize, permit or allow any drug for euthanasia purchased or possessed by the certificate holder under the authority of ADMAL to leave the premises of the shelter.

(4) Authorize, permit, or allow the disposal of drugs for euthanasia in any manner other than that required by law.

(5) Authorize, permit or allow any other individual or animal protection organization to use the certificate holder's certificate of registration issued by the Board or DEA Certificate of Registration to purchase, possess, administer or transfer a drug for euthanasia or any other controlled substance or legend drug.

#### § 31.108. Duties of certificate holders.

(a) A certificate holder shall do all of the following:

(1) Ensure that a euthanasia technician providing euthanasia at the shelter is clinically competent to humanely administer euthanasia.

(2) Provide an area suitable for storage of drugs and equipment for euthanasia, and for the provision of euthanasia, in accordance with § 31.109 (relating to area used for animal euthanasia; required equipment and supplies).

(3) Register with and receive a certificate of registration from the DEA prior to the purchase, possession or administration of any drugs for euthanasia.

(4) Obtain separate certificates of registration from the Board and DEA for each address where euthanasia drugs are stored or administered.

(5) Submit a copy of the DEA Certificate of Registration to the Board within 5 business days of receiving each initial certificate of registration and within 5 business days of the renewal of each certificate of registration.

(6) Provide a hard copy of the controlled substance log for drugs for euthanasia to the Board every 60 days, along with a summary report which shall show, for the prior 60-day period, the total number of animals euthanized by species and copies of any invoices for each drug ordered showing the potency and quantity of each drug ordered.

(7) Cooperate with the Board and its agents in the inspection of the euthanasia facility, inspection of licenses and registrations, and investigation of complaints filed with the Board.

(b) In addition to the information required under subsection (a)(1)—(7), the 60-day summary report shall include notification of the following, as applicable:

(1) Change of supervisor of animal care services, including proof that the new supervisor of animal care services has completed the didactic portion of a Boardapproved euthanasia technician course.

(2) Change or addition of euthanasia technician, including the name and license number of the new or additional euthanasia technician or technicians employed by or under contract with the animal protection organization. (3) Change to the list of personnel authorized to access drugs for euthanasia under § 31.111(c) (relating to storage and security of drugs for euthanasia, certificates of registration and drug order forms).

(4) A disciplinary action taken against any euthanasia technician, the supervisor of animal care services or the executive director of the certificate holder by a licensing agency of another jurisdiction, or a finding or verdict of guilt, an admission of guilt, a plea of nolo contendere, probation without verdict, a disposition in lieu of trial or an Accelerated Rehabilitative Disposition of any felony or misdemeanor.

(5) Change in the physical location or significant changes to shelter, and if applicable, demonstration that a new DEA Certificate of Registration has been obtained for the new address.

# § 31.109. Area used for animal euthanasia; required equipment and supplies.

(a) A certificate holder shall provide an area used for animal euthanasia at a shelter that meets all of the following requirements:

(1) Is separated from the rest of the shelter and from public view, is not used for any other purpose while an animal is being euthanized, and in which unrelated animals are not present.

(2) Has bright and even lighting. Additional lighting over the location where euthanasia agents are administered by injection is highly recommended.

(3) Has an ambient temperature that is between 60 and 80 degrees Fahrenheit.

(4) Has adequate ventilation to prevent the accumulation of odors, including at least one exhaust fan.

(5) Has flooring which is dry and non-slip to prevent accidents and is easy to clean and disinfect.

(6) Is kept clean and disinfected.

(b) A certificate holder shall provide, at a minimum, the following equipment and supplies for the area used for animal euthanasia:

(1) A table or work area where an animal can be handled and restrained while being euthanized. The surface must be easily disinfected and appropriate for the species and size of animals euthanized by the animal protection organization.

(2) A cabinet, table or workbench where the controlled dangerous substances, needles, catheters, syringes, clippers and other equipment and supplies can be placed while euthanasia is being performed. This surface should be adjacent to, but separate from, the area where the animals are handled.

(3) A hand-washing sink that can be easily accessed by the animal protection organization's euthanasia technician and animal handler. For purposes of this provision, the sink must be no more than 30 feet from the area where euthanasia is conducted. Animal protection organizations with alternate physical layouts may request a variance from this provision.

(4) Emergency eye wash equipment in working order that can be easily accessed by the animal protection organization's euthanasia technician and animal handler. For purposes of this provision, the emergency eye wash equipment must be no more than 30 feet from the area where euthanasia is conducted. Animal protection organizations with alternate physical layouts may request a variance from this provision. (5) Documented procedure for providing clean and sanitary towels.

(6) Equipment and supplies as needed for adequate room sanitation, such as detergents, disinfectants, paper towels, brooms and mops.

(7) Eye or face protection for personnel reconstituting drugs for euthanasia, performing injections or restraining animals for injection.

(8) Disposable medical exam gloves.

(9) Suitable personal protective equipment, including animal handling gloves.

(10) An assortment of muzzles or appropriate disposable material which can be used for muzzles.

(11) A control stick for dogs.

(12) Capture/restraint nets suitable for the species and size of animals normally handled by the certificate holder and constructed of materials that can be sanitized.

 $\left( 13\right)$  Towels of terry cloth or other fabric suitable for restraining animals.

(14) Hair clippers with a minimum of two sets of # 30 or # 40 or equivalent size clipper blades, maintained sharp and in good condition.

(15) Quick-release tourniquets appropriate for the sizes of animals normally handled by the certificate holder.

(16) A supply of 18, 20 and 22 gauge disposable needles of medical quality in appropriate lengths and in other gauges and lengths as required by the species and size of animals normally handled by the certificate holder, in a quantity appropriate considering the number of animals euthanized by the certificate holder over a period of time and the schedule for ordering these supplies.

(17) A supply of disposable syringes of medical quality in sizes appropriate for the volumes of drugs which must be administered based on the species and sizes of animals normally handled by the certificate holder, in a quantity appropriate considering the number of animals euthanized by the certificate holder over a period of time and the schedule for ordering these supplies.

(18) A commercially available sharps container for used needles and syringes, constructed of puncture resistant material and which complies with 29 CFR 1910.1030(d)(2)(viii) (relating to bloodborne pathogens).

(19) A stethoscope.

(20) A penlight and spare batteries.

(21) Hand soap.

(22) A first-aid kit for humans, which includes, at a minimum, the supplies suggested by the American Red Cross for a first aid kit for a family of four.

(23) A spill kit, as defined by OSHA, suitable for cleaning spills of drugs for euthanasia.

(24) A freezer, refrigerator or mortuary cooler for the storage of the remains of euthanized animals pending disposition.

(c) The equipment and supplies must be kept clean, free of dust or other foreign matter and in good working order. The equipment and supplies must be stored in an orderly, safe manner.

#### § 31.110. Approved drugs for euthanasia.

(a) The Board will publish the list of approved drugs for euthanasia that certificate holders may purchase, possess and administer in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and on the Board's web site. The Board may update the list of approved drugs for euthanasia by adding or deleting drugs from the approved list to conform to standards of practice that are acceptable in the veterinary medical community. Changes to the list of approved drugs will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and on the Board's web site.

(b) A certificate holder may petition the Board for the addition or deletion of drugs for euthanasia on the Board's approved list by filing a written petition with the Board setting out the request and justification for the request, as if a petition for amendment of regulations under 1 Pa. Code § 35.18 (relating to petitions for issuance, amendment, waiver or deletion of regulations).

(c) A certificate holder may use drugs for euthanasia only to provide humane euthanasia of small domestic animals within the shelter facility.

(d) A certificate holder shall use drugs for euthanasia within the expiration date printed on the primary commercial container by the manufacturer.

#### § 31.111. Storage and security of drugs for euthanasia, certificates of registration and drug order forms.

(a) A certificate holder shall store all drugs for euthanasia in accordance with the Federal regulations at the level of security required for practitioners at 21 CFR 1301.71—1301.77 (relating to security requirements). The level of security required may vary depending on the registered location, the number of employees and other personnel who have access to the area where drugs for euthanasia are stored, the quantity of drugs for euthanasia kept on hand and the prior history of theft or diversion. Specific questions regarding the adequacy of security measures shall be directed to the DEA.

(b) A certificate holder shall provide for the storage, security and disposal of drugs for euthanasia at the shelter. Acceptable storage and security is required at the location for which the animal protection organization is registered with the Board and DEA. Expired drugs shall be disposed of in accordance with Federal law and implementing regulations at 21 CFR Part 1317 (relating to disposal).

(c) A certificate holder shall store all drugs for euthanasia in a securely locked, substantially constructed cabinet which is securely attached to the building in which it is housed, and which is accessible only to personnel authorized by the animal protection organization to have access to the drugs. A list of individuals authorized to have access to the drugs shall be provided to the Board upon initial inspection, reinspection or upon request.

(d) A certificate holder shall store drugs for euthanasia in an environment that meets the manufacturer's recommendations for proper storage.

(e) A certificate holder shall maintain its original DEA Certificate of Registration in the cabinet or safe or separately securely locked metal container within the cabinet or safe, as appropriate, so that it is accessible only to the shelter director in charge of ordering or purchasing drugs for euthanasia or an individual who has a current DEA Certificate of Registration.

(f) A certificate holder shall secure unexecuted order forms for Schedule II drugs (DEA Form 222) in a cabinet or safe or separately securely locked metal container within the cabinet or safe, as appropriate, which is accessible only to the shelter director or an individual who has a current DEA Certificate of Registration for Schedule II drugs.

# § 31.112. Maintenance of records and inventories of drugs for euthanasia.

(a) A certificate holder shall comply with all applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations relating to registration, ordering and receiving, security, record keeping, inventory and disposal of drugs for euthanasia.

(b) A certificate holder shall maintain all drugs for euthanasia in their original container, clearly marked as to contents, until the drugs are ready to be used or reconstituted for use.

(c) A certificate holder shall maintain current accurate records of the purchase, administration, transfer and disposal of drugs for euthanasia. These records shall consist of all of the following:

(1) A master logbook containing information about the purchase, receipt and disposal of all drugs for euthanasia.

 $\left(2\right)$  Drug administration records for every drug for euthanasia.

(3) A weekly physical inventory of all drugs for euthanasia.

(d) The master log shall be created and maintained as required by the DEA.

(e) The drug administration records shall meet all of the following requirements:

 $\left(1\right)$  Be made available to the Board or its agents on demand.

(2) Consist of a separate form for each container of a drug for euthanasia on which all of the following information is recorded:

(A) The generic name of the drug for euthanasia.

(B) The volume of the container.

(C) The concentration of the drug for euthanasia in milligrams per milliliter, capsule or tablet, as applicable.

(D) The species, weight and individual identification number, if applicable, of every animal to which the contents of the container were administered, the route of administration and the volume or amount of drugs for euthanasia administered.

(F) The remaining balance of the drugs for euthanasia in the container.

(3) Be maintained at the shelter facility in a readily retrievable file.

(f) The weekly physical inventory of drugs for euthanasia shall meet all of the following requirements:

(1) Be conducted in accordance with DEA regulations at 21 CFR 1304.11 (relating to inventory requirements) and be recorded on a form acceptable to the DEA.

(2) Be signed or initialed by the supervisor of animal care services.

(3) Be maintained in a readily retrievable file at the shelter where the drugs are stored.

(g) The supervisor of animal care services or his or her designee shall report suspected or documented theft and or diversion of drugs for euthanasia to the Board and DEA immediately.

(h) A certificate holder shall maintain original copies of the records at the shelter for not less than 2 years.

(i) If a certificate holder surrenders its Board or DEA Certificate of Registration for a shelter, the original copies of the records required by this section shall be retained at the shelter facility if the shelter is a subsequent certificate holder. If the shelter is not a subsequent certificate holder, or if retaining the records at the shelter facility is impossible or impracticable, the certificate holder shall notify the Board in writing at least 30 days prior to the date a certificate holder surrenders its Board or DEA Certificate of Registration. The written notice must include instructions on how to obtain copies of the records from the custodian of the records and the name, address and telephone number of the custodian of records. The custodian of records shall maintain original copies of the records for not less than 2 years.

(j) If a certificate holder surrenders its Board or DEA Certificate of Registration, the certificate holder shall dispose of drugs for euthanasia in accordance with DEA regulations at 21 CFR Part 1317 (relating to disposal) and shall send a copy of the disposal documentation to the Board.

#### § 31.113. Renewal of certificate of registration.

A certificate of registration shall be renewed biennially before December 1 of each even-numbered year, by filing a biennial renewal application provided by the Board and paying the biennial renewal fee in § 31.104 (relating to schedule of fees). An initial certification of registration issued at any time after June 1 of an even-numbered year will not be subject to renewal until the next evennumbered year. A certificate holder shall renew the certificate prior to the expiration date of the certificate. Applications for renewal must be submitted in accordance with this subchapter and in the manner and format prescribed by the Board. A renewed certificate of registration is valid for a period of 2 years.

#### § 31.114. Grounds for refusal, suspension, revocation or imposition of other disciplinary sanction.

(a) A certificate holder is subject to the disciplinary provisions in the act, including the authorization for the Board to discipline any license or certificate in section 21 of the act (63 P.S. § 485.21), which applies to the certificate of registration granted to an animal protection organization, for violating the act, this chapter and other applicable law as set forth in § 31.103 (relating to applicability of other laws and rules). The Board may refer matters related to a certificate holder to other civil, criminal or administrative agencies for investigation.

(b) A certificate holder is subject to the penalty provisions in the act, ADMAL, this chapter and other applicable law.

(c) A certificate holder or an animal protection organization that does not hold a current certificate of registration with the Board may not provide euthanasia to small domestic animals under ADMAL. The following apply:

(1) Violations of this section may be prosecuted before the Board under the act, ADMAL, 63 Pa.C.S. § 3108 (relating to civil penalties) or this chapter.

(2) The Board may refer any suspected or proven violation of the act, ADMAL, 63 Pa.C.S. § 3108 or this chapter for criminal prosecution.

(d) A certificate holder is subject to discipline by the Board for all of the following:

(1) Failing to admit agents of the Board to conduct investigations or inspections of the certificate holder's compliance with applicable laws or for failing to admit agents of the PDA to conduct investigations or inspections that the PDA is authorized to conduct.

(2) Having discipline imposed by the DEA on the DEA Certificate of Registration or any enforcement action by the PDA.

(3) Failing to ensure that euthanasia technicians employed by or under contract with the certificate holder hold a current license issued by the Board.

(4) Allowing a euthanasia technician to perform duties in an unsafe or inhumane manner or in a manner that violates applicable law.

#### § 31.115. Disciplinary sanctions.

(a) When the Board finds that a certificate holder or unlicensed entity performing euthanasia has violated the act or ADMAL, the Board may suspend or revoke the certificate of registration, impose other disciplinary sanctions set forth in section 24 of the act (63 P.S. § 485.24) and may impose civil penalties provided for in section 28 of the act (63 P.S. § 485.28), in section 502 of ADMAL (3 P.S. § 328.502) and in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3108 (relating to civil penalties).

(b) Disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with the procedures set forth in the act, 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law) and 1 Pa. Code §§ 31.1—35.251 (relating to General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure).

(c) The Board may summarily revoke the certificate of a certificate holder if the PDA revokes a license associated with the shelter or certificate holder.

#### **EUTHANASIA TECHNICIANS**

#### § 31.121. Application for licensure.

(a) An applicant for licensure as a euthanasia technician shall do all of the following:

(1) File an application for licensure in a manner and format approved by the Board.

(2) Pay the application fee in § 31.104 (relating to schedule of fees) which shall be submitted with the application. Application fees are nonrefundable, regardless of the Board's determination as to whether a license will issue.

(3) Demonstrate that the applicant meets the requirements of ADMAL and this chapter.

(b) An applicant whose application for licensure has been provisionally denied by the Board is entitled to a hearing at which the applicant will bear the burden of demonstrating that the application should be granted.

(c) Final denial of an application for licensure is subject to appeal to the Commonwealth Court of Pennsylvania.

#### § 31.122. Qualifications for licensure.

(a) The Board may issue a euthanasia technician license to an applicant who pays the application fee in § 31.104 (relating to schedule of fees) and submits satisfactory evidence that the applicant meets all of the following requirements:

(1) Is 18 years of age or older.

(2) Has received a high school diploma or its equivalent. If the applicant does not meet this requirement, the applicant may submit at least three letters or recommendation attesting to applicant's ability to perform the functions of a euthanasia technician, including at least one recommendation from a veterinarian licensed in this Commonwealth or another state. (3) Has adequate knowledge of the potential hazards and proper techniques to be used in the administration of euthanasia drugs by satisfying the requirements of this section and meets at least one of the following criteria:

(i) Has successfully completed a euthanasia technician certification course, including at least 14 hours of instruction, which is administered by an animal protection organization or school approved by the Board under § 31.123 (relating to educational programs and examinations for euthanasia technicians) to administer the course and is listed on the Board's web site as an approved course.

(ii) Is a euthanasia technician registered or licensed under the laws of another state or territory of the United States which has requirements substantially similar to the requirements of this section and who presents satisfactory proof to the Board of being engaged in the practice of euthanasia for a period of at least 1 year out of the past 5 years.

(4) Has not been convicted of a drug trafficking offense as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(i) (relating to consideration of criminal convictions), a crime that directly relates to the profession as defined in 63 Pa.C.S. § 3102 (relating to definitions), or a crime of violence as defined in 42 Pa.C.S. § 9714 (relating to sentences for second and subsequent offenses), unless the applicant demonstrates, at a hearing before the Board or its designee, the required mitigating or rehabilitative criteria as enumerated in the act and 63 Pa.C.S. § 3113(b)(1), as applicable.

(b) An application will not be considered until the application is complete, including providing a criminal background check, obtaining verification of licensure in other states or making personal written statements regarding matters related to the qualifications for licensure as instructed by Board staff.

(c) An application for licensure will be thoroughly investigated. The Board or its agents may inquire from the references or by other means the Board deems expedient as to the accuracy of the information submitted. If the replies from the references cited are not received within a reasonable time, the Board will notify the applicant so the applicant can provide additional references. Information obtained in the investigation of an application will be maintained by the Board as a permanent record and will remain the property of the Board.

(d) The Board reserves the authority to require an applicant to provide additional information or evidence to support the application for licensure. The Board may require an applicant to appear before the Board to provide the Board with additional information or evidence.

(e) An application submitted to the Board will be active for a period of 12 months from the date the application is signed and verified by the applicant. If an application is dormant for a period of more than 12 months, it will be deemed withdrawn and a new application and application fee will be required should the applicant later seek licensure.

# § 31.123. Educational programs and examinations for euthanasia technicians.

(a) In accordance with section 304(c)(1)(ii)(A) of ADMAL (3 P.S. § 304(c)(1)(ii)(A)), the Board may approve euthanasia technician certification courses that include at least 14 hours of instruction, administered by any of the following:

(1) The National Animal Control Association.

(2) The American Humane Association.

(3) The Humane Society of the United States.

(4) The Pennsylvania Veterinary Medical Association.

(5) The University of Pennsylvania School of Veterinary Medicine.

(6) The Federated Humane Societies of Pennsylvania.

 $\left(7\right)$  Another organization or school approved by the Board.

(b) The Board will announce the list of approved euthanasia technician certification courses on its web site.

(c) Administrators of euthanasia technician certification courses that wish to be included on the list of Board-approved courses shall submit all of the following to the Board:

(1) A list of the minimum qualifications of instructors who will teach the courses.

(2) A copy of the program curriculum, which must consist of a minimum of 14 hours of instruction and must evidence the ability to provide certificate holders with the knowledge and ability to provide humane handling and euthanasia to small domestic animals in this Commonwealth by the administration of injectable agents by intravenous and intraperitoneal injection. Curriculum must include content in all of the following:

(i) Humane handling and appropriate restraint of animals for euthanasia.

 $(\mathrm{ii})$  Appropriate criteria and techniques to verify the death of an animal.

(iii) Proper handling of drugs for euthanasia.

 $(\mathrm{iv})$  Proper security and storage of drugs for euthanasia.

 $\left(v\right)$  Required documentation related to drugs for euthanasia.

(vi) Correct calculation of a dosage of drugs for euthanasia.

(vii) Universal precautions for handling and disposal of needles and syringes.

(viii) Preparation of injection site.

(ix) Injection technique for intravenous injection.

(x) Injection technique for intraperitoneal injection.

(xi) Appropriate uses of intraperitoneal injection.

(3) A copy of the evaluative tool used to measure competence of students who have completed the certification course. An examinee may be provided no more than three attempts at demonstrating competence through utilization of the administrator's evaluative tool without a requirement that the student retake the training course prior to being reevaluated.

#### § 31.124. Reports to be filed with the Board.

(a) A licensed euthanasia technician shall provide written notice of any of the following to the Board within 30 days:

(1) A disciplinary action taken against the licensee by a licensing agency of another jurisdiction.

(2) A finding or verdict of guilt, an admission of guilt, a plea of nolo contendere, probation without verdict, a disposition in lieu of trial or an Accelerated Rehabilitative Disposition of any felony or misdemeanor offense.

(3) A change in the licensee's employment.

(4) A change in the licensee's name or mailing address.

(b) The Board may take disciplinary action against a licensee who violates this section.

#### § 31.125. Employment required; services to be provided at shelter only.

A euthanasia technician license authorizes the license holder to administer drugs for euthanasia only on the shelter premises at which the euthanasia technician is employed or with which the euthanasia technician has a contract for the provision of humane euthanasia services.

# § 31.126. Renewal of license, inactive status and reactivation of license.

(a) A euthanasia technician license shall be renewed biennially before December 1 of each even-numbered year, by filing a biennial renewal application provided by the Board and paying the biennial renewal fee in § 31.104 (relating to schedule of fees). An initial euthanasia technician license issued at any time after June 1 of an even-numbered year will not be subject to renewal until the next even-numbered year.

(b) A euthanasia technician shall renew the euthanasia technician's license prior to the expiration date of the license by submitting a renewal form provided by the Board and paying the biennial renewal fee. Applications for renewal must be submitted in accordance with this subchapter and in the manner and format prescribed by the Board. A renewed license is valid for a period of 2 years.

#### § 31.127. Duties of euthanasia technicians.

(a) A euthanasia technician shall perform euthanasia services humanely, as further set forth in § 31.128 (relating to standards for euthanasia of small domestic animals).

(b) A euthanasia technician shall do all of the following:

(1) Maintain the euthanasia technician's license in active status.

(2) Provide updated information to the Board as set forth in § 31.124 (relating to reports to be filed with the Board).

(3) Perform animal euthanasia in accordance with ADMAL and this chapter.

(4) If chemical restraint is not used, document the specific circumstances that make the administration of chemical restraint more likely to cause more distress to a particular animal.

(5) If intravenous injection of euthanasia solution cannot be used, document the physical condition, size or behavior of any dog or cat over the age of 16 weeks and any other animal to support the use of peritoneal injection. (6) Verify death of an animal by examination and establishment of the absence of heartbeat and respiration and lack of corneal and pupillary reflexes before disposal of the body.

(7) Maintain the security of all controlled substances and other drugs used for the purposes of animal euthanasia.

(8) Promptly and accurately record the quantity of controlled substances and other drugs used for euthanasia and any drug waste.

(9) Immediately report suspected or documented theft or diversion of controlled substances and other drugs used for the purposes of animal euthanasia to the Board and the DEA.

#### § 31.128. Standards for euthanasia of small domestic animals.

(a) In accordance with ADMAL, the euthanasia of small domestic animals in the custody of a certificate holder shall comply with the standards set forth in this subchapter.

(b) Euthanasia of animals shall be performed by administration of drugs for euthanasia approved by the Board.

(c) Euthanasia shall be provided in a humane manner, meaning that services are provided in a professional and gentle manner with respect for the individual animal and nature of that animal and its species, with the goal of minimizing pain, fright and anxiety in the animal being euthanized and any other animals in the area, using the best available ethical and veterinary medical knowledge and technology.

(d) The animal shall be kept as free from pain, fear and anxiety as possible.

(e) Death shall be confirmed by the cessation of all vital signs.

(f) Drugs for euthanasia shall be administered in a registered facility only by:

(1) A licensed veterinarian.

(2) A licensed euthanasia technician, acting in accordance with ADMAL and this subchapter.

# § 31.129. Standards for administration of drugs for euthanasia.

An individual administering drugs for euthanasia shall comply with all of the following standards:

(1) An animal shall be restrained, as defined in § 31.102 (relating to definitions), after injection of drugs for euthanasia until the animal is unconscious, except as provided in paragraph (2).

(2) If an animal should not be held or restrained because holding or other physical restraint would either increase the anxiety or fear of the animal or would place the person holding or restraining the animal in physical danger, it shall be placed alone in an enclosure which is appropriate for the species and size of the animal and permits adequate visual observation of the animal, except that dogs or cats under 16 weeks of age or other animals which have not been weaned may be placed together in an enclosure with their littermates or dam, or both.

(3) Unless the animal to be euthanized is heavily tranquilized, anesthetized or comatose, an individual administering drugs for euthanasia shall have the assistance of an animal handler immediately available in the euthanasia area when the individual is administering an intravenous injection.

(4) Chemical restraint shall be used to minimize distress to the animal or danger to the staff, unless specific documented circumstances make the administration of chemical restraint more likely to cause more distress to the animal. Chemical restraint may be administered by routes as appropriate to the objectives of minimizing distress and maximizing safety.

(5) Intravenous injection of euthanasia solution shall be used on all dogs and cats 16 weeks of age or older and any other animal, unless the physical condition, size or behavior of the animal presents a danger to the individual performing the injection or the animal handler, or the physical restraint required for intravenous injection would cause unnecessary fear or anxiety in the animal.

(6) A drug for euthanasia may be administered by intraperitoneal injection to an animal only when the physical condition, size or behavior of the animal presents a danger to the individual performing the injection or the animal handler, the physical restraint required for intravenous injection would cause unnecessary fear or anxiety in the animal or the small size of the animal would make location and injection into a vein extremely difficult or impossible.

(i) After an intraperitoneal injection of a drug for euthanasia, the animal shall be placed alone in an enclosure which is appropriate for the species and size of the animal and permits adequate visual observation of the animal and where the animal can be kept calm and free of anxiety. An exception may be made in the case of young littermates.

(ii) An animal which has received a euthanasia drug by intraperitoneal injection shall be observed at least every 5 minutes after injection until death is verified.

(7) The gauge and length of the needle or catheter used shall be appropriate to minimize pain and distress for the size and species of the animal and the method of injection.

(8) A new, unused disposable needle or catheter of medical quality shall be used for the administration of drugs for euthanasia for each animal. Each needle or catheter shall be disposed of in a commercial sharps container immediately after a single use.

#### § 31.130. Grounds for refusal, suspension, revocation or imposition of other disciplinary sanction.

(a) A licensed euthanasia technician is subject to all disciplinary provisions in the act, ADMAL, this chapter and other applicable law.

(b) A licensed euthanasia technician is subject to all penalty provisions in the act, ADMAL, this chapter and other applicable law.

(c) An individual performing euthanasia under this subchapter who is not licensed by the Board or otherwise authorized by law to perform euthanasia may not provide euthanasia to animals subject to ADMAL. Violations may be prosecuted before the Board, and may be referred for criminal prosecution.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-493. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### **DEPARTMENT OF AGING**

#### Pharmaceutical Assistance Advisory Board Virtual Meeting

The Pharmaceutical Assistance Advisory Board will hold a virtual meeting by means of Microsoft Teams on Wednesday, April 13, 2022, from 8:30 a.m. to 10 a.m. Discussion topics are to be determined. For connection information or any questions, contact Megan McDaniel, memcdaniel@pa.gov, (717) 772-5390.

ROBERT TORRES,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-494. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND SECURITIES

#### **Actions on Applications**

The Department of Banking and Securities (Department), under the authority in the Banking Code of 1965 (7 P.S. §§ 101—2204), the Department of Banking and Securities Code (71 P.S. §§ 733-1—733-1203) and 17 Pa.C.S. (relating to Credit Union Code), has taken the following actions on applications received for the week ending March 22, 2022.

Under section 503.E of the Department of Banking and Securities Code (71 P.S. § 733-503.E), any person wishing to comment on the following applications, with the exception of branch applications, may file comments in writing with the Department of Banking and Securities, Bank Supervision or Credit Union and Trust Supervision (as applicable), 17 North Second Street, Suite 1300, Harrisburg, PA 17101-2290. Comments must be received no later than 30 days from the date notice regarding receipt of the application is published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. The nonconfidential portions of the applications are on file at the Department, for banks (717) 783-8240 and for credit unions and trust companies (717) 783-2253. Photocopies of the nonconfidential portions of the applications may be requested consistent with the Department's Right-to-Know Law Records Request policy.

#### **BANKING INSTITUTIONS**

#### **Holding Company Acquisitions** Date Name and Location of Applicant Action 03-17-2022 Raymond James Financial, Inc. and its subsidiary Approved Macaroon Two. LLC Saint Petersburg Pinellas County, FL Application for approval to acquire 100% of TriState Capital Holdings, Inc., Pittsburgh, PA, and thereby indirectly acquire 100% of TriState Capital Bank, Pittsburgh, PA. 3-17-2022 First Resource Bancorp. Inc. Approved Exton Chester County Application for approval to acquire 100% of First Resource Bank, Exton, PA. **Branch Applications Branch Relocations** Date Name and Location of Applicant Location of Branch Action 02-28-2022 To: 3425 Biglerville Road ACNB Effective Gettysburg Biglerville Adams County Adams County From: 3459 Biglerville Road Biglerville

#### **CREDIT UNIONS**

Adams County

No activity.

The Department's web site at www.dobs.pa.gov includes public notices for more recently filed applications.

RICHARD VAGUE, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-495. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

**Applications, Actions and Special Notices** 

### APPLICATIONS

### THE PENNSYLVANIA CLEAN STREAMS LAW AND THE FEDERAL CLEAN WATER ACT APPLICATIONS FOR NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMITS AND WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT (WQM) PERMITS UNDER THE CLEAN STREAMS LAW AND FEDERAL CLEAN WATER ACT

This notice provides information about persons who have applied to the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) for a new, renewed, or amended NPDES or WQM permit, or a permit waiver for certain stormwater discharges, or have submitted a Notice of Intent (NOI) for coverage under a General Permit. The applications and NOIs concern, but are not limited to, effluent discharges from sewage treatment facilities and industrial facilities to surface waters or groundwater; stormwater discharges associated with industrial activity (industrial stormwater), construction activity (construction stormwater), and municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s); the application of pesticides; the operation of Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations (CAFOs); and the construction of sewage, industrial waste, and manure storage, collection and treatment facilities. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376). More information on the types of NPDES and WQM permits that are available can be found on DEP's website (visit www.dep.pa.gov and select Businesses, Water, Bureau of Clean Water, Wastewater Management, and NPDES and WQM Permitting Programs).

Section Category

- I Individual and General WQM Permit Applications/NOIs Received, General NPDES Permit NOIs Received, and All Transfer and Minor Amendment Applications/NOIs Received
- II Individual NPDES Permits—New, Renewal, and Major Amendment Applications and Draft Permits for Discharges Relating to Sewage, Industrial Waste, Industrial Stormwater, MS4s, Pesticides and CAFOs
- III Individual NPDES Permit Applications for Discharges of Stormwater Associated with Construction Activity

Section I identifies the following applications and NOIs that have been received by DEP:

• Individual and General WQM Permit Applications Received—DEP provides a 15-day public comment period for Individual WQM Permit Applications for new and reissued permits. There is no public comment period for General WQM Permit NOIs.

• General Chapter 92a NPDES Permit NOIs Received—There is no public comment period for General NPDES NOIs received.

• All Transfer and Minor Amendment Applications/NOIs Received—Transfer and Minor Amendment Applications/NOIs received for Individual and General WQM Permits and Individual and General NPDES Permits, excluding PAG-01 and PAG-02, are identified but do not have public comment periods. DEP provides a 15-day public comment period for Individual WQM Permit Applications for amendments.

Additional information on these applications and NOIs may be reviewed by generating the "Applications and NOIs without Comment Periods Report" or, for Individual WQM Permit Applications, the "Applications Received with Comment Periods Report" on DEP's website at www.dep.pa.gov/CWPublicNotice.

Section II identifies individual NPDES permit applications received and draft permits indicating DEP's tentative determination relating to sewage, industrial waste, industrial stormwater, MS4s, pesticides and CAFOs. A 30-day public comment period applies to these applications and draft permits, except when a site-specific water quality criterion is used to establish effluent limitations, in which case a 45-day public comment period applies. The period for comment may be extended at the discretion of the Department for one additional 15-day period. Additional information, including links to draft permits and fact sheets that explain the basis for DEP's tentative determinations may be reviewed by generating the "Applications Received with Comment Periods Report" on DEP's website at www.dep.pa.gov/CWPublicNotice. Notification of 15-day extensions for comment will be provided in the "Applications Received with Comment Periods Report" (Comments column).

Section III provides notice of applications and draft individual permits for stormwater discharges associated with construction activities. Where indicated, DEP has made tentative determinations, based on preliminary review, to issue permits subject to proposed effluent limitations consisting of best management practices identified in the erosion and sediment control (E&S) plans and post-construction stormwater management (PCSM) plans submitted with the applications, as well as other terms and conditions based on the permit applications. A 30-day public comment period applies to these applications.

Applications, NOIs and draft permits, where applicable, may be reviewed at the DEP office that received the application or NOI. Members of the public are encouraged to use DEP's website to obtain additional information as discussed previously.

Comments received within the appropriate comment periods for WQM and NPDES permit applications will be retained by DEP and considered in the final determinations regarding the applications. A comment submittal should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform DEP of the exact basis of a comment and the relevant facts upon which it is based.

DEP office contact information to review applications and NOIs and to submit comments for those applications, when applicable, is as follows:

DEP Southeast Regional Office (SERO)—2 E. Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401-4915. File Review Coordinator: 484.250.5910. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SERO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-SERO@pa.gov for permits in Section III.

DEP Northeast Regional Office (NERO)—2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915. File Review Coordinator: 570.826.5472. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NERO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-NERO@pa.gov for permits in Section III.

DEP Southcentral Regional Office (SCRO)—909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110. File Review Coordinator: 717.705.4732. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SCRO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-SCRO@pa.govfor permits in Section III.

DEP Northcentral Regional Office (NCRO)—208 W. Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701. File Review Coordinator: 570.327.3693. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NCRO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-NCRO@pa.govfor permits in Section III.

DEP Southwest Regional Office (SWRO)—400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222. File Review Coordinator: 412.442.4286. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SWRO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-SWRO@pa.gov for permits in Section III.

DEP Northwest Regional Office (NWRO)—230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335. File Review Coordinator: 814.332.6340. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NWRO@pa.gov for permits in Sections I & II; RA-EPWW-NWRO@pa.govfor permits in Section III.

DEP Bureau of Clean Water (BCW)—400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105. File Review Coordinator: 717.787.5017. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_Permits@pa.gov.

DEP Regional Permit Coordination Office (RPCO)—400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105. File Review Coordinator: 717-772-5987. Email: RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

DEP will also accept requests or petitions for public hearings on applications. The request or petition must indicate the interest of the party filing and the reasons why a hearing is warranted. A hearing will be held if the Department determines that there is a significant public interest. If a hearing is scheduled, a notice of the hearing will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* and a newspaper of general circulation within the relevant geographical area. DEP will postpone its final determination until after a public hearing is held.

Persons with a disability who require an auxiliary aid, service, including TDD users, or other accommodations to seek additional information should contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

# I. Individual and General WQM Permit Applications/NOIs Received, General NPDES Permit NOIs Received, and All Transfer and Minor Amendment Applications/NOIs Received.

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
0913848	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Amendment	Village Shires Community Assoc 3001 E Village Road Holland, PA 18966-2935	Northampton Township Bucks County	SERO
0922801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	New	Brozyna Alex 2 Bennett Lane Newtown, PA 18940	Wrightstown Township Bucks County	SERO
1522802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	New	Fairville Friends School 216 Pond View Chadds Ford, PA 19317	Kennett Township Chester County	SERO
3121801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Amendment	US Army Corp of Engineering Raystown Lake Project 6145 Seven Points Road Hesston, PA 16647-8303	Penn Township Huntingdon County	SCRO
4616822	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Renewal	Upper Pottsgrove Township Montgomery County 1409 Farmington Avenue Pottstown, PA 19464-1829	Upper Pottsgrove Township Montgomery County	SERO
6017801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Amendment	Millward Estates Condominium Association 904 Lakeside Drive Lewisburg, PA 17837-9382	Kelly Township Union County	NCRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
0981420	Land Application and Reuse of Sewage Individual WQM Permit	Renewal	Quakerwoods Safari Campgrounds 2225 Rosedale Road Quakertown, PA 18951-4052	Milford Township Bucks County	SERO
PA0102245	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Transfer	Naptown Boy LLC 4849 US 322 Franklin, PA 16323-7933	Cranberry Township Venango County	NWRO
3083201	Minor and Non-NPDES Industrial Waste Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Transfer	Energy Harbor Generation LLC 204 Chase Drive Hurricane, WV 25526-8938	Monongahela Township Greene County	SWRO
1600403	Minor and Non-NPDES Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Amendment	Mark Wineman 8630 Miola Road Lucinda, PA 16235-3920	Highland Township Clarion County	NWRO
361S009	Minor and Non-NPDES Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Transfer	Naptown Boy LLC 4849 US 322 Franklin, PA 16323-7933	Cranberry Township Venango County	NWRO
6107401	Minor and Non-NPDES Sewage Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Transfer	Naptown Boy LLC 4849 US 322 Franklin, PA 16323-7933	Cranberry Township Venango County	NWRO
NOEXNW037	No Exposure Certification	Renewal	Alpha Sintered Metals LLC 95 Mason Run Road Ridgway, PA 15853-6901	Ridgway Township Elk County	NWRO
PAG033594	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Amendment	Mechanicsburg Terminal DE LLC 900 S Eisenhower Boulevard Middletown, PA 17057-5503	Silver Spring Township Cumberland County	SCRO
PAG044825	PAG-04 NPDES General Permit for Small Flow Treatment Facilities	Transfer	Courtney Babe & Cecil Hall P.O. Box 129 Woodland, PA 16881-0129	Bradford Township Clearfield County	NCRO
PAG049285	PAG-04 NPDES General Permit for Small Flow Treatment Facilities	Transfer	Fred & Sandra Donato 21835 Route 62 Tionesta, PA 16353-6911	Hickory Township Forest County	NWRO
PAG103549	PAG-10 NPDES General Permit for Hydrostatic Test Water	Renewal	Sunoco Pipeline LP 100 Green Street Marcus Hook, PA 19061-4800	Spring Township Berks County	SCRO
PAG153504	PAG-15 NPDES General Permit for Pesticides	Amendment	US Army Corp of Engineering Raystown Lake Project 6145 Seven Points Road Hesston, PA 16647-8303	Penn Township Huntingdon County	SCRO
PA0270831	Pesticides Individual NPDES Permit	Amendment Minor	PA Game Comm 2001 Elmerton Avenue Harrisburg, PA 17110-9762	Statewide	CO
0313400	Pump Stations Individual WQM Permit	Amendment	Manor Township Joint Municipal Authority Armstrong County P.O. Box 993 300 S McKean Street Kittanning, PA 16201-0993	Kittanning Borough Armstrong County	NWRO

#### 1997

Application Number 0320402	<i>Permit Type</i> Pump Stations Individual WQM Permit	Application Type Amendment	Applicant Name & Address Manor Township Joint Municipal Authority Armstrong County P.O. Box 66 Ford City, PA 16226-0066	Municipality, County Ford City Borough Armstrong County	<i>DEP Office</i> NWRO
0320403	Pump Stations Individual WQM Permit	Amendment	Manor Township Joint Municipal Authority Armstrong County P.O. Box 66 Ford City, PA 16226-0066	Ford City Borough Armstrong County	NWRO
0375401	Pump Stations Individual WQM Permit	Amendment	Manor Township Joint Municipal Authority Armstrong County P.O. Box 66 Ford City, PA 16226-0066	Ford City Borough Armstrong County	NWRO
1722403	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	New	Courtney Babe & Cecil Hall P.O. Box 129 Woodland, PA 16881-0129	Bradford Township Clearfield County	NCRO
5622400	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	New	Lacey Shaun 1527 Peninsula Drive Central City, PA 15926-9123	Indian Lake Borough Somerset County	SWRO
WQG018494	WQG-01 WQM General Permit	Transfer	Fred & Sandra Donato 21835 Route 62 Tionesta, PA 16353-6911	Hickory Township Forest County	NWRO

II. Individual NPDES Permits—New, Renewal, and Major Amendment Applications and Draft Permits for Discharges Relating to Sewage, Industrial Waste, Industrial Stormwater, MS4s, Pesticides and CAFOs.

#### Northcentral Regional Office

**PA0228061**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **Aqua PA Wastewater, Inc.**, 762 West Lancaster Avenue, Byrn Mawr, PA 19010. Facility Name: Treasure Lake Resort. This existing facility is located in Sandy Township, **Clearfield County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Narrows Creek (CWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 17-C and is classified for Cold Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 1 MGD.

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Weekly Average	Instanta- neous Minimum	Concentrati Average Monthly	ons (mg/L) Weekly Average	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.) Dissolved Oxygen Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX	6.0 6.0 XXX	XXX XXX 0.05	XXX XXX XXX XXX	9.0 XXX 0.17
Nov 1 - Apr 30 May 1 - Oct 31 Total Suspended Solids Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	$200 \\ 100 \\ 250$	$300 \\ 150 \\ 375$	XXX XXX XXX	$24.0 \\ 12.0 \\ 30.0$	$36.0 \\ 18.0 \\ 45.0$	$\begin{array}{c} 48\\24\\60\end{array}$
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000 Geo Mean	XXX	10,000
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
E. Coli (No./100 ml) Ultraviolet light transmittance (%) Ammonia-Nitrogen	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX Report	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	Report XXX
Nov 1 - Apr 30 May 1 - Oct 31	$\begin{array}{c} 37\\12\end{array}$	56 18	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 4.5 \\ 1.5 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 6.0 \\ 2.0 \end{array}$	9 3

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Weekly Average	Instanta- neous Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Weekly Average	IMAX
Chromium, Hexavalent (ug/L)	0.11	0.18	XXX	13.5	21.0	33.9
		Daily Max			Daily Max	
Copper, Total (ug/L)	0.15	0.23	XXX	17.8	27.7	44.4
		Daily Max			Daily Max	
Cyanide, Free (ug/L)	0.043	0.067	XXX	5.18	8.08	12.9
		Daily Max			Daily Max	
Total Nitrogen	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
	Avg Qrtly	Daily Max		Avg Qrtly	Daily Max	
Total Phosphorus	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
iotar i nospitoras	Avg Qrtly	Daily Max	11111	Avg Qrtly	Daily Max	1001
Zinc, Total (ug/L)	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Zille, Iotal (ug/L)	2020	Daily Max	71111	2020	Daily Max	11111
Aluminum Total (ug/I)	XXX	~	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Aluminum, Total (ug/L)	ΛΛΛ	Report	ΛΛΛ	ΛΛΛ		ΛΛΛ
		Daily Max			Daily Max	

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

• WET Testing Requirements

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570-327-3693.

The EPA Waiver is not in effect.

#### Northwest Regional Office

**PA0221708**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **Chicora Borough Sewer Authority**, P.O. Box 35, Chicora, PA 16025-0035. Facility Name: Chicora Borough STP. This existing facility is located in Chicora Borough, **Butler County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream, the Buffalo Creek (HQ-CWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 18-F and is classified for High Quality Waters—Cold Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.201 MGD.—Limits.

The proposed endent mints for ou			51g11 110 01 01.2			
Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	Weekly Average	Minimum	Concentrati Average Monthly	Weekly Average	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	7.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	XXX
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	16.8	25.1	XXX	10.0	15.0	20
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> ) Raw Sewage Influent	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	50.3	76.4	XXX	30.0	45.0	60
Total Suspended Solids Raw Sewage Influent Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000	XXX	10,000
-				Geo Mean		10,000
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
E. Coli (No./100 ml)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Ultraviolet light intensity (µw/cm <sup>2</sup> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen				-		
Nov 1 - Apr 30	7.5	XXX	XXX	4.5	XXX	9
May 1 - Oct 31	2.5	XXX	XXX	1.5	XXX	3
Total Phosphorus	3.4	XXX	XXX	2.0	XXX	4
Total Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Avg Qrtly	XXX	XXX

#### 2000

#### NOTICES

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

• Solids Management

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 814-332-6078.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0252760**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **Pine Township**, P.O. Box 111, Templeton, PA 16259-0111. Facility Name: Pine Township STP. This existing facility is located at 115 5th Street, Templeton, PA 16259, located in Pine Township, **Armstrong County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Allegheny River (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 17-D and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .06 MGD.—Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Wkly Avg	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Daily Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	4.0 Daily Min	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> ) Raw Sewage Influent	XXX Report	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	0.5 Report	XXX XXX	1.6 XXX
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	12.5	XXX	XXX	25.0	XXX	50.0
Total Suspended Solids Raw Sewage Influent	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Suspended Solids Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	15.0	XXX	XXX	30.0	XXX	60.0
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000 Geo Mean	XXX	10,000
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
Ammonia-Nitrogen Total Nitrogen	12.5 XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	25.0 Report Daily Max	XXX XXX	50.0 XXX
Total Phosphorus	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX
E. Coli (No./100 ml) Chloride Nickel, Total	XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX	XXX Report Report Avg Qrtly	XXX XXX XXX	Report XXX XXX
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Avg Qrtly	XXX	XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 814-332-6078.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0264580**, Sewage, SIC Code 8800, **Raymond Bates**, 248 Carbon Center Road, Butler, PA 16002-1020. Facility Name: Raymond Bates SRSTP. This existing facility is located in Summit Township, **Butler County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated SRSTP sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary to Bonnie Brook (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 20-C and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .0004 MGD.—Limits.

Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	(lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrati Annual Average	ions (mg/L) Maximum	IMAX
Flow (GPD)	Report Annl Avg	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20.0
Total Suspended Solids Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 10.0\\ 200 \end{array}$	XXX XXX	20.0 XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 814-332-6078.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0290408**, Sewage, SIC Code 8800, **Charles Plinta**, 127 Mohawk Trail, Slippery Rock, PA 16057-3621. Facility Name: Charles Plinta SRSTP. This proposed facility is located in Slippery Rock Township, **Butler County**.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of treated SRSTP sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Slippery Rock Creek (CWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 20-C and is classified for Cold Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .0004 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units	(lbs/day)		Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Annual Average	Maximum	IMAX
Flow (GPD)	Report Annl Avg	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20
Total Suspended Solids Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 10.0\\ 200 \end{array}$	XXX XXX	20 XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 814-332-6078.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

Southcentral Regional Office

**PA0044059**, Industrial, SIC Code 0921, **PA Fish & Boat Comm Fisheries Bureau**, Benner Spring Fish Research Station, State College, PA 16801. Facility Name: Reynoldsdale Fish Culture Station. This existing facility is located in East Saint Clair Township, **Bedford County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial waste.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary to Dunning Creek (WWF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 11-C and is classified for Migratory Fishes and Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 4.7304 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Unit	s (lbs/day)	Concentrations $(mg/L)$			
Parameters	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	IMAX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Avg Qrtly	XXX	XXX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Avg Qrtly	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Avg Qrtly	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Avg Qrtly	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX

Parameters	Mass Units Average	Daily	Minimum	Average	ions (mg/L) Daily	IMAX
	Monthly	Maximum		Monthly	Maximum	
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Avg Qrtly	XXX	XXX	Avg Qrtly XXX	XXX	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 4.7304 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD) pH (S.U.)	Report XXX	Report XXX	XXX 6.0 Inst Min	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX 9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	5.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	XXX
Temperature (deg F) (°F) Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Nov 1 - Apr 30 May 1 - Oct 31 Total Suspended Solids Ammonia-Nitrogen	$214 \\ 107 \\ 133$	$\begin{array}{c} 428 \\ 214 \\ 266 \end{array}$	XXX XXX XXX XXX	$16.0 \\ 8.0 \\ 10.0$	$32.0 \\ 16.0 \\ 20.0$	$40 \\ 20 \\ 25$
Nov 1 - Apr 30 May 1 - Oct 31 Formaldehyde	$100 \\ 33 \\ 13.0$	$200\\66\\26.0$	XXX XXX XXX	$7.5 \\ 2.5 \\ 0.97$	$15.0 \\ 5.0 \\ 1.94$	$19 \\ 6.5 \\ 2.42$

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 717-705-4732.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0051560**, Industrial, SIC Code 4941, **Western Berks Water Authority**, 91 Water Road, Sinking Spring, PA 19608-9632. Facility Name: Western Berks Water Authority. This existing facility is located in Lower Heidelberg Township, **Berks County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial waste.

The receiving stream(s), Tulpehocken Creek (CWF, MF) and Unnamed Tributary to Cacoosing Creek, is located in State Water Plan watershed 3-C and is classified for Cold Water Fishes and Migratory Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .27 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
			Inst Min			
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5	1.0	1.6
Total Suspended Solids	Report	Report	XXX	30.0	60.0	75
Total Phosphorus	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Aluminum, Total	Report	Report	XXX	4.0	8.0	10
Iron, Total	Report	Report	XXX	2.0	4.0	5
Manganese, Total	Report	Report	XXX	1.0	2.0	2.5

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 002 are based on a design flow of .028 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrat		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
			Inst Min			
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5	XXX	1.6
Total Suspended Solids	Report	Report	XXX	30.0	60.0	75
Total Phosphorus	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Flow (MGD) pH (S.U.) Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) Total Suspended Solids	Average Monthly Report XXX XXX Report	Daily Maximum Report XXX XXX Report	XXX 6.0 Inst Min XXX XXX	Average Monthly XXX XXX 0.5 30.0	Daily Maximum XXX XXX XXX 60.0	XXX 9.0 1.6 75

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 717-705-4732.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

PA0055328, Industrial, SIC Code 4953, New Morgan Landfill Co. Inc., P.O. Box 128, Morgantown, PA 19543-0128. Facility Name: Conestoga Landfill. This existing facility is located in New Morgan Borough, Berks County.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial waste.

The receiving stream(s), Conestoga River (WWF) 7-J and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .075 MGD.

The proposed enfuent mints for Ot	itiali 001 are	based on a des	sign now or .0	15 MGD.		
Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	5.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5	XXX	1.6
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	13.1	26.3	XXX	21	42	53
Total Suspended Solids	16.9	55.0	XXX	27	88	110
Total Dissolved Solids	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	15	XXX	30
Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)						
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000 Geo Mean	XXX	10,000
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen	3.1	6.3	XXX	4.9	10	12.5
Ammonia-Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Antimony, Total	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Arsenic, Total	0.051	0.079	XXX	0.082	0.127	0.21
Boron, Total (interim)	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Boron, Total (final)	9.63	15.0	XXX	15.4	24.0	38.5
Cobalt, Total	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Copper, Total	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Copper, Total (final)	0.11	0.21	XXX	0.18	0.33	0.45
Iron, Dissolved	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Nickel, Total	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Selenium, Total	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Sulfate, Total	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Zinc, Total	Report	Report	XXX	0.11	0.20	0.28
Phenol	Report	Report	XXX	0.015	0.026	0.038
a-Terpineol	Report	Report	XXX	0.016	0.033	0.041
Benzoic Acid	Report	Report	XXX	0.071	0.12	0.18
Chloride	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Bromide	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
p-Cresol	Report	Report	XXX	0.014	0.025	0.035

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .075 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Unit	s (lbs/day)	Concentrations $(mg/L)$			
Parameters	Average	Average	Minimum	Average	Maximum	Instant.
	Monthly	Weekly		Monthly		Maximum
Total Phosphorus	XXX	64.0	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)		Total				
·		Annual				

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 002 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)		3.6	Concentrations (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
$\sim H(CII)$	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX		XXX
pH (S.U.)					Report	
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Dissolved Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Barium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Cyanide, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Lead, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Magnesium, Dissolved	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Magnesium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Organic Carbon	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 005 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Dissolved Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Barium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chromium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Cyanide, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Lead, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Magnesium, Dissolved	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Magnesium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Total Organic Carbon	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

The proposed monitoring requirements and effluent limits for implementation of Pennsylvania's Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Plan are as follows for Outfall 001.—Limits.

Parameters	Mass Units Monthly	s (lbs/day) Annual	Monthly	Concentrat Monthly Average	ions (mg/L) Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs) Effluent Net	XXX	12,500 Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus (Total Load, lbs) (lbs) Effluent Net	XXX	64.0 Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX

\*This permit contains conditions which authorize the permittee to apply nutrient reduction credits to meet the Net Total Nitrogen and the Net Total Phosphorus effluent mass limits, under the Department's Chapter 96 regulations. The condition includes the requirement to report the application of these credits in Supplemental Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) submitted to the Department.

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 717-705-4732.

The EPA Waiver is not in effect.

**PA0261106**, Industrial, SIC Code 3339, **Voith Hydro Inc.**, P.O. Box 15002, York, PA 17405. Facility Name: Voith Siemens Hydro. This existing facility is located in West Manchester Township, **York County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial waste.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary of Codorus Creek (WWF) and Unnamed Tributary of Codorus Creek (WWF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 7-H and is classified for Migratory Fishes and Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .15 MGD.—Limits.

1 1	0					
Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
		Daily Max				
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	9.0	XXX
-			Inst Min			
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Cadmium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chromium III, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Dissolved	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Lead, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Mercury, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Nickel, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Silver, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 002 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Unit	s (lbs/day)	Concentrations $(mg/L)$			
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	IMAX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Arsenic, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Cadmium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chromium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Lead, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 003 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units	s (lbs/day)		Concentrat	tions $(mg/L)$	
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	IMAX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Arsenic, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Cadmium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chromium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Lead, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

2006

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 004 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units	s (lbs/day)		Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	IMAX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Arsenic, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Cadmium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chromium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Lead, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 005 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units	s (lbs/day)	Concentrations (mg/L)			
Parameters	Average	Average	Minimum	Average	Daily	IMAX
	Monthly	Weekly		Monthly	Maximum	
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Arsenic, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Cadmium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Chromium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Lead, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 717-705-4732.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

E. Coli (No./100 ml)

**PA0024708**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **Union Township Municipal Authority, Mifflin County**, P.O. Box 5625, Belleville, PA 17004-5625. Facility Name: Union Township STP. This existing facility is located in Union Township, **Mifflin County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Kishacoquillas Creek (CWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 12-A and is classified for Cold Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .65 MGD.—Limits.

Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	(lbs/day) Weekly Average	Minimum	Concentratio Average Monthly	ons (mg/L) Weekly Average	IMAX
Zinc, Total	Report Semi Avg	XXX	XXX	Report Semi Avg	XXX	XXX
The proposed effluent limits for Out	tfall 001 are b	ased on a des	sign flow of .65	MGD.—Limit	s.	
Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	(lbs/day) Weekly Average	Minimum	Concentratio Average Monthly	ons (mg/L) Weekly Average	IMAX

XXX

XXX

XXX

Report

Daily Max

XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .65 MGD.-Limits.

XXX

	Mass Unit	Mass Units (lbs/day)		Concentrations (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Weekly Average	Minimum	Average Monthly	Weekly Average	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	5.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	XXX

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Weekly Average	Minimum	Concentrati Average Monthly	ons (mg/L) Weekly Average	IMAX
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX 135.0	XXX 215.0	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 0.28\\ 25.0\end{array}$	XXX 40.0	$\begin{array}{c} 0.93\\ 50\end{array}$
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> ) Raw Sewage Influent	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Suspended Solids Total Suspended Solids Raw Sewage Influent Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	160.0 Report	240.0 Report Daily Max	XXX XXX	30.0 Report	45.0 XXX	60 XXX
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000 Geo Mean	XXX	10,000
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
Nitrate-Nitrite as N Nitrate-Nitrite as N (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX Report Total Mo	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	Report XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX
Total Nitrogen Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs) Ammonia-Nitrogen	XXX Report Total Mo	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	Report XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX
Nov 1 - Apr 30 May 1 - Oct 31 Ammonia-Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	73.0 24.0 Report Total Mo	XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX	13.5 4.5 XXX	XXX XXX XXX	26 9 XXX
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX Report Total Mo	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	Report XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX
Total Phosphorus Total Phosphorus (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	10.8 Report Total Mo	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	2.0 XXX	XXX XXX	4 XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 717-705-4732.

The EPA Waiver is not in effect.

**PA0027189**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **Lower Allen Township Authority**, 120 Limekiln Road, New Cumberland, PA 17070-2428. Facility Name: Lower Allen Township STP. This existing facility is located in Fairview Township, **York County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Susquehanna River (WWF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 7-E and is classified for Cold Water Fishes and Migratory Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 7.5 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average	Daily	Daily	Average	Weekly	Instant.
	Monthly	Maximum	Minimum	Monthly	Average	Maximum
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
I control			Inst Min			
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	5.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen	1,564	2,502	XXX	25.0	40.0	50
Demand ( $CBOD_5$ )		Wkly Avg				
Biochemical Oxygen	Report	Report	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Demand $(BOD_5)$						
Raw Sewage Influent						
Total Suspended Solids	Report	Report	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Raw Sewage Influent						
Total Suspended Solids	1,877	2,815	XXX	30.0	45.0	60
		Wkly Avg				
Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)						
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000	XXX	10,000
				Geo Mean		
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200	XXX	1,000
				Geo Mean		

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrat		
Parameters	Average	Daily	Daily	Average	Weekly	Instant.
	Monthly	Maximum	Minimum	Monthly	Average	Maximum
E. Coli (No./100 ml)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Ultraviolet light intensity (µw/cm <sup>2</sup> )	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Total Mo					
Total Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Total Mo					
Ammonia-Nitrogen	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Total Mo					
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Total Mo					
Total Phosphorus	125	XXX	XXX	2.0	XXX	4
Total Phosphorus	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
(Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	Total Mo	_		_	_	
Aluminum, Total	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
	_	_		_	Daily Max	
Zinc, Total	Report	Report	XXX	$\operatorname{Report}$	Report	XXX
	_	_		_	Daily Max	
Bromide	Report	Report	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
					Daily Max	

The proposed monitoring requirements and effluent limits for implementation of Pennsylvania's Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Plan are as follows for Outfall 001.—Limits.

	Mass Units	(lbs/day)				
Parameters	Monthly	Annual	Monthly	Monthly Average	Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs) Effluent Net	XXX	114,154 Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus (Total Load, lbs) (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus (Total Load, lbs) (lbs) Effluent Net	XXX	15,221 Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 717-705-4732.

The EPA Waiver is not in effect.

**PA0081213**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **Clay Township Supervisors**, 870 Durlach Road, Stevens, PA 17578. Facility Name: Hopeland Village WWTP. This existing facility is located in Clay Township, **Lancaster County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), UNT to Middle Creek (TSF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 7-J and is classified for Trout Stocking, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .035 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrat		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Weekly Average	Minimum	Average Monthly	Weekly Average	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	5.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	XXX

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	ts (lbs/day) Weekly Average	Minimum	Concentrati Average Monthly	ons (mg / L) Weekly Average	IMAX
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX 7.3	XXX 12	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 0.14\\ 25\end{array}$	XXX 40	$\begin{array}{c} 0.46\\ 50\end{array}$
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> ) Raw Sewage Influent	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	8.8	13	XXX	30	45	60
Total Suspended Solids Raw Sewage Influent Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000 Geo Mean	XXX	10,000
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
E. Coli (No./100 ml)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Ammonia-Nitrogen						
Nov 1 - Apr 30	3.1	XXX	XXX	10.5	XXX	21.0
May 1 - Oct 31	_ 1.0	XXX	XXX	_ 3.5	XXX	7.0
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen	Report	Report Total Mo	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Phosphorus	0.6	Report Total Mo	XXX	2.0	XXX	4.0
Total Phosphorus (lbs)	XXX	Report Total Annual	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

• Other Requirements

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 717-705-4732.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0266361**, Sewage, SIC Code 1521, **Roger Allen Graves**, 53 Sassafras Lane, Delta, PA 17314-7000. Facility Name: Roger Graves Res. This existing facility is located in Peach Bottom Township, **York County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated SRSTP sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Fishing Creek (CWF (existing use)), is located in State Water Plan watershed 7-I and is classified for Cold Water Fishes and Migratory Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .0004 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	(lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrat Annual Average	ions (mg/L) Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report Annl Avg	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	5.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20
Total Suspended Solids Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 10.0\\ 200 \end{array}$	XXX XXX	20 XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 717-705-4732.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

Southeast Regional Office

**PA0056880**, Industrial, SIC Code 4952, **Lower Bucks County Joint Municipal Authority**, 7811 New Falls Road, Levittown, PA 19058-0460. Facility Name: LBCJMA Water Treatment Plant. This existing facility is located in Tullytown Borough, **Bucks County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial waste.

The receiving stream(s), Delaware River (WWF, MF) and Martins Creek (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 2-E and is classified for Warm Water Fishes and Migratory Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 003 are based on a design flow of 0.7 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrat		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5	XXX	1.2
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	30.0	60.0	75
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	4.0	8.0	10
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	2.0	4.0	5
Manganese, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	1.0	2.0	2.5

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall MP 103 are based on a design flow of 0.48 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Unit	s (lbs/day)	Concentrations $(mg/L)$			
Parameters	Average	Average	Minimum	Semi-	Daily	IMAX
	Monthly	Weekly		Annual	Maximum	
				Average		
Flow (MGD)	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
		Daily Max				
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
-			Inst Min			
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5	XXX	1.2
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	30.0	60.0	75
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	4.0	8.0	10
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	2.0	4.0	5
Manganese, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	1.0	2.0	2.5
				Daily Max		

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

- · Proper disposal of collected screenings, slurries, sludges and solids
- TRC minimization in effluent
- Development of Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Plan
- Chemical Additives requirements
- Sedimentation Basin Cleaning requirements

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 484-250-5910.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0055875**, Sewage, SIC Code 4952, **The Upper Hanover Authority**, 1704 Pillsbury Road, East Greenville, PA 18041-0205. Facility Name: Macoby Ck STP. This existing facility is located in Upper Hanover Township, **Montgomery County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Macoby Creek (TSF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 3-E and is classified for Trout Stocking and Migratory Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.4 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average	Daily	Instanta-	Average	Weekly	IMAX
	Monthly	Maximum	neous	Monthly	Average	
			Minimum			
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen	33.4	50	XXX	10	15	20
Demand ( $CBOD_5$ )						

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Instanta- neous Minimum	Concentrati Average Monthly	ons (mg/L) Weekly Average	IMAX
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> ) Raw Sewage Influent	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Total Suspended Solids	33.4	50	XXX	10	15	20
Total Suspended Solids Raw Sewage Influent	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	XXX	XXX	XXX	200 Geo Mean	XXX	1,000
Ultraviolet light transmittance (%)	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Nitrogen	Report	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
Ammonia-Nitrogen	$\overline{5.0}$	XXX	XXX	$\overline{1.5}$	XXX	3
Total Phosphorus	1.0	XXX	XXX	0.3	XXX	0.6
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
E. Coli (No./100 ml)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

- No stormwater
- Property Rights
- Sludge Removal
- TRC Minimization
- Small Stream
- Responsible Operator
- O&M Plan
- DRBC Fecal Coliform

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 484-250-5910.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

Southwest Regional Office

**PA0094757**, Sewage, SIC Code 6036, **E.J. Holtz Sewer, Inc.**, 633 Logan Boulevard, Altoona, PA 16602-4139. Facility Name: Lake Cresson Manor STP. This existing facility is located in Allegheny Township, **Cambria County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Clearfield Creek (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 8-C and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .025 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (MGD)	0.025	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
			Inst Min			
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	4.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
			Inst Min			
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5	XXX	1.6
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	25	XXX	50
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	30	XXX	60
Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)						
Oct 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	2,000	XXX	10,000
Ĩ				Geo Mean		,
May 1 - Sep 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	200	XXX	1,000
· ·				Geo Mean		
Ammonia-Nitrogen						
Nov 1 - Apr 30	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	Report
May 1 - Oct 31	XXX	XXX	XXX	$2\bar{0}.0$	XXX	40.0

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .025 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units	(lbs/day)		Concentrations (mg/L)			
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Maximum	Instant. Maximum	
E. Coli (No./100 ml) Total Nitrogen	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX Report Daily Max	Report XXX	
Total Phosphorus	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Daily Max	XXX	
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Daily Max	XXX	
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Daily Max	XXX	
Manganese, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report Daily Max	XXX	

\*This permit contains conditions which authorize the permittee to apply nutrient reduction credits to meet the Net Total Nitrogen and the Net Total Phosphorus effluent mass limits, under the Department's Chapter 96 regulations. The condition includes the requirement to report the application of these credits in Supplemental Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) submitted to the Department.

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0256064**, Sewage, SIC Code 8800, **Rudolph Barsis**, 77 Hickory Road, Claysville, PA 15323-1162. Facility Name: Barsis Properties SRSTP. This proposed facility is located in East Finley Township, **Washington County**.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of treated SRSTP sewage.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary to Templeton Fork (TSF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 20-E and is classified for Trout Stocking, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of .004 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Units	s (lbs/day)	Concentrations $(mg/L)$			
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Annual Average	Maximum	IMAX
Flow (GPD)	Report Annl Avg	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD <sub>5</sub> )	XXX	XXX	XXX	10.0	XXX	20
Total Suspended Solids Fecal Coliform (No./100 ml)	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	XXX XXX	$\begin{array}{c} 10.0\\ 200 \end{array}$	XXX XXX	20 XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0284807**, Storm Water, SIC Code 9999, **Green Diamond Services**, **LLC**, 127 Clairton Street, Johnstown, PA 15907-0151. Facility Name: Franklin Industrial Complex. This proposed facility is located in Franklin Borough, **Cambria County**.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of treated industrial stormwater.

The receiving stream(s), Little Conemaugh River (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 18-E and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfalls 001-003:

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	ts (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	tions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD) pH (S.U.) Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) Total Suspended Solids Oil and Grease	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	Report XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX Report Report Report Report	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	ts (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	tions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
Nitrate-Nitrite as N	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Lead, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Manganese, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0003603 A-1**, Industrial, SIC Code 3312, **Universal Stainless & Alloy Products, Inc.**, 600 Mayer Street, Bridgeville, PA 15017-2705. Facility Name: Universal Stainless & Alloy Prods, Inc. This existing facility is located in Collier Township, **Allegheny County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial waste.

The receiving stream(s), Sawmill Run (WWF), McLaughlin Run (WWF), and Painters Run (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 20-F and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units	s (lbs/day)	Concentrations $(mg/L)$			
Parameters	Average	Average	Minimum	Average	Maximum	IMAX
	Monthly	Weekly		Monthly		
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Magnesium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Molybdenum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 002 are based on a design flow of .012 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	tions (mg/L) Maximum	IMAX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Magnesium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Molybdenum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 002 are based on a design flow of .012 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Daily Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5 Daily Max	XXX	1.0
Temperature (deg F) (°F)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	110.0

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 004 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			tions (mg/L)		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Maximum	IMAX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Magnesium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Molybdenum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 005 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrat	ions (mg/L)	
Parameters	Average	Average	Minimum	Average	Maximum	IMAX
	Monthly	Weekly		Monthly		
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Magnesium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Molybdenum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 014 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)		Concentrations $(mg/L)$			
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Maximum	IMAX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Magnesium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Molybdenum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 018 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)		Concentrations $(mg/L)$			
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Maximum	IMAX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Aluminum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Copper, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Magnesium, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Molybdenum, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Zinc, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 019 are based on a design flow of .0014 MGD.-Limits.

	Mass Units (lbs/day)			Concentrations $(mg/L)$		
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	Daily Max XXX	6.0 Daily Min	XXX	XXX	9.0

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Maximum	IMAX
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.5	XXX	1.0
Temperature (deg F) (°F)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Daily Max XXX	XXX	110.0

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

PA0254843, Industrial, SIC Code 4941, West View Water Authority, Allegheny County, 210 Perry Highway, Pittsburgh, PA 15229-1862. Facility Name: Beaver County WTP. This existing facility is located in Baden Borough, Beaver County.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial waste.

The receiving stream(s), Tevebau Run (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 20-G and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 1.08 MGD.—Limits.

	Mass Unit	s (lbs/day)		Concentrat	tions (mg/L)	
Parameters	Average Monthly	Average Weekly	Minimum	Average Monthly	Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (MGD)	Report	Report Daily Max	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0 Inst Min	XXX	XXX	9.0
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) Total Suspended Solids Aluminum, Total Iron, Total Manganese, Total	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	$0.5 \\ 30.0 \\ 4.0 \\ 2.0 \\ 1.0$	$1.0 \\ 60.0 \\ 8.0 \\ 4.0 \\ 2.0$	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

• Chemical Additives

• Sedimentation Basin Cleaning

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PA0256099**, Industrial, SIC Code 4619, **Laurel Mountain Midstream Operations**, **LLC**, 111 Enterprise Lane, Connellsville, PA 15425-6617. Facility Name: Herriott Well Connect. This proposed facility is located in German Township, **Fayette County**.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of hydrostatic testing water.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary to Dunlap Creek (WWF), Unnamed Tributary to Browns Run (WWF), and Middle Run (WWF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 19-C and is classified for Warm Water Fishes, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0.0067 MGD.—Limits.

Parameters	Mass Units Average Monthly	: (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Instant Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (GPM)	Report	4.632	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Flow (Total Volume, Mgal)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Duration of Discharge (hours)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	5.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	0.05
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	30.0	XXX	60.0
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	15.0	XXX	30.0
Aluminum, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Cadmium, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.69	1.07	$1.72^{(1)}$
Copper, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Iron, Dissolved	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	7.0
Selenium, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	6.34	9.89	$15.9^{(1)}$
Silver, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 002 are based on a design flow of 0.024 MGD.—Limits.

		0			
Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Instant. Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	ions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
Report	16.43	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
XXX	XXX	5.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	0.05
XXX	XXX	XXX	30.0	XXX	60.0
XXX	XXX	XXX	15.0	XXX	30.0
XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
XXX	XXX	XXX	0.65	1.01	$1.62^{(1)}$
XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	7.0
			5.69	8.88	$14.2^{(1)}$
XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
	Average Monthly Report Total Mo XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX X	MonthlyMaximumReport16.43ReportXXXTotal MoXXX	Average MonthlyDaily MaximumInstant. MinimumReport16.43XXX ReportReportXXXXXXTotal MoXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX5.0XX	Average MonthlyDaily MaximumInstant. MinimumAverage MonthlyReport16.43XXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXTotal MoXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXX6.0XXXXXXXXX5.0XXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXX5.0XXXXXXXXXXXXS.0XXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXS.69	Average MonthlyDaily MaximumInstant.Average MonthlyDaily MaximumReport16.43XXXXXXXXXReport16.43XXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXTotal MoXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportXXXXXXXXXXXXS.0XXReportReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportReportXXXXXXXXXXXXReportReportXXXXXXXXXXXXS.698.88

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 003 are based on a design flow of 0.0081 MGD.-Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Daily Maximum	Instant Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	tions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
Flow (GPM)	Report	5.633	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Flow (Total Volume, Mgal)	Report Total Mo	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX
Duration of Discharge (hours)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	XXX
pH (S.U.)	XXX	XXX	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
Dissolved Oxygen	XXX	XXX	5.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Residual Chlorine (TRC)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX	0.05
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	30.0	XXX	60.0
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	15.0	XXX	30.0
Aluminum, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Cadmium, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	0.66	1.03	$1.66^{(1)}$
Copper, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX
Iron, Dissolved	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	7.0
Selenium, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	5.92	9.24	$14.8^{(1)}$
Silver, Total (ug/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	Report	XXX

<sup>(1)</sup>Limit included for Department evaluation sampling during inspections only.

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

• Best Management Practices

• Acquisition of Hydrostatic Test Water

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 412-442-4000.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

Northeast Regional Office

**PA0276529**, Storm Water, SIC Code 4953, **GFL Environmental, Inc.**, 17 Industrial Park Road, Lake Ariel, PA 18463. Facility Name: Lake Ariel Hauling. This proposed facility is located in Sterling Township, **Wayne County**.

Description of Proposed Activity: The application is for a new NPDES permit for a new discharge of treated industrial stormwater.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary to West Branch Wallenpaupack Creek (HQ-CWF, MF), is located in State Water Plan watershed 1-C and is classified for High Quality—Cold Water and Migratory Fish, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.—Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit: Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	tions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
pH (S.U.) Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) Total Suspended Solids Ammonia-Nitrogen Iron, Total	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX	Report Report Report Report Report	XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

#### • Stormwater BMPs

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570-826-5472.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

**PAS802222**, Storm Water, SIC Code 7699, **Male Road Ind Properties**, **LP**, P.O. Box 160, Wind Gap, PA 18091-0160. Facility Name: Male Rd Ind Properties LP. This existing facility is located in Plainfield Township, **Northampton County**.

Description of Existing Activity: The application is for a renewal of an NPDES permit for an existing discharge of treated industrial stormwater.

The receiving stream(s), Unnamed Tributary to Little Bushkill Creek, is located in State Water Plan watershed 1-F and is classified for, aquatic life, water supply and recreation. The discharge is not expected to affect public water supplies.

The proposed effluent limits for Outfall 001 are based on a design flow of 0 MGD.—Limits.

Parameters	Mass Unit Average Monthly	s (lbs/day) Average Weekly	Minimum	Concentrat Average Monthly	tions (mg/L) Daily Maximum	IMAX
Total Suspended Solids	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Oil and Grease	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX
Iron, Total	XXX	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report	XXX

In addition, the permit contains the following major special conditions:

• Stormwater BMPs

You may make an appointment to review the DEP files on this case by calling the File Review Coordinator at 570-826-5472.

The EPA Waiver is in effect.

## III. Individual NPDES Permit Applications for Discharges of Stormwater Associated with Construction Activity.

•				
Application Number	Application Type	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	Office
PAD390225	New	Real Deal Management, Inc. 1 International Blvd. Suite 410 Mahwah, NJ 07430	Upper Macungie Township Lehigh County	NERO
PAD390235	Renewal	PPL Electric Utilities Corporation 827 Hausman Rd. Allentown, PA 18104	Lower Macungie Township Upper Macungie Township Lehigh County	NERO
PAD060062	New	150 Birch Hill Industrial Development, LLC 5 Knowles Creek Road New Hope, PA 18938-9250	Perry Township Berks County	SCRO
PAD010013	New	Waynesboro Borough Authority 55 East Main Street Waynesboro, PA 17268	Hamiltonban Township Adams County	SCRO
PAD670067	New	Market Industrial LLC 254 West 31st Street 4th Floor New York, NY 10001	Springettsbury Township York County	SCRO
PA420001D	New	Highland Field Services LLC 5800 Corporate Drive Suite 300 Pittsburgh, PA 15237	Sergeant Township McKean County	NWRO

## STATE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

### PROPOSED NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANS RELATED TO APPLICATIONS FOR NPDES PERMITS FOR CAFOs

This notice provides information about agricultural operations that have submitted nutrient management plans (NMPs) for approval under 3 Pa.C.S. Chapter 5 and that have or anticipate submitting applications for new, amended or renewed

(National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) NPDES permits, or Notices of Intent (NOIs) for coverage under a general permit, for CAFOs, under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 92a. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapter 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing The Clean Streams Law and the Federal Clean Water Act.

Based upon preliminary reviews, the State Conservation Commission (SCC) or County Conservation Districts (CCD) working under a delegation agreement with the SCC have completed an administrative review of NMPs described. These NMPs are published as proposed plans for comment prior to taking final actions. The NMPs are available for review at the CCD office for the county where the agricultural operation is located. A list of CCD office locations is available at http://www.nacdnet.org/about/districts/directory/pa.phtml or can be obtained from the SCC at the office address listed or by calling (717) 787-8821.

Persons wishing to comment on an NMP are invited to submit a statement outlining their comments on the plan to the CCD, with a copy to the SCC for each NMP, within 30-days from the date of this public notice. Comments received within the respective comment periods will be considered in the final determinations regarding the NMPs. Comments should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the SCC of the exact basis of the comments and the relevant facts upon which they are based. Comments should be sent to the SCC, Agriculture Building, Room 310, 2301 North Cameron Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Persons with a disability who require an auxiliary aid, service, including TDD users or other accommodations to seek additional information should contact the SCC through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

#### ACT 38 NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANS CAFO PUBLIC NOTICE SPREADSHEET—APPLICATIONS

Agricultural Operation Name and Address	County	Total Acres	Animal Equivalent Units	Animal Type	Special Protection Waters (HQ or EV or NA)	Renewal / New
Country View Family Farms, LLC Bivouac Sow Farm 15197 Great Cove Rd Big Cove Tannery, PA 17212	Fulton	224	3,271.50	Sows, Sows with Litters, Gilts and Boars	NA	Renewal

## PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PERMITS

Under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17), the following parties have applied for PWS permits to construct or substantially modify public water systems.

Persons wishing to comment on permit applications are invited to submit statements to the office listed before the application within 30 days of this public notice. Comments received within this 30-day comment period will be considered in the formulation of the final determinations regarding an application. A comment should include the name, address and telephone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the Department of the exact basis of a comment and the relevant facts upon which it is based. A public hearing may be held after consideration of comments received during the 30-day public comment period.

Following the comment period, the Department will make a final determination regarding the proposed permit. Notice of this final determination will be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* at which time this determination may be appealed to the Environmental Hearing Board.

The permit application and related documents are on file at the office listed before the application and available for public review. Arrangements for inspection and copying information should be made with the office listed before the application.

Persons with a disability that require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodations to participate during the 30-day public comment period should contact the office listed before the application. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

#### SAFE DRINKING WATER

Applications Received Under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17).

Southeast Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5980.

Permit No. 1521528, Public Water Supply.

	/ 11.0
Applicant	Pennsylvania American
Township	East Vincent
County	Chester
Type of Facility	PWS
Consulting Engineer	Gannett Fleming, Inc. 207 Senate Avenue Camp Hill, PA 17011-2316
Application Received Date	December 20, 2021
Description of Action	A new water treatment plant will be constructed on a green field site near the existing water treatment plant. The WTP will utilize conventional treatment (flocculation, sedimentation, gravity sand filtration) plus UV treatment.
Southcentral Region: 909 Elmerton Avenue	Safe Drinking Water Program, Jarrishurg PA 17110

909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

#### Application No. 0622506, Public Water Supply.

Camp Adahi & Adahi Kids 172 Hartz Store Road Mohnton, PA 17540

Applicant

<b>36 1 1 1</b>	
Municipality	Brecknock Township Berks
County Regnongible Official	Scott M. Diem
Responsible Official	Board President
	172 Hartz Store Road Mohnton, PA 17540
Consulting Engineer	Jeremy S. Madaras, P.E. J.S. Madaras Consulting LLC 250 Indian Lane Boyertown, PA 19512
Application Received	February 16, 2022
Description	The application is for adding pH adjustment to their system.
<b>Application No. 212</b>	2502, Public Water Supply.
Applicant	<b>Calvary Chapel Harrisburg</b> 702 Lisburn Road Camp Hill, PA 17011
Municipality	Mechanicsburg Borough
County	Cumberland
<b>Responsible Official</b>	Matt VanderVen
	Pastor 702 Lisburn Road Camp Hill, PA 17011
Consulting Engineer	Not Listed
Application Received	March 2, 2022
Description	The application for Calvary Chapel Harrisburg is for a new system (well and treatment) for the church and school.
<b>Application No. 212</b>	2503, Public Water Supply.
Application No. 212 Applicant	22503, Public Water Supply. SUEZ Water
	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104
Applicant	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112
Applicant Municipality	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Upper Allen Township
Applicant Municipality County	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Upper Allen Township Cumberland John D. Hollenbach General Manager 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104
Applicant Municipality County Responsible Official	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Upper Allen Township Cumberland John D. Hollenbach General Manager 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Peng Chen, P.E. SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104
Applicant Municipality County Responsible Official Consulting Engineer	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Upper Allen Township Cumberland John D. Hollenbach General Manager 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Peng Chen, P.E. SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112
Applicant Municipality County Responsible Official Consulting Engineer Application Received Description	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Upper Allen Township Cumberland John D. Hollenbach General Manager 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Peng Chen, P.E. SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 March 4, 2022 The appliation is for a proposed new pressure district to include new finished water storage tank, booster station, pressure reducing valves, and a water
Applicant Municipality County Responsible Official Consulting Engineer Application Received Description	SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Upper Allen Township Cumberland John D. Hollenbach General Manager 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 Peng Chen, P.E. SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. 6310 Allentown Boulevard Suite 104 Harrisburg, PA 17112 March 4, 2022 The appliation is for a proposed new pressure district to include new finished water storage tank, booster station, pressure reducing valves, and a water main.

Harrison Township

County	Bedford
Responsible Official	Dan Yoder Owner P.O. Box 333 Manns Choice, PA 15550
Consulting Engineer	David M. Cunningham, P.E. Keller Engineers, Inc. 420 Allegheny Street Hollidaysburg, PA 16648
Application Received	March 14, 2022
Description	Permittee is proposing to install 4-log treatment of viruses.

## LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION UNDER ACT 2, 1995 PREAMBLE 1

#### Acknowledgment of Notices of Intent to Remediate Submitted Under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101-6026.908).

Sections 302-305 of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (Act) require the Department of Environmental Protection (Department) to publish in the Pennsylvania Bulletin an acknowledgment noting receipt of any Notices of Intent to Remediate. An acknowledgment of the receipt of a Notice of Intent (NOI) to Remediate is used to identify a site where a person proposes to, or has been required to, respond to a release of a regulated substance at a site. Persons intending to use the background standard, Statewide health standard, the site-specific standard, or who intend to remediate a site as a special industrial area, must file a (NOI) to Remediate with the Department. A NOI to Remediate filed with the Department provides a brief description of the location of the site, a list of known or suspected contaminants at the site, the proposed remediation measures for the site, and a description of the intended future use of the site. A person who demonstrates attainment of one, or a combination of the cleanup standards, or who receives approval of a special industrial area remediation identified under the Act, will be relieved of further liability for the remediation of the site for any contamination identified in reports submitted to and approved by the Department. Furthermore, the person shall not be subject to citizen suits or other contribution actions brought by responsible persons not participating in the remediation.

Under Sections 304(n)(1)(ii) and 305(c)(2) of the Act, there is a 30-day public and municipal comment period for sites proposed for remediation using a site-specific standard, in whole or in part, and for sites remediated as a special industrial area. This period begins when a summary of the NOI to Remediate is published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area of the site. For the following identified site(s), proposed for remediation to a site-specific standard or as a special industrial area, the municipality, within which the site is located, may request to be involved in the development of the remediation and reuse plans for the site if the request is made within 30-days of the following specified date. During this comment period the municipality may request that the following identified person, as the remediator of the site, develop and implement a public involvement plan. Requests to be involved, and comments, should be directed to the remediator of the site.

For further information concerning the content of a NOI to Remediate, please contact the Environmental Cleanup Program Manager in the Department of Environmental Protection Regional Office under which the notice appears. If information concerning this acknowledgment is required in an alternative form, contact the Community Relations Coordinator at the appropriate Regional Office listed. TDD users may telephone the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The Department of Environmental Protection has received the following Notice(s) of Intent to Remediate:

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5787.

Charline Bass.

141 Railroad Drive, 141 Railroad Drive, Warminster, PA 18974, Warwick Township, Bucks County. Sean Fullmer, PG, Compliance Management International, 1350 Welsh Road, Suite 200, North Wales, PA 19454 on behalf of Philip S. DiVita, 73 Sydney Road, Southampton, PA 18966 submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Groundwater beneath the site and other properties in the area has been found to be impacted by chlorinated solvents. The proposed future use of the property will continue to be nonresidential. The proposed cleanup standard for the site is the Statewide health standard/ background standard. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Mont-Public Spirit & Willow Grove/ Montgomery News Digital* on February 27, 2022.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

United Gilsonite Laboratories, 1396 Jefferson Avenue, Scranton, PA 18509, Dunmore Borough, Lackawanna County. Curren Environmental, 10 Penn Avenue, Cherry Hill, NJ 08002, on behalf of UGL, 1396 Jefferson Avenue, Scranton, PA 18509, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. Soil and groundwater were contaminated with metal and hydrocarbons from historic site activities. Future use of the site will be nonresidential. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Scranton Times* on March 9, 2022.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110, 717-705-4705.

**Wawa Store No. 274**, 3650 Pottsville Pike, Reading, PA 19605-1700, Muhlenberg Township, **Berks County**. Aquaterra Technologies, Inc., P.O. Box 744, West Chester, PA 19381, on behalf of Wawa, Inc., 3650 Pottsville Pike, Reading, PA 19605-1700, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate site soil contaminated with lead. The site will be remediated to the Site-Specific Standard. Future use of the site is nonresidential. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Reading Eagle* on January 18, 2022.

Jennifer Mengel Property, 40 Oneida Road, Camp Hill, PA 17011, Lower Allen Township, Cumberland County. Weaver Consultants Group, 175 Maple Hill Drive, Etters, PA 17319, on behalf of Ms. Jennifer Mengel, 40 Oneida Road, Camp Hill, PA 17011, submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate site soil and groundwater contaminated with No. 2 fuel oil. The site will be remediated to the residential Statewide health standard. Future use of the site is residential. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in the *The Sentinel* on January 27, 2022. Northcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

Atgas 4H on the Atgas BRA Pad, 202 Leroy Mountain Road, Canton, PA 17724, Leroy Township, Bradford County. Creston Environmental, LLC, P.O. Box 1373, Camp Hill, PA 17001, on behalf of Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840 has submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate concerning site soil contaminated with production fluid. The applicant proposes to remediate the site to meet the Statewide health standard. A summary of the Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Daily Review* on March 3, 2022.

Yencha BRA 2H on the Yencha BRA Pad, 51 Margies Way, New Albany, PA 18833, Monroe Township, Bradford County. Creston Environmental, LLC, P.O. Box 1373, Camp Hill, PA 17001, on behalf of Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840 has submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate concerning site soil contaminated with production fluid. The applicant proposes to remediate the site to meet the Statewide health standard

Southwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfield Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

**2610 Perrysville Avenue**, Pittsburgh, PA 15214, City of Pittsburgh, **Allegheny County**. Professional Services Industries Inc., 850 Poplar Street, Pittsburgh, PA 15220 on behalf of Lateresa Blackwell, Avenue Café Premier Event Center, 22 Plough Street, Pittsburgh, PA 15212 has submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. The property located at 2610 Perrysville Avenue, Pittsburgh, PA 15214, was the site of a former gasoline service station. A site-specific residential standard is being sought for soil and groundwater contaminated with constituents of unleaded gasoline, naphthalene, and 1,1,2 Trichloroethane.

Northwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

Beechwood Pad A (411 Boundary Lane), 411 Boundary Lane, St. Marys, PA 15857, St. Marys, Elk County. KU Resources, Inc., 22 S. Linden Street, Duquesne, PA 15110 on behalf of Pin Oak Energy Partners, LLC, 388 S. Main Street, Suite 401, Akron, OH 44311 has submitted a Notice of Intent to Remediate. A tear in the secondary containment released an unknown quantity of water to a drainage swale. Site soil has been impacted with Vanadium, Aluminum, Barium, Boron, Iron, Lithium, Manganese, Selenium, Strontium, Zinc, Chloride and site groundwater has been impacted with Aluminum, Iron, and Manganese. Future use of the property will be recreational. The Notice of Intent to Remediate was published in *The Daily Press* on March 12, 2022.

#### MUNICIPAL WASTE GENERAL PERMITS

Application(s) Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101-4000.1904); and Municipal Waste Regulations for a General Permit to Operate Municipal Waste Processing Facilities and/or the Beneficial Use of Municipal Waste. Northeast Region: Regional Solid Waste Manager, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

General Permit Application No. WMGM044-NE004. American Container & Disposal, LLC, 1438 Willowbrook Road, Northampton, PA 18067, Allen Township, Northampton County. A renewal application for continued coverage under general permit number WMGM044 for the processing of wood waste, gypsum board, rubble, organic/other waste, cardboard, particle board, newspaper, non-asphalt containing asphalt shingles, recyclable plastic waste, and scrap metal for beneficial use as mulch, soil erosion control material, aggregate material in construction, animal bedding, alternative fuel, or distributed to wholesale outlets. The application was received: March 4, 2022. Deemed administratively complete: March 17, 2022.

Comments concerning the application should be directed to Roger Bellas, Environmental Program Manager, Waste Management Program, Northeast Regional Office, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915 at 570-826-2511. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

General Permit Application No. WMGM015-NE002. Gravel Hill Enterprises, Inc., 99 Headline Road, Deer Park, NY 11729. A renewal application for continued coverage under general permit number WMGM015 for the processing and beneficial use of timber waste to produce mulch and processing and beneficial use of leaf and yard waste to produce compost at a site located in Lower Mount Bethel Township, Northampton County. The application was received: March 8, 2022. Deemed administratively complete: March 16, 2022.

Comments concerning the application should be directed to Roger Bellas, Environmental Program Manager, Waste Management Program, Northeast Regional Office, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915 at 570-826-2511. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice and may recommend revisions to, and approval or denial of the application.

#### DETERMINATION OF APPLICABILITY FOR RESIDUAL WASTE GENERAL PERMITS

Application(s) Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101—4000.1904); and Residual Waste Regulations for Determination of Applicability for a General Permit to Operate Residual Waste Processing Facilities and/or the Beneficial Use of Residual Waste Other than Coal Ash.

Southwest Region: Regional Solid Waste Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

General Permit Application No. WMGR123SW033. EQT CHAP LLC, 400 Woodcliff Drive, Canonsburg, PA 1317. This general permit authorizes the processing, transfer and beneficial use of oil and gas liquid waste to develop or hydraulically fracture an oil or gas well. This application is to modify the permittee name and the design of the facility and update the Radiation Protection Action Plan and the PPC Plan of the Herminie North Centralized Water Facility located at Herminie West Newton Road, Herminie, PA 15637; Sewickley Township, **Westmoreland County**. This application for determination of applicability was deemed administratively complete by the Southwest Regional Office on March 21, 2022.

Comments concerning the application should be directed to the Southwest Regional Office Resource Account at RA-EP-EXTUPLSWRO@pa.gov. Persons interested in obtaining more information about the general permit application may contact the Southwest Regional Office, 412-442-4000. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Public comments must be submitted within 60 days of this notice.

## AIR QUALITY PLAN APPROVAL AND OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATIONS

The Department has developed an "integrated" plan approval, State Operating Permit and Title V Operating Permit program. This integrated approach is designed to make the permitting process more efficient for the Department, the regulated community and the general public. This approach allows the owner or operator of a facility to submit permitting documents relevant to its application for all sources related to a facility or a proposed project, affords an opportunity for public input, and provides for a decision on the issuance of the necessary permits.

The Department received applications for Plan Approvals or Operating Permits from the following facilities. Copies of the application, the Department's analysis, all pertinent documents used in the evaluation of the application and subsequently prepared proposed plan approvals/operating permits are available for public review during normal business hours at the appropriate Department Regional Office. Appointments for scheduling a review must be made by calling the appropriate Department Regional Office. The address and phone number of the Regional Office is listed before the application notices.

Persons wishing to file a written protest or provide comments or additional information, which they believe should be considered prior to the issuance of a permit, may submit the information to the Department's Regional Office. A 30-day comment period from the date of this publication will exist for the submission of comments, protests and information. Each submission must contain the name, address and telephone number of the person submitting the comments, identification of the proposed Plan Approval/Operating Permit including the permit number and a concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or objections to issuance of the permit.

A person wishing to request a hearing may do so during the 30-day comment period. A public hearing may be held, if the Department, in its discretion, decides that a hearing is warranted based on the information received. Persons submitting comments or requesting a hearing will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in the newspaper, the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, when the Department determines this type of notification is sufficient. Requests for a public hearing and any relevant information should be directed to the appropriate Department Regional Office.

Permits issued to the owners or operators of sources subject to 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter D or E, or located within a Title V facility or subject to 25 Pa. Code § 129.51(a) or permits issued for sources with limitations on their potential to emit used to avoid otherwise applicable Federal requirements may be submitted to the United States Environmental Protection Agency for review and approval as a revision to the State Implementation Plan. Final Plan Approvals and Operating Permits will contain terms and conditions to ensure that the sources are constructed and operating in compliance with applicable requirements in the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001—4015), 25 Pa. Code Chapters 121—145, the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 7401—7671q) and regulations adopted under the Federal Clean Air Act.

Persons with a disability who wish to comment and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate should contact the Regional Office listed before the application. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

Intent to Issue Plan Approvals and Intent to Issue or Amend Operating Permits under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter B. These actions may include the administrative amendments of an associated operating permit.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: James Beach, New Source Review Chief, (484) 250-5920.

**09-0152F:** Gelest, Inc., 11 E. Steel Road, Morrisville, PA 19067, for installation of a 1,000-gallon, glass-lined, steel, high-pressure reactor at their facility in Falls Township, **Bucks County**. The plan approval is for a Synthetic Minor facility. The potential-to-emit (PTE) of VOC and HAP emissions generated by manufacturing processes in the reactor is estimated at 2.23 tons of VOC per year and 0.004 ton per year of HAP. The plan approval will include monitoring and recordkeeping requirements designed to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements.

Anyone wishing to request information regarding this action can do so by contacting the Southeast Regional Office through the contact person listed in the previously listed header. Comments on the draft permit can be submitted through the Air Quality resource account at RA-EPSEROAQPUBCOM@pa.gov.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, (717) 705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, (717) 705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, (717) 705-4702.

**06-05061B:** Cambridge-Lee Industries, LLC, P.O. Box 14026, Reading, PA 19612-4026, to re-activate an existing natural-gas fired vertical shaft copper melting furnace at their Reading facility in Ontelaunee Township, **Berks County**. Potential air emissions from the proposed project are 19.6 tpy NO<sub>x</sub>, 16.4 tpy CO, 1.1 tpy VOC, 0.1 tpy SO<sub>x</sub> and 37.7 tpy PM<sub>10</sub>. DEP's review of the information submitted by the applicant indicates that the air contamination sources as constructed will comply with all regulatory requirements pertaining to air contamination sources and the emission of air contaminants including the best available technology requirement (BAT) of 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.1 and 127. Based on these findings, the DEP proposes to issue a plan approval for the proposed construction. If, after the project has been implemented, the Department determines that the sources are constructed and operated in compliance with the plan approval conditions and the specification of the application for plan approval, the requirements established in the plan approval will be incorporated into an Operating Permit pursuant to the administrative amendment provisions of 25 Pa. Code § 127.450.

36-03218A: East Penn Manufacturing Co., Inc., 2501 Horseshoe Road, Lancaster, PA 17601, for the construction of eight (8) lid sealing units at the Lancaster Mold (LM) facility located in Upper Leacock Township, Lancaster County. The potential emissions from the facility will be approximately 5.18 tpy of particulate matter  $(PM_{10})$  emissions. DEP's review of the information submitted by the applicant indicates that the air contamination sources as constructed will comply with all regulatory requirements pertaining to air contamination sources and the emission of air contaminants including the best available technology requirement (BAT) of 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.1 and 127.12, and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart IIII-Standards of Performance for Stationary Compression Ignition Internal Combustion Engines. Based on these findings, the DEP proposes to issue a plan approval for the proposed construction. If, after the project has been implemented, the DEP determines that the sources are constructed and operated in compliance with the plan approval conditions and the specification of the application for plan approval, the requirements established in the plan approval will be incorporated into an initial State-only operating permit in accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.411(a).

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

Contact: David Balog, New Source Review Chief, (814) 332-6940.

**10-417B:** Penn United Technologies, Inc., 300 North Pike Road, Sarver, PA 16055, for the proposed construction of 10 Reel-to-Reel Electroplating Lines with scrubber, a Passivation Line with scrubber, 2 Cold Cleaning Degreasers, a natural gas fired Emergency Generator, a Prototype Electroplating Line, a Paint Spray Booth, and 3 natural gas fired Low Pressure Steam Boilers. This is a relocation from 795 N. Pike Road, Cabot, PA (10-00333) to 300 N. Pike Road, Sarver, PA. The facility is located in Buffalo Township, **Butler County**. This is a State Only facility. The public notice is required for sources required to obtain a Plan Approval in accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.44. This plan approval will, in accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.450 or § 127.505, be incorporated into the facility operating permit at a later date.

Plan approval No 10-417B is for the proposed construction of 9 Reel-to-Reel Electroplating Lines with scrubber [107/C107], a Passivation Line with scrubber [102/C102], 2 Cold Cleaning Degreasers [103], a natural gas fired Emergency Generator [104], a Prototype Electroplating Line [105], a Paint Spray Booth [106], and 3 natural gas fired Low Pressure Steam Boilers [031]. This is a relocation from 795 N. Pike Road, Cabot, PA (10-00333) to 300 N. Pike Road, Sarver, PA. This Plan Approval will contain emission restriction, testing, recordkeeping, work practice standard and additional requirement conditions, which will satisfy the requirements of 25 Pa. Code § 127.12b (pertaining to plan approval terms and conditions) and will demonstrate Best Available Technology (BAT) for the source including, but are not limited to, the following:

- Source 031 [C101: Low Pressure Steam Boilers (3)]:
- Subject to 25 Pa. Code § 123.22

• The permittee shall maintain and operate this source in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications and good air pollution control practice.

- Source 102 [P102: Passivation Line]:
- Subject to 25 Pa. Code § 123.13

• The permittee shall maintain a record of all preventive maintenance inspections of control device. These records shall, at a minimum, contain the dates of the inspections, any problems or defects, the actions taken to correct the problem or defects, any routine maintenance performed, and the pressure drop across the scrubber and the flow of scrubbing fluid.

• The permittee shall perform a weekly preventive maintenance inspection of the control device.

• The permittee shall maintain a manometer and rotameter or equivalent devices to measure pressure drop and flow of scrubbing fluid.

• The permittee shall operate the control device at all times that this source is in operation.

• The permittee shall maintain and operate this source and the control device in accordance with manufacturer's specifications.

- Source 103 [P103: Cold Cleaning Degreasers (2)]:
- Subject to 25 Pa. Code § 129.63
- Source 104 [P104: 36 kW Emergency Generator]:
- Subject to 25 Pa. Code §§ 123.13 and 123.21
- Subject to 40 CFR 60 Subpart JJJJ

• This source shall be maintained and operated in accordance with the manufacturer's emission-related specifications and good air pollution control practices.

• Subject to 40 CFR 63 Subpart ZZZZ

• Source 105 [P105: Protype Electroplating Line] & Source 107 [P101: Reel-to-Reel Electroplating Lines (9)]:

• Subject to 25 Pa. Code § 123.13

• The permittee shall maintain a record of all preventive maintenance inspections of control device. These records shall, at a minimum, contain the dates of the inspections, any problems or defects, the actions taken to correct the problem or defects, any routine maintenance performed, and the pressure drop across the scrubber and the flow of scrubbing fluid.

• Subject to 40 CFR 63 Subpart WWWWW

• The permittee shall perform a weekly preventive maintenance inspection of the control device.

• The permittee shall maintain a manometer and rotameter or equivalent devices to measure pressure drop and flow of scrubbing fluid.

• The permittee shall operate the control device at all times that this source is in operation.

• The permittee shall maintain and operate this source and the control device in accordance with manufacturer's specifications.

- Source 106 [P106: Paint Spray Booth]:
- Subject to 25 Pa. Code § 123.13
- Subject to 25 Pa. Code § 129.52d

• The permittee shall maintain a record of all preventive maintenance inspections of control device. These records shall, at a minimum, contain the dates of the inspections, any problems or defects, the actions taken to correct the problem or defects, and any routine maintenance performed. • The permittee shall perform a daily visual preventative maintenance inspection of the control device and replace as necessary.

• The permittee shall operate the control device at all times that this source is in operation.

• The permittee shall maintain and operate this source and the control device in accordance with manufacturer's specifications.

In accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.44(f)(1), all the pertinent documents regarding this application (applications, review memos, and draft approvals) are also available for review from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. at the Meadville Regional DEP office (Air Quality). Appointments for scheduling a review must be made by calling the DEP at (814) 332-6340.

In accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.44(f)(2), a 30-day comment period, from the date of publication, will exist for the submission of comments. Any person(s) wishing to provide DEP with additional information, which they believe should be considered prior to the issuance of this permit, may submit the information to Regional Air Quality Program Manager, Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3494 and must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the person submitting the comments, identification of the proposed plan approval [10-417B] and a concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or objections to the issuance of the permit.

A public hearing may be held, if the Department of Environmental Protection, in its discretion, decides that such a hearing is warranted based on the comments received. All persons submitting comments or requesting a hearing will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in the newspaper or the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, where DEP determines such notification is sufficient. Written comments or requests for a public hearing should be directed to Regional Air Quality Program Manager, Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection, 230 Chestnut St., Meadville, PA 16335: Phone (814) 332-6940.

In accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.45, a person may oppose the proposed plan approval by filing a written protest with the Department's Northwest Region Air Quality Program Manager.

If a plan approval has not undergone the previously listed public notice process, the change to an operating permit must be treated as a significant modification. In these situations, the Department should follow the procedures described in §§ 127.421—127.431 for state Only Operating Permits or §§ 127.521—127.524 for Title V operating permits.

**32-040D:** Seward Generation LLC, 595 Plant Road, New Florence, PA 15944, for the proposed re-evaluation of  $SO_x$  BAT for the existing Boilers (# 1 and 2). The facility is located in East Wheatfield Township, Indiana County. This is a Title V facility. The public notice is required for sources required to obtain a Plan Approval in accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.44. This plan approval will, in accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.450 or § 127.505, be incorporated into the facility operating permit at a later date.

Plan approval No 32-040D is for the proposed reevaluation of  $SO_x$  BAT for the existing Boilers (# 1 and 2). This Plan Approval will contain emission restriction, testing, recordkeeping, work practice standard and additional requirement conditions, which will satisfy the requirements of 25 Pa. Code § 127.12b (pertaining to plan approval terms and conditions) and will demonstrate Best Available Technology (BAT) for the source including, but are not limited to, the following:

• Site Level:

 $\circ$  The Consent Order and Agreement (COA) dated March 31, 2021, shall terminate after issuance of this plan approval and payment of all penalties due under Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the COA.

• Source 034 and 035:

• When the sulfur content of the fuel is 5.0 lb/mmbtu or more, emissions of sulfur oxides, expressed as SO<sub>2</sub> lb/mmbtu, shall be reduced in the boiler and flyash reinjection system, by at least 95% on a 12-month rolling average. A 12-month rolling average will be considered valid if it contains at least nine (9) valid monthly averages. Compliance shall be based on the average of valid monthly averages. A valid monthly average consists of any month in which the source operated with a sulfur content of the fuel of 5.0 lb/mmbtu or more for at least 75% of the days in that month. Days when the source did not operate for 18 hours or more when the sulfur content of the fuel is 5.0 lb/mmbtu or more are invalid for purposes of this condition. Additional SO<sub>2</sub> removal efficiency stated in the applications shall be achieved by fuel beneficiation. [This condition replaces the following condition from Plan Approval 32-040B and Title V/State Operating Permit 32-00040 issued July 20, 2021 Page 82 Condition # 002: Emissions of sulfur oxides, expressed as SO<sub>2</sub> lb/mmbtu, shall be reduced in the boiler and flyash reinjection system, by at least 95% on a 12-month rolling average. A 12-month rolling average will be considered valid if it contains at least nine (9) valid monthly averages. Additional SO2 removal efficiency stated in the application shall be achieved by fuel beneficiation.

• Combined emissions for the boilers (Sources 034 and 035) shall be limited as follows:

- Pollutant—lbs/hr
- $\circ$  NO<sub>x</sub>-759.6
- $\circ$  Filterable PM<sub>10</sub>—50.6
- $\circ$  SO<sub>2</sub>—3038.4
- CO-759.6
- NMVOC (as propane)-25.4
- $\circ$  NH<sub>3</sub>-32.9

 $\circ\,$  in accordance with applicable BAT, BACT, and LAER requirements.

• Compliance with emissions limitations for NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub> is demonstrated through use of CEMS, in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapter 139, and are based on a 30-day rolling lb/hr average. Compliance with Filterable PM<sub>10</sub>, CO, NMVOC, and NH<sub>3</sub> emissions limitations shall be determined by the average of three source tests conducted in accordance with the DEP Source Testing Manual. Filterable PM<sub>10</sub> emissions shall be determined in accordance with EPA Method 201A, or alternative as approved by the Department.

• When the sulfur content of the fuel is less than 5.0 lb/mmbtu, emissions of sulfur oxides, expressed as  $SO_2$  lb/mmbtu, shall be less than 0.58 lb/mmbtu on a 30-day rolling average, and compliance shall be based on the average of 30 consecutive operating days when the sulfur content of the fuel is less than 5.0 lb/mmbtu. When the sulfur content of the fuel is 5.0 lb/mmbtu or more,

emissions of sulfur oxides, expressed as  $SO_2$  lb/mmbtu, shall be less than 0.60 lb/mmbtu on a 30-day rolling average, and compliance shall be based on the average of 30 consecutive operating days when the sulfur content of the fuel is 5.0 lb/mmbtu or more. [This condition replaces the following condition from Plan Approval 32-040B and Title V/State Operating Permit 32-00040 issued July 20, 2021 Page 82 Condition # 005: Combined emissions for the boilers (Sources 034 and 035) shall be limited as follows:  $SO_2$ —0.6 lb/MMBtu].

• Combined emissions for the boilers (Sources 034 and 035) shall be limited as follows:

- Pollutant—lb/MMBtu
- $\circ$  NO<sub>x</sub>-0.15
- $\circ$  Filterable PM<sub>10</sub>—0.01
- $\circ$  SO<sub>2</sub>—see part (a) previously listed
- CO-0.15
- NMVOC (as propane)-0.005

 $\circ\,$  in accordance with applicable BAT, BACT, and LAER requirements.

• Compliance with emissions limitations for NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub> is demonstrated through use of CEMS, in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapter 139 and are based on a 30-day rolling average lb/mmbtu. Compliance with Filterable PM<sub>10</sub>, CO, and NMVOC emissions limitations shall be determined by the average of three source tests conducted in accordance with the DEP Source Testing Manual. Filterable PM<sub>10</sub> emissions shall be determined in accordance with EPA Method 201A, or alternative as approved by the Department.

• Combined emissions for the boilers (Sources 034 and 035), shall be limited as follows:

- Pollutant—tons/year
- NO<sub>x</sub>-3,327
- $\circ$  Filterable PM<sub>10</sub>—222
- $\circ$  SO<sub>2</sub>—13,308
- CO-3,327
- NMVOC (as propane)-111
- NH<sub>3</sub>-144

 $\circ$  during each consecutive 12-month period, updated monthly.

- Subject to 40 CFR 60 Subpart Da
- Subject to 25 Pa. Code § 123.25

• The Owner or Operator shall install, operate, and maintain a monitoring system for as-fired coal analysis in accordance with the requirements of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 139 or an alternate method approved by the Department. Sulfur analysis shall be determined on a daily basis with the results used to calculate monthly averages.

• If  $SO_2$  emissions from the combined  $SO_2$  Emitting Sources at the Seward Station exceed 99% of the  $SO_2$ emission limits set forth in Title V Operating Permit 32-00040, Seward shall, within 48 hours, undertake a full system audit of the  $SO_2$  Emitting Sources, and will submit a written report to the Department within 15 days. A malfunction report prepared pursuant to Title V Operating Permit 32-00040, Section C, Condition 014 shall satisfy this requirement. The full system audit shall consist of a review of the parameters routinely monitored by the Continuous Emissions Monitoring Systems and the Digital Data Acquisition Systems installed on the  $SO_2$  Emitting Sources and their control devices to determine whether or not the units and control devices were operating in accordance with specifications set forth in the approved plan approval application and good air pollution control practices. If the SO<sub>2</sub> Emitting Sources and their control devices were not operating in accordance with specifications set forth in the approved plan approval application and good air pollution control practices, then Seward shall identify corrective actions to be implemented to ensure that the limits in Title V Operating Permit 32-00040 are not exceeded. Only one audit in a seven-operating day period is required if combined SO<sub>2</sub> emissions from the SO<sub>2</sub> Emitting Sources exceed 99% of the SO<sub>2</sub> emission limits in Title V Operating Permit 32-00040. The audit and associated records shall be maintained on site.

• If the Strongstown monitor (AIRS ID 42-063-0004) measures a 1-hour concentration exceeding 75 ppb (which constitutes a daily exceedance of the 1-hour SO<sub>2</sub> NAAQS), the Department will notify Seward both verbally and in writing. Seward shall identify whether any of the SO<sub>2</sub> Emitting Sources at the Seward Station were running at the time of the exceedance, and within a reasonable time period leading up to the exceedance, not to exceed 24 hours. If any of the  $SO_2$  Emitting Sources at the Seward Station were running at the time of the exceedance, and within a reasonable time period leading up to the exceedance, not to exceed 24 hours, Seward must then analyze the meteorological data on the day the daily exceedance occurred to ensure that the daily exceedance was not due to  $SO_2$  emissions from the Seward Station. The meteorological data analysis should include trajectories run at three different heights (one at stack height and two more within the boundary layer) by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's Hysplit program or an equivalent program, and an analysis of Johnstown Airport's meteorological data and modeled upper air data using the National Weather Service's Bufkit or equivalent program. The overall goal of the meteorological data analysis is to investigate if emissions from any of the Seward Station could have potentially mixed down to the Strongstown SO2 monitor. Seward's finding must be submitted in writing to the Department within 30 days of being notified of the exceedance. In lieu of performing this meteorological analysis for the Seward Station alone, meteorological analysis for Seward and one or more of the power plants in the Indiana Nonattainment Area may be submitted, provided that the analysis is designed to investigate if emissions from the Seward Station could have potentially mixed down to the Strongstown  $SO_2$  monitor.

• All conditions from the facility operating permit with an Issue Date of July 20, 2021, for this source remain in effect unless modified in this plan approval.

• Subject to 40 CFR 97 Subpart CCCCC.

In accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.44(f)(1), all the pertinent documents regarding this application (applications, review memos, and draft approvals) are also available for review from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. at the Meadville Regional DEP office (Air Quality). Appointments for scheduling a review must be made by calling the DEP at (814) 332-6340.

In accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.44(f)(2), a 30-day comment period, from the date of publication, will exist for the submission of comments. Any person(s) wishing to provide DEP with additional information, which they believe should be considered prior to the issuance of this permit, may submit the information to Regional Air

Quality Program Manager, Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3494 and must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the person submitting the comments, identification of the proposed plan approval [32-040D] and a concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or objections to the issuance of the permit.

A public hearing may be held, if the Department of Environmental Protection, in its discretion, decides that such a hearing is warranted based on the comments received. All persons submitting comments or requesting a hearing will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in the newspaper or the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, where DEP determines such notification is sufficient. Written comments or requests for a public hearing should be directed to Regional Air Quality Program Manager, Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection, 230 Chestnut St., Meadville, PA 16335: Phone number (814) 332-6940.

In accordance with 25 Pa. Code § 127.45, a person may oppose the proposed plan approval by filing a written protest with the Department's Northwest Region Air Quality Program Manager.

If a plan approval has not undergone the previously listed public notice process, the change to an operating permit must be treated as a significant modification. In these situations, the Department should follow the procedures described in §§ 127.421—127.431 for State Only Operating Permits or §§ 127.521—127.524 for Title V operating permits.

#### **OPERATING PERMITS**

#### Intent to Issue Title V Operating Permits under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter G.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

## Contact: Matthew Williams, Facilities Permitting Chief, (814) 332-6328.

43-00196: Wabtec US Rail, 1503 West Main Street Extension, Grove City, PA 16127. The Department intends to renew the Title V Operating Permit for the Grove City Engine Plant located in Pine Township, Mercer County. This facility is a Title V facility which is major for their potential to emit  $NO_x$  and VOC. Actual 2020 Emissions were as follows: 11.95 tons VOC; 109.18 tons NO<sub>x</sub>; 21.87 tons CO; 0.09 ton  $SO_x$ ; 3.27 tons  $PM_{-10}$ ; 3.27 tons PM<sub>-2.5</sub>; 0.38 ton all HAPs combined, and 11,752 tons CO<sub>2</sub>. The sources at the facility include 6 diesel engine test cells, 3 natural gas fueled emergency generators, 1 diesel fueled emergency fire pump engine, a 13.4 million Btu/hr natural gas fueled boiler, a 26.8 million Btu/hr natural gas fueled boiler, paint booths, metal parts cleaning operations, and several natural gas fueled heaters for building heat and process use. This facility is subject to 40 CFR Part 82 Subpart B, pertaining to servicing of motor vehicle air conditioners, and Subpart F, pertaining to Recycling and Emission Reductions. The emergency engines are subject to 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZZZ, National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines, and Part 60 Subpart JJJJ, Standards of Performance for Spark Ignition Internal Combustion Engines. The conditions from previous plan approvals are included in the permit. The renewal permit contains emission

restrictions, testing, recordkeeping, work practice, and additional requirements to ensure compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Air Pollution Control Act.

Intent to Issue Operating Permits under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter F.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: Janine Tulloch-Reid, Facilities Permitting Chief, (484) 250-5920.

**23-00099:** Haven Memorial Park, 2500 Concord Road, Chester, PA 19013, for operation of a human crematory in Chester Township, **Delaware County**. The renewal permit is for a non-Title V (State Only) facility. The sources of air emissions are 2 two-stage human crematory units, both firing on natural gas. The permit will include monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements designed to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements.

Anyone wishing to request information regarding this action can do so by contacting the Southeast Regional Office through the contact person listed in the previously listed header. Comments on the draft permit can be submitted through the Air Quality resource account at RA-EPSEROAQPUBCOM@pa.gov.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, (717) 705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, (717) 705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, (717) 705-4702.

**44-03025:** Spectra Wood, Inc., 50 Industrial Park Road, Lewistown, PA 17044-9312, to issue a State Only Operating Permit for the wood furniture surface coating facility in Lewistown Township, **Mifflin County**. Actual emissions from the facility are limited to less than 50 tpy VOC, 25 tpy HAPs, and 10 tpy of any single HAP. The operating permit will include emission limits and work practice standards along with monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements to ensure the facility complies with the applicable air quality regulations.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

Contact: Matthew Williams, Facilities Permitting Chief, (814) 332-6940.

16-00124: Equitrans Midstream, Truittsburg Compressor Station, 5093 Truittsburg Road, Fairmont City, PA 16224, the Department intends to issue the renewal State-Only Operating Permit of a natural gas transmission facility located in Redbank Township, Clarion County. Permitted air contamination sources at the facility include two transmission/compression engines, a tri-ethylene glycol (TEG) dehydrator, an emergency generator, a parts washer, and miscellaneous sources of fugitive emissions. In this renewal, provisions on source test submittals are revised to reflect the latest instructions from Source Testing Section. To demonstrate compliance with 25 Pa. Code § 123.1, a monthly audio, visual, and olfactory (AVO) inspection requirement is added to determine any fugitive leaks. The facility is Natural Minor for permitting purposes and an area HAP source for MACT purposes.

24-00169: Modern Industries, Incorporated, Kersey Division, 135 Green Road, Kersey, PA 15846-8905. The Department intends to renew a State Only Operating Permit for the facility located in Fox Township, Elk County. The primary sources at the facility are 5 natural gas fueled temper furnaces and 2 natural gas fueled heat-treat/quenching furnaces. The combined heat input rating for all 7 furnaces is 10,175,000 Btu/hr. Potential emissions from the facility are as follows: 4.88 tpy NO<sub>x</sub>; 4.10 tpy CO; 0.46 tpy PM; 0.03 tpy SO<sub>x</sub>; and 0.27 tpy VOC. The facility is a Natural Minor. The renewal permit contains emission restrictions, recordkeeping, work practice, and additional requirements to ensure compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Air Pollution Control Act.

**37-00299: TMS International, LLC**, 1155 Business Center Drive, Horsham, PA 19044. The Department intends to issue a renewal of the State Only Operating Permit for the TMS International New Castle slag processing plant located in Taylor Township, **Lawrence County**. The facility is a Natural Minor. Potential emissions are as follows: 3.95 tpy PM; 2.38 tpy PM<sub>-10</sub>; and 3.04 tpy PM<sub>-2.5</sub>. The primary sources at the facility are slag processing, torch cutting, and storage piles. The renewal permit contains emission restrictions, record-keeping, and work practice requirements to ensure compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Air Pollution Control Act.

61-00185: Heath Oil Company, P.O. Box 1128, Oil City, PA 16301-0628. The Department is providing notice that they intend to renew a State Only Natural Minor Operating Permit for the bulk gasoline terminal located in Barkeyville Borough, Venango County. The facility's primary emission sources include the internal floating roof tanks, facility fugitives, two distillation columns, a petroleum recovery system, a CNG public access fueling system, and a tank wagon loading rack. The potential emissions of the primary pollutants from the facility are as follows: 4.38 TPY (tons per year)  $\rm NO_x,$  3.68 TPY CO, 49.90 TPY VOC, 0.33 TPY  $\rm PM_{-10}$  and  $\rm PM_{-2.5},$  and 0.03 TPY SO<sub>x</sub>; thus, the facility is a natural minor. The facility is subject to 40 CFR 63 Subpart BBBBBB, NESHAP for Gasoline Distribution Bulk Terminals, Bulk Plants, and Pipeline Facilities. The storage vessels are subject to 40 CFR 60 Subpart Kb, Standards of Performance for Volatile Organic Liquid Storage Vessels (Including Petroleum Liquid Storage Vessels) for Which Construction, Reconstruction, or Modification Commenced after July 23, 1984. The renewal permit will contain emission restrictions, recordkeeping, work practices, and additional requirements to ensure compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Air Pollution Control Act.

**61-00228: AM Stabilizers Corporation**, 240 Two Mile Run Road North, Franklin, PA 16323, the Department intends to issue the renewal State-Only Operating Permit of a facility, which manufactures barium and calcium intermediates used in the production of mixed metal heat stabilizers for PVC plastics, located in Sugarcreek Borough, **Venango County**. Permitted air contamination sources at the facility include batch chemical reactors, tanks, packaging activities, and cold cleaning degreasers. For permitting purposes, the facility is Synthetic Minor. The facility is subject to Synthetic Minor limits of 49.9—TPY VOC, 9.9—TPY single HAP, and 24.9—TPY total HAPs, with emissions from the facility combined with emissions from an adjacent facility permitted under 61-00012. In this renewal, only minor permit changes are made.

#### PLAN APPROVALS

Receipt of Plan Approval Applications and Intent to Issue Plan Approvals, and Intent to Issue Amended Operating Permits under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter B and Subchapter F. These actions may include the administrative amendments of an associated operating permit.

Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

Contact: Norman Frederick, Facility Permitting Chief, (570) 826-2409.

**48-00084A: L & M Fabrication and Machine, Inc.**, 7230 Beth-Bath Pike, Bath, PA 18014, for their facility in East Allen Township, **Northampton County**. In accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.44(a) and 127.45(a), the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has received and intends to issue a Plan Approval to L & M Fabrication and Machine, Inc. (7230 Beth-Bath Pike, Bath, PA 18014) for their facility in East Allen Township, Northampton County. This Plan Approval No. 48-00084A will be incorporated into a Natural Minor Permit at a later date.

Plan Approval No. 48-00084A is for the installation of one (1) 8,800 CFM baghouse to control dust from one (1) shot blast booth. Particulate Matter (PM) emissions from the plant will remain under their 100 TPY threshold limit, 12-month rolling sum. The company shall be subject to and comply with 25 Pa. Code § 123.13 for PM emissions. These limits will meet BAT requirements for this source. The Plan Approval and Operating permit will contain additional recordkeeping and operating restrictions designed to keep the facility operating within all applicable air quality requirements.

Copies of the application, DEP's analysis and other documents used in the evaluation of the application are available for public review during normal business hours at Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711.

Any person(s) wishing to provide DEP with additional information, which they believe should be considered prior to the issuance of this permit, may submit the information to the address shown in the preceding paragraph. Each written comment must contain the name, address and telephone number of the person submitting the comments, identification of the proposed permit No. 48-00048A and a concise statement regarding the relevancy of the information or objections to the issuance of the permit.

A public hearing may be held, if the Department of Environmental Protection, in its discretion, decides that such a hearing is warranted based on the comments received. All persons submitting comments or requesting a hearing will be notified of the decision to hold a hearing by publication in the newspaper or the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* or by telephone, where DEP determines such notification is sufficient. Written comments or requests for a public hearing should be directed to Ray Kempa, Environmental Group Manager, New Source Review Section, Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711, Phone 570-826-2511 within 30 days after publication date.

## COAL & NONCOAL MINING ACTIVITY APPLICATIONS

Applications under the Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1396.1—1396.31); the Noncoal Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 3301—3326); the Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001); the Coal Refuse Disposal Control Act (52 P.S. §§ 30.51—30.66); the Bituminous Mine Subsidence and Land Conservation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1406.1—1406.21).

Mining activity permits issued in response to such applications are also subject to applicable permitting requirements of the following statutes: the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001—4015); the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1—693.27); and the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101—6018.1003).

The following permit applications to conduct mining activities have been received by the Department of Environmental Protection. A copy of the application is available for inspection at the District Mining Office indicated above each application. Requests for 401 Water Quality Certifications are included in individual application only if noted.

Written comments or objections, or requests for an informal conference, or a public hearing, as applicable, on a mining permit application may be submitted by any person or any officer or head of any Federal, State or local government agency or authority to the Department at the address of the District Mining Office indicated above each application within 30-days of this publication, or within 30-days after the last publication of the applicant's newspaper advertisement, as provided by 25 Pa. Code §§ 77.121-77.123 and 86.31-86.34 (relating to public notices of filing of permit applications, opportunity for comment, and informal conferences). Such comments or objections should contain the name, address and phone number of persons submitting comments or objections; application number; and a statement of sufficient detail to inform the Department on the basis of comment or objection and relevant facts upon which it is based.

In addition, requests for an informal conference, or a public hearing, as applicable, on a mining permit application, as provided by 25 Pa. Code § 77.123 (relating to public hearing-informal conferences) or § 86.34 (relating to informal conferences), must also contain a brief summary of the issues to be raised by the requestor at the conference and a statement whether the requestor desires to have the conference conducted in the locality of the proposed mining activities.

Where a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) number is listed, the mining activity permit application is associated with an application for an NPDES permit. A separate notice will be provided for the draft NPDES permit.

#### Noncoal Applications Received

*Effluent Limits*—The following Table 2 effluent limits apply to NPDES permits issued in conjunction with a noncoal mining permit. Additional effluent limits will be listed as part of the publication of the draft NPDES permit.

#### Table 2

Parameter	30-day	Daily	Instantaneous
	Average	Maximum	Maximum
Suspended solids Alkalinity must always exceed acidity.	10 to 35 mg/l	20 to 70 mg/l	25 to 90 mg/l

pH must always be greater than 6.0; less than 9.0.

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, (814) 342-8200, RA-EPMOSHANNON@ pa.gov (Contact: Ashley Smith).

**NPDES No. PA0270008. Mining Permit No. 08112802. Anthony Bennett**, 3657 Old Stage Coach Road, Wyalusing, PA 18853, new NPDES permit application for a small noncoal (industrial minerals) mining site located in Warren Township, **Bradford County**, affecting 7 acres. Receiving stream(s): UNT Gaylord Creek classified for the following use(s): HQ-CWF, MF. Application received: March 11, 2022.

**Permit No. 08222801. GP104 PAM222003. Northstar Leasing, Inc. dba North Star Stone, Inc.**, P.O. Box 322, Meshoppen, PA 18630, new permit application for a small noncoal (industrial minerals) operation located in Asylum Township, **Bradford County**, affecting 5 acres. Receiving stream(s): Durell Creek tributary to Susquehanna River classified for the following use(s): WWF, MF. Blasting proposed. Application received: February 24, 2022.

**Permit No. 08222802. GP104 PAM222004. Northstar Leasing Inc. dba North Star Stone, Inc.**, P.O. Box 322, Meshoppen, PA 18630, new permit application for a small noncoal (industrial minerals) operation located in Asylum Township, **Bradford County**, affecting 5 acres. Receiving stream(s): Durell Creek tributary to Susquehanna River classified for the following use(s): WWF, MF. Blasting proposed. Application received: February 24, 2022.

#### MINING ACTIVITY NPDES DRAFT PERMITS

This notice provides information about applications for a new, amended or renewed NPDES permits associated with mining activity (coal or noncoal) permits. The applications concern industrial waste (mining) discharges to surface water and discharges of stormwater associated with mining activities. This notice is provided in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing provisions of The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376).

The Department of Environmental Protection (Department) has prepared a draft NPDES permit and made a tentative determination to issue the NPDES permit in conjunction with the associated mining activity permit.

Effluent Limits for Coal Mining Activities

For coal mining activities, NPDES permits, when issued, will contain effluent limits that are the more stringent of technology-based (BAT) effluent limitations or Water Quality Based Effluent Limits (WQBEL).

The BAT limits for coal mining activities, as provided in 40 CFR Part 434 and 25 Pa. Code Chapters 87—90 are as follows:

Parameter	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instantaneous Maximum
Iron (Total)	3.0 mg/l	6.0 mg/l	7.0 mg/l
Manganese (Total)	2.0 mg/l	4.0 mg/l	5.0 mg/l
Suspended solids	35 mg/l	70 mg/l	90 mg/l
pH must always be greater than (	3.0; less than 9.0.		

Alkalinity must always be greater than acidity.

A settleable solids instantaneous maximum limit of 0.5 ml/l applies to: surface runoff (resulting from a precipitation event of less than or equal to a 10-year 24-hour event) from active mining areas; active areas disturbed by coal refuse disposal activities; mined areas backfilled and revegetated; and all other discharges and drainage (resulting from a precipitation event of greater than 1-year 24-hour to less than or equal to a 10-year 24-hour event) from coal refuse disposal piles. Similarly, modified BAT limits apply to iron, manganese and suspended solids in surface runoff, discharges and drainage resulting from these precipitation events and those of greater magnitude in accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 87.102, 88.92, 88.187, 88.292, 89.52 and 90.102.

Exceptions to BAT effluent limits may be applicable in accordance with 25 Pa. Code §§ 87.102, 88.92, 88.187, 88.292, 89.52 and 90.102.

#### Effluent Limits for Noncoal Mining Activities

The limits for noncoal mining activities as provided in 25 Pa. Code § 77.522 are pH 6 to 9 and other parameters the Department may require.

Discharges from noncoal mines located in some geologic settings (for example, in the coal fields) may require additional water quality based effluent limits. If additional effluent limits are needed for an NPDES permit associated with a noncoal mining permit, then the permit description specifies the parameters.

#### Additional criteria

In addition to BAT or WQBEL limits, coal and noncoal NPDES permits establish effluent limitations in the form of implemented Best Management Practices (BMPs) identified in the associated Erosion and Sedimentation Plan, the Reclamation Plan, and the NPDES permit application. These BMPs restrict the rates and quantities of associated pollutants from being discharged into surface waters of this Commonwealth.

More restrictive effluent limitations, restrictions on discharge volume, or restrictions on the extent of mining that may occur are incorporated into an NPDES permit when necessary for compliance with water quality standards and antidegradation requirements (in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91-96).

The procedures for determining the final effluent limits, using a mass-balance equation or model, are found in Technical Guidance Document 563-2112-115, Developing National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permits for Mining Activities. Other specific factors to be considered include public comments and Total Maximum Daily Load(s). Additional discharge limitations may apply in the event that unexpected discharges occur.

Discharge rates for surface mining activities are precipitation driven. Discharge rates for proposed discharges associated with underground mining are noted in the permit description.

#### Submittal of comments

Persons wishing to comment on an NPDES draft permit should submit a written statement to the Department at the address of the district mining office indicated before each draft permit notice within 30-days of this notice. Comments received within the comment period will be considered in the final determinations regarding the NPDES permit applications. Comments must include the name, address and phone number of the writer and a concise statement to inform the Department of the basis of a comment and the relevant facts upon which it is based.

Requests or petitions for a public hearing on any NPDES permit applications will be accepted as provided in 25 Pa. Code § 92a.82(d). The request or petition for a public hearing shall be filed within 30-days of this public notice and contain the name, address, phone number and the interest of the party filing the request and state the reasons why a hearing is warranted. The Department may hold a public hearing if the public interest is significant. If a hearing is scheduled, a notice of the hearing will be published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin and a newspaper of general circulation within the relevant geographical area. The Department will consider comments from the public hearing in the final determination on the NPDES permit application.

#### **Coal NPDES Draft Permits**

005 (TP5)

Cambria District Mining Office: 286 Industrial Park Road, Ebensburg, PA 15931, (814) 472-1900, RA-EPCAMBRIA@ pa.gov (Contact: Melanie Ford-Wigfield).

NPDES No. PA0279480. Mining Permit No. 56160102. Elk Resources, Inc., 30 Pounds Road, West Lebanon, PA 15783, renewal of an NPDES permit in Paint Township, Somerset County, affecting 418.5 acres related to a coal mining activity permit. Receiving streams: unnamed tributary to Shade Creek and Spruce Run, classified for the following use: CWF. The receiving streams are included in the Kiski-Conemaugh TMDL. Application received: March 7, 2022.

Unless otherwise noted, the proposed effluent limits for all outfalls in this permit are the BAT limits described previously for coal mining activities.

The following outfalls discharge to Spruce Run:

Outfall number	New or Existing	Туре	Discharge rate (MGD)
001 (TP1) 002 (TP2) 003 (TP3) 006 (TP7)	Existing Existing Existing Existing	Treatment Facility Treatment Facility Treatment Facility Treatment Facility	0.078 0.078 0.078 0.078 0.078
The following outfalls discha	arge to Shade Creek:		
Outfall number	New or Existing	Type	Discharge rate (MGD)
004 (TP5)	Existing	Treatment Facility	0.078

**Treatment Facility** 

0.078

Existing The following outfalls discharge to Spruce Run and unnamed tributary to Shade Creek:

e	0 1	r -	
Outfall number	New or Existing	Туре	Discharge rate (MGD)
007 (SP1)	Existing	Sediment Pond	0.332
008 (SP2)	Existing	Sediment Pond	0.332
009 (SP3)	Existing	Sediment Pond	0.062
010 (SP4)	Existing	Sediment Pond	0.167
011 (SP5)	Existing	Sediment Pond	0.332
012 (SP6)	Existing	Sediment Pond	0.167
013 (SP7)	Existing	Sediment Pond	0.167
014 (ST8)	Existing	Sediment Trap	0.055

The proposed effluent limits for the previously listed outfalls 001-003 and 006 discharging to Spruce Run are as follows:

Parameter (unit)	Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant Maximum
Total Iron (mg/L)	XXX	3.0	6.0	7.0
Total Manganese (mg/L)	XXX	2.0	4.0	5.0
Total Aluminum (mg/L)	XXX	1.7	3.4	4.2
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)	XXX	35.0	70.0	90.0
pH (S.U.)	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
Net Alkalinity (mg/L)	0.0	XXX	XXX	XXX

Parameter (unit)	Minimum	30-Day	Daily Maximum	Instant Maximum
Furameter (unit)	Minimum	Average	Maximum	maximum
Total Alkalinity (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Acidity (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Flow (gpm)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Temperature (°C)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Specific Conductance (µmhos/cm)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Sulfate (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

The proposed effluent limits for the previously listed outfalls 004 and 005 discharging to Shade Creek are as follows:

Parameter (unit)	Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant Maximum
Total Iron (mg/L)	XXX	2.9	5.8	7.0
Total Manganese (mg/L)	XXX	1.8	3.6	4.5
Total Aluminum (mg/L)	XXX	0.8	1.6	2.0
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)	XXX	35.0	70.0	90.0
pH (S.U.)	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
Net Alkalinity (mg/L)	0.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Alkalinity (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Acidity (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Flow (gpm)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Temperature (°C)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Specific Conductance (µmhos/cm)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Sulfate (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

The proposed effluent limits for the previoulsy listed outfalls 007—014 discharging to Spruce Run and unnamed tributary to Shade Creek are as follows:

Parameter (unit)	Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant Maximum
Total Iron (mg/L)	XXX	1.5	3.0	3.7
Total Manganese (mg/L)	XXX	1.0	2.0	2.56
Total Aluminum (mg/L)	XXX	0.75	0.75	0.75
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)	XXX	35.0	70.0	90.0
pH (S.U.)	6.0	XXX	XXX	9.0
Net Alkalinity (mg/L)	0.0	XXX	XXX	XXX
Total Alkalinity (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Total Acidity (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Flow (gpm)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Temperature (°C)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Specific Conductance (µmhos/cm)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report
Sulfate (mg/L)	XXX	XXX	XXX	Report

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, (814) 342-8200, RA-EPMOSHANNON@ pa.gov (Contact: Ashley Smith).

**NPDES No. PA0257818. Mining Permit No. 17110109. King Coal Sales, Inc.**, P.O. Box 712, Philipsburg, PA 16866, renewal of an NPDES permit for discharge of water resulting from bituminous surface coal mine in Morris Township, **Clearfield County**, affecting 85.7 acres. Receiving stream(s): Hawk Run, classified for the following use(s): CWF. This receiving stream is included in the Moshannon Creek TMDL. Application received: January 26, 2022.

Unless otherwise noted for a specific outfall, the proposed effluent limits for all outfalls in this permit are the BAT limits described previously for coal mining activities.

The following outfalls discharge to Hawk Run:

Outfall No.	New or Existing	Туре	Discharge Rate
001	Existing	Treatment Pond A	Intermittent (Pumped)
002	Existing	Treatment Pond B	Intermittent (Pumped)
003	Existing	Sedimentation Basin 1	Precipitation Induced
004	Existing	Sedimentation Basin 2	Precipitation Induced
005	Existing	Sedimentation Basin 3	Precipitation Induced

The proposed effluent limits for the previously listed outfalls are as follows:

Outfalls: 001, 002 (All Weather Conditions) Parameter	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Iron (mg/L)	3.0	6.0	7.0
Manganese (mg/L)	2.0	4.0	5.0
Aluminum (mg/L)	0.75	0.75	0.75
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)	35.0	70.0	90.0
Sulfate (mg/L)		Report	

Outfalls: 001, 002 (All Weather Conditions) Parameter	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Flow (gpm) Temperature (°C) Specific Conductivity (µmhos/cm)	Report	Report Report	
pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0 and 9.0 standard unit Alkalinity must exceed acidity at all times.	1		
Outfalls: 003, 004, 005 (All Weather Conditions) Parameter	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Iron (mg/L)	3.0	6.0	7.0
Manganese (mg/L)	2.0	4.0	5.0
Aluminum (mg/L)	3.5	7.0	8.7
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)	35.0	70.0	90.0
Sulfate (mg/L)		Report	
Flow (gpm)		Report	
Temperature (°C)		Report	
Specific Conductivity (µmhos/cm)		Report	
pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0 and 9.0 standard unit	ts at all times.		

Alkalinity must exceed acidity at all times.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, (570) 621-3118, RA-EPPottsvilleDMO@ pa.gov (Contact: Theresa Reilly-Flannery).

NPDES No. PA0225614. Mining Permit No. 40041601. Hazleton Shaft Division, LLC, P.O. Box 39, Hazleton, PA 18201, renewal and transfer of NPDES permit on an anthracite preparation plant operation in Hazle Township, Luzerne County, affecting 133.0 acres. Receiving stream: Hazle Creek, classified for the following uses: HQ-CWF, MF, TMDL. This permit has no discharge. Application received: October 6, 2021.

Noncoal NPDES Draft Permits

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, (814) 342-8200, RA-EPMOSHANNON@ pa.gov (Contact: Ashley Smith).

**NPDES Permit No. PA0269981. Mining Permit No. 57210302. McClintock Quarries, LLC**, 1522 US Highway 220, Muncy Valley, PA 17758, new NPDES permit for management of water on a large industrial minerals surface mine in Shrewsbury Township, **Sullivan County**, affecting 59.3 acres. Receiving stream(s): tributary to Rock Run and tributary to Muncy Creek, classified for the following use(s): EV and MF. Application received: November 30, 2021.

The following outfall requires a non-discharge alternative:

Outfall No.	New or Existing	Type	Discharge Rate
001	New	Treatment Facility 01A & 01B	No Discharge (infiltration)

There is no proposed surface discharge from the previously listed facilities to the receiving stream due to the implementation of Best Management Practices in the form of a nondischarge infiltration area.

New Stanton District Office: P.O. Box 133, New Stanton, PA 15672, (724) 925-5500, RA-EPNEWSTANTON@pa.gov (Contact: Tracy Norbert).

**NPDES No. PA0278211. Mining Permit No. 03142001. Bardon, Inc.**, 6401 Golden Triangle Drive, Suite 400, Greenbelt, MD 20770-3202. NPDES permit at a surface and underground noncoal mine in South Bend Township, **Armstrong County**, affecting 84.5 surface acres. A variance on the east side of Crooked Creek, approximately 1,400 feet north of SR-56/SR-156, is included for conveyance of the existing NPDES outfalls to Crooked Creek. Receiving stream(s): Crooked Creek, classified for the following use(s): WWF. The first downstream potable water supply intake from the point of discharge is Cadogan Water District (PWS 5030001) on the Allegheny River. The Department has made a tentative determination to impose effluent limitations, within the ranges specified. Application received: June 11, 2021.

The following outfalls discharge to Crooked Creek:

Outfall Nos.	New Outfall $(Y/N)$	Type
SPA	Ν	Stormwater Outfall
TP1	Ν	Treatment Facility Outfall

The proposed effluent limits for Treatment Facility Outfall TP1 are as follows:

(All Weather Conditions) Parameter	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant. Maximum
Total Iron (mg/l)	3.0	6.0	7.0
Total Manganese (mg/l)	2.0	4.0	5.0
Total Aluminum (mg/l)	2.0	4.0	5.0
Total Suspended Solids (mg/l)	35.0	70.0	90.0
Total Selenium (ug/l)		Quarterly Monitor and Report	
Osmotic Pressure (mOsm/kg)		Annual Monitor and Report	

<ul> <li>(All Weather Conditions) Parameter</li> <li>Specific Conductance (umhos/cm)</li> <li>Sulfate (mg/l)</li> <li>pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0 and 9.0 at all</li> <li>Alkalinity must exceed acidity at all times.</li> <li>The proposed effluent limits for Stormwater</li> </ul>		Daily Maximur Monitor and Monitor and	Report	Instant. Maximum
(Dry Weather Conditions)	30-D	ay A	Daily	Instant.
Parameter	ver		aximum	Maximum
Total Iron (mg/l) Total Manganese (mg/l) Total Aluminum (mg/l) Total Suspended Solids (mg/l) Specific Conductance (umhos/cm) Sulfate (mg/l) pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0 and 9.0 at all Alkalinity must exceed acidity at all times.	2 2 35		6.0 4.0 70.0 or and Report or and Report	$7.0 \\ 5.0 \\ 5.0 \\ 90.0$
(<10-yr/24-hr Precip. Event)	30-1		Daily	Instant.
Parameter	Aver		aximum	Maximum
Total Iron (mg/l) Total Settleable Solids (ml/l) pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0 and 9.0 at all Alkalinity must exceed acidity at all times.	l times.	-	-	7.0 0.5
(>10-yr/24-hr Precip. Event)	30-Day	Daily	n	Instant.
Parameter	Average	Maximur		Maximum

pH (S.U.): Must be between 6.0 and 9.0 at all times.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, (570) 621-3118, RA-EPPottsvilleDMO@ pa.gov (Contact: Theresa Reilly-Flannery).

**NPDES No. PA0124303. Mining Permit No. 7474SM2. Lehigh Cement Company, LLC**, 7660 Imperial Way, Allentown, PA 18195, renewal of an NPDES permit in Upper and Lower Nazareth Townships and Nazareth Borough, **Northampton County**, affecting 259.7 acres. Receiving stream: unnamed Tributary to Shoeneck Creek, classified for the following use: WWF. Application received: February 11, 2021.

Unless otherwise noted, the proposed effluent limits for all outfalls in this permit are the BAT limits described previously for noncoal mining activities.

The following treated wastewater outfalls discharge to unnamed tributary to Shoeneck Creek.

New or Existing	Туре	Discharge Rate				
Existing	Treatment Facility Outfall	$1.25 \ \mathrm{MGD}$				
The proposed effluent limits for the previously listed outfall are as follows:						
	Existing	Existing Treatment Facility Outfall				

Parameter (Unit)	Minimum	30-Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instant Maximum
pH (S.U.)	6.0	-	-	9.0
Net Alkalinity (mg/L)	0.0			
Total Suspended Solids (mg/L)		35.0	70.0	90.0
Flow (MGD)		1.25	1.75	
Acidity (mg/L)		Re	eport	
Alkalinity (mg/L)		Re	eport	
Oil and Grease (mg/L)		Re	eport	
Hexavalent Chromium (µg/L)		Re	port	
			-	

## FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT SECTION 401

The following permit applications, requests for Environmental Assessment approval and requests for 401 Water Quality Certification have been received by the Department of Environmental Protection. Section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (FWPCA) (33 U.S.C.A. § 1341), requires the State to certify that the involved projects will not violate the applicable provisions of Sections 301–303, 306 and 307 of the FWPCA (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1311—1313, 1316 and 1317), as well as relevant State requirements. Persons objecting to approval of a request for certification under Section 401 or to the issuance of a Dam Permit or Water Obstruction and Encroachment Permit, or the approval of an Environmental Assessment must submit any comments, suggestions or objections within 30-days of the date of this notice, as well as any questions to the office noted above the application. Comments should contain the name, address and telephone number of the person commenting, identification of the certification request to which the

2032

comments or objections are addressed, and a concise statement of comments, objections or suggestions including the relevant facts upon which they are based.

The Department may conduct a fact-finding hearing or an informal conference in response to comments if deemed necessary. Each individual will be notified, in writing, of the time and place of a scheduled hearing or conference concerning the certification request to which the comment, objection or suggestion relates. Maps, drawings and other data pertinent to the certification request are available for inspection between the hours of 8:00 AM and 4:00 PM on each working day at the office noted above the application.

If you are a person with a disability and wish to attend the hearing and you require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate in the proceedings, please contact the specified program. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

#### WATER OBSTRUCTIONS AND ENCROACHMENTS

Applications Received Under the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1–693.27) and Section 302 of the Flood Plain Management Act (32 P.S. § 679.302) and Requests for Certification Under Section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C.A. § 1341(a)).

Southeast Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, Telephone 484.250.5160, E-mail: ra-epww-sero@pa.gov.

**Permit No. E1501222-004, PECO Energy Company**, 2301 Market Street, N3-3, Philadelphia, PA 19103, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**, ACOE Philadelphia District.

To construct and maintain approximately 297 LF of 3-inch diameter PVC electrical conduits at two locations along Twin Bridge Drive via jack and bore and open cut process along and across the UNTs to Schuylkill River (WWF-MF) associated with the new electrical cable replacement for the Wayne 143 URD replacement project. The project is located within the Tredyffrin Historic District, as mapped by the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO).

The site is located along Twin Bridge Drive (Valley Forge, PA USGS Quadrangle, Latitude: 40.064668; Longitude: -75.368703) in Tredyffrin Township, Chester County.

**Permit No. E1501222-005, West Vincent Township**, 729 St. Matthews Road, Chester Springs, PA 19425, West Vincent Township, **Chester County**, ACOE Philadelphia District.

West Vincent Township is proposing to perform the following water obstruction and encroachment activities associated with the Buttonwood Bridge Replacement Project:

To remove an existing two span, 24.41-foot-long concrete encased railroad section bridge over Birch Run (EV-MF), and in its place, construct and maintain a single span, 40-foot-long composite prestressed adjacent box beam bridge with riprap scour protection directly upstream of the existing bridge. This activity will result in 89 linear feet (3,913 square feet, 0.073 acre) of permanent watercourse impact, 47 linear feet (2,103 square feet, 0.048 acre) of temporary watercourse impact, 10,498 square feet (0.241 acre) of permanent floodway impact, 6,116 square feet (0.140 acre) of temporary floodway impact, 221 square feet (0.005 acre) of permanent floodplain impact, and 977 square feet (0.023 acre) of temporary floodplain impact. Temporary impacts to watercourse include the construction and maintenance of a temporary cofferdam with 48-inch flume and temporary access road to facilitate removal of the existing structures and construction of new bridge. This project is associated with a previously authorized emergency permit (EP1521052) to temporarily secure and stabilize one of the structures and is located within the Commonwealth's Scenic River System.

The project area is located at the Buttonwood Lane and Hollow Road intersection in West Vincent Township, Chester County (USGS PA Phoenixville Quadrangle— Latitude: 40.147488, Longitude: 75.622151 W).

Permit No. E4601122-004, Pennsylvania Department of Transportation Engineering District 6-0 (PennDOT District 6-0), 7000 Geerdes Boulevard, King of Prussia, PA 19406, Upper Gwynedd, Lower Gwynedd, and Whitpain Townships, **Montgomery County**, ACOE Philadelphia District.

PennDOT District 6-0 is proposing a major amendment for a previously issued Water Obstruction and Encroachment Permit (E46-1167) associated with the SR 0202 Section 65S Reconstruction and Widening Project. PennDOT District 6-0 is proposing to remove an existing 92-foot-long, 72-inch by 48-inch reinforced concrete box culvert carrying an unnamed tributary to Wissahickon Creek (WC8, TSF-MF), and in its place, construct and maintain a 90-foot-long, 58-inch by 91-inch concrete elliptical pipe culvert resulting in an additional 22 linear feet (73 square feet) of permanent watercourse impact, 102 linear feet (770 square feet) of temporary watercourse impact, 163 square feet (0.004 acre) of permanent wetland (PFO) impact, 39 square feet (0.001 acre) of tempo-rary wetland (PFO) impact, 384 square feet of permanent floodway impact, and 95 square feet of temporary floodway impact. This activity also includes the placement of riprap rock aprons at the inlet and outlet areas.

The culvert location is at Dekalb Pike near the SEPTA Lansdale/Doylestown Line overpass in Lower Gwynedd Township, Montgomery County (USGS PA Lansdale-Ambler Quadrangle—Latitude: 40.192137 N, Longitude: 75.262202 W).

Northeast Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

Contact: Gillian Pehala, Clerk Typist 2, 570-830-3077.

E6602222-002, PA Department of Transportation, Engineering District 4-0, 55 Keystone Industrial Drive, Dunmore, PA 18512, Monroe Township, Wyoming County, Army Corps of Engineers, Baltimore District.

The following impacts are associated with the structure replacement for T-337 over Leonard Creek:

To remove the existing structure and to construct and maintain a 27.56-foot wide single-span bulb-tee beam bridge carrying T-337 (Dietz Mountain Road) across Leonard Creek (HQ-CWF, MF) having a 82.71-foot normal clear span and a 9-foot minimum underclearance.

Approximately 0.01 acre of PEM wetland will be permanently impacted due to the replacement of an existing cross-pipe.

The proposed project is located along T-337 approximately 100' east of the SR 0309/T-337 intersection (Noxen, PA Quadrangle, Latitude:  $41^{\circ}$  25' 31.34''; Longitude:  $-76^{\circ}$  0' 38.73'') in Monroe Township, Wyoming County.)

**E5402222-002.** Shenandoah Municipal Sewer Authority, Borough Hall, 15 West Washington Street, Shenandoah, PA 17976-1708, in West Mahanoy Township, Schuylkill County, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Baltimore District.

To construct and maintain the following water obstructions and encroachments associated with the Shenandoah Municipal Sewer Authority Wastewater Treatment Facility Project:

1. To place fill within the floodway of Shenandoah Creek (CWF, MF) consisting of grading associated with a proposed access drive adjoining Upper Main Road (S.R. 54). This impact will result in a new fill of 145 yd<sup>3</sup>.

2. A stormwater outfall into Shenandoah Creek (CWF, MF) consisting of a 30-inch diameter RCP, concrete endwall, and R-5 riprap apron.

3. A stormwater outfall into Shenandoah Creek (CWF, MF) consisting of an 18-inch diameter RCP, concrete endwall, and R-4 riprap apron.

4. To maintain an existing wastewater outfall into Shenandoah Creek (CWF, MF) consisting of a 21-inch diameter RCCP, concrete endwall, and R-4 riprap apron.

5. A stormwater outfall into Shenandoah Creek (CWF, MF) consisting of a 36-inch diameter RCP, concrete endwall, and R-5 riprap apron.

The project is located approximately 0.2 mile south of the intersection of Upper Main Road (S.R. 545) and West Centre Street (Shenandoah, PA Quadrangle Latitude:  $40^{\circ}$  48' 53"; Longitude: -76° 12' 53") in West Mahanoy Township, Schuylkill County. (Shenandoah, PA Quadrangle, Latitude:  $40^{\circ}$  48' 53"; Longitude: -76° 12' 53").

**E6402222-001.** Nancy Haines, 377 Neville Road, Moscow, PA 18444, in Salem Township, **Wayne County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Philadelphia District.

To construct and maintain an outfall structure in the floodway of a UNT to Wilcox Creek (HQ-CWF, MF) consisting of a 6-inch pipe with a concrete endwall and R-3 rip rap apron. The project is located at 377 Neville Road. (Lake Ariel, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41° 22′ 31″; Longitude: -75° 25′ 54″).

**E3502222-004.** Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Rachel Carson State Office Building, P.O. Box 8451, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8451, in Thornhurst Township, Lackawanna County, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Philadelphia District.

To construct and maintain a 12-foot wide, single-span, modular steel truss, steel deck with asphalt overlay, bridge across Sand Spring Run (EV, MF) having approximately a 68-foot span and a 2.5-foot underclearance. Concrete abutments, concrete wingwalls, and abutment rip rap protection will be utilized, and fill will be placed within the floodway for the roadway approaches. Approximately 0.043 acre of PFO wetland will be permanently impact with the project. The project is located in a State Forest on DCNR property along an existing trail at approximately 41° 11′ 3.2″ and -75° 36′ 44.2″. (Thornhurst, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41° 11′ 3.2″; Longitude: -75° 36′ 44.2″).

Southcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

**E4403221-002:** Norfolk Southern Bridge, PT-178.60, South of Mattawana, Mattawana, PA 17051, Bratton Township, Mifflin County, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Baltimore District. The applicant proposes to install a 60.0-foot long steel liner within an existing stone arch rail road bridge and to also reconstruct the existing floor slab associated within the same structure. The proposed maintenance activities are necessary to structurally stabilize the existing bridge. The proposed steel liner will permanently impact 720square feet of an unnamed tributary (UNT) to the Juniata River (HQ-CWF, MF). Stream regrading is also proposed within the UNT to the Juniata River (HQ-CWF, MF) and will result in 14 linear feet (160-sqare feet) of permanent stream impacts. In order to perform the maintenance activities, a temporary causeway will also be constructed in the UNT. The project is located in Bratton Township, Mifflin County (Latitude: (40.4810), Longitude: (-77.7293)).

**E2203222-002:** Mission Land Company, 5755 Union Deposit Road, Harrisburg, PA 17111-4768, in South Hanover Township, **Dauphin County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

To: 1) install and maintain a 120.0-foot long 48.0-inch diameter RCP culvert in Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and palustrine emergent wetlands, 2) to install and maintain a 4.0-inch PVC electrical conduit across Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and palustrine emergent wetlands; 3) to install and maintain a 4.0-inch PVC fiber optic conduit across Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and palustrine emergent wetlands; 4) to install and maintain a 4.0-inch PVC coaxial cable conduit across Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and palustrine emergent wetlands; 5) install and maintain an 80.0-foot long 24.0 diameter RCP culvert in Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and two 15.0-inch diameter overflow culverts in palustrine emergent wetlands, impacting 88.0-feet of stream and 0.08 acre of wetland; 6) to install and maintain a 4.0-inch PVC electrical conduit across Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and palustrine emergent wetlands; 7) to install and maintain a 4.0-inch PVC fiber optic conduit across Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and palustrine emergent wetlands; 8) to install and maintain a 4.0-inch PVC coaxial cable conduit across Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and palustrine emergent wetlands and 9) place and maintain fill in the floodway of Kellock Run (WWF, MF), all impacting a total of 0.13 acre of palustrine emergent wetlands, 200 feet of stream and 61,000 square feet of floodway; and to remove an existing 18.0-foot long CMP culvert in Kellock Run (WWF, MF) and restore the stream and surrounding palustrine emergent wetlands, temporarily impacting 20 linear feet of stream and 0.03 acre of wetlands. All impacts are for the purpose of accommodating a proposed residential housing development. The project is located near the intersection of N. Hoenerstown Road and Hillymede Drive (Latitude: 40° 17' 47.45" N; Longitude: 76° 43' 21.75" W) in South Hanover Township, Dauphin County. To compensate for the proposed wetland impacts, the applicant proposes to create 0.13 acre of wetlands onsite.

Southwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: Dana Drake.

Correction—previously published March 12, 2022

E0205221-015, Ross Township, 1000 Ross Municipal Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15237, Ross Township, Allegheny County; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

The applicant proposes to:

1. Remove 220 LF of an existing 24-inch diameter corrugated plastic pipe on a UNT to Girtys Run (WWF);

2. Construct and maintain 50 LF of replacement 36inch diameter corrugated plastic pipe on same UNT;

3. Restore and maintain 130 LF of the same UNT that was formerly enclosed within the aforementioned 24-inch diameter stream enclosure that is being removed, which is upstream and 70 LF downstream of the replacement 36-inch diameter culvert;

4. Restore and maintain 220 LF of floodway along the same UNT, via a total of 0.5-acre of fill placement associated with the floodway restoration.

For the purpose of implementing corrective actions to resolve the unpermitted enclosure and fill placement in and along 220 LF of UNT to Girtys Run and associated floodway, and to provide municipal and construction vehicle access from an existing spoil area to a proposed fill project site. The project will result in 250 LF of permanent impacts to a UNT to Girtys Run and 0.59 acre of associated floodway. The project site is located at 225 Cemetery Lane, Pittsburgh, PA 15237 (Emsworth, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40.510464°; W: 80.019792°; Sub-basin 18A; USACE Pittsburgh District), in Ross Township, Allegheny County.

Correction—previously published March 12, 2022

**E0205221-024, Brackenridge Borough**, 1000 Brackenridge Avenue, Brackenridge, PA 15014, Brackenridge Borough, **Allegheny County**; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

The applicant proposes to:

Construct, operate, and maintain a new 10-foot-wide asphalt trail within Brackenridge Memorial Park that will serve as an extension of the Three Rivers Heritage Trail paralleling the Allegheny River. Additionally, an existing abandoned well will be filled to allow the continuation of the trail.

Permanent impacts include 0.6 acre of floodplain impacts for the trail construction as well as 0.003 acre of impact for the filling of the existing well.

The project site is located at 1000 Brackenridge Avenue, New Kensington East, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 36.9′, 65″; W: -79°, 44′, 30.24″; Sub-basin; USACE Pittsburgh District, in Brackenridge Borough, Allegheny County.

Correction—previously published March 19, 2022

**E0205221-025, Bridgeville Borough**, 425 Bower Hill Road, Bridgeville, PA 15017, **Allegheny County**; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

The applicant proposes to:

Remove the existing playground equipment and to construct and maintain replacement playground equipment, subsurface drainage and a poured rubber surface within the Chartiers Creek (WWF) floodway, for the purpose of improving the quality and user experience of the playground. Permanent impacts include 0.2 acre of floodplain impacts. Temporary impacts include 0.1 acre of floodway impacts, and 0.03 acre of floodplain impacts.

The project site is located approximately 370-ft west of the park access drive intersection with Chartiers Street (Bridgeville, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 20', 56"; W: -80°, 6', 27"; Sub-basin 20F; USACE Pittsburgh District) in Upper St. Clair, Allegheny County.

Correction—previously published March 19, 2022

**E2605122-001, PennDOT District 12-0**, 825 North Gallatin Ave Ext, Uniontown, PA 15401, Bullskin Township, **Fayette County**; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

The applicant proposes to:

Remove the existing, 16.64' wide, 4' high, 35.88' long, non-composite steel I-beam bridge, and to construct and maintain a replacement, 18' wide, 5' high, 70' long Precast Concrete Box Culvert, with end sections, in Mounts Creek (WWF) and to construction and maintain stream bank protection along 32 LF on the upstream side, and along 24 LF on the downstream side of the proposed culvert. Cumulatively, the project will have a permanent impact of 150 LF, and a temporary impact of 160 LF, on Mounts Creek (WWF).

For the purpose of replacing the structure carrying S.R. 1051 over Mounts Creek (WWF).

The project site is located near the intersection of Breakneck Road and Spruce Hallow Road (Bullskin, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 4', 59.4522"; W: 79°, 28', 12.2496"; Sub-basin 18C USACE Pittsburgh District), in Bullskin, Fayette County.

Correction—previously published March 19, 2022

**E5605122-001, PennDOT District 9-0**, 1620 N. Juniata St., Hollidaysburg, PA 16648, Hooversville Borough, Conemaugh Township, Shade Township, Quemahoning Township, **Somerset County**; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

The applicant proposes to:

1. Remove the existing 41' long,  $6' \ge 4'$  concrete box culvert; construct and maintain a replacement 48' long,  $76'' \ge 48''$  elliptical concrete pipe, having a permanent impact of 174 LF and a temporary impact of 206 LF on an unnamed tributary (UNT) to Stonycreek River (CWF)(Water 8).

2. Construct and maintain a new roadway embankment slope (WET 8) along Whistler Road, a portion of which will have a total permanent impact of  $38' \ge 10'$  to Wetland 8.

3. Construct and maintain a new roadway embankment slope (WET 9) along Whistler Road, a portion of which will have a total permanent impact of  $48' \ge 15'$  and a temporary impact of  $73' \ge 10'$  to Wetland 9.

4. Remove the existing 69' long, 36" CMP pipe; construct and maintain a replacement 69' long, 36" CMP pipe, having a permanent impact of 90 LF and a temporary impact of 88 LF on same UNT to Stonycreek River (CWF)(Water 10).

5. Place and maintain rock apron around a culvert outlet which conveys an unnamed tributary (UNT) to Soap Hollow Run (CWF), having a permanent impact of 48 LF and a temporary impact of 48 LF on a UNT to Soap Hollow Run (CWF)(Water 24-1).

6. Place and maintain rock apron around a drainage pipe which conveys to the same UNT to Soap Hollow Run (CWF), having a permanent impact of 47 LF and a temporary impact of 47 LF on same UNT to Soap Hollow Run (CWF)(Water 24-2).

7. Construct and maintain a new roadway embankment slope along Tire Hill Road, having a permanent impact of 204 LF and a temporary impact of 204 LF on UNT to Soap Hollow Run (CWF)(Water 25).

8. Remove the existing 42' long,  $24' \times 3'$  reinforced concrete T-beam culvert; construct and maintain a replacement 64' long,  $20' \times 6'$  precast reinforced concrete box culvert, having a permanent impact of 103 LF and a temporary impact of 156 LF on a UNT to Soap Hollow Run (CWF)(Water 22).

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

9. Remove the existing 45' long, reinforced concrete encased steel I-beam bridge; construct and maintain a replacement 52' long,  $18' \ge 8'$  rise precast reinforced concrete box culvert, having a permanent impact of 194 LF and a temporary impact of 254 LF on Soap Hollow Run (CWF)(Water 1).

10. Construct and maintain a new roadway embankment slope along Tire Hill Road, having a permanent impact of 63 LF and a temporary impact of 63 LF on UNT to Soap Hollow Run (CWF)(Water 21).

11. Construct and maintain a new headwall structures on both the upstream and downstream end of the existing 47 LF of pipe, having a permanent impact of 91 LF and a temporary impact of 101 LF on UNT to Stonycreek River (CWF)(Water 19).

12. Place and maintain fill in wetland (WL14), having a permanent impact of 0.021 acre.

13. Place and maintain fill in wetland (WL20), having a permanent impact of 0.006 acre.

14. Place and maintain fill in wetland (WL14), having a permanent impact of 0.0006 acre.

For the purpose of this project is to preserve existing infrastructure and improve transportation safety along SR 0403. The project will permanently impact approximately 1,177 LF and temporarily impact approximately 1,346 LF of stream impacts. The project will have 0.0396 acre of permanent, and 0.021 acre of temporary, wetland impacts.

The project site is located along Campbells Run Road near the intersection of Border Street and Main Street (Hooversville, Geistown, Johnstown, Windber, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 8', 40.2987"; W: 78°, 54', 50.3"; Sub-basin 20F; USACE Pittsburgh District), in Hooversville Borough, Conemaugh Township, Shade Township, Quemahoning Township, Somerset County.

E6305221-009, North Strabane Township, 1929 Route 519, Canonsburg, PA 15317, North Strabane Twp., Washington County; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

The applicant proposes to:

1. Construct and maintain a new junction box within an existing 370 LF 84-inch diameter stream enclosure which conveys flow to a UNT to Little Chartiers Creek, HQ-WWF (STR1);

2. Construct and maintain two new stormwater inlets within the parking area which conveys to the aforementioned stream enclosure;

3. Remove 236 LF of another 24-inch diameter stream enclosure which conveys flow of another UNT (STR2) to the aforementioned UNT to Little Chartiers Creek, and to construct and maintain a replacement 565 LF, 24-inch diameter stream enclosure which will reroute STR2 to the aforementioned new junction box.

4. Temporarily reroute 418 LF (STR1) and 260 LF (SRT2) of existing stream flow through two stream by-passes during construction.

For the purpose of constructing a new Public Safety Building which will include a new fire station, municipal office space, parking lot, drainage collection system and stormwater management for the site. The project will cumulatively and permanently impact 246 LF of existing enclosed watercourses and 0.01 acre of floodway. Temporary impacts include 678 LF of watercourse and 0.05 acre of floodway. The project site is located at the existing North Strabane Township Public Safety Building at 2544 and 2550 Washington Road, Washington, PA 15301 (Canonsburg, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 15', 14"; W: -80°, 9', 31"; Sub-basin 20F; USACE Pittsburgh District), in North Strabane Township, Washington County.

Correction—previously published March 19, 2022

E6505221-010, Living Treasures II, Inc., 288 PA-711, Jones Mills, PA 15646, Donegal Township, Westmoreland County; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

The applicant proposes to:

Operate and maintain three 0.5-horsepower intake pumps within Indian Creek (HQ-CWF), which are located inside wire mesh intake boxes that are approximately 15''x 15'' x 15'' in size; Operate and maintain three 2-inch diameter PVC pipes within Indian Creek, that are attached to the aforementioned pumps.

For the purpose of supplying water (500 GPD per pump) to three ponds located within animal exhibits. Cumulatively, the project will permanently impact 79 feet of stream and permanently impact 0.003 acre of floodway. The project site is located at 288 PA-711, Jones Mills, PA 15646 (Seven Springs, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 05', 14"; W: -79°, 20', 48"; Sub-basin 19E; USACE Pittsburgh District), in Donegal Township, Westmoreland County.

**E6505222-002, PA Game Commission**, 2001 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110, Saint Clair Township, **Westmoreland County**; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

The applicant proposes to:

Construct and maintain a 50-foot long by 14-foot wide steel superstructure bridge over Sugar Run (CWF) with an underclearance of 4.5 feet; and Temporarily impact 35 linear feet of watercourse for a temporary bridge stream crossing.

For the purpose of replacing an existing ford crossing along an existing access road for vehicular access. The project will permanently impact 41 linear feet of watercourse and temporarily impact 35 linear feet of watercourse. The project site is located within State Game Lands # 042. (New Florence, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 23', 9.528"; W: -79°, 00', 59"; Subbasin 18D; USACE Pittsburgh District), in Saint Clair Township, Westmoreland County.

Northwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

**E4306222-002, Wagler LLC**, 4572 Greenville-Sandy Lake Road, Stoneboro, PA 16153. Rails to Cattails, in Sandy Lake Borough, **Mercer County**, ACOE Pittsburgh District (Sandy Lake, PA Quadrangle N: 41°, 20′, 36″; W: 80°, 06′, 27″).

The applicant proposes to construct 0.96 acre of Palustrine Emergent wetland mitigation for three areas of unpermitted Palustrine Emergent Wetland fill totaling 0.43 acre. These impacts were for the construction of a residential subdivision, utility line crossings, and associated roadways.

**E3706222-002, Stonecrest Business Park, LP**, 100 3rd Street, Charleroi, PA 15022. Stonecrest Business and Industrial Park, in New Beaver Borough, **Lawrence County**, ACOE Pittsburgh District (Beaver Falls, PA Quadrangle N: 40°, 51', 57"; W: 80°, 19', 30").

Applicant proposes to construct and maintain four building pads for future industrial development including roads, parking areas, stormwater management facilities, and infrastructure in place of the Stonecrest Golf Course located between Route 18 and the Beaver River. Construction will permanently impact 0.822 acre of emergent wetland and 665 linear foot of intermittent stream. Mitigation for relocated stream will be handled on site and wetland impacts will be handled through the Robinson Fork Mitigation Bank.

Eastern Region: Oil & Gas Management Program, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448.

E0829221-028: Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840, Overton Township, Bradford County, ACOE Baltimore District.

To construct, operate and maintain the Oilcan Bra Pad Project, which consists of the following impacts:

1. 88.0 linear feet of previously unauthorized impacts to a UNT to Chilson Run (HQ-CWF, MF), 3,570 square feet of previously unauthorized permanent floodway impacts, and 131 square feet (0.003 acre) of temporary impact to Palustrine Emergent (PEM) wetlands via the placement of fill for an access road (Overton, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: N 41° 37′ 01.70″, Longitude: W 76° 34′ 09.71″);

2. 37.0 linear feet of previously unauthorized impacts to a UNT to Chilson Run (HQ-CWF, MF) and 3,067 square feet of previously unauthorized permanent floodway impact via the placement of fill for an access road (Overton, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: N 41° 37′ 20.56″, Longitude: W 76° 34′ 04.00″).

This project is an after-the-fact permit that is associated with the Chesapeake Audit and will result in 125.0 linear feet of stream impacts, 131 square feet (0.003 acre) of temporary PEM wetland impacts, and 6,637 square feet (0.152 acre) of permanent floodway impacts, all for the purpose of Marcellus well development in Overton Township, Bradford County.

#### ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENTS

Southcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

**EA3603222-001: East Donegal Township**, 190 Rock Point Road, Marietta, PA 17547-9786 in East Donegal Township and Marietta Borough, **Lancaster County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

To conduct a stream restoration project along Evans Run (WWF, MF) including a total of 2,600 feet of bank grading (left and right banks) and vegetative plantings. The project is located immediately east of the intersection of N. Bridge Street and S.R. 441 (Latitude: 40.060528° N; Longitude: 76.555430° W) in East Donegal Township and Marietta Borough, Lancaster County. No wetlands will be impacted by this project.

## ACTIONS

# THE PENNSYLVANIA CLEAN STREAMS LAW AND THE FEDERAL CLEAN WATER ACT

## FINAL ACTIONS TAKEN FOR NPDES PERMITS AND WQM PERMITS

The Department has taken the following actions on previously received applications for new, amended, and renewed NPDES and WQM permits, applications for permit waivers, and NOIs for coverage under General Permits, as listed in the following tables. This notice of final action is published in accordance with 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91, 92a, and 102 and 40 CFR Part 122, implementing provisions of The Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1—691.1001) and the Federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251—1376). The official file for each listed action can be reviewed at the DEP or delegated county conservation district (CCD) office identified in the table for the action. DEP/CCD office contact information is listed as follows for Section I and is contained within the table for Section II. Additional information for permits issued under 25 Pa. Code Chapters 91 and 92a and Individual permits under 25 Pa. Code Chapter 102, including links to Individual Chapter 92a NPDES and WQM Permits, may be reviewed by generating the "Final Actions Report" on DEP's website at www.dep.pa.gov/CWPublicNotice.

DEP office contact information to review official files relating to the final actions in Section I is as follows:

DEP Southeast Regional Office (SERO)—2 E. Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401-4915. File Review Coordinator: 484.250.5910. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SERO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-SERO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Northeast Regional Office (NERO)—2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915. File Review Coordinator: 570.826.5472. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NERO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-NERO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Southcentral Regional Office (SCRO)—909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110. File Review Coordinator: 717.705.4732. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SCRO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-SCRO@pa.govfor Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Northcentral Regional Office (NCRO)—208 W. Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701. File Review Coordinator: 570.327.3693. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NCRO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-NCRO@pa.govfor Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Southwest Regional Office (SWRO)—400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222. File Review Coordinator: 412.442.4286. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_SWRO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-SWRO@pa.gov for Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Northwest Regional Office (NWRO)—230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335. File Review Coordinator: 814.332.6340. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_NWRO@pa.gov for Chapter 91 & 92a permits; RA-EPWW-NWRO@pa.govfor Chapter 102 permits.

DEP Bureau of Clean Water (BCW)—400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105. File Review Coordinator: 717.787.5017. Email: RA-EPNPDES\_Permits@pa.gov.

## DEP Regional Permit Coordination Office (RPCO)—400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA 17105. File Review Coordinator: 717-772-5987. Email: RA-EPREGIONALPERMIT@pa.gov.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act (35 P.S. § 7514) and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law). The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users may contact the Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30-days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30-days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board.

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should contact a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483 for more information.

For actions taken on applications for pipelines that are regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

Any person aggrieved by this action may challenge it in an appropriate legal forum. The State and Federal courts are currently split on whether the proper forum to challenge a Department permit, authorization or approval for a facility or activity subject to the Federal Natural Gas Act, 15 U.S.C.A. § 717 *et seq.*, is the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit or the Pennsylvania Environmental Hearing Board. See Delaware Riverkeeper Network v. Sec'y, Dep't of Envtl. Prot., 833 F.3d 360 (3d Cir. 2016); Delaware Riverkeeper Network v. Sec'y, Dep't of Envtl Prot., 903 F.3d 65 (3d Cir. 2018), cert. denied, 139 S. Ct. 1648, 203 L. Ed. 899 (2019) and Cole v. Dep't. of Envtl Prot, 1577 C.D. 2019 WL 2420667 (Pa. Cmwlth Ct. June 15, 2021) (Pet. for Allowance of Appeal pending); West Rockhill Twp. v. Dep't of Envtl. Prot., No. 1595 C.D. 2019 WL 2426014 (Pa. Cmwlth. June 15, 2021) (Pet. for Allowance of Appeal pending).

## I. Final Actions on NPDES and WQM Permit Applications and NOIs for Sewage, Industrial Waste, Industrial Stormwater, MS4s, Pesticides, CAFOs and Individual Construction Stormwater.

Application Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Permittee Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PA0232769	CAFO Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Mahosky Farms LLC 210 Back Road Canton, PA 17724-8932	Union Township Tioga County	SCRO
PA0260495	CAFO Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Hershey Springs Farm LLC 2024 Donegal Springs Road Mount Joy, PA 17552-8906	East Donegal Township Lancaster County	SCRO
PAD150023	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Executive Land Holdings LLC 721 Old State Road Berwyn, PA 19312	Upper Uwchlan Township Chester County	SERO
PAD400048	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	National Sisterhood United for Journeymen Linemen 15 Jarrick Lane White Haven, PA 18661	Foster Township Luzerne County	NERO
PAD450144	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Orchard BJK Company, LLC 925 Berkshire Boulevard Wyomissing, PA 19610	Coolbaugh Township Monroe County	NERO
PAD650032	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Delmont Borough Westmoreland County 77 Greensburg Street Delmont, PA 15626-1443	Delmont Borough Westmoreland County	SWRO
PAD630057	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Ted Taylor Builder, LLC 608 E McMurray Road Suite 101 McMurray, PA 15317-3440	Peters Township Washington County	SWRO
PAD020047	Chapter 102 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Cool Springs Associates, LP 11 Stanwix Street Suite 1202 Pittsburgh, PA 15222-1312	Bethel Park Borough Allegheny County	SWRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Permittee Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PA0058947	Industrial Stormwater Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Eureka Stone Quarry Inc. Dba JDM Materials Co. 851 County Line Road Huntingdon Valley, PA 19006-1111	Philadelphia City Philadelphia County	SERO
PA0058955	Industrial Stormwater Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Eureka Stone Quarry Inc. Dba JDM Materials Co. 851 County Line Road Huntingdon Valley, PA 19006-1111	Philadelphia City Philadelphia County	SERO
PA0065498	Industrial Stormwater Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Fedex Freight Inc. 2200 Forward Drive DC:2219 Harrison, AR 72601	Tobyhanna Township Monroe County	NERO
PA0276472	Industrial Stormwater Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Myers Emergency Power Systems 44 S Commerce Way Bethlehem, PA 18017-8915	Hanover Township Northampton County	NERO
PA0289060	Industrial Stormwater Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Allegheny Bradford Corp P.O. Box 200 Bradford, PA 16701-0200	Lewis Run Borough McKean County	NWRO
PA0289078	Industrial Stormwater Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Allegheny Bradford Corp P.O. Box 200 Bradford, PA 16701-0200	Lewis Run Borough McKean County	NWRO
PA0289086	Industrial Stormwater Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Allegheny Bradford Corp P.O. Box 200 Bradford, PA 16701-0200	Lewis Run Borough McKean County	NWRO
PA0291498	Industrial Stormwater Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Amazon Com Service LLC P.O. Box 80842 Seattle, WA 98108-0842	Rapho Township Lancaster County	SCRO
0213800	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Pittsburgh Field Club 121 Field Club Road Pittsburgh, PA 15238-2224	Ohara Township Allegheny County	SWRO
0216805	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Higgins Michael S 10580 Grubbs Road Wexford, PA 15090-9424	McCandless Township Allegheny County	SWRO
0913848	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Village Shires Community Assoc 3001 E Village Road Holland, PA 18966-2935	Northampton Township Bucks County	SERO
1522802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Fairville Friends School 216 Pond View Chadds Ford, PA 19317	Kennett Township Chester County	SERO
3622801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Sherman Thomas 376 Kendig Road Conestoga, PA 17516-9709	Conestoga Township Lancaster County	SCRO
4022801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Young Mitchell 329 Old Road Benton, PA 17814	Fairmount Township Luzerne County	NERO
4616822	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Upper Pottsgrove Township Montgomery County 1409 Farmington Avenue Pottstown, PA 19464-1829	Upper Pottsgrove Township Montgomery County	SERO
5613806	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Stoughton Lake P.O. Box 262 Jennerstown, PA 15547-0262	Jennerstown Borough Somerset County	SWRO

## 2039

Application Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Permittee Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
6513802	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Murrysville Borough Westmoreland County 4100 Sardis Road Murrysville, PA 15668-1120	Murrysville Borough Westmoreland County	SWRO
6722801	Joint DEP/PFBC Pesticides Permit	Issued	Ryan Marilyn 259 Ore Bank Road Dillsburg, PA 17019-9319	Carroll Township York County	SCRO
1501401	Land Application and Reuse of Sewage Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Aqua PA Wastewater Inc. 762 W Lancaster Avenue Bryn Mawr, PA 19010-3402	Penn Township Chester County	SERO
PAI132276	MS4 Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	North Whitehall Township Lehigh County 3256 Levans Road Coplay, PA 18037-2118	North Whitehall Township Lehigh County	NERO
PA0020893	Major Sewage Facility >= 1 MGD and < 5 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Manheim Area Water & Sewer Authority 18 E High Street Manheim, PA 17545-1506	Penn Township Lancaster County	SCRO
PA0020915	Major Sewage Facility >= 1 MGD and < 5 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Pine Grove Joint Treatment Authority Schuylkill County 115 Mifflin Street Pine Grove, PA 17963-1300	Pine Grove Township Schuylkill County	NERO
PA0046388	Major Sewage Facility >= 1 MGD and < 5 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Butler Township Luzerne County 83 Corporate Drive Drums, PA 18222	Butler Township Luzerne County	NERO
PA0255823	Minor Industrial Waste Facility with ELG Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	The Ames Co. Inc. 135 Roaring Run Road Champion, PA 15622-3095	Donegal Township Westmoreland County	SWRO
PA0035009	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Lake Lehman School District P.O. Box 38 Market Street Lehman, PA 18627-0038	Lehman Township Luzerne County	NERO
PA0053783	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Aqua PA Wastewater Inc. 762 West Lancaster Avenue Bryn Mawr, PA 19010-3402	New London Township Chester County	SERO
PA0053783	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Aqua PA Wastewater Inc. 762 West Lancaster Avenue Bryn Mawr, PA 19010-3402	New London Township Chester County	SERO
PA0060623	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Silver Lake Township Municipal Authority Susquehanna County P.O. Box 154 Brackney, PA 18812-0154	Silver Lake Township Susquehanna County	NERO
PA0094455	Minor Sewage Facility < 0.05 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Derry Township Municipal Authority Westmoreland County P.O. Box 250 New Derry, PA 15671-0250	Derry Township Westmoreland County	SWRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Permittee Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PA0024163	Minor Sewage Facility >= 0.05 MGD and < 1 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Cambria Township Sewer Authority Cambria County P.O. Box 247 Revloc, PA 15948-0247	Cambria Township Cambria County	SWRO
PA0047228	Minor Sewage Facility >= 0.05 MGD and < 1 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Pennsbury Village Borough Allegheny County 1043 Pennsbury Boulevard Pittsburgh, PA 15205-1643	Pennsbury Village Borough Allegheny County	SWRO
PA0050504	Minor Sewage Facility >= 0.05 MGD and < 1 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	East Goshen Municipal Authority Chester County 1580 Paoli Pike West Chester, PA 19380-6107	East Goshen Township Chester County	SERO
PA0090018	Minor Sewage Facility >= 0.05 MGD and < 1 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	North Strabane Township Municipal Authority Washington County 1929B Rte 519 S Canonsburg, PA 15317	North Strabane Township Washington County	SWRO
PA0093033	Minor Sewage Facility >= 0.05 MGD and < 1 MGD Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Eastern Armstrong County Municipal Authority P.O. Box 262 Elderton, PA 15736-0262	Elderton Borough Armstrong County	NWRO
NOEXSC376	No Exposure Certification	Issued	Acuity Brands Lighting 7 Logistics Drive Carlisle, PA 17013-7936	Carlisle Borough Cumberland County	SCRO
NOEXSE335	No Exposure Certification	Issued	Eye Designs LLC 220 W 5th Avenue Trappe, PA 19426-2106	Trappe Borough Montgomery County	SERO
NOEXSW128	No Exposure Certification	Issued	Darling Ingredients Inc. 3173 Potato Garden Run Road Imperial, PA 15126-2124	Findlay Township Allegheny County	SWRO
NOEXSW213	No Exposure Certification	Issued	Kongsberg Protech System USA Corp 210 Industrial Park Road Johnstown, PA 15904-1933	Richland Township Cambria County	SWRO
NOEXSW217	No Exposure Certification	Issued	Wabtec US Rail Inc. 1300 Clinton Road Clinton, PA 15026-1945	Findlay Township Allegheny County	SWRO
PAR606146	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Hemminger Auto & Truck Inc. 6288 Penn Avenue Friedens, PA 15541-8804	Jenner Township Somerset County	SWRO
PAR606195	PAG-03 NPDES General Permit for Industrial Stormwater	Issued	Amg Resources Corp 2 Robinson Plaza Pittsburgh, PA 15205-1017	Donegal Township Washington County	SWRO
PAG130083	PAG-13 NPDES General Permit for MS4s	Issued	Parkside Borough Delaware County 22 E Elbon Street Parkside, PA 19015	Parkside Borough Delaware County	SERO
PA0290114	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Mast John C 41 Accident Alley Reynoldsville, PA 15851-2963	Warsaw Township Jefferson County	NWRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Permittee Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PA0290131	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Blasco Garrett 10721 Old Rte 99 McKean, PA 16426	Washington Township Erie County	NWRO
PA0290173	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Keller Ronnie L 258 Turkey Cv New Braunfels, TX 78132-1662	Sandycreek Township Venango County	NWRO
PA0290181	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Borsa Richard 5366 Pinehurst Drive Erie, PA 16509-3658	McKean Township Erie County	NWRO
PA0290297	Single Residence STP Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Lemmon Ruth 697 Mushrush Road Butler, PA 16002-0947	Jefferson Township Butler County	NWRO
1022401	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Lemmon Ruth 697 Mushrush Road Butler, PA 16002-0947	Jefferson Township Butler County	NWRO
2521433	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Blasco Garrett 10721 Old Rte 99 McKean, PA 16426	Washington Township Erie County	NWRO
2521435	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Borsa Richard 5366 Pinehurst Drive Erie, PA 16509-3658	McKean Township Erie County	NWRO
3321402	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Mast John C 41 Accident Alley Reynoldsville, PA 15851-2963	Warsaw Township Jefferson County	NWRO
6121403	Single Residence Sewage Treatment Plant Individual WQM Permit	Issued	Keller Ronnie L 258 Turkey Cv New Braunfels, TX 78132-1662	Sandycreek Township Venango County	NWRO
PA0098043	Small Flow Treatment Facility Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	ITI Trailers & Truck Bodies 8535 Mason Dixon Highway Meyersdale, PA 15552-7100	Elk Lick Township Somerset County	SWRO
PA0203726	Small Flow Treatment Facility Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Elder Harry M 921 Georgetown Road Sandy Lake, PA 16145	Addison Borough Somerset County	SWRO
PA0290092	Small Flow Treatment Facility Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	PTV 1129 LLC 400 Penn Center Boulevard Bldg 4 Suite 1000 Pittsburgh, PA 15235-5613	Winslow Township Jefferson County	NWRO
3321401	Small Flow Treatment Facility Individual WQM Permit	Issued	PTV 1129 LLC 400 Penn Center Boulevard Bldg 4 Suite 1000 Pittsburgh, PA 15235-5613	Winslow Township Jefferson County	NWRO
WQG02632201	WQG-02 WQM General Permit	Issued	GSP Management Co. 800 W Hershey Park Drive Hershey, PA 17033-2400	Donegal Township Washington County	SWRO

Application Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Permittee Name & Address	Municipality, County	DEP Office
PAD210048 A-1	102 Individual Permit Transfer	Issued	BK Carlisle, LLC 24012 Frederick Road Clarksburg, MD 20871	Middlesex Township Cumberland County	SCRO
PAD380015	102 Individual Permit	Issued	Mr. Clyde Meyer 1600 Church Avenue Annville, PA 17003	North Annville Township Lebanon County	SCRO
PAD380017	102 Individual Permit	Issued	PPL Electric Utilities Corporation 2 North Ninth Street, GENN4 Allentown, PA 18101	Mill Creek and Heidelberg Townships Lebanon County	SCRO

# II. Final Actions on PAG-01 and PAG-02 General NPDES Permit NOIs.

Permit Number	Permit Type	Action Taken	Applicant Name & Address	Municipality, County	Office
PAC230214	General	Permit Issuance	SAP America Inc. 3999 West Chester Pike Newtown Square, PA 19073	Newtown Township Delaware County	DEP, SERO Waterways & Wetlands Program 2 East Main Street Norristown, PA 19401-4915 RA-EPWW-SERO@ pa.gov
PAC090496	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Total Skills, LLC 1423 Ferry Road Doylestown, PA 18901-2365	Buckingham Township Bucks County	DEP, SERO Waterways & Wetlands Program 2 East Main Street Norristown, PA 19401-4915 RA-EPWW-SERO@ pa.gov
PAC090509	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Buccafuri & Sons Nursery, Inc. 100 Schultz Road Hilltown, PA 18927-2353	Hilltown Township Bucks County	DEP, SERO Waterways & Wetlands Program 2 East Main Street Norristown, PA 19401-4915 RA-EPWW-SERO@ pa.gov
PAC480127	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Chrin Brothers, Inc. 1225 Industrial Drive Easton, PA 18042	Glendon Borough Northampton County	Northampton County Conservation District 14 Gracedale Ave Greystone Building Nazareth, PA 18064-9211 610-829-6276
PAC4000014	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	315 Realty Corp, Inc. Gene Cosklo 1149 Route 315 Wilkes-Barre, PA 18702 Norsec Realty Partners Walt Zera 1331 Highway 315 Plains, PA 18702	Plains Township Luzerne County	Luzerne Conservation District 325 Smiths Pond Road Shavertown, PA 18708 570-674-7991
PAC400221	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	1094 Hanover Street, LLC Stephen Maakestad 100 Baltimore Drive East Mountain Corporate Center Wilkes-Barre, PA 18702	Sugar Notch Borough Luzerne County	Luzerne Conservation District 325 Smiths Pond Road Shavertown, PA 18708 570-674-7991

# 2044

Permit		Action			
Number PAC670511	Permit Type PAG-02 General Permit	Taken Issued	Applicant Name & Address Inch's Properties LLC 2950 Lewisberry Road York, PA 17404	Municipality, County Manchester Township York County	Office York County Conservation District 2401 Pleasant Valley Road Suite 101 Room 139 York, PA 17402 717.840.7430
PAC670521	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Canal Road Partners Acquisition LLC 2290 Greenbriar Road York, PA 17404-9733	Conewago Township York County	York County Conservation District 2401 Pleasant Valley Road Suite 101 Room 139 York, PA 17402 717.840.7430
PAC670541	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania 1600 Colony Road York, PA 17402	Springettsbury Township York County	York County Conservation District 2401 Pleasant Valley Road Suite 101 Room 139 York, PA 17402 717.840.7430
PAC670547	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Colonial House Inc. 1300 Woodberry Road York, PA 17408	West Manchester Township York County	York County Conservation District 2401 Pleasant Valley Road Suite 101 Room 139 York, PA 17402 717.840.7430
PAC360716	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Madison & Madison Properties LLC 9 Township Drive Suite 2 Paradise, PA 17562	West Earl Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC360690	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	David Lapp 536 Mt. Pleasant Road Quarryville, PA 17566	Strasburg Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC360355 A-1	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Hoober Inc. 3452 Philadelphia Pike Intercourse, PA 17534	Leacock Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC360702	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Artis Horticulture Inc. 2369 Old Philadelphia Pike Lancaster, PA 17602	East Lampeter Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5

Permit		Action			
Number PAC360652	Permit Type PAG-02 Permit	Taken Issued	Applicant Name & Address Murry Development Corp 1899 Lititz Pike Lancaster, PA 17601	Municipality, County Millersville Borough Lancaster County	Office Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC360694	PAG-02 Permit	Issued	Daryl Martin 390 Orchard Road Mohnton, PA 19540	Brecknock Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC360680	PAG-02 Permit	Issued	Caernarvon Township Supervisors 2139 Main Street Narvon, PA 17555	Caernarvon Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC360573 A-1	PAG-02 Permit	Issued	Sunview Partners 490 Millway Road Ephrata, PA 17522	East Cocalico Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC360711	PAG-02 Permit	Issued	Daniel Martin 1630 Clay Road Ephrata, PA 17522	Elizabeth Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC360701	PAG-02 Permit	Issued	Freedom Land Management LLC 5130 Lincoln Highway Gap, PA 17527	Salisbury Township Lancaster County	Lancaster County Conservation District 1383 Arcadia Road Room 200 Lancaster, PA 17601-3149 717.299.5361, ext. 5
PAC050054	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Construction Supply Center 9928 Lincoln Highway Everett, PA 15537	Snake Spring Township Bedford County	Bedford County Conservation District 702 West Pitt Street Suite 4 Bedford, PA 15522 814.623.7900, ext. 4
PAC050053	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission 700 South Eisenhower Boulevard Middletown, PA 17057	Napier Township Bedford County	Bedford County Conservation District 702 West Pitt Street Suite 4 Bedford, PA 15522 814.623.7900, ext. 4
PAC010196	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	JVI Group 8210 Carlisle Pike York Springs, PA 17372-9517	Straban Township Adams County	Bedford County Conservation District 702 West Pitt Street Suite 4 Bedford, PA 15522 814.623.7900, ext. 4
PAC600082	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Bucknell University Jeremy Berry—Propst) SE Corner of SR 15 and Monroe Lewisburg, PA 17837	E. Buffalo Township Union County	Union County Conservation District 155 N 15th Street Lewisburg, PA 17837-8822

# 2046

Permit		Action			
<i>Number</i> PAD020046	Permit Type Individual NPDES Permit	Taken Issued	Applicant Name & Address 35th Strouss Associates 560 Epsilon Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15238	Municipality, County North Versailles Allegheny County	Office DEP, SWRO Waterways & Wetlands Program 400 Waterfront Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15222 RA-EPWW-SWRO@ pa.gov (412)442-4000
PAD020047	Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Cool Springs Associates, LP 11 Stanwix Street Suite 1202 Pittsburgh, PA 15222	Bethel Park Allegheny County	DEP, SWRO Waterways & Wetlands Program 400 Waterfront Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15222 RA-EPWW-SWRO@pa.gov (412)442-4000
PAC110087	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Cambria County 401 Candlelight Drive Suite 100 Ebensburg, PA 15931	Dean Township Cambria County	Cambria County Conservation District 401 Candlelight Drive Suite 221 Ebensburg, PA 15931 (814) 472-2120
PAC630228	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Scarmazzi Belmont, LLC 127 Adams Avenue Canonsburg, PA 15317	Chartiers Township Washington County	Washington County Conservation District 50 Old Hickory Ridge Road Suite 1 Washington, PA 15301 (724) 705-7098
PAC630229	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	CTG Enterprises, LP 2131 West Chestnut Street Washington, PA 15301	Canton Township Washington County	Washington County Conservation District 50 Old Hickory Ridge Road Suite 1 Washington, PA 15301 (724) 705-7098
PAC630239	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	New Potato Creek Holding Company, LLC 124 East Thompson Street Thomaston, GA 30286	South Strabane Washington County	Washington County Conservation District 50 Old Hickory Ridge Road Suite 1 Washington, PA 15301 (724) 705-7098
PAD630057	Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Ted Taylor Builders 608 East McMurray Road Suite 101 McMurray, PA 15317	Peters Township Washington County	DEP, SWRO Waterways & Wetlands Program 400 Waterfront Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15222 RA-EPWW-SWRO@ pa.gov (412)442-4000
PAD630063	Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	MSD-Autumn Ponds, LLC One Mele Place Braddock, PA 15104	North Strabane Washington County	DEP, SWRO Waterways & Wetlands Program 400 Waterfront Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15222 RA-EPWW-SWRO@ pa.gov (412)442-4000

Permit Number PAD650032	<i>Permit Type</i> Individual NPDES Permit	Action Taken Issued	Applicant Name & Address Borough of Delmont 77 Greensburg Street Delmont, PA 15626	Municipality, County Delmont Borough Westmoreland County	<i>Office</i> DEP, SWRO Waterways & Wetlands Program 400 Waterfront Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15222 RA-EPWW-SWRO@ pa.gov (412)442-4000
PAD650035	Individual NPDES Permit	Issued	Frank B. Fuhrer Holdings, Inc. 3100 East Carson Street Pittsburgh, PA 15203	Salem Township Westmoreland County	DEP, SWRO Waterways & Wetlands Program 400 Waterfront Drive Pittsburgh, PA 15222 RA-EPWW-SWRO@ pa.gov (412)442-4000
PAC250159	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	AHN JIB LLC 1540 East Lake Road Suite 300 Erie, PA 16511	Millcreek Township Erie County	Erie County Conservation District 1927 Wager Road Erie, PA 16509 814-825-6403
PAC250160	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Medical Associates of Erie 1 Lecom Place Erie, PA 16505	Waterford Borough Erie County	Erie County Conservation District 1927 Wager Road Erie, PA 16509 814-825-6403
PAC240004	PAG-02 General Permit	Issued	Assured Testing Services P.O. Box 204 Ridgway, PA 15853	Ridgway Township Elk County	Elk County Conservation District 850 Washington Street St. Marys, PA 15857 814-776-5373

# PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PERMITS

The Department has taken the following actions on applications received under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17) for the construction, substantial modification or operation of a public water system.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501-508 and 701-704. The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users may contact the Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30 days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30-days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board. Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should show this document to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483 for more information.

## SAFE DRINKING WATER

Actions taken under the Pennsylvania Safe Drinking Water Act (35 P.S. §§ 721.1—721.17).

Northeast Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0790, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Gillian Pehala, Clerk Typist 2, 570-830-3077.

Permit No. 5221503, Public Water Supply.

	, 11,
Applicant	<b>Pennsylvania American</b> <b>Water Company</b> Saw Creek Estates 852 Wesley Drive Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Municipality	Lehman Township
County	Pike
Type of Facility	PWS
Consulting Engineer	Michael Paul Goodwin, PE Milnes Engineering, Inc. 12 Frear Hill Road Tunkhannock, PA 18657
Permit to Construct Issued	February 28, 2022

Southcentral Regio 909 Elmerton Avenue,	n: Safe Drinking Water Program, Harrisburg, PA 17110.
Construction Per Supply.	rmit No. 0121507, Public Water
Applicant	Possum Valley Municipal Authority 609 Clearview Road Aspers, PA 17304
Municipality	Menallen Township
County	Adams
Consulting Engineer	Mark Mazzochette, P.E. Hydro-Terra Group 1106 Business Parkway South Suite E Westminster, MD 21157
Permit Issued	February 22, 2022
Description	Rarate of the Labor Camp Well
Construction Per Supply.	rmit No. 0121508, Public Water
Applicant	Possum ValleyMunicipal Authority609 Clearview RoadAspers, PA 17304
Municipality	Menallen Township
County	Adams
Consulting Engineer	Mark Mazzochette, P.E. Hydro-Terra Group 1106 Business Parkway South Suite E Westminster, MD 21157
Permit Issued	March 7, 2022
Description	Installation of a new well—Alternate Labor Camp ( Well
<b>Construction Per</b> Supply.	mit No. 0521507, Public Water
Applicant	Bedford TownshipIMunicipal AuthorityI1007 Shed RoadISuite 102IBedford, PA 15522t
Municipality	Bedford Township
County	Bedford
Consulting Engineer	Timothy A. Cooper, P.E.Timothy A. Cooper, P.E.Stiffler McGraw &IfAssociates, Inc.If19 N Juniata StreetIfHollidaysburg, PA 16648If
Permit Issued	March 3, 2022
Description	Installation of a booster pumping station and water main extensions.
	rmit No. 2221520 MA, Minor <sup>t</sup> Water Supply
Amendment, Public	water Suppry.
Applicant	Williamstown Borough

County	Dauphin
Consulting Engineer	Farley F. Fry, P.E. Hanover Engineering Associates, Inc. 20-C Snyder Lane Ephrata, PA 17522-9101
Permit Issued	February 17, 2022
Description	Replacement of the filter media in the existing pressure filters.
<b>Construction Perm</b> ply.	it No. 2121511, Public Water Sup-
Applicant	Southampton Township
rippicant	Building & Parks 200 Airport Road Shippensburg, PA 17257
Municipality	Building & Parks 200 Airport Road
	<b>Building &amp; Parks</b> 200 Airport Road Shippensburg, PA 17257
Municipality	<b>Building &amp; Parks</b> 200 Airport Road Shippensburg, PA 17257 Southampton Township
Municipality County	Building & Parks 200 Airport Road Shippensburg, PA 17257 Southampton Township Cumberland Robert H. Schemmerling, P.E. RHS Engineering, Inc. 2909 Conococheague Lane

Permit Issued	March 7, 2022
Description	Construction permit for Southampton Township Building and Parks to replace the existing UV disinfection with 4-log treatment of viruses using chlorine disinfection.

**Operation Permit No. 7010066** issued to: **York Water Company (PWS ID No. 7010066)**, 130 East Market Street, York, PA 17401, Straban Township, **Adams County** on March 7, 2022 for facilities at Amblebrook Water System approved under Construction Permit No. 0120504 MA.

**Operation Permit No. 2121509 MA** issued to: **Carlisle Borough Municipal Authority** (**PWS ID No. 7210002**), 53 West South Street, Carlisle, PA 17013, North Middleton Township, **Cumberland County**, on March 16, 2022 for facilities approved under Construction Permit No. 2121509 MA. Permanent, one-way interconnection to supply water to North Middleton Authority for the new Brubacker Tract subdivision.

**Operation Permit No. 2121510 MA** issued to: North Middleton Authority (PWS ID No. 7210049), 240 Clearwater Drive, Carlisle, PA 17013, North Middleton Township, Cumberland County, on March 16, 2022 for facilities approved under Construction Permit No. 2121510 MA. Permanent, one-way interconnection to receive water from the Carlisle Borough Municipal Authority for the new Brubacker Tract subdivision.

**Operation Permit No. 3620540** issued to: **City of Lancaster (PWS ID No. 7360058)**, 120 North Duke Street, P.O. Box 1599, Lancaster, PA 17608, Lancaster, **Lancaster County**, on March 10, 2022 for facilities approved under Construction Permit No. 3620540. Operation of the replacement membrane modules and new sodium bisulfite tank.

**Operation Permit No. 0521509 MA** issued to: **Snake Spring Township Municipal Authority (PWS ID No. 4050038)**, 624 Pennknoll Road, Everett, PA 15537, Snake Spring Township, **Bedford County**, on February 28, 2022 for facilities submitted under Application No. 0521509 MA. Well No. 2 pump replacement.

Williamstown, PA 17098 Williams Township

200 South West Street

Authority

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

Transferred Comprehensive Operation Permit No. 7360056 issued to: Ryan Classen and Rita Classen (PWS ID No. 7360056), 1619 Parkman Avenue, Baltimore, PA 21230, Drumore Township, Lancaster County, on March 7, 2022. Action is for a Change in Ownership for Penny Park, Lancaster County for the operation of facilities previously issued to Lee Mummau.

**Operation Permit No. 2822502 MA** issued to: **Bear Valley Joint Authority (PWS ID No. 7280043)**, 218 School House Road, St. Thomas, PA 17252, St. Thomas Township, **Franklin County**, on March 9, 2022 for facilities submitted under Application No. 2822502 MA. Installation of a combined filter effluent turbidimeter at the Broad Run water treatment plant.

**Rescission of Operation Permit No. 3060674** issued to: **SciCast International, Inc. (PWS ID No. 3060674**), 650 Rt 100 North, Bechtelsville, PA 19505, Colebrookdale Township, **Berks County**, on March 18, 2022. Action is for the Entire rescission of facilities approved under Operation Permit No. 3060674. Rescission of all permits and approvals for SciCast International, Inc.

Southwest Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Permit No. 3022501, Major Amendment. Public Water Supply.

Applicant	Southwestern Pennsylvania Water Authority 1442 Jefferson Road P.O. Box 187 Jefferson, PA 15344					
Borough or Township	German Township					
County	Fayette					
Type of Facility	Fayette County Water Pump Station					
Consulting Engineer	Bankson Engineers, Inc. Suite 200 267 Blue Run Road Cheswick, PA 15024					
Permit Issued	March 22, 2022					
Permit No. 3022503 Water Supply.	MA, Minor Amendment. Public					
Applicant	Southwestern Pennsylvania Water Authority 1442 Jefferson Road P.O. Box 187 Jefferson, PA 15344					
Borough or Township	Cumberland Township					
County	Greene					
Type of Facility	Interconnection					
Consulting Engineer	Bankson Engineers, Inc. Suite 200 267 Blue Run Road Cheswick, PA 15024					
Permit Issued	March 17, 2022					
WATER	WATER ALLOCATIONS					

Actions taken on applications received under the Act of June 24, 1939 (P.L. 842, No. 365) (35 P.S. §§ 631-641) relating to the Acquisition of Rights to Divert Waters of the Commonwealth. Southwest Region: Safe Drinking Water Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222.

WA-90D, Water Allocations. Municipal Authority of the City of New Kensington, P.O. Box 577, 920 Barnes Street, New Kensington, PA 15068, Westmoreland County. The right to withdraw up to 8,000,000 gallons of water per day, from the Allegheny River.

# LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION

#### UNDER ACT 2, 1995 PREAMBLE 2

## The following plans and reports were submitted under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101— 6026.908).

Provisions of Sections 301-308 of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (act) (35 P.S. §§ 6026.301–6026.308) require the Department to publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a notice of submission of plans and reports. A final report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to one of the act's remediation standards. A final report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis for selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling analytical results which demonstrate that remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected. Submission of plans and reports, other than the final report, will also be published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*. These include the remedial investigation report, risk assessment report and cleanup plan for a site-specific standard remediation. A remedial investigation report includes conclusions from the site investigation; concentration of regulated substances in environmental media; benefits of reuse of the property; and, in some circumstances, a fate and transport analysis. If required, a risk assessment report describes potential adverse effects caused by the presence of regulated substances. If required, a cleanup plan evaluates the abilities of potential remedies to achieve remedy requirements.

For further information concerning plans or reports, contact the environmental cleanup program manager in the Department Regional Office under which the notice of receipt of plans or reports appears. If information concerning plans or reports is required in an alternative form, contact the community relations coordinator at the appropriate Regional Office. TDD users may telephone the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The Department has received the following plans and reports:

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5787.

Contact: Charline Bass.

Edlon, Inc., 150 Pomeroy Avenue, Avondale, PA 19331, Avondale Borough, Chester County. Sean Fullmer, PG, Compliance Management International, Inc., 1350 Welsh Road, Suite 200, North Wales, PA 19454 on behalf of Gabriel Skidd, Edlon, Inc., 150 Pomeroy Avenue, Avondale, PA 19311 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with naphthalene and tetrahydrofuran. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standard.

Latch-Rosen Property, 3800 Post Road, Trainer, PA 19061, Trainer Borough, Delaware County. Catherine Grzybek, GHD, 410 Eagleview Boulevard, Suite 110, Exton, PA 19341 on behalf of Deborah LaMond, Phillips 66, 1400 Park Avenue, Room BOB S-206, Linden, NJ 07036 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report/Risk Assessment Report/Final Report concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with arsenic, lead, dieldrin, carbon tetrachloride, heptachlor and heptachlor epoxide. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the site-specific standard.

**2120-34 East York Street**, 2120-34 East York Street, Philadelphia, PA 19125, City of Philadelphia, **Philadelphia County**. Jeff Hosterman, Tetra Tech, Inc., 240 Continental Drive, Suite 200, Newark, DE 19713 on behalf of Michael Tomasetti, 2120 East York Street, LLC, 51 North 3rd Street, Unit # 154, Philadelphia, PA 19106 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report/Cleanup Plan/ Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with PAHs and metals. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the site-specific standard.

141 Railroad Drive, 141 Railroad Drive, Warminster, PA 18974, Warminster Township, **Bucks County**. Sean Fullmer, PG, Compliance Management International, 1350 Welsh Road, Suite 200, North Wales, PA 19454 on behalf of Philip S. DiVita, 73 Sydney Road, Southampton, PA 18966 submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site groundwater contaminated with 1,1dichloroethene and trichloroethene. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standard/background standard.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

Westminster Village, 801 North Wahneta Street, Allentown, PA 18109, Allentown City, Lehigh County. United Environmental Services, P.O. Box 701, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972, on behalf of Presbyterian Homes, Inc., 1 Trinity Drive, Suite 201, Dillsburg, PA 17019, submitted a revised Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated by a release of diesel from an aboveground storage tank. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet Statewide health standards.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Stadium Row Apartments, 812 and 816 North Prince Street, Lancaster, PA 17603, City of Lancaster, Lancaster County. ECS Mid-Atlantic, LLC, 52-6 Grumbacher Road, York, PA 17406 on behalf of Stadium Row, LLC, 729 East Orange Street, Lancaster, PA 17603, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with polyaromatic hydrocarbons and metals. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the site-specific standard. Northcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

Atgas 4H on the Atgas BRA Pad, 202 Leroy Mountain Road, Canton, PA 17724, Leroy Township, Bradford County. Creston Environmental, LLC, P.O. Box 1373, Camp Hill, PA 17001, on behalf of Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840 has submitted a Final report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with production fluid. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standard.

Yencha BRA 2H on the Yencha BRA Pad, 51 Margies Way, New Albany, PA 18833, Monroe Township, Bradford County. Creston Environmental, LLC, P.O. Box 1373, Camp Hill, PA 17001, on behalf of Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840 has submitted a Final report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with production fluid. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standard.

Bucksey Road HHO Release, 102 Bucksey Road, Middleburg, PA 17842, Center Township, Snyder County. Envirosearch Consultants, Inc., P.O. Box 940, Springhouse, PA 19477, on behalf of Federal National Mortgage Association, 14221 Dallas Parkway, # 1000, Dallas, TX 75265, has submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with heating oil. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standard.

Former Atlantic Station # 0000-0032, 261 Washing Boulevard, Williamsport, PA 17701, Williamsport City, Lycoming County. Aquaterra Technologies, Inc., P.O. Box 733, West Chester, PA 19381, on behalf of Retail/ Service Station Operations, a series of Evergreen Resources Group, LLC, 2 Righter Parkway, Suite 120, Wilmington, DE 19803, has submitted a Remedial Investigation Report and Clean-Up Plan Concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report and cleanup plan are intended to document remediation of the site to meet the site-specific standard.

Southwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfield Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Larry Miller Property, Storage Tank Facility ID # 56-03788, 477 Horner Church Road, Stoystown, PA 15563, Stoystown Borough, Somerset County. Jed Hill, 2022 Axemann Road, Suite 201, Belleftone, PA 16823, on behalf of Larry Miller, 379 Miller Road, Stoystown, PA 15563, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with diesel. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health or background standard.

Modal, Inc., Storage Tank Facility ID # 65-32378, 757 Lloyd Avenue Extended, Latrobe, PA 15650, Union Township, Westmoreland County. P. Joseph Lehman, Inc., P.O. Box 419, Holidaysburg, PA 16648, on behalf of Modal, Inc., 757 Lloyd Avenue Extended, Latrobe, PA 15650, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The plan is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting the site specific standard.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

# LAND RECYCLING AND ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION UNDER ACT 2, 1995

PREAMBLE 3

#### The Department has taken action on the following plans and reports under the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (35 P.S. §§ 6026.101-6026.907).

Section 250.8 of 25 Pa. Code and administration of the Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (act) require the Department to publish in the Pennsylvania Bulletin a notice of its final actions on plans and reports. A final report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to one of the remediation standards of the act. A final report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected. Plans and reports required by the act for compliance with selection of remediation to a sitespecific standard, in addition to a final report, include a remedial investigation report, risk assessment report and cleanup plan. A remedial investigation report includes conclusions from the site investigation; concentration of regulated substances in environmental media; benefits of reuse of the property; and, in some circumstances, a fate and transport analysis. If required, a risk assessment report describes potential adverse effects caused by the presence of regulated substances. If required, a cleanup plan evaluates the abilities of potential remedies to achieve remedy requirements. A work plan for conducting a baseline remedial investigation is required by the act for compliance with selection of a special industrial area remediation. The baseline remedial investigation, based on the work plan, is compiled into the baseline environmental report to establish a reference point to show existing contamination, describe proposed remediation to be done and include a description of existing or potential public benefits of the use or reuse of the property. The Department may approve or disapprove plans and reports submitted. This notice provides the Department's decision and, if relevant, the basis for disapproval.

For further information concerning the plans and reports, contact the environmental cleanup program manager in the Department Regional Office under which the notice of the plan or report appears. If information concerning a final report is required in an alternative form, contact the community relations coordinator at the appropriate Regional Office. TDD users may telephone the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The Department has received the following plans and reports:

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

Sunoco Fullerton Terminal # 0358-1501, 2480 Main Street, Whitehall, PA 18052, Whitehall Township, Lehigh County. Groundwater & Environmental Services, 440 Creamery Way, Suite 500, Exton, PA 19341, on behalf of Sunoco Partners Marketing & Terminals, LP, 3807 West Chester Pike, Newtown Square, PA 19073, submitted a Cleanup Plan concerning remediation of site soils contaminated with petroleum. The report was approved by DEP on March 18, 2022.

Westminster Village, 801 North Wahneta Street, Allentown, PA 18109, Allentown City, Lehigh County. United Environmental Services, P.O. Box 701, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972, on behalf of Presbyterian Homes Inc., 1 Trinity Drive, Suite 201, Dillsburg, PA 17019, submitted a revised Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated by a release of diesel from an aboveground storage tank. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 22, 2022.

Adler Property, 124 Woodland Drive, Dingmans Ferry, PA 18328, Delaware Township, Pike County. Douglas Adler, 124 Woodland Drive, Dingmans Ferry, PA 18328, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated by a release of heating oil from an underground storage tank. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 17, 2022.

**Franclaire Pad**, 276 Pig Barn Road, Laceyville, PA 18623, Braintrim Township, **Wyoming County**. Creston Environmental, P.O. Box 1373, Camp Hill, PA 17001, on behalf of Chesapeake Appalachia LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840, submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated by releases production fluid (brine). The Final Report demonstrated attainment of Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 22, 2022.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110, 717-705-4705.

**Barley Square Apartments**, 125 South 2nd Street, Reading, PA 19602, City of Reading, **Berks County**. Compliance Management International, 1350 Welsh Road, Suite 200, North Wales, PA 19454 on behalf of Woda Cooper Companies, Inc., 125 South 2nd Street, Reading, PA 19602 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with No. 2 fuel oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the residential Statewide health standard and was approved by the Department on March 18, 2022.

Northcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

**Graymont (PA) Inc., Bellefonte Plant**, 314 North Thomas Street, Bellefonte, PA 16823, Spring Township, **Centre County**. ARM Group, LLC, 2548 Park Center Boulevard, State College, PA 16801, on behalf of Graymont (PA), Inc., 375 Graymont Road, Bellefonte, PA 16823, has submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with heating oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by the Department on March 10, 2022.

Water Works Transport LLC, Brine Spill cleanup, 1022 Hoagland Run Road, Cogan Station, PA 17728, Lycoming Township, Lycoming County. Weaver Consultants Group, LLC, 175 Maple Hill Drive, Etters, PA 17319, on behalf of Water Works Transport LLC, 1912 John Brady Drive, Muncy, PA 17756, has submitted a Remedial Investigation and Risk Assessment Report concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with produced water. The reports were approved by the Department on March 10, 2022.

**JM Star, Inc. Project**, Interstate 80 at MM 184W, Loganton, PA 17747, Greene Township, **Clinton County**. EnviroServe Inc., 254 Reitz Avenue, Winfield, PA 17889, on behalf of JM Star, Inc., 2644 Dempster Street, Suite 102, Park Ridge, IL 60068, has submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with diesel fuel and used motor oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by the Department on March 10, 2022.

**37** Grant Street UST Closure, 37 Grant Street, Wellsboro, PA 16901, Wellsboro Borough, Tioga County. Penn Environmental & Remediation, Inc., 13180 Route 6, Mansfield, PA 16933, on behalf of UPMC Wellsboro, 32 Central Avenue, Wellsboro, PA 16901, has submitted a Final Report concerning remediation of site soil contaminated with heating oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by the Department on March 21, 2022.

Northwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

**Barber Brady Unit 1 Well**, 205 Barber Drive, Franklin, PA 16323, Sugarcreek Borough, **Venango County**. Penn Environmental & Remediation, Inc., 111 Ryan Court, Pittsburgh, PA 15205 on behalf of OWS Energy, LLC, 1369 Cochranton Road, Carlton, PA 16311 has submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil contaminated with Aluminum, Barium, Boron, Iron, Lithium, Manganese, Selenium, Strontium, Vanadium, and Zinc. The Final report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide Health and Background Standards and was approved by the Department on February 23, 2022.

National Fuel Gas Supply Corporation—Ethylene Glycol Release—Station HIM-1106, 1520 Hofius Lane, Hermitage, PA 16148, City of Hermitage, Mercer County. Environmental Remediation & Recovery, Inc., 4250 Route 6N, Edinboro, PA 16412 on behalf of National Fuel Gas, P.O. Box 2081, 1100 State Street, Erie, PA 16512 has submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil contaminated with Ethylene Glycol. The Final report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by the Department on February 25, 2022.

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: Charline Bass, 484-250-5787.

**Gray Brothers Farm**, 1025 Worthington Road, Exton, PA 19341, Uwchlan Township, **Chester County**. Richard Lake, Geo-Technology Associates, Inc., 2405 John Fries Highway, Quakertown, PA 18951 on behalf of Thomas G. Kessler, Worthington Partners II Inc., 1273 Butler Pike, Blue Bell, PA 19422 submitted a Remedial Investigation Report/Cleanup Plan/Risk Assessment Report concerning the remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with chlorinated solvents. The Report was approved by the Department on March 10, 2022. Westgate Plaza, 309 Lancaster Avenue, Malvern, PA 19355, East Whiteland Township, Chester County. Geoff Kristof, Aquaterra Technologies, Inc., P.O. Box 744, West Chester, PA 19381 on behalf of Arne Anderson, Westgate Plaza, LP, 309 Lancaster Avenue, Suite C-3, Malvern, PA 193554 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil contaminated with leaded gasoline and No. 2 fuel oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by the Department on March 10, 2022.

**105 Bala Avenue**, 105 Bala Avenue, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004, Lower Merion Township, **Montgomery County**. Ryan B. Beebe, Crawford Environmental Services, LLC, 20 Cardinal Drive, Birdsboro, PA 19508 on behalf of Garrett Bergman, P.O. Box 465, Borough of Narberth, PA 19004 submitted a Final Report concerning the remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with No. 2 fuel oil. The Final Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by the Department on March 9, 2022.

## OPERATE WASTE PROCESSING OR DISPOSAL AREA OR SITE

Permit(s) Under the Solid Waste Management Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97) (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101— 6018.1003); the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act (53 P.S. §§ 4000.101—4000.1904); and Regulations to Operate Solid Waste Processing or Disposal Area or Site.

Southwest Region: Regional Solid Waste Manager, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

**Permit No. 100419. Chestnut Valley Landfill, LLC**, 1184 McClellandtown Road, McClellandtown, PA 15458. Renewal of municipal waste disposal facility permit for the operation of the Chestnut Valley Landfill located at 1184 McClellandtown Road, McClellandtown, PA 15458 in German Township, Fayette County. The 10-year permit renewal and permittee name change modification was issued by the Regional Office on March 15, 2022.

Persons interested in reviewing the permit may contact Sharon Svitek, Program Manager, Waste Management, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-1475, 412-442-4000. TDD users may contact the Department through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984.

# **AIR QUALITY**

General Plan Approval and Operating Permit Usage Authorized under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127 to construct, modify, reactivate or operate air contamination sources and associated air cleaning devices.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: James Beach, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 484-250-5920.

**GP14-09-0154:** Rivers Edge Funeral Chapel and Crematory, Inc., 71 Fox Drive, Building JC1, Tullytown, PA 19007. On March 21, 2022 for an authorization to operate two (2) human or animal crematories (Source ID 103 and 104) at the funeral chapel located in Tullytown Borough, Bucks County, under GP14-09-0154.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

Contact: Raymond Kempa, New Source Review Chief— Telephone: 570-826-2531.

AG5A-58-00042A: Coterra Energy, Inc., 2000 Park Lane, Suite 300, Pittsburgh, PA 15275, issued on March 15, 2022, for the construction and operation of one (1) 1,380 bhp Caterpillar G3516J 4SLB natural gas-fired compressor engine controlled by an oxidation catalyst, and seven (7) small heaters <5 MMBtu/hr each, pursuant to the General Plan Approval and/or General Operating Permit for Unconventional Natural Gas Well Site Operations and Remote Pigging Stations (BAQ-GPA/GP-5A) located at Abbott, M. Pad 1 in Bridgewater Township, Susquehanna County.

**GP14-48-002A: Herron Crematory, Inc.**, 458 Center Street, Bethlehem, PA 18018, was issued on March 15, 2022 for the construction and operation of one (1) B&L Cremation Systems, Inc. N-20AA cremation unit with afterburner control located in Bethlehem Township, **Northampton County**.

**GP3-48-018:** Chrin Brothers, Inc., 1225 Industrial Drive, Easton, PA 18042, was issued on March 16, 2022 for the renewal of one (1) 330 tph Nordberg/Lokomo LT1213 Impact Crusher with water sprays at the site located in Williams Township, Northampton County.

**GP9-48-018:** Chrin Brothers, Inc., 1225 Industrial Drive, Easton, PA 18042, on March 16, 2022 for the renewal of one (1) 425 BHP diesel-fired Caterpillar C-12 engine associated with the GP3 portable crusher at the site located in Williams Township, Northampton County.

**GP13-48-001: H&K Group, Inc.**, 2052 Lucon Road, P.O. Box 196, Skippack, PA 19474, was issued on March 21, 2022 for the construction and operation of one (1) 400 tph Astec DB-9640 counter flow drum mix plant with baghouse control to replace the existing hot mix asphalt plant located in Lower Mount Bethel Township, Northampton County.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, 717-705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, 717-705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, 717-705-4702.

**GP3-06-03054D: Martin Stone Quarries, Inc.**, 1355 North Reading Avenue, Bechtelsville, PA 19505, on March 15, 2022, for portable nonmetallic mineral processing equipment under GP3 at the Bechtelsville Quarry, in Colebrookdale Township, **Berks County**.

**GP11-06-03054D: Martin Stone Quarries, Inc.**, 1355 North Reading Avenue, Bechtelsville, PA 19505, on March 15, 2022, for 1 nonroad engine under GP11, to power portable nonmetallic mineral processing equipment at the Bechtelsville Quarry, in Colebrookdale Township, **Berks County**.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, (570) 327-3648.

**GP3-49-00054C: Meckleys Limestone Products, Inc.**, 1543 State Route 225, Herndon, PA 17830, on March 15, 2022, to construct and operate one Metso (Caterpillar) LT300HP cone crusher and one Lokotrack ST 620 screen pursuant to General Plan Approval and/or General Operating Permit For Portable Nonmetallic Mineral Processing Plants (BAQ-GPA/GP-3) at the East/ Mandata Quarry located in Lower Mahanoy Township, **Northumberland County**.

**GP9-49-00054C: Meckleys Limestone Products, Inc.**, 1543 State Route 225, Herndon, PA 17830, on March 15, 2022, to construct and operate one 173 bhp, Caterpillar C6.6 generator engine pursuant to the General Plan Approval and/or General Operating Permit for Diesel or No. 2 Fuel-fired Internal Combustion Engines (BAQ-GPA/GP-9) at the East/Mandata Quarry located in Lower Mahanoy Township, **Northumberland County**.

**GP14-59-202:** Twin Tiers Crematory, 214 W. Main Street, Elkland, PA 16920, on March 17, 2022, received authorization to continue operation of their human crematory unit pursuant to the General Plan Approval and/or General Operating Permit for Human or Animal Crematories (BAQ-PGPA/GP-14) at the Lawrenceville facility located in Lawrence Township, **Tioga County**.

Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Edward Orris, P.E., New Source Review Chief—Telephone: 412-442-4168.

**GP5A-30-00804A/AG5A-30-00011A: CNX Gas Company, LLC**, 1000 Consol Energy Drive, Cannonsburg, PA 15317, on March 21, 2022, to allow the construction and operation of 14 natural gas wells, 5 GPU's, one LPS controlled by an enclosed combustor rated at 37.4 MMBtu/hr, five (5) storage tanks, two (2) truck loading, 46 pneumatic devices and fugitives operations, controlled by three (3) VDU's each rated at 10.3 MMBtu/hr at the RHL-37 well pad located in Richhill Township, **Greene County**.

GP5-63-00992A/AG5-63-00018A: MarkWest Liberty Midstream and Resources, LLC, 1515 Arapahoe Street, Tower 1, Suite 1600, Denver, CO 80202-2137, on March 22, 2022, to allow the operation of the revised equipment that include: two (2) electrically driven reciprocating compressors, each rated at 100 hp, eight (8) electrically driven reciprocating compressors, each rated at 5,000 hp, one (1) Cibus Exterran (or equivalent) tri-ethylene glycol dehydrator, 130 MMSCF/day; equipped with three phase flash separator and reboilers, 2.5 MMBtu/hr; controlled by an enclosed flare of rated at 7.0 MMBtu/hr, one (1) enclosed ground flare on Cibus rated at 7.0 MMBtu/hr, one (1) Imperial Exterran triethylene glycol dehydrator, 166 MMSCF/day each equipped with 3-phase flash separator and reboiler, 2.5 MMBtu/hr controlled by an enclosed flare rated at 7.0 MMBtu/hr, one (1) enclosed ground flares on Imperial, rated at 7.0 MMBtu/hr, nine (9) Storage Tanks, four (4) condensate each 400 bbl, four (4) produced water tanks 400 bbl each, and one (1) Gunbarrel tank 500 bbl controlled 98% by 2 double VRUs, seven (7) storage tanks; one (1) condensate 400 bbl, three (3) condensate tanks 2,000 bbl each; two (2) produced water tanks 400 bbl each, and one (1) Gunbarrel tank 500 bbl controlled 98% by 2 double VRUs, four (4) horizontal methanol tanks each 520-gallon capacity, condensate loadout operations at Cibus and Imperial loadout vapors are controlled by a carbon bed adsorber, three (3) Intermittent gas-driven pneumatic devices each rated at 13.5 scf/hr, venting/blowdowns, rod Packing Venting of ten electric compressors, fugitive emissions from component leaks, pigging emissions at Cibus are controlled by a flare rated at 7.0 MMBtu/hr and one (1) process flare rated at 298 MMBtu/hr, pigging emissions at Imperial are

controlled by a flare rated at 7.0 MMBtu/hr and one (1) process flare rated at 298 MMBtu/hr, and six (6) measurement devices at their existing Imperial-Cibus Ranch Compressor Station located in Robinson Township, **Washington County**.

Plan Approvals Issued under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and regulations in 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter B relating to construction, modification and reactivation of air contamination sources and associated air cleaning devices.

Southeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401.

Contact: James Beach, New Source Review Chief, (484) 250-5920.

**09-0235B: CP Converters, Inc. dba C-P Flexible Packaging**, 181 Rittenhouse Circle, Bristol, PA 19007. On March 16, 2022, for a modification to use solventbased lamination formulations on existing extrusion equipment currently operating at an existing facility in Bristol Township, **Bucks County**.

Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Edward Orris, P.E., New Source Review Chief—Telephone: 412-442-4168.

**PA-04-00061C Extension: Nalco Company**, P.O. Box 391, Ellwood City, PA 16117. Plan Approval extension issuance date effective March 18, 2022, to facilitate the shakedown of sources and air cleaning devices and to allow time to prepare for the initial operating inspection of their Ellwood City Plant located in Franklin Township, **Beaver County**.

**PA-04-00468E Extension: S.H. Bell Company**, 2217 Michigan Avenue East, Liverpool, OH 43920-3637. Plan Approval Extension issuance date effective March 18, 2022, to facilitate the shakedown of sources and air cleaning devices and to allow time to prepare for initial operating inspection of their mineral processing facility located in Ohioville Borough, **Beaver County**.

Plan Approval Revisions Issued including Extensions, Minor Modifications and Transfers of Ownership under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.13, 127.13a and 127.32.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, 717-705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, 717-705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, 717-705-4702.

**07-05041C: Fort Dearborn Co.**, 13985 South Eagle Valley Road, Tyrone, PA 16686, on March 18, 2022, for the installation of a new flexographic printing press and regenerative thermal oxidizer at the label and packaging printing facility located in Snyder Township, **Blair County**. The plan approval was extended.

Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Edward Orris, P.E., New Source Review Chief—Telephone: 412-442-4168.

**30-00233B: Hill Top Energy Center, LLC**, 278 Thomas Road, Carmichaels, PA 15320, on March 15,

2022, to extend the temporary operation period for the Hill Top Energy Center natural gas-fired combined cycle power plant located in Cumberland Township, **Greene County**. The new expiration date is September 28, 2022.

**30-00233C: Hill Top Energy Center, LLC**, 278 Thomas Road, Carmichaels, PA 15320, on March 15, 2022, to extend the authorization for the transfer and use of  $NO_x$  and VOC emission reduction credits at the Hill Top Energy Center natural gas-fired combined cycle power plant located in Cumberland Township, Greene County. The new expiration date is September 28, 2022.

**65-00634A: Eastern Gas Transmission and Storage, Inc.**, 6603 West Broad Street, Richmond, VA 23230. On March 15, 2022, for continued construction and operation at the JB Tonkin Compressor Station located in Murrysville Borough, **Westmoreland County**. The new expiration date of the plan approval is September 28, 2022.

**30-00170B: Laurel Mountain Midstream Operating, LLC**, Park Place Corporate Center 2, 2000 Commerce Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15275, on March 15, 2022, to extend the period of temporary operation of two (2) Caterpillar G3516B lean burn natural gas-fired compressor engine rated at 1,380 bhp at the existing Brown Compressor Station located in Greene Township, **Greene County**. The new expiration date is September 28, 2022.

11-00541A: Cleveland Brothers Equipment Company, Inc., 100 Commerce Drive, Ebensburg, PA 15931, plan approval extension effective on March 28, 2022, with expiration on September 28, 2022, to extend the period of temporary operation of sources and controls at its industrial engine rebuilding facility in Cambria Township, Cambria County.

**30-00072H: Consol Pennsylvania Coal Company, LLC**, 1000 Consol Energy Drive, Canonsburg, PA 15317, plan approval modification effective on March 21, 2022, with expiration on May 28, 2022, for sources and controls associated with the Bailey Prep Plant expansion located in Richhill Township, **Greene County**.

Title V Operating Permits Issued under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter G.

Southcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Contact: Thomas Hanlon, Facilities Permitting Chief, 717-705-4862, Thomas Bianca, New Source Review Chief, 717-705-4863, or William Weaver, Regional Air Quality Manager, 717-705-4702.

**06-05007: Carpenter Technology Corp.**, 101 Bern Street, Reading, PA 19601, on March 14, 2022, for the specialty stainless steel foundry located in Reading City, **Berks County**. The Title V permit was renewed.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, 570-327-3648.

**41-00006:** High Steel Structures, Inc., 1853 William Penn Way, Lancaster, PA 17605, on March 17, 2022, was issued a Title V Operating Permit (renewal) for High Steel Structures, Inc. Williamsport facility located in Williamsport, Lycoming County. The Title V Operating Permit contains requirements including monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting conditions to ensure compliance with applicable Federal and State regulations.

### Operating Permits for Non-Title V Facilities Issued under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code Chapter 127, Subchapter F.

Northeast Region: Air Quality Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

Contact: Norman Frederick, Facility Permitting Chief— Telephone: 570-826-2409.

**48-00071:** Green Knight Economic Development Corporation/Plainfield, 2147 Pen Argyl Road, Pen Argyl, PA 18702. On March 21, 2022, the Department issued a renewal of the State-Only (Natural) Minor Permit for an electric generating plant in Plainfield Township, Northampton County. The sources at this facility consist of three (3) combustion turbines that are fueled by LFG from the Grand Central Sanitary Landfill and produce electricity to a local grid. The sources are considered minor emission sources of nitrogen oxide (NO<sub>x</sub>), sulfur oxides (SO<sub>x</sub>), carbon monoxide (CO), total suspended particulate (TSP), and VOC's. The Operating Permit contains applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

**40-00137:** Western Intl. Gas & Cylinders/Berwick, 53 River Road, Berwick, PA 18603-6721. On March 15, 2022, the Department issued a State-Only (Natural) Minor Permit for the operation of a gas cylinder distribution facility in Salem Township, Luzerne County. The sources at this facility consist of paint booths, paint baking ovens, and gas transfer lines. The control devices consist of fabric filters. The sources are considered minor emission sources of nitrogen oxide (NO<sub>x</sub>), sulfur oxides (SO<sub>x</sub>), carbon monoxide (CO), total suspended particulate (TSP), and VOC's. The Operating Permit contains applicable requirements for emission limitations, work practice standards, testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting standards used to verify facility compliance with Federal and State air pollution regulations.

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, 570-327-3648.

**49-00056: Quikrete Co. Inc.**, 5517 Snydertown Road, Paxinos, PA 17860, on March 17, 2022, was issued a State Only (Natural Minor) Operating Permit (renewal) for their Harrisburg Plant facility located in Shamokin Township, **Northumberland County**. The State Only Operating Permit contains requirements including monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting conditions to ensure compliance with applicable Federal and State regulations.

**04-00400:** Columbia Gas Transmission, LLC, 455 Racetrack Road, Washington, PA 15301, on March 16, 2022, was issued a renewal State Only "Synthetic Minor" Operating Permit for the operation of their Ellwood City Compressor Station in Franklin Township, **Beaver County**. The facility's primary emissions sources are two 500 brake-horsepower natural gas-fired compressor engines. The State Only Operating Permit contains all applicable regulatory requirements including monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting conditions. Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Thomas Joseph, P.E., Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 412-442-4336.

**63-00933:** MarkWest Liberty Midstream & Resources, LLC, 4600 J Barry Ct., Ste. 500, Canonsburg, PA 15317-5854, on March 22, 2022, the Department of Environmental Protection issued an initial synthetic minor State-Only Operating Permit for the continued operation of the MarkWest Johnston natural gas compressor station located in Chartiers Township, Washington County. This facility is subject to the applicable requirements of 25 Pa. Code, Chapters 121—145 and the applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart JJJJ and 40 CFR Part 63 Subparts ZZZZ and HH. The modified air quality Operating Permit includes emission limitations, operating requirements, monitoring requirements, work practice standards, testing, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements for the site.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

Contact: Matthew Williams, Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 814-332-6940.

32-00429: RPX Composites/Green Township, 895 Acorn Road, Commodore, PA 15729-7923. On March 10, 2022, the Department issued the renewal State Only Natural Minor Operating Permit for operation of the open fiberglass molding facility owned by RPX Composites located in Green Township, Mercer County. The facility uses a combination of open molding processes to manufacture composite tanks and parts. The primary emission sources include manual resin application, mechanical non-atomized resin application, chop-hoop resin application, and mechanical atomized gelcoat application. The potential emissions of the primary pollutants from the facility are as follows: 10 TPY VOC, 9.5 TPY total HAP (including styrene), and all other pollutants are less than 1 TPY; thus, the facility is a natural minor. The facility previously operated under plan approval 32-00429A, which included emission limits of VOC and total HAP. The renewal permit contains emission restrictions, recordkeeping, work practices, and additional requirements to ensure compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Air Pollution Control Act.

42-00184: Keystone Powdered Metal Company, 8 Hanley Drive, Lewis Run, PA 16738, on March 10, 2022, the Department issued the renewal State-Only Operating Permit of a powdered metal manufacturing facility located in Lewis Run Borough, McKean County. Permitted air contamination sources at the facility include sintering furnaces, a tempering furnace and an induction heat treater, a water evaporator, an emergency engine, and a parts washer. The emergency engine is subject to § 40 CFR 63 Subpart ZZZZ. In this renewal, four additional sintering furnaces authorized through RFDs are incorporated as permitted sources. An induction heat treater, which is no longer onsite, is removed as a permitted source. For permitting purposes, the facility is Natural Minor.

Operating Permit Revisions Issued including Administrative Amendments, Minor Modifications or Transfers of Ownership under the Air Pollution Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015) and 25 Pa. Code §§ 127.412, 127.450, 127.462 and 127.464.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

Northcentral Region: Air Quality Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701.

Contact: Muhammad Q. Zaman, Program Manager, 570-327-3648.

18-00001, Columbia Gas Transmission, LLC, 455 Racetrack Rd., Washington, PA 15301, issued a revised Title V Operating Permit on March 21, 2022, for the Renovo Compressor Station located in Chapman Township, Clinton County. The revision includes the identification of a new responsible official and permit contact person. This revised Title V Operating Permit contains all applicable regulatory requirements including monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting conditions.

Southwest Region: Air Quality Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745.

Contact: Thomas Joseph, P.E., Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 412-442-4336.

**30-00040:** Iron Cumberland, LLC/Cumberland Mine, 855 Kirby Rd., Waynesburg, PA 15370. Administrative Amendment, issued on March 15, 2022, for a change of ownership from Cumberland Contura, LLC to Iron Cumberland, LLC. Iron Cumberland, LLC operates a coal preparation plant located in Whiteley Township, Greene County.

**63-00968:** MarkWest Liberty Midstream & Resources, LLC, 4600 J Barry Ct., Ste. 500, Canonsburg, PA 15317-5854. On March 22, 2022, the Department of Environmental Protection issued a major modification to a synthetic minor State-Only Operating Permit for the continued operation of the MarkWest Smith natural gas compressor station located in Smith Township, Washington County. This facility is subject to the applicable requirements of 25 Pa. Code, Chapters 121—145 and the applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 60 Subparts JJJJ and OOOO and 40 CFR Part 63 Subparts ZZZZ and HH. The modified air quality Operating Permit includes emission limitations, operating requirements, monitoring requirements, work practice standards, testing, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements for the site.

Northwest Region: Air Quality Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

Contact: Matthew Williams, Facilities Permitting Chief—Telephone: 814-332-6940.

**27-00015: Kinder Morgan Inc.**, 1001 Louisiana Street, Suite 1000, Houston, TX 77002-5089. The Department on March 10, 2022 issued an administrative amendment of the Title V Operating Permit for Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company LLC, Marienville Station 307 located in Howe Township, Forest County. The amendment corrects typographical errors (provides the correct number of significant digits to the  $NO_x$  emission limit for Source 136) and updates the permit contact.

**42-00223: Kinder Morgan Inc.**, 1001 Louisiana Street, Suite 1000, Houston, TX 77002-5089. The Department on March 10, 2022 issued an administrative amendment of the State Only Operating Permit for Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company LLC, Station 310 located in Sergeant Township, **McKean County**. The amendment corrects typographical errors (provides the correct number of significant digits to the NO<sub>x</sub>, VOC, and CO emission limits for Source 101A) and updates the permit contact.

**43-00272: Kinder Morgan Inc.**, 1001 Louisiana Street, Suite 1000, Houston, TX 77002-5089. The Department on March 10, 2022 issued an administrative amendment of the Title V Operating Permit for Tennessee Gas

Pipeline Company LLC, Mercer Station 219 located in Jefferson Township, **Mercer County**. The amendment corrects typographical errors (provides the correct number of significant digits to the VOC emission limit for Source 144) and updates the permit contact.

**61-00218: Kinder Morgan Inc.**, 1001 Louisiana Street, Suite 1000, Houston, TX 77002-5089. The Department on March 10, 2022 issued an administrative amendment of the State Only Operating Permit for Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company LLC, Station 303 located in Cranberry Township, Venango County. The amendment corrects typographical errors (provides the correct number of significant digits to the NO<sub>x</sub>, VOC, and CO emission limits for Source 101A) and updates the permit contact.

**61-00225:** Stonehaven Energy Management Company, LLC, 8570 US Route 322, Van, PA 16319, on March 8, 2022 the Department issued an administrative amendment to the State Operating Permit for the facility located in Cranberry Township, Venango County. The amendment incorporates the change of ownership, tax ID, responsible official and permit contact.

# ACTIONS ON COAL AND NONCOAL APPLICATIONS

Actions on applications under the Surface Min-Reclamation Conservation and Act ing (52 P.S. §§ 1396.1–1396.31); the Noncoal Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§ 3301—3326); the Clean Streams Law (35 P.S. §§ 691.1-691.1001); the Coal Refuse Disposal Control Act (52 P.S. §§ 30.51-30.66); the Bituminous Mine Subsidence and Land Conservation Act (52 P.S. §§ 1406.1–1406.21). The final action on each application also constitutes action on the NPDES permit application and, if noted, the request for a Section 401 Water Quality Certification. Mining activity permits issued in response to such applications will also address the application permitting requirements of the following statutes; the Air Quality Control Act (35 P.S. §§ 4001-4015); the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1-693.27); and the Solid Waste Management Act (35 P.S. §§ 6018.101-6018.1103).

Coal Permits

Cambria District Mining Office: 286 Industrial Park Road, Ebensburg, PA 15931, (814) 472-1900, RA-EP CAMBRIA@pa.gov, (Contact: Melanie Ford-Wigfield).

Mining Permit No. 11150101. NPDES No. PA0279391. E.P. Bender Coal Co., Inc., P.O. Box 594, Carrolltown, PA 15722. Renewal of a NPDES permit for a bituminous surface and auger mine in Reade Township, Cambria County, affecting 65.7 acres. Receiving streams: unnamed tributaries to/and Fallentimber Run classified for the following use: CWF. Application received: October 26, 2021. Permit issued: March 15, 2022.

Mining Permit No. 56960107. NPDES No. PA0234231, PBS Coals, Inc., 1576 Stoystown Road, P.O. Box 260, Friedens, PA 15541, permit renewal for reclamation only of a bituminous surface and auger mine in Jenner Township, Somerset County, affecting 13.0 acres. Receiving streams: unnamed tributaries to/and Quemahoning Creek classified for the following use: cold water fishes. Application received: August 24, 2021. Permit issued: March 15, 2022.

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, (570) 621-3118, RA-EPPottsville DMO@pa.gov, (Contact: Theresa Reilly-Flannery).

**Permit No. 54100101. Gale Mining Company**, 1441 Oak Road, Pottsville, PA 17901, renewal of an anthracite surface mine and coal refuse disposal operation in Schuylkill Township, **Schuylkill County**, affecting 204.5 acres. Receiving stream: unnamed tributary to Schuylkill River. Application received: October 28, 2021. Renewal issued: March 15, 2022.

## Noncoal Permits

Cambria District Mining Office: 286 Industrial Park Road, Ebensburg, PA 15931, (814) 472-1900, RA-EP CAMBRIA@pa.gov, (Contact: Melanie Ford-Wigfield).

**PAM422002-GP104. REDI, LLC**, 6801 Rice Road, P.O. Box 426, Shippensburg, PA 17257, Coverage under the General NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharges Associated with Mining Activities (BMP GP-104) on **Noncoal Permit No. 28010301** located in Hamilton Township, **Franklin County**. Receiving stream: Conococheague Creek classified for the following use: WWF. Notice of Intent for Coverage received: February 7, 2022. Approved: March 15, 2022.

Moshannon District Mining Office: 186 Enterprise Drive, Philipsburg, PA 16866, (814) 342-8200, RA-EP MOSHANNON@pa.gov, (Contact: Cassandra Stanton).

**PAM221022-GP104.** Heister House Millworks, Inc., 1937 Troup Valley Road, Mt. Pleasant Mills, PA 17853. Coverage under the General NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharges Associated with Mining Activities (BMP GP-104) on **Noncoal Permit No. 55950801** located in Perry Township, **Snyder County**. Receiving stream(s): North Branch Mahantago Creek and UNT of North Branch Mahantago Creek classified for the following use(s): TSF, CWF. Notice of Intent for Coverage received: September 15, 2021. Permit Issued: March 17, 2022.

**NPDES No. PA0257486. Mining Permit No. 41100301. Glenn O. Hawbaker, Inc.**, 1952 Waddle Rd., Suite 203, State College, PA 16803, renewal of an NPDES permit for a large noncoal mining site located in Armstrong Township, **Lycoming County**, affecting 81.5 acres. Receiving stream(s): Hagermans Run classified for the following use(s): HQ-CWF. Application received: August 30, 2021. Permit Issued: March 17, 2022.

**PAM221024-GP104. Black Knight Quarries, Inc.**, 293 Beacon Light Road, Towanda, PA 18848. Coverage under the General NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharges Associated with Mining Activities (BMP GP-104) on **Noncoal Permit No. 08132501** located in Rome Township, **Bradford County**. Receiving stream(s): UNT Parks Creek classified for the following use(s): CWF, MF. Notice of Intent for Coverage received: September 21, 2021. Permit Issued: March 17, 2022.

New Stanton District Office: P.O. Box 133, New Stanton, PA 15672, (724) 925-5500, RA-EPNEWSTANTON@pa.gov, (Contact: Tracy Norbert).

NPDES No. PA0201294. Permit No. 26950401. Amerikohl Aggregates, Inc., 1384 State Route 711, Stahlstown, PA 15687. NPDES renewal issued for an existing large noncoal surface mine in Springfield Township, Fayette County, affecting 640.0 acres. Receiving stream: unnamed tributaries to Clay Run, Clay Run, unnamed tributaries to Buck Run, Sugarcamp Hollow and Buck Run, classified for the following use: HQ-CWF. Application received: October 16, 2020. Permit issued: March 17, 2022.

### ACTIONS ON BLASTING ACTIVITY APPLICATIONS

Actions on applications under the Explosives Acts of 1937 and 1957 and 25 Pa. Code § 211.124. Blasting activity performed as part of a coal or noncoal mining activity will be regulated by the mining permit for that coal or noncoal mining activity.

## Blasting Permits Issued

Pottsville District Mining Office: 5 West Laurel Boulevard, Pottsville, PA 17901, (570) 621-3118, RA-EP PottsvilleDMO@pa.gov, (Contact: Theresa Reilly-Flannery).

**Permit No. 52224101. Maine Drilling & Blasting, Inc.**, P.O. Box 1140, Gardiner, ME 04345, construction blasting for SR84-494 in Dingman Township, **Pike County**, with an expiration date of March 11, 2023. Permit issued: March 17, 2022.

**Permit No. 58224103. John H. Brainard**, P.O. Box 66, Clifford, PA 18413, construction blasting for Oliverio Development in Gibson Township, **Susquehanna County**, with an expiration date of December 31, 2022. Permit issued: March 17, 2022.

**Permit No. 58224104.** Accublast Explosives, LLC, 1727 Catlin Road, Kingsley, PA 18826, construction blasting for Sprout Residence in Bridgewater Township, **Susquehanna County**, with an expiration date of December 31, 2022. Permit issued: March 17, 2022.

**Permit No. 64224102. Holbert Explosives, Inc.**, 237 Mast Hope Plank Road, Suite A, Lackawaxen, PA 18435, construction blasting for 71 Deerwood Lane in South Canaan Township, **Susquehanna County**, with an expiration date of March 16, 2023. Permit issued: March 17, 2022.

## FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT SECTION 401

The Department has taken the following actions on previously received permit applications, requests for Environmental Assessment approval, and requests for Water Quality Certification under Section 401 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (FWPCA) (33 U.S.C.A. § 1341).

Except as otherwise noted, the Department has granted 401 Water Quality Certification certifying that the construction and operation described will comply with the applicable provisions of Sections 301—303, 306 and 307 of the FWPCA (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1311—1313, 1316 and 1317), and that the construction will not violate applicable Federal and State Water Quality Standards.

Any person aggrieved by these actions may appeal, pursuant to Section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act, 35 P.S. § 7514, and the Administrative Agency Law, 2 Pa.C.S. Chapter 5A, to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users may contact the Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Environmental Hearing Board within 30-days of publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*, unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create any right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

If you want to challenge this action, your appeal must reach the Board within 30-days. You do not need a lawyer to file an appeal with the Board.

Important legal rights are at stake, however, so you should show this notice to a lawyer at once. If you cannot afford a lawyer, you may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board (717) 787-3483 for more information.

## WATER OBSTRUCTIONS AND ENCROACHMENTS

Actions on applications for the following activities filed under the Dam Safety and Encroachments Act (32 P.S. §§ 693.1—693.27), section 302 of the Flood Plain Management Act (32 P.S. § 679.302) and The Clean Streams Law and Notice of Final Action for Certification under section 401 of the FWPCA.

Northeast Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915.

Contact: Gillian Pehala, Clerk Typist 2, 570-830-3077.

**E6602222-001. Shannon Investments, LP**, 920 Millville Rd, Bloomsburg, PA 17815. Tunkhannock Township, **Wyoming County**, Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District.

To construct and maintain an outfall structure permanently impacting 0.01 acre of wetlands consisting of a 27-foot long, 15-inch HDPE pipe with an R-4 rip rap apron. The project is located on Virginia Drive, approximately 0.75 mile west from the intersection of W. Tioga Street and Bridge Street (Tunkhannock, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41° 32′ 29″; Longitude: -75° 57′ 39″) in Tunkhannock Township, Wyoming County.

Northcentral Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 208 West Third Street, Williamsport, PA 17701, 570-327-3636.

E5504221-002: A & L Wood Inc., 2220 Paradise Church Road, Mount Pleasant Mills, PA 17853. A & L, Wood Access Rd, Perry Township, **Snyder County**, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Baltimore District (Dalmatia Quadrangle; Latitude 40.678118°; -76.977599°).

The applicant is authorized the construction and maintenance of a 16 ft wide access drive and box culvert crossing a UNT to North Branch Mahantago Creek (CWF, MF). The project also will construct and maintain a stormwater outfall and basin within the associated floodway. The project proposes .01 acre of direct permanent watercourse impact, and .18 acre of direct permanent floodway impact.

Southwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4745, 412-442-4000.

Contact: Dana Drake.

E26052-385, Redstone Township Sewer Authority, 1010 Main Street, Republic, PA 15475, Redstone Township, Fayette County; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

Has been given consent to:

1. Construct and maintain two (2) 8-inch PVC sewer line crossings under Dunlap Creek (WWF) via directional bore,

2. Construct and maintain one (1) 8-inch PVC sewer line crossings under an unnamed tributary (UNT) to Dunlap Creek (WWF) via directional bore,

3. Construct and maintain five (5) 8-inch PVC sewer line crossings under one PEM and four PSS wetlands via directional bore; and

4. Construct and maintain one pump station within the 100-year floodplain of Dunlap Creek.

For the purpose of constructing a sewer line extension. The project will result in permanent impacts to Dunlap Creek (46 LF) and a UNT to Dunlap Creek (79 LF) and temporary impacts to Dunlap Creek (60 LF) and unnamed tributary to Dunlap Creek (80 LF), 0.08 acre of permanent impacts and 0.12 acre of temporary impacts to PEM wetlands, 0.61 acre of permanent impacts and 0.91 acre of temporary impacts to PSS wetlands, permanent impacts to the floodway of Dunlap Creek (0.55 acre) and UNT to Dunlap Creek (0.03 acre), temporary impacts to the floodway of Dunlap Creek (0.82 acre) and UNT to Dunlap Creek (0.05 acre), and permanent (3.49 acres) and temporary (5.34 acres) impacts to the 100-year floodplain of Dunlap Creek. Mitigation will include restoring the areas disturbed by the utility line crossing back to original condition and elevation and stabilizing the disturbed areas.

The project includes a number of new sewer lines, starting approximately 500 feet northeast of the intersection of Keeny Row and Tower Hill Road (Quadrangle: Carmichaels, PA, Latitude 39° 57′ 11″; Longitude: -79° 52′ 43″), and ends approximately 500 feet southeast of the intersection of Filbert Orient and Paradise Lake Road at the Filbert pump/treatment station (Salem PA USGS topographic quadrangle; Latitude: 39° 57′ 23″; Longitude: -79° 51′ 39″; Subbasin 19C; USACE Pittsburgh District) in Redstone Township, Fayette County.

**E6305221-004, Ted Taylor Builders, LLC**, 608 East McMurray Road, Suite 101, McMurray, PA 15317, Peters Township, **Washington County**; Pittsburgh ACOE District.

Has been given consent to:

Construct, operate, and maintain:

1. A new culvert and associated fill within 55 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Chartiers Creek (HQ-WWF) and install an 18" stormwater outfall and associated rip rap apron;

2. A 12 linear foot extension of an existing 36-inch diameter culvert. The installation proposes to permanently impact 12 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Brush Run (WWF); and

3. A 12" storm sewer and 8" sanitary line within the fill of an unnamed tributary to Chartiers Creek in impact 1 and 2 previously listed.

The purpose of the new 55 linear foot culvert and associated fill is for access to the southern portion of a 43-lot residential subdivision. The 36" culvert extension is proposed, to allow for installation of a sanitary sewer. Permanent impacts are to a total of 67 linear feet of streams.

The project site is located at 270 Thomas Road, McMurray, PA 15317 (Bridgeville, PA USGS topographic quadrangle; N: 40°, 16′, 1″; W: -80°, 5′, 32″; Sub-basin 20F; USACE Pittsburgh District), in Peters Township, Washington County.

Eastern Region: Oil & Gas Management Program, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448.

**E4129221-017: EQT ARO LLC**, 33 West Third Street, Suite 300, Williamsport, PA 17701. Wallis Run Valve to Mallory Group Pad A Pipeline in Cascade & Plunketts Creek Township, **Lycoming County**, ACOE Baltimore District.

To construct, operate and maintain three (3) pipelines of various sizes (24'') steel gas line, 16'' plastic underground waterline and an 8'' flexsteel gas line), each approximately 10,500 linear feet in length within permanent and temporary right-of-ways in Cascade and Plunketts Creek Township—Lycoming County. Additionally, a 16" temporary above-ground waterline approximately 9,183 linear feet will also be permitted from the Wallis Run Freshwater Impoundment to the Mallory Group Pad A.

The project will result in a total of 35 LF (208 SF) of permanent and 306 LF (2,668 SF) of temporary stream impacts, 1,781 SF (0.0409 acre) of permanent and 24,298 SF (0.5578 acre) of temporary floodway impacts and 1,148 SF (0.0264 acre) of permanent and 11,591 SF (0.2661 acre) of temporary wetland impacts all for the purpose of constructing a natural gas pipeline for Marcellus Shale well development.

## STREAM IMPACT TABLE:

Resource Name	Municipality Quadrangle	Activity	Chap. 93	Listed Trout	Impact Area Temp. (SF)	Impact Length Temp. (LF)	Impact Area Perm. (SF)	Impact Length Perm. (LF)	Lat. Long.
UNT3 EB Wallis Run	Cascade Barbours	Pipeline and Workspace	HQ; EV	Wild	144	1,525	14	85	$\begin{array}{c} 41.447514^{\rm o} \\ 76.845044^{\rm o} \end{array}$
UNT1 Engle Run	Cascade Barbours	Pipeline and Workspace	EV	Class A Wild	54	357	6	35	$\begin{array}{c} 41.458560^{\circ} \\ 76.831946^{\circ} \end{array}$
Engle Run Channel 1	Plunketts Crk. Barbours	Pipeline and Workspace	${ m EV}$	Class A Wild	54	455	9	51	$\begin{array}{c} 41.458455^{\circ} \\ 76.826049^{\circ} \end{array}$
Engle Run Channel 1A	Plunketts Crk. Barbours	Pipeline and Workspace	${ m EV}$	Class A Wild	54	331	6	37	$\begin{array}{c} 41.458483^{\circ} \\ 76.826134^{\circ} \end{array}$
		•	TOTAL	IMPACTS	306	2,668	35	208	

## WETLAND IMPACT TABLE:

Resource Name	Municipality Quadrangle	Activity	Cow. Class	Listed Trout	Impact Area Temp. (SF)	Impact Length Temp. (LF)	Impact Area Perm. (SF)	Impact Length Perm. (LF)	Lat. Long.
Wetland 1A	Cascade Barbours	Pipeline	PEM; EV	Class A Wild	79	1,648			41.452029° 76.833989°
Wetland 2	Plunketts Crk. Barbours	Pipeline and Aerial TAWGL	PSS; EV	Class A Wild	51	1,796	22	37	41.458485° 76.826419°
Wetland 2A	Cascade Barbours	Pipeline and Aerial TAWGL	PEM; EV	Wild	24	344			41.445754° 76.842559°
Wetland 3A	Cascade Barbours	Pipeline and Aerial TAWGL	PEM; EV	Wild	112	4,566	16	96	41.447046° 76.844775°
Wetland 4A	Cascade Barbours	Workspace	PEM; EV	Wild	47	1,127			$\begin{array}{r} 41.448018^{\circ} \\ 76.845445^{\circ} \end{array}$
Wetland 47	Cascade Barbours	Pipeline and Aerial TAWGL	PFO; EV	Class A Wild	54	2,110	45	1,015	41.458559° 76.832002°
		•	TOTAL	IMPACTS	367	11,591	83	1,148	

## FLOODWAY IMPACT TABLE:

Resource Name	Municipality Quadrangle		Impact Area Temp. (SF)	Impact Length Temp. (LF)	Impact Area Perm. (SF)	Impact Length Perm. (LF)	Lat. Long.
UNT3 EB Wallis Run	Cascade Barbours	Pipeline and Workspace	144	15,176	108	649	$\begin{array}{c} 41.447514^{\rm o} \\ 76.845044^{\rm o} \end{array}$

Resource Name	Municipality Quadrangle	Activity	Impact Area Temp. (SF)	Impact Length Temp. (LF)	Impact Area Perm. (SF)	Impact Length Perm. (LF)	Lat. Long.
UNT1 Engle Run	Cascade Barbours	Pipeline and Workspace	56	3,069	68	405	$\begin{array}{c} 41.458560^{\circ} \\ 76.831946^{\circ} \end{array}$
Engle Run Channel 1	Plunketts Crk. Barbours	Pipeline and Workspace	63	3,386	62	368	$\begin{array}{c} 41.458455^{\circ} \\ 76.826049^{\circ} \end{array}$
Engle Run Channel 1A	Plunketts Crk. Barbours	Pipeline and Workspace	50	2,667	60	359	$\begin{array}{c} 41.458483^{\rm o} \\ 76.826134^{\rm o} \end{array}$
	ТО	TAL IMPACTS	313	24,298	298	1,781	

**E5729221-007: Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC**, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840, Cherry and Cooley Township, **Sullivan County**, ACOE Baltimore District.

To construct, operate and maintain:

1. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 22 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.548536°, Longitude: -76.332832°);

2. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 1,840 square feet of a Palustrine Forested Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.569408°, Longitude: -76.337354°);

3. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.5448995°, Longitude: -76.332441°);

4. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) and impacting 2,140 square feet of an adjacent Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.544714°, Longitude: -76.333819°);

5. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 780 square feet of a Palustrine Forested Wetland (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.544060°, Longitude: -76.335049°);

6. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 5,420 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland and impacting 1,340 square feet of a Palustrine Forested Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543509°, Longitude: -76.335109°);

7. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 640 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543409°, Longitude: -76.324142°);

8. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) and impacting 216 square feet of an adjacent Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543786°, Longitude: -76.32359°);

9. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543977°, Longitude: -76.322912°); 10. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) and impacting 1,740 square feet of an adjacent Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543579°, Longitude: -76.321569°);

11. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) and impacting 1,160 square feet of an adjacent Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543345°, Longitude: -76.320612°);

12. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 860 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland and impacting 1,000 square feet of a Palustrine Forested Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543345°, Longitude: -76.320293°);

13. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 2,120 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.542931°, Longitude: -76.319901°);

14. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 2,540 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543107°, Longitude: -76.319403°);

15. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 4,720 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.543658°, Longitude: -76.317015°);

The project will result in 142 linear feet, 1,330 square feet of temporary stream impacts and 23,880 square feet of floodway impacts, 33,164 square feet (0.495 acre) of temporary PEM wetland impacts and 4,960 square feet (0.114 acre) of temporary PFO wetland impacts, all for the purpose of establishing a temporary water supply for Marcellus well development in Cherry and Cooley Township, Sullivan County. This project is associated with permit application number E0829221-022.

E0829221-022: Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840, Wilmot Township, Bradford County, ACOE Baltimore District.

To construct, operate and maintain:

1. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) and impacting 8,560 square feet of an adjacent Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.570465°, Longitude: -76.339003°); 2. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.570247°, Longitude: -76.338528°);

3. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 1,200 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.569408°, Longitude: -76.337354°);

4. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 880 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.569408°, Longitude: -76.337354°);

5. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 1,376 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.568471°, Longitude: -76.338059°);

6. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 748 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.568281°, Longitude: -76.338169°);

7. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 820 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.567958°, Longitude: -76.338368°);

8. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 5,320 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.567153°, Longitude: -76.338965°);

9. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 34 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.566645°, Longitude: -76.33934°);

10. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) and impacting 7,860 square feet of an adjacent Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.566484°, Longitude: -76.339437°);

11. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 23 linear feet of North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) and impacting 1,200 square feet of an adjacent Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.5633326°, Longitude: -76.342396°);

12. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 1,120 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.563047°, Longitude: -76.343408°);

13. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 2,000 square feet of flood-way impacts to an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.558016°, Longitude: -76.335174°);

14. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 700 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.556798°, Longitude: -76.334025°);

15. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 20 linear feet of an un-

named tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) and impacting 2,020 square feet of an adjacent Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.555604°, Longitude: -76.334849°);

16. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline and a timber mat bridge impacting 1,360 square feet of a Palustrine Emergent Wetland (EV) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.554116°, Longitude: -76.334979°);

17. a 16-inch diameter temporary waterline impacting 7 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to North Fork Mehoopany Creek (CWF, MF) (Colley, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.551429°, Longitude: -76.33608°);

The project will result in 144 linear feet, 1,897 square feet of temporary stream impacts and 15,068 square feet of floodway impacts, and 33,164 square feet (0.762 acre) of temporary PEM wetland impacts, all for the purpose of establishing a temporary water supply for Marcellus well development in Wilmot Township, Bradford County. This project is associated with permit application number E5729221-007.

E0829221-015: Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840, West Burlington Township, Bradford County, ACOE Baltimore District.

To construct, operate and maintain:

1. a permanent access road impacting 1,075 square feet of a Palustrine Scrub-Shrub Wetland (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.7887271°, Longitude: -76.642647°);

2. a 15" CMP culvert impacting 167 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Mill Creek (TSF, MF) (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.788830°, Longitude: -76.640750°);

3. a 15" CMP culvert impacting 106 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Mill Creek (TSF, MF) (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.788405°, Longitude: -76.638304°);

4. a 15" CMP culvert impacting 99 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Mill Creek (TSF, MF) (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.787262°, Longitude: -76.636504°);

5. a 15" CMP culvert impacting 112 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Mill Creek (TSF, MF) (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.786467°, Longitude: -76.635081°);

6. a 15" CMP culvert impacting 57 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Mill Creek (TSF, MF) (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.786434°, Longitude: -76.634756°);

7. a 15" CMP culvert impacting 50 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Mill Creek (TSF, MF) (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.784613°, Longitude: -76.632700°);

8. a 300' by 450' well pad impacting 656 linear feet of an unnamed tributary to Mill Creek (TSF, MF) (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.782963°, Longitude: -76.631478°);

9. a 300' by 450' well pad impacting 23,854 square feet of a Palustrine Forested Wetland (East Troy, PA Quadrangle Latitude: 41.782000°, Longitude: -76.631530°);

This project is an after-the-fact permit that is associated with the Chesapeake Audit and will result in 1,247 linear feet of stream impacts, 124,976 square feet (2.87 acres) of floodway impacts, 1,075 square feet (0.02 acre) of permanent PSS wetland impacts and 23,854 square feet (0.55 acre) of permanent PFO wetland impacts, all for the purpose of installing a natural gas well pad and permanent access road for Marcellus Shale development in West Burlington Township, Bradford County. The permittee will provide 3.96 acres of PFO and

PSS wetland mitigation and 2,386 linear feet of stream mitigation at Camp Brook Restoration (Elkland, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.988385°, Longitude: -77.337152°), permit application number E5929221-006.

E0829221-026: Chesapeake Appalachia, LLC, 14 Chesapeake Lane, Sayre, PA 18840, Monroe Township, Bradford County, ACOE Baltimore District.

To construct, operate and maintain:

1. A water impoundment impacting 3,049 square feet (0.07 acre) of temporary Palustrine Emergent Wetland impacts and 1,917 square feet (0.044 acre) of permanent Palustrine Emergent Wetland impacts (Monroeton, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.695413°, Longitude: -76.436248°).

This project is an after-the-fact permit that is associated with the Chesapeake Audit and will result in 4,966 square feet (0.114 acre) of PEM wetland impacts, all for the purpose of building a water impoundment for Marcellus well development in Monroe Township, Bradford County. The permittee will provide 0.23 acre of PEM wetland mitigation at Camp Brook Restoration (Elkland, PA Quadrangle, Latitude: 41.988385°, Longitude: -77.337152°), permit application number E5929221-006.

#### ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENTS

Northwest Region: Waterways & Wetlands Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481.

EA1006221-001, Cranberry Township, 2525 Rochester Lane, Cranberry, PA 16066. Cranberry Park Stream Restoration, in Cranberry Township, Butler County, ACOE Pittsburgh District (Mars, PA Quadrangle N: 40.711017; W: -80.107948).

The applicant is conducting restoration activities on approximately 810 linear feet of a UNT to Brush Creek. The project includes reestablishing floodplain connectivity, regrading incised stream banks, riparian plantings, and minor instream work.

### **EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL**

The following Erosion and Sediment Control permits have been issued.

Persons aggrieved by an action may appeal that action to the Environmental Hearing Board (Board) under section 4 of the Environmental Hearing Board Act and 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501-508 and 701-704. The appeal should be sent to the Environmental Hearing Board, Second Floor, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, P.O. Box 8457, Harrisburg, PA 17105-8457, (717) 787-3483. TDD users may contact the Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service, (800) 654-5984. Appeals must be filed with the Board within 30-days of publication of this notice in the Pennsylvania Bulletin unless the appropriate statute provides a different time period. Copies of the appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure may be obtained from the Board. The appeal form and the Board's rules of practice and procedure are also available in Braille or on audiotape from the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. This paragraph does not, in and of itself, create a right of appeal beyond that permitted by applicable statutes and decisional law.

For individuals who wish to challenge an action, the appeal must reach the Board within 30-days. A lawyer is not needed to file an appeal with the Board. Important legal rights are at stake, however, so individuals should show this notice to a lawyer at once. Persons who cannot afford a lawyer may qualify for free pro bono representation. Call the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483 for more information.

Southwest District: Oil & Gas Management Program, 400 Waterfront Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15222, 412-442-4281.

ESCGP-3 # ESG073021019-00/Marlin AST Facility

Applicant Name EQM Gathering OPCO LLC

Contact Person Michael Provencher Address 2200 Energy Drive

City, State, Zip Cannonsburg, PA 15317

Township(s) Jackson

County Greene

Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) UNTs to Pennsylvania Fork Fish Creek—WWF Pennsylvania Fort Fish Creek—WWF UNTs to Job Creek—TSF Job Creek—TSF

Eastern Region: Oil & Gas Management Program, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701-6448.

ESCGP-3 # ESG290822001-00

Applicant Name Chesapeake Appalachia LLC

Contact Person Eric Haskins

Address 14 Chesapeake Lane

City, State, Zip Sayre, PA 18840

County Bradford

Township(s) Smithfield

Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) Buck Creek (WWF, MF), Unnamed Tributary to Buck Creek (WWF, MF)

Secondary: Buck Creek (WWF, MF)

ESCGP-3 # ESG295821035-00

- Applicant Name Coterra Energy Inc
- Contact Person Kenneth Marcum
- Address 2000 Park Lane Suite 300
- City, State, Zip Pittsburgh, PA 15275
- County Susquehanna
- Township(s) Forest Lake
- Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) Stonestreet Creek (CWF), UNT to Middle Branch Wyalusing Creek (CWF)

Secondary: Stonestreet Creek (CWF), Middle Branch Wyalusing Creek (CWF)

- ESCGP-3 # ESG294122001-00
- Applicant Name EQT ARO LLC
- Contact Person Todd Klaner
- Address 33 West Third Street Suite 300
- City, State, Zip Williamsport, PA 17701
- County Lycoming
- Township(s) Plunketts Creek
- Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) UNT Wolf Run (EV), UNT Noon Branch (EV) Secondary: Wolf Run (EV), Noon Branch (EV)
- ESCGP-3 # ESG290822004-00
- Applicant Name Chief Oil & Gas LLC
- Contact Person Jeffrey J. Deegan
- Address 1720 Sycamore Road
- City, State, Zip Montoursville, PA 17754
- County Bradford
- Township(s) Leroy
- Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) Rollinson Run (EV, MF), Little Schrader Creek (EV, MF) Secondary: Schrader Creek (EV, MF)

ESCGP-3 # ESG294122002-00

Applicant Name EQT ARO LLC

Contact Person Jennifer McCarthy Address 33 West Third St Suite 300

City, State, Zip Williamsport, PA 17701-6523

County Lycoming

Township(s) Plunketts Creek

Receiving Stream(s) and Classification(s) Engle Run (EV), Wolf Run (EV)

Secondary: King Run (EV), Plunketts Creek (EV)

## CORRECTIVE ACTION UNDER ACT 32, 1989

## PREAMBLE 2

#### The following plans and reports were submitted under the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. §§ 6021.101-6021.2104).

Provisions of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245, Subchapter D, Administration of the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Program, require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a notice of submission of plans and reports. A remedial action plan is submitted to summarize the site characterization, document the design and construction details for the remedial action, and describe how the remedial action will attain the selected remediation standard. The remedial action plan also provides results of studies performed and data collected to support the remedial action and a description of postremediation care requirements. A remedial action completion report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to the selected remediation standard. A remedial action completion report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected.

For further information concerning plans or reports, please contact the Environmental Cleanup Program Manager in the DEP Regional Office under which the notice of receipt of plans or reports appears. If information concerning plans or reports is required in an alternative form, contact the Community Relations Coordinator at the appropriate Regional Office listed. TDD users may telephone the DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The Department has received the following plans and reports:

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5960.

Contact: Richard Staron, Professional Geologist Manager.

Sunoco 0363 1710, 51-30608, 5338 N 5th St., Philadelphia, PA 19120, City of Philadelphia. Groundwater & Environmental Services, Inc., 440 Creamery Way, Suite 500, Exton, PA 19341 on behalf of Evergreen Resources Management Operations, 2 Righter Parkway, Suite 120, Wilmington, DE 19803, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and

groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet nonresidential Statewide health standards.

**JC Hayes**, 51-30608, 130 S. Church St., Parkesburg, PA 19365, Parkesburg Borough, **Chester County**. Reliance Environmental, Inc., 235 North Duke Street, Lancaster, PA 17602, on behalf of Rhoads Church, LLC, 205 Hazel Street, Lancaster, PA 17603, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet nonresidential Statewide health standards.

Lukoil 69717, 46-41558, 1685 Sumneytown Pike, Kulpsville, PA 19443, Towamencin Township, Montgomery County. EnviroTrac Ltd., 602 S. Bethlehem Pike, Suite A-2&3, Ambler, PA 19002 on behalf of Lukoil North America, LLC, 302 Harper Drive, Suite 303, Moorestown, NJ 08057, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet residential Statewide health standards.

Lukoil 69701, 15-42589, 845 Paoli Pike, West Chester, PA 19380, West Goshen Township, Chester County. EnviroTrac Ltd., 602 S. Bethlehem Pike, Suite A-2&3, Ambler, PA 19002 on behalf of Lukoil North America, LLC, 302 Harper Drive, Suite 303, Moorestown, NJ 08057, submitted a Remedial Action Plan and Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet residential Statewide health standards.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

J.A. & W.A. Hess Ready Mix, Storage Tank ID # 40-51043, 10 Hess Road, Hazleton, PA 18202, Hazle Township, Luzerne County, United Environmental Services, P.O. Box 701, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972, on behalf of J.A. & W.A. Hess Inc., 10 Hess Road, Hazleton, PA 18202, submitted a combined Site Characterization Report and Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil contaminated with diesel. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet site specific standards.

**Countryside Quik Mart**, Storage Tank ID # 40-51992, 48 Hunlock-Harveyville Road, Hunlock Creek, PA 18621, Union Township, **Luzerne County**. MEA, 1365 Ackermanville Road, Bangor, PA 18013, on behalf of Kuber Property LLC, 24 Doe Drive, Dallas, PA 18612, submitted a combined Site Characterization Report and Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The report is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting Statewide health standards.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110, 717-705-4705.

Contact: Gregory Bowman, Environmental Group Manager.

**Baer Grocery and Repair**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 28-12307, 8766 Wayne Highway, Waynesboro, PA 17268-9414, Quincy Township, **Blair County**. Letterle & Associates, Inc., 2022 Axemann Road, Suite 201, Bellefonte, PA 16823, on behalf of Galen Hess, 8260 Helman Road, Waynesboro, PA 17268 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum constituents. The plan is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting the Statewide health standard.

**100 W 10th Street**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 07-15322, 100 West 10th Street, Tyrone, PA 16686-1552, Tyrone Borough, **Blair County**. Synergy Environmental Inc., 155 Railroad Plaza, 1st Floor, Royersford, PA 19468, on behalf of PALG UST II, LLC, 645 Hamilton Street, Suite 400, Allentown, PA 18101 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum constituents. The plan is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting the Statewide health standard.

#### Contact: Robin L. Yerger, LPG.

**Rutters Farm Store # 16**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 67-61416, 4430 West Market Street, York, PA 17408, West Manchester Township, **York County**. United Environmental Services, Inc., P.O. Box 701, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972, on behalf of CHR Corporation, 2295 North Susquehanna Trail, Suite C, York, PA 17404 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standard and site-specific standard.

Loves # 407, Storage Tank Primary Facility ID # 21-37405, 1165 Harrisburg Pike, Carlisle, PA 17013, Middlesex Township, Cumberland County. United Environmental Services, Inc., P.O. Box 701, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972, on behalf of Love's Travel Stops & Country Stores, P.O. Box 26210, Oklahoma City, OK 73126, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum constituents. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the site-specific standard.

Northwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6648.

#### Contact: Kim Bontrager, Clerk Typist 3.

**Country Fair Store 38**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 25-91603, 1818 Sassafras Street, Erie, PA 16502, City of Erie, **Erie County**. Groundwater & Environmental Services, Inc., 508 Tomson Park Drive, Cranberry Township, PA 16066, on behalf of Country Fair, Inc., 2251 East 30th Street, Erie, PA 16501, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report is intended to document remediation of the site to meet the Statewide health standard.

**Country Fair Store 65**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 25-91609, 8080 Peach Street, Erie, PA 16509, Summit Township, **Erie County**. Groundwater & Environmental Services, Inc., 508 Tomson Park Drive, Cranberry Township, PA 16066, on behalf of Country Fair, Inc., 2251 East 30th Street, Erie, PA 16501, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The plan is intended to document the remedial actions for meeting the Statewide health standard.

# CORRECTIVE ACTION UNDER ACT 32, 1989

## PREAMBLE 3

#### The DEP has taken action on the following plans and reports under the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act (35 P.S. §§ 6021.101-6021.2104).

Provisions of 25 Pa. Code Chapter 245, Subchapter D, Administration of the Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Program, require the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to publish in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* a notice of its final actions on plans and reports.

A remedial action plan is submitted to summarize the site characterization, document the design and construction details for the remedial action, and describe how the remedial action will attain the selected remediation standard. The remedial action plan also provides results of studies performed and data collected to support the remedial action and a description of postremediation care requirements. A remedial action completion report is submitted to document cleanup of a release of a regulated substance at a site to the selected remediation standard. A remedial action completion report provides a description of the site investigation to characterize the nature and extent of contaminants in environmental media, the basis of selecting the environmental media of concern, documentation supporting the selection of residential or nonresidential exposure factors, a description of the remediation performed and summaries of sampling methodology and analytical results which demonstrate that the remediation has attained the cleanup standard selected.

The DEP may approve or disapprove plans and reports submitted. This notice provides the DEP's decision and, if relevant, the basis for disapproval.

For further information concerning the plans and reports, please contact the Environmental Cleanup Program Manager in the DEP Regional Office under which the notice of the plan or report appears. If information concerning a report is required in an alternative form, contact the Community Relations Coordinator at the appropriate Regional Office listed. TDD users may telephone the DEP through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984.

The DEP has received the following plans and reports:

Southeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 East Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401, 484-250-5960.

Contact: Richard Staron, Professional Geologist Manager.

**Cumberland Farms 3733**, 15-09145, 102 N. Pottstown Pike, Exton, PA 19341, Upper West Whiteland Township, **Chester County**. Arcadis U.S., Inc. 10 Friends Lane, Suite 100, Newtown, PA 18940, on behalf of Chevron Environmental Management Company, 1500 Louisiana St., Room 01445E, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum products. The report did not demonstrate attainment of site-specific standard and was disapproved by the DEP on March 4, 2022.

**Blue Bell Sunoco**, 46-20382, 889 Dekalb Pike, Blue Bell, PA 19422, Whitpain Township, **Montgomery County**. MEA, Inc., 1365 Ackermanville Rd, Bangor, PA 18013, on behalf of Multani Bros. PA Realty, LLC, P.O. Box 326, Gloucester City, NJ 08030, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded petroleum products. The report was acceptable to meet the nonresidential Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 9, 2022.

**Kershaws Svc Ctr**, 15-45247, Washington St. and Hannum Ave., West Chester, PA 19380, West Chester Borough, **Chester County**. Brickhouse Environmental, 515 South Franklin St., West Chester, PA 19382, on behalf of 501 Hannum Ave, LLC, 440 East Marshall Street # 301, West Chester, PA 19380, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded/ leaded gasoline and used motor oil. The report demonstrated attainment of nonresidential Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 11, 2022.

Septa Comly Garage, 51-07488, Penn St. & Comly St., Philadelphia, PA 19149, City of Philadelphia. Michael Baker International, Inc., 1818 Market Street, Suite 3100, Philadelphia, PA 19103, on behalf Septa, 1234 Market Street, 6th Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19107-3780, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded petroleum products. The report did not demonstrate attainment of site-specific standards and was disapproved by the DEP on March 11, 2022.

Upper Pottsgrove Twp Montgomery Cnty, 46-45263, 1420 Heather Pl., Pottstown, PA 19464, Montgomery County. Reliance Environmental Inc., 235 N Duke St., Lancaster, PA 17602, on behalf of Upper Pottsgrove Township, 1409 Farmington Ave., Pottstown, PA 19464 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The report did not demonstrate attainment of residential Statewide health standards and was disapproved by the DEP on March 21, 2022.

Northeast Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 2 Public Square, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701-1915, 570-826-2511.

#### Contact: Eric Supey, Environmental Program Manager.

Al's Quick Stop PA0022 Dunmore, Storage Tank ID # 35-01861, 1220 Wheeler Avenue, Dunmore, PA 18512, Dunmore Borough, Lackawanna County. Synergy Environmental, 155 Railroad Plaza, First Floor, Royersford, PA 19468, on behalf of Dunne Manning Realty LP, 645 Hamilton Street, Suite 500, Allentown, PA 18101, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with gasoline. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 18, 2022.

**Sunoco 0363 0233**, Storage Tank ID # 40-24230, 308 South Main Street, Pittston, PA 18640, Pittston City, **Luzerne County**, Groundwater & Environmental Services, 440 Creamery Way, Suite 500, Exton, PA 19341, on behalf of Evergreen Resources Group, LLC, 2 Righter Parkway, Suite 120, Wilmington, DE 19803, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with gasoline. The report was not acceptable to meet a combination of Site Specific and Statewide health standards and was disapproved by DEP on March 18, 2022.

JL Market, Storage Tank ID # 40-50901, 7896 Blue Ridge Trail, Wapwallopen, PA 18660, Dorrance Township, Luzerne County. MEA, 1365 Ackermanville Road, Bangor, PA 18013, on behalf of Karunesh Properties, Inc., 7896 Blue Ridge Trail, Wapwallopen, PA 18660, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of Statewide health standards and was approved by DEP on March 17, 2022.

**Speedway # 6756**, Storage Tank ID # 54-14427, 6 Tremont Road, Pine Grove, PA 17963, Pine Grove Township, **Schuylkill County**. EMS Environmental, 4550 Bath Pike, Bethlehem, PA 18017, on behalf of Speedway LLC, 500 Speedway Drive, Enon, OH 45323, submitted a Site Characterization Report and a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The reports were not acceptable to meet Statewide health standards and were disapproved by DEP on March 16, 2022.

Southcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 909 Elmerton Avenue, Harrisburg, PA 17110, 717-705-4705.

#### Contact: Michael Stefanic, P.G., Project Officer.

**S&M Fuel Mart**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 22-02817, 721A Allegheny Street, Dauphin, PA 17018-8907, Middle Paxton Township, **Dauphin County**. McKee Environmental, Inc., 86 Quartz Drive, Bellefonte, PA 16823, on behalf of S&M Fuel Mart, LLC submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of groundwater contaminated with petroleum constituents. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by DEP on March 15, 2022.

### Contact: Robin L. Yerger, LPG.

Rutters Farm Store # 16, Storage Tank Facility ID # 67-61416, 4430 West Market Street, York, PA 17408, West Manchester Township, York County. United Environmental Services, Inc., P.O. Box 701, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972, on behalf of CHR Corporation, 2295 North Susquehanna Trail, Suite C, York, PA 17404 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of the site-specific standard for soil and the Statewide health standard for groundwater and was approved by DEP on March 17, 2022.

Loves # 407, Storage Tank Primary Facility ID # 21-37405, 1165 Harrisburg Pike, Carlisle, PA 17013, Middlesex Township, Cumberland County. United Environmental Services, Inc., P.O. Box 701, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972, on behalf of Love's Travel Stops & Country Stores, P.O. Box 26210, Oklahoma City, OK 73126, submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum constituents. The Remedial Action Plan was acceptable to meet the site-specific standard and was approved by the DEP on March 18, 2022.

#### Contact: Cynthia Stine, Licensed Professional Geologist.

**100 W 10th Street**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 07-15322, 100 West 10th Street, Tyrone, PA 16686-1552, Tyrone Borough, **Blair County**. Synergy Environmental Inc., 155 Railroad Plaza, 1st Floor, Royersford, PA 19468, on behalf of PALG UST II, LLC, 645 Hamilton Street, Suite 400, Allentown, PA 18101 submitted a Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with petroleum constituents. The Remedial Action Plan was acceptable to meet the Standard and was approved by the Department on March 22, 2022. Northcentral Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 208 West Third Street, Suite 101, Williamsport, PA 17701, 570-327-3636.

Contact: Randy Farmerie, Environmental Program Manager.

**Dushore Agway Facility**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 57-26264, 112 Headley Avenue, Dushore, PA 18614, Dushore Borough, **Sullivan County**. Gary C. Calvert LLC, P.O. Box 504, Hollidaysburg, PA 16648, on behalf of Dushore Agway, 112 Headley Avenue, Dushore, PA 18614, submitted an Amended Site Characterization Report & Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The Remedial Action Plan was acceptable to meet the Statewide health standard and was approved by DEP on January 20, 2022.

**Robert Packer Hospital**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 08-20594, 1 Guthrie Square, Sayre, PA 18840, Sayre Borough, **Bradford County**. United Environmental Services, Inc., P.O. Box 701, Schuylkill Haven, PA 17972, on behalf of Robert Packer Hospital, 1 Guthrie Square, Sayre, PA 18840, submitted a Supplemental Site Characterization Report—Amended Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of site soil and groundwater contaminated with diesel fuel. The plan was acceptable to meet the Statewide health standard for groundwater and sitespecific standard for soil and was approved by the Department on February 10, 2022.

**Former Acorn Market # 35**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 59-36841, 210 Main Street, Blossburg, PA 16912, Blossburg Borough, **Tioga County**. EnviroTrac, Ltd, 176 Thorn Hill Road, Warrendale, PA 15086, on behalf of United Refining Company, 15 Bradley Street, Warren, PA 16365, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of soil contaminated with petroleum. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by DEP on March 4, 2022.

Northwest Region: Environmental Cleanup & Brownfields Program, 230 Chestnut Street, Meadville, PA 16335-3481, 814-332-6648.

Contact: Kim Bontrager, Clerk Typist 3.

**Country Fair Store 38**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 25-91603, 1818 Sassafras Street, Erie, PA 16502, City of Erie, **Erie County**. Groundwater & Environmental Services, Inc., 508 Tomson Park Drive, Cranberry Township, PA 16066, on behalf of Country Fair, Inc., 2251 East 30th Street, Erie, PA 16501, submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report concerning remediation of groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of the Statewide health standard and was approved by DEP on March 17, 2022.

Luke's Auto Service Center, Storage Tank Facility ID # 33-22893, Route 219 Crenshaw, R.R. 3, Box 66, Brockway, PA 15824, Snyder Township, Jefferson County. Cribbs & Associates, Inc., P.O. Box 44, Delmont, PA 15626, on behalf of Louise Luke, 3312 Route 219 Crenshaw, Brockway, PA 15824, submitted a Revised Remedial Action Plan concerning remediation of groundwater and soil contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The Remedial Action Plan was acceptable to meet the Statewide health standard and was approved by DEP on February 28, 2022.

**Rich's Fuel Stop**, Storage Tank Facility ID # 61-18852, 5609 State Route 8, Harrisville, PA 16365, Barkeyville Borough, **Venango County**. Cribbs & Associates, P.O. Box 44, Delmont, behalf of Heath Oil Company, 5821 State Route 322, Franklin, PA 16323 submitted a Remedial Action Completion Report; concerning remediation of soil and groundwater contaminated with unleaded gasoline. The Remedial Action Completion Report demonstrated attainment of the site-specific standard and was approved by DEP on February 24, 2022.

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-496. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

## Availability of Technical Guidance

Technical guidance documents (TGD) are available on the Department of Environmental Protection's (Department) web site at www.depgreenport.state.pa.us/elibrary/. The "Technical Guidance Final Documents" heading is the link to a menu of the various Department bureaus where each bureau's final TGDs are posted. The "Technical Guidance Draft Documents" heading is the link to the Department's draft TGDs.

## Ordering Paper Copies of Department Technical Guidance

The Department encourages the use of the Internet to view and download TGDs. When this option is not available, persons can order a paper copy of any of the Department's draft or final TGDs by contacting the Department at (717) 783-8727.

In addition, bound copies of some of the Department's documents are available as Department publications. Check with the appropriate bureau for more information about the availability of a particular document as a publication.

## Changes to TGDs

Following is the current list of recent changes. Persons who have questions or comments about a particular document should contact the person whose name and phone number are listed with each document.

## Final TGD: Substantive Revision

DEP ID: 393-2129-003. Title: Policy for Determining When Loss of Positive Pressure Situations in the Distribution System Require One-Hour Reporting to the Department and Issuing Tier 1 Public Notification. Descrip-tion: The purpose of this TGD is to provide a uniform protocol for public water systems when responding to loss of positive pressure situations in the distribution system to ensure the protection of public health. The distribution system is the final barrier of protection against contaminants that may cause waterborne disease. A situation that causes a loss of positive pressure in a distribution system poses a potential threat to public health, due to the potential for intrusion or backflow, or both. Loss of positive pressure situations are not uncommon-water main breaks occur routinely for a variety of reasons and other events can cause widespread loss of positive pressure. When these situations occur, the keys to preventing a waterborne disease outbreak are identifying which situations pose a high risk of allowing contaminants to enter the distribution system and then notifying water system customers of the risk to prevent consumption. The intent of this policy is to provide consistent guidance for water system operators in making those critical determinations.

The Department received no public comments on the draft TGD published at 50 Pa.B. 1758 (March 21, 2020). Compared with the draft TGD, only minor formatting and stylistic edits were made to the final TGD.

Contact: Questions regarding this TGD can be directed to Jill Anderson at jianderson@pa.gov or (717) 772-4049. Effective Date: April 2, 2022

> PATRICK McDONNELL, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-497. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

## Cleanup Standards Scientific Advisory Board Meeting Rescheduled

The Cleanup Standards Scientific Advisory Board (Board) meeting scheduled for Wednesday, April 6, 2022, has been rescheduled to Thursday, June 30, 2022. The meeting will begin at 9:30 a.m. in Room 105, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA. Individuals may attend the meeting in person or remotely. Individuals interested in providing public comments during the meeting are encouraged to sign up in advance by contacting Michael Maddigan at mmaddigan@pa.gov or (717) 772-3609.

Information on how to join the meeting remotely, as well as agenda and meeting materials, will be available on the Board's webpage, found through the Public Participation tab on the Department of Environmental Protection's (Department) web site at www.dep.pa.gov (select "Public Participation," then "Advisory Committees," then "Cleanup and Brownfields," then "Cleanup Standards Scientific Advisory Board," then "Agendas and Handouts").

Individuals are encouraged to visit the Board's webpage to confirm meeting date, time and location prior to each meeting. Questions concerning the June 30, 2022, meeting can be directed to Michael Maddigan at mmaddigan@pa.gov or (717) 772-3609.

Persons in need of accommodations as provided for in the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 should contact the Department at (717) 783-1566 or through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users) to discuss how the Department may accommodate their needs.

PATRICK McDONNELL,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-498. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

## Health Research Advisory Committee Virtual Public Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2022

The Department of Health's Health Research Advisory Committee (Committee), established by section 903(b) of the Tobacco Settlement Act (35 P.S. § 5701.903(b)), will hold virtual public meetings on the following Mondays from 10 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. and the public may join the virtual public meetings using the Microsoft Teams conference call information included as follows:

Monday, April 4, 2022	Dial (267) 332-8737 Conference ID: 788 728 874#
Monday, July 11, 2022	Dial (267) 332-8737 Conference ID: 788 728 874#
Monday, October 3, 2022	Dial (267) 332-8737 Conference ID: 788 728 874#

The purpose of these virtual public meetings is to review the work of the Committee, confirm the 2022 priorities, plan for future health research priorities and address emerging issues.

For additional information or for persons with disabilities who wish to attend a virtual public meeting and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation, contact Will Cramer, Director, Health Research Office or Pamela Brown, Management Technician, Health Research Office at ra-healthresearch@pa.gov. For speech and/or hearing-impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

Check the Department of Health, Health Research Office CURE Health Research Advisory Committee web site at https://www.health.pa.gov/topics/Research/CURE/ Pages/Committee.aspx for any changes to these virtual public meetings.

These virtual public meetings are subject to cancellation without notice.

> KEARA KLINEPETER, MSHCPM, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-499. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# **DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

## Long-Term Care Nursing Facilities; Requests for Exception

The following long-term care nursing facility is seeking an exception to 28 Pa. Code § 201.22(j) (relating to prevention, control and surveillance of tuberculosis (TB)):

Quality Life Services—New Castle 520 Friendship Street New Castle, PA 16101 FAC ID # 850302

This request is on file with the Department of Health (Department). Persons may receive a copy of a request for exception by requesting a copy from the Department of Health, Division of Nursing Care Facilities, Room 526, Health and Welfare Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, (717) 787-1816, fax (717) 772-2163, ra-paexcept@pa.gov.

Persons who wish to comment on an exception request may do so by sending a letter by mail, e-mail or facsimile to the Division at the previously listed address.

Comments received by the Department within 10 days after the date of publication of this notice will be reviewed by the Department before it decides whether to approve or disapprove the request for exception.

Persons with a disability who wish to obtain a copy of the request and/or provide comments to the Department and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to do so should contact the Division at the previously

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

listed address or phone number, or for speech and/or hearing-impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

KEARA KLINEPETER, MSHCPM,

Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-500. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# **DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

## Spinal Cord Research Advisory Committee Virtual Public Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2022

The Department of Health's Spinal Cord Research Advisory Committee (Committee), established by section 903.1(b) of the Tobacco Settlement Act (35 P.S. § 5701.903A(b)), will hold virtual public meetings on the following Thursdays from 9:30 a.m. to 11 a.m. and the public may join the virtual public meetings using the Microsoft Teams conference call information included as follows:

Thursday, April 21, 2022	Dial (267) 332-8737 Conference ID: 884 090 802#
Thursday, July 21, 2022	Dial (267) 332-8737 Conference ID: 386 335 775#
Thursday, October 20, 2022	Dial (267) 332-8737 Conference ID: 535 633 884#

The purpose of these virtual public meetings is to review the work of the Committee, review the status and progress of the current request for applications, reaffirm priorities, evaluate and refine the process to review the next spinal cord research applications and address emerging issues.

For additional information or for persons with disabilities who wish to attend a virtual public meeting and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation, contact Will Cramer, Director, Health Research Office or Pamela Brown, Management Technician, Health Research Office at (717) 231-2825, ra-healthresearch@pa.gov. For speech and/or hearing-impaired persons, call the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users).

Check the Department of Health, Health Research Office CURE Spinal Cord Research Advisory Committee web site at https://www.health.pa.gov/topics/Research/ CURE/Pages/Spinal-Cord.aspx for any changes to these virtual public meetings.

These virtual public meetings are subject to cancellation without notice.

> KEARA KLINEPETER, MSHCPM, Acting Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-501. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# **DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE**

## Pennsylvania Hot Streak Fast Play Game 5158

Under the State Lottery Law (72 P.S.  $\$  3761-101— 3761-314) and 61 Pa. Code  $\$  803.11 (relating to powers

and duties of the Secretary of Revenue), the Secretary of Revenue hereby provides public notice of the rules for the following lottery game:

1. *Name*: The name of the lottery game is Pennsylvania Hot Streak (hereinafter "Hot Streak"). The game number is PA-5158.

#### 2. Definitions:

(a) Authorized retailer or retailer: A person who is properly licensed by the Lottery pursuant to 61 Pa. Code §§ 805.1—805.17.

(b) *Bar code*: The symbology on the ticket containing certain encrypted validation and accounting data used for identifying winning and losing tickets.

(c) *Game Ticket*: A bearer instrument produced through a Lottery Terminal that is the player's record of a play for a Fast Play lottery game and sold by an authorized retailer containing the play and validation data as published in this game notice.

(d) *FIERY \$15 BONUS PLAY SYMBOLS*: The play symbols found within each "ROW" on a Hot Streak ticket that, when matched according to the instructions, determines whether the player wins a prize of \$15. "FIERY \$15 BONUS" is played separately.

(e) Lottery Central Computer System: The computer gaming system on which all Fast Play plays are recorded.

(f) Lottery Terminal: A device authorized by the Lottery to function in an interactive mode with the Lottery Central Computer System for the purpose of issuing plays, executing Quick Pick selections, and entering, receiving, and processing lottery transactions, including making purchases, validating plays, transmitting reports and performing inventory functions.

(g) *Play*: A chance to participate in a particular Fast Play lottery game.

(h) *Play Area*: The area on a ticket, which contains one or more play symbols.

(i) *Play Symbol*: A number, letter, symbol, image or other character found in the play area, which is used to determine whether a player wins a prize.

(j) *Prize*: A non-monetary item, money or experience that can be won as specified in section 6 (relating to prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners) of this game notice.

(k) *ROW*: A specific, pre-defined portion of the play area, which contains four prize symbols and a "FIERY \$15 BONUS" play symbol in a horizontal line that, when played according to the instructions, determines whether a player wins a prize. Each "ROW" is played separately.

(l) *Winning ticket*: A game ticket which has been validated and qualifies for a prize.

3. Price: The price of a Hot Streak ticket is \$2.

4. Description of the Hot Streak Fast Play lottery game:

(a) The Hot Streak lottery game is an instant win game printed from a Lottery Terminal. All prizes are predetermined, and the player does not have the ability to select their own play symbols. Hot Streak tickets may be purchased from an authorized retailer or at a Lottery self-service terminal that sells terminal-based Lottery game tickets. Tickets purchased from an authorized retailer shall be printed on-demand at the time of purchase and may not be preprinted by the retailer.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 52, NO. 14, APRIL 2, 2022

(b) Hot Streak is played by matching three like prize amounts in any of the "ROW" areas. A player matching prize symbols in this manner will win that matching prize amount. If a Flame (FLAME) symbol appears in any winning "ROW," triple the prize won for that "ROW." A bet slip is not used to play this game. Each "ROW" is played separately.

(c) Hot Streak is also played by matching "FIERY \$15 BONUS" play symbols in the play area. Whenever three Flame (FLAME) symbols appear in the play area, the player wins a prize of \$15 instantly. The "FIERY \$15 BONUS" is played separately.

(d) Players can win the prizes identified in section 6 (relating to prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners).

(e) A Hot Streak game ticket cannot be canceled or voided once printed by the Lottery Terminal, even if printed in error.

(f) To purchase a ticket at an authorized retailer, a player must remit the purchase price to the retailer and verbally request a Hot Streak game ticket. The ticket shall be the only valid proof of the bet placed and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize.

(g) To purchase a ticket at a Pennsylvania Lottery self-service terminal, the player must insert into the self-service terminal a dollar amount equal to the total purchase price of a Hot Streak game ticket and select the Hot Streak option on the Lottery self-service terminal. The ticket shall be the only valid proof of the bet placed and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize.

5. Hot Streak ticket characteristics:

(a) A Hot Streak ticket shall contain a play area, the cost of the play, the date of sale and a bar code. Each ticket contains five "ROW" areas designated as "ROW 1," "ROW 2," "ROW 3," "ROW 4" and "ROW 5." Each "ROW" is played separately.

(b) *Play Symbols*: Each Hot Streak ticket play area will contain five "ROW" areas and a "FIERY \$15 BONUS" area. The play symbols and their captions, located in each "ROW," are: Flame (FLAME) symbol and a Water (WA-TER) symbol.

(c) *Prize Symbols*: The prize symbols and their captions, located in the "ROW" areas, are:  $$2^{\cdot00}$  (TWO DOL),  $$4^{\cdot00}$  (FOR DOL),  $$5^{\cdot00}$  (FIV DOL),  $$10^{\cdot00}$  (TEN DOL),  $$15^{\cdot00}$  (FIFTEEN),  $$20^{\cdot00}$  (TWENTY),  $$30^{\cdot00}$  (THIRTY),  $$50^{\cdot00}$  (FIFTEN), \$100 (ONE HUN), \$500 (FIV HUN) and \$10,000 (TEN THO).

(d) *Prizes*: The prizes that can be won in this game, are: \$2, \$4, \$5, \$10, \$15, \$20, \$30, \$50, \$100, \$500 and \$10,000. Hot Streak contains a feature that can multiply the prize won. For a complete list of prizes, and how those prizes can be won, see section 7 (relating to number and description of prizes and approximate chances of winning). A player can win up to six times on a ticket.

(e) Approximate number of tickets available for the game: Approximately 600,000 tickets will be available for sale for the Hot Streak lottery game.

6. Prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners:

(a) All Hot Streak prize payments will be made as one-time, lump-sum cash payments.

(b) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of \$10,000 (TEN THO) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10,000.

(c) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of \$500 (FIV HUN) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$500.

(d) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of \$100 (ONE HUN) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$300.

(e) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$150.

(f) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of \$100 (ONE HUN) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(g) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $30^{00}$  (THIRTY) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$90.

(h) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $20^{00}$  (TWENTY) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$60.

(i) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $50^{00}$  (FIFTY) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(j) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $$15^{.00}$  (FIFTEEN) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$45.

(k) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $30^{00}$  (THIRTY) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of 30.

(l) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(m) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(n) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $$15^{.00}$  (FIFTEEN) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(o) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(p) Holders of tickets upon which three Flame (FLAME) symbols appear in the play area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(q) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $$4^{.00}$  (FOR DOL) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$12.

(r) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of \$10^{.00} (TEN DOL) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(s) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $$2^{.00}$  (TWO DOL) appear in any "ROW," and upon which a Flame (FLAME) play symbol appears in that "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$6.

(t) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $5^{-00}$  (FIV DOL) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of  $5^{-10}$ .

(u) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $4^{00}$  (FOR DOL) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of 4.

(v) Holders of tickets upon which three matching prize symbols of  $$2^{.00}$  (TWO DOL) appear in any "ROW," on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$2.

7. Number and description of prizes and approximate chances of winning: The following table sets forth the approximate number of winners, amounts of prizes and approximate chances of winning:

When You Match 3 Like Prize Amounts In The Same "ROW," Win That Amount. Win With:	FIERY \$15 BONUS:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 600,000 Tickets:
3—\$2s		\$2	8.7	69,000
$(3-\$2s) \times 2$		\$4	25	24,000
3-\$4s		\$4	50	12,000
3—\$5s		\$5	29.41	20,400
(3—\$2s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$4s)		\$10	100	6,000
$((3-\$4s) \times 2) + (3-\$2s)$		\$10	500	1,200
$(3-$5s) \times 2$		\$10	500	1,200
3—\$10s		\$10	1,000	600
(3—\$2s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$5s) + (3—\$4s)		\$15	500	1,200
(3—\$10s) + (3—\$5s)		\$15	1,000	600
	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$15	100	6,000
3—\$5s w/ FLAME		\$15	500	1,200
3—\$15s		\$15	1,000	600
((3—\$2s w/ FLAME) × 2) + ((3—\$4s) × 2)		\$20	1,000	600
(3—\$4s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$2s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$2s)		\$20	1,000	600
(3—\$5s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$5s)		\$20	1,000	600
3—\$5s	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$20	500	1,200
(3—\$15s) + (3—\$5s)		\$20	10,000	60
(3—\$10s) × 2		\$20	10,000	60
3—\$20s		\$20	10,000	60
((3—\$4s w/ FLAME) × 2) + ((3—\$2s) × 3)		\$30	12,000	50
(3—\$5s w/ FLAME)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$30	2,000	300
(3—\$10s) + (3—\$5s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$30	2,000	300
3—\$15s	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$30	2,400	250
(3-\$20s) + (3-\$10s)		\$30	12,000	50
(3—\$15s) × 2		\$30	12,000	50
3-\$10s w/ FLAME		\$30	6,000	100
3—\$30s		\$30	12,000	50
(3-30s) + (3-20s)		\$50	120,000	5
$\begin{array}{l} ((3-\$20s) \times 2) + ((3-\$4s) \times 2) \\ + (3-\$2s) \end{array}$		\$50	120,000	5

When You Match 3 Like Prize Amounts In The Same "ROW," Win That Amount. Win With:	FIERY \$15 BONUS:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 600,000 Tickets:
(3-\$20s) + (3-\$15s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$50	12,000	50
(3-30s) + (3-5s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$50	12,000	50
(3—\$5s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$4s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$2s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$2s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$50	12,000	50
(3—\$5s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$20s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$50	12,000	50
(3—\$10s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$5s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$50	12,000	50
(3—\$15s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$5s)		\$50	120,000	5
3—\$50s		\$50	120,000	5
$(3-$50s) \times 2$		\$100	120,000	5
((3—\$5s w/ FLAME) × 2) + (3—\$10s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$20s) + (\$3—\$5s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$100	60,000	10
((3—\$10s w/ FLAME) × 2) + (3—\$5s w/ FLAME) + ((3—\$5s) × 2)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$100	60,000	10
(3—\$15s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$10s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$2s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$4s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$100	60,000	10
(3—\$20s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$5s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$2s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$4s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$100	60,000	10
(3—\$30s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$10s)		\$100	120,000	5
3—\$100s		\$100	120,000	5
(3—\$100s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$50s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$50s)		\$500	120,000	5
(3—\$100s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$50s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$10s w/ FLAME) + (3—\$5s)	\$15 w/ 3 FLAMES	\$500	120,000	5
3—\$500s		\$500	120,000	5
3—\$10,000s		\$10,000	120,000	5

When you match 3 like prize amounts AND a "Flame" (FLAME) symbol appears at the end of that ROW, TRIPLE the prize won for that ROW! Each ROW is played separately.

FIERY \$15 BONUS: When 3 "Flame" (FLAME) symbols appear in the play area above, win \$15 instantly! FIERY \$15 BONUS is played separately.

Prizes, including top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of purchase.

#### 8. Ticket responsibility:

(a) A Fast Play lottery game ticket is a bearer document deemed to be owned by the person holding the game ticket, except that if a name is contained on the back of the game ticket, the person named will, for all purposes, be considered the owner of the game ticket.

(b) The holder of a Fast Play lottery game ticket has the sole responsibility for checking the accuracy and condition of the data printed on the game ticket.

(c) The Commonwealth shall not be responsible for a lost or stolen Fast Play lottery game ticket, or for a Fast Play ticket redeemed by a player in error.

9. Ticket validation and requirements:

(a) *Valid Fast Play lottery game tickets*. To be a valid Fast Play lottery game ticket, the presented game ticket must meet the following requirements:

(1) The game ticket's bar code shall be present in its entirety.

(2) The game ticket must be intact.

(3) The game ticket may not be mutilated, altered, reconstituted or tampered with.

(4) The game ticket may not be counterfeit or a duplicate of a winning ticket.

(5) The game ticket must have been validly issued.

(6) The game ticket data shall have been recorded on the Lottery Central Computer System and the game ticket data shall match the computer record in every respect.

(7) The game ticket must not be defectively printed or printed or produced in error such that it cannot be processed or validated by the Lottery.

(8) The game ticket must pass other confidential security checks of the Lottery.

(b) *Invalid or defective game tickets*. A game ticket not passing the validation requirements in subsection (a) will be considered invalid and no payment will be made on account of any play recorded thereon. The determination of the Secretary in this regard is final.

10. Procedures for claiming and payment of prizes:

(a) A prize may be claimed through an authorized retailer or the Lottery, as provided in this section. A prize must be claimed within 1 year of the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket.

(b) An authorized retailer is authorized to pay prizes of \$2,500 or less. The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play representing a prize of \$2,500 or less may be paid by a participating authorized retailer if a proper validation pay ticket was issued by the retailer's Lottery Terminal.

(c) The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play representing a prize in excess of \$2,500 may present the game ticket to an authorized retailer, Lottery District Office, or Lottery Headquarters.

(d) The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play shall present the ticket, in person, to an authorized retailer, Lottery Headquarters or a Lottery District Office. The retailer or the Lottery will issue payment if:

(1) The game ticket is scanned and the play is validated through the Lottery Terminal or the Lottery Central Computer System;

(2) A claim form is properly and fully completed;

(3) The identification of the claimant is confirmed; and

(4) The winning ticket has not expired, pursuant to this section or section 12 (relating to unclaimed prizes).

(e) The Commonwealth shall not be responsible for a winning play paid in error by an authorized retailer.

(f) In the event a prize described in these rules is not available, the Lottery may either provide a substitute prize, determined by the Secretary to have an equivalent value to the prize won, or make a cash payment to the winner, in an amount determined by the Secretary to have an equivalent value to the prize won.

11. Funding for prizes: Moneys will be drawn from the State Lottery Fund, to the extent necessary, to fund the payment of prizes under this section. If this lottery game is terminated for any cause, prize moneys remaining undistributed will remain in the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes otherwise provided for by law.

12. Unclaimed prizes: Unclaimed prize money on winning Fast Play lottery game tickets will be retained by the Secretary for payment to the persons entitled thereto for 1 year from the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket. If no claim is made within 1 year from the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket, the right of a ticket holder to claim the prize represented by that ticket, if any, shall expire. 13. Purchase and prize restrictions: A Fast Play lottery game ticket may not be purchased by, and a prize may not be paid, to an officer or employee of the Lottery, Lottery professional services contractors or subcontractors, or to a spouse, child, brother, sister or parent residing in the same household of an officer, employee, contractor or subcontractor who is involved in the production, distribution or operation of systems for the validation or accounting of Fast Play games.

#### 14. Governing law:

(a) By purchasing a ticket, the purchaser agrees to comply with and abide by the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101—3761-314), this notice, instructions, conditions and final decisions of the Secretary and procedures established by the Secretary for the conduct of the Fast Play Hot Streak lottery game.

(b) Decisions made by the Secretary, including the declaration of prizes and the payment thereof, in interpretation of this notice are final and binding on players and persons making a claim in respect thereof.

15. Retailer compensation:

(a) Authorized retailers may be entitled to compensation as determined by the Lottery.

(b) No authorized retailer or employee of an authorized retailer shall request, demand, or accept gratuities or any compensation other than as provided in subsection (a) in exchange for the performance of duties authorized pursuant to the Lottery retailer's license without the Lottery's prior written authorization.

16. *Retailer Incentive Programs*: The Lottery may conduct a separate Retailer Incentive Program for retailers who sell Pennsylvania Fast Play Hot Streak lottery game tickets.

17. Retailer bonus: The Lottery may offer a retailer bonus in connection with the sale of Pennsylvania Fast Play lottery game tickets. If a retailer bonus is offered, a Lottery retailer shall be eligible for a bonus as described in this section. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$100,000 and not exceeding \$500,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$500. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$500,001 and not exceeding \$1,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$5,000. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$1,000,001 and not exceeding \$10,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$10,000. A Lottery retailer is entitled only to the largest bonus for which they qualify on a winning ticket. A bonus will be initiated for payment after the Fast Play game ticket is claimed and validated. A bonus will not be awarded to a Lottery retailer that sells a non-winning Pennsylvania Lottery Fast Play game ticket used to enter a Pennsylvania Lottery second-chance drawing or promotion that is subsequently selected to win a prize.

18. *Termination of the game*: The Secretary may announce a termination date, after which no further tickets from this game may be sold. The announcement will be disseminated through media used to advertise or promote Hot Streak or through normal communications methods.

19. *Applicability*: This notice applies only to the Hot Streak lottery game announced in this notice.

C. DANIEL HASSELL, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-502. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# **DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE**

## Pennsylvania Quick Buck Fast Play Game 5159

Under the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101— 3761-314) and 61 Pa. Code § 803.11 (relating to powers and duties of the Secretary of Revenue), the Secretary of Revenue hereby provides public notice of the rules for the following lottery game:

1. *Name*: The name of the lottery game is Pennsylvania Quick Buck (hereinafter "Quick Buck"). The game number is PA-5159.

#### 2. Definitions:

(a) Authorized retailer or retailer: A person who is properly licensed by the Lottery pursuant to 61 Pa. Code §§ 805.1—805.17.

(b) *Bar code:* The symbology on the ticket containing certain encrypted validation and accounting data used for identifying winning and losing tickets.

(c) *DOLLAR BILL BONUS*: The area on a Quick Buck ticket containing prize symbols that, when played according to the instructions, determines whether the player wins a prize. "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" is played separately.

(d) *Game Ticket*: A bearer instrument produced through a Lottery Terminal that is the player's record of a play for a Fast Play lottery game and sold by an authorized retailer containing the play and validation data as published in this game notice.

(e) Lottery Central Computer System: The computer gaming system on which all Fast Play plays are recorded.

(f) Lottery Terminal: A device authorized by the Lottery to function in an interactive mode with the Lottery Central Computer System for the purpose of issuing plays, executing Quick Pick selections, and entering, receiving, and processing lottery transactions, including making purchases, validating plays, transmitting reports and performing inventory functions.

(g) *Play*: A chance to participate in a particular Fast Play lottery game.

(h) *Play Area*: The area on a ticket which contains one or more play symbols.

(i) *Play Symbol*: A number, letter, symbol, image or other character found in the play area which is used to determine whether a player wins a prize.

(j) *Prize*: A non-monetary item, money or experience that can be won as specified in section 6 (relating to prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners) of this game notice.

(k) *QUICK BUCK NUMBER*: The area on a Quick Buck ticket containing one play symbol that, when played according to the instructions, determines whether the player wins a prize of \$1.

(1) WINNING NUMBERS: The numbers, letters, symbols or other characters found in the play area that, when matched against the play symbols in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, determine whether a player wins a prize.

(m) *Winning ticket*: A game ticket which has been validated and qualifies for a prize.

(n) YOUR NUMBERS: The numbers, letters, symbols or other characters found in the play area that, when matched against the play symbols in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area, determine whether a player wins a prize.

3. Price: The price of a Quick Buck ticket is \$1.

4. Description of the Quick Buck Fast Play lottery game:

(a) The Quick Buck lottery game is an instant win game printed from a Lottery Terminal. All prizes are predetermined, and the player does not have the ability to select their own play symbols. Quick Buck tickets may be purchased from an authorized retailer or at a Lottery self-service terminal that sells terminal-based Lottery game tickets. Tickets purchased from an authorized retailer shall be printed on-demand at the time of purchase and may not be preprinted by the retailer.

(b) Quick Buck is played by matching any of the play symbols located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area to any of the play symbols located in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area. A player matching play symbols in this manner will win the prize shown under the matching "YOUR NUM-BERS" play symbol. A bet slip is not used to play this game.

(c) Quick Buck tickets contain a "QUICK BUCK NUM-BER" area. Whenever a player matches the play symbol in the "QUICK BUCK NUMBER" area to any of the play symbols in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area, the player wins a prize of \$1.

(d) Quick Buck tickets contain a "DOLLAR BILL BO-NUS" area. When two matching prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, the player wins the prize shown on the matching prize symbols. The "DOL-LAR BILL BONUS" is played separately.

(e) Players can win the prizes identified in section 6 (relating to prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners).

(f) Quick Buck tickets cannot be canceled or voided once printed by the Lottery Terminal, even if printed in error.

(g) To purchase a ticket at an authorized retailer, a player must remit the purchase price to the retailer and verbally request a Quick Buck ticket. The ticket shall be the only valid proof of the bet placed and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize.

(h) To purchase a ticket at a Pennsylvania Lottery self-service terminal, the player must insert into the self-service terminal a dollar amount equal to the total purchase price of a Quick Buck ticket and select the Quick Buck option on the Lottery self-service terminal. The ticket shall be the only valid proof of the bet placed and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize.

5. *Quick Buck ticket characteristics*:

(a) Quick Buck tickets shall contain a play area, the cost of the play, the date of sale and a bar code.

(b) *Play Symbols*: Quick Buck tickets will contain a "WINNING NUMBERS" area, a "YOUR NUMBERS" area and a "QUICK BUCK NUMBER" area. The play symbols

and their captions, located in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area, the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and the "QUICK BUCK NUMBER" area, are: 1 (ONE), 2 (TWO), 3 (THREE), 4 (FOUR), 5 (FIVE), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR) and 25 (TWYFIV).

(c) *Prize Symbols*: The prize symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, are: FREE (TICKET), \$1<sup>.00</sup> (ONE DOL), \$2<sup>.00</sup> (TWO DOL), \$3<sup>.00</sup> (THR DOL), \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL), \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL), \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY), \$30<sup>.00</sup> (THIRTY), \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY), \$100 (ONE HUN), \$500 (FIV HUN) and \$2,500 (TWYFIVHUN). The prize symbols and their captions, located in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, are: \$1<sup>.00</sup> Bill (ONE DOL) symbol, \$2<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TWO DOL) symbol, \$3<sup>.00</sup> Bill (THR DOL) symbol, \$2<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TWO DOL) symbol, \$3<sup>.00</sup> Bill (THR DOL) symbol, \$5<sup>.00</sup> Bill (FIV DOL) symbol, \$10<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TEN DOL) symbol, \$20<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TEN DOL) symbol, \$20<sup>.00</sup> Bill (FIV DOL) symbol, \$10<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TEN DOL) symbol, \$10<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TEN DOL) symbol, \$20<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TWENTY) symbol, \$50<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TEN DOL) symbol, \$20<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TWENTY) symbol, \$50<sup>.00</sup> Bill (FIFTY) symbol and a \$100 Bill (ONE HUN) symbol.

(d) Prizes: The prizes that can be won in this game, are: Free \$1 Ticket, \$1, \$2, \$3, \$5, \$10, \$20, \$30, \$50, \$100, \$500 and \$2,500. The prizes that can be won in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS," are: \$1, \$2, \$3, \$5, \$10, \$20, \$50 and \$100. The prize that can be won in the "QUICK BUCK NUMBER" area is \$1. A player can win up to eight times on a ticket.

(e) Approximate number of tickets available for the game: Approximately 600,000 tickets will be available for sale for the Quick Buck lottery game.

6. Prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners:

(a) All Quick Buck prize payments will be made as one-time, lump-sum cash payments.

(b) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$2,500 (TWYFIVHUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$2,500.

(c) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$500 (FIV HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$500.

(d) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(e) Holders of tickets upon which two matching \$100 Bill (ONE HUN) prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(f) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(g) Holders of tickets upon which two matching \$50<sup>.00</sup> Bill (FIFTY) prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(h) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$30<sup>.00</sup> (THIRTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(i) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(j) Holders of tickets upon which two matching \$20<sup>.00</sup> Bill (TWENTY) prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(k) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(l) Holders of tickets upon which two matching  $10^{00}$  Bill (TEN DOL) prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(m) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5.

(n) Holders of tickets upon which two matching  $$5^{.00}$  Bill (FIV DOL) prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5.

(o) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$3<sup>.00</sup> (THR DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$3.

(p) Holders of tickets upon which two matching \$3.00 Bill (THR DOL) prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, shall be entitled to a prize of \$3.

(q) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$2<sup>.00</sup> (TWO DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$2.

(r) Holders of tickets upon which two matching  $2^{00}$  Bill (TWO DOL) prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of 2.

(s) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$1<sup>.00</sup> (ONE DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1.

(t) Holders of tickets upon which the play symbol in the "QUICK BUCK NUMBER" area matches any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1. (u) Holders of tickets upon which two matching  $1^{00}$  Bill (ONE DOL) prize symbols appear in the "DOLLAR BILL BONUS" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1.

(v) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of FREE (TICKET) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of one Quick Buck Fast Play Game Ticket.

7. Number and description of prizes and approximate chances of winning: The following table sets forth the approximate number of winners, amounts of prizes and approximate chances of winning:

When Any Of "YOUR NUMBERS" Match Any "WINNING NUMBER," Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	DOLLAR BILL BONUS:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 600,000 Tickets:
FREE		FREE \$1 TICKET	12.5	48,000
	\$1	\$1	50	12,000
\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH		\$1	15.38	39,000
\$1		\$1	100	6,000
\$1 × 2		\$2	333.33	1,800
\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH	\$1	\$2	100	6,000
\$1 + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)		\$2	142.86	4,200
	\$2	\$2	500	1,200
\$2		\$2	500	1,200
\$1 × 3		\$3	1,000	600
\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH	\$2	\$3	500	1,200
\$1 + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)	\$1	\$3	500	1,200
\$2 + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)		\$3	500	1,200
	\$3	\$3	500	1,200
\$3		\$3	2,000	300
\$1 × 5		\$5	1,000	600
\$2 + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)	\$2	\$5	400	1,500
(\$2 × 2) + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)		\$5	1,000	600
\$3 + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)	\$1	\$5	277.78	2,160
	\$5	\$5	500	1,200
\$5		\$5	500	1,200
$5 \times 2$		\$10	1,000	600
(\$1 × 4) + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)	\$5	\$10	333.33	1,800
$(\$2 \times 2) + (\$1 \times 4) + (\$1 \text{ w/ QUICK} BUCK MATCH)$	\$1	\$10	333.33	1,800
5 + 3 + 1 + (1  w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)		\$10	1,000	600
\$5	\$5	\$10	1,000	600
	\$10	\$10	1,000	600
\$10		\$10	1,000	600
\$10 × 2		\$20	4,000	150
$\begin{array}{l} (\$2 \times 2) + (\$1 \times 2) + \$5 + \$3 + (\$1 \\ \text{w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH} \end{array}$	\$5	\$20	1,200	500
$(\$2 \times 3) + (\$1 \times 3) + (\$1 \text{ w/ QUICK})$ BUCK MATCH)	\$10	\$20	1,200	500
\$10	\$10	\$20	923.08	650
	\$20	\$20	2,400	250

When Any Of "YOUR NUMBERS" Match Any "WINNING NUMBER," Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	DOLLAR BILL BONUS:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 600,000 Tickets:
\$20		\$20	4,800	125
\$10 × 3		\$30	8,000	75
(\$2 × 3) + (\$1 × 3) + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)	\$20	\$30	1,600	375
(\$5 × 2) + (\$2 × 3) + \$3 + (\$1 w/ QUICK BUCK MATCH)	\$10	\$30	1,600	375
\$10 × 2	\$10	\$30	4,800	125
\$30		\$30	8,000	75
\$10 × 5		\$50	12,000	50
\$20 × 2	\$10	\$50	12,000	50
\$30	\$20	\$50	2,400	250
	\$50	\$50	6,000	100
\$50		\$50	6,000	100
$$50 \times 2$		\$100	24,000	25
\$50	\$50	\$100	12,000	50
	\$100	\$100	12,000	50
\$100		\$100	24,000	25
\$500		\$500	120,000	5
\$2,500		\$2,500	120,000	5

When any WINNING NUMBER matches the QUICK BUCK NUMBER, win \$1 instantly!

DOLLAR BILL BONUS: When you match two like prize symbols in the DOLLAR BILL BONUS area, win that amount instantly! DOLLAR BILL BONUS is played separately.

Prizes, including top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of purchase.

8. Ticket responsibility:

(a) A Fast Play lottery game ticket is a bearer document deemed to be owned by the person holding the game ticket, except that if a name is contained on the back of the game ticket, the person named will, for all purposes, be considered the owner of the game ticket.

(b) The holder of a Fast Play lottery game ticket has the sole responsibility for checking the accuracy and condition of the data printed on the game ticket.

(c) The Commonwealth shall not be responsible for a lost or stolen Fast Play lottery game ticket, or for a Fast Play ticket redeemed by a player in error.

9. Ticket validation and requirements:

(a) *Valid Fast Play lottery game tickets.* To be a valid Fast Play lottery game ticket, the presented game ticket must meet the following requirements:

 $\left(1\right)$  The game ticket's bar code shall be present in its entirety.

(2) The game ticket must be intact.

(3) The game ticket may not be mutilated, altered, reconstituted or tampered with.

(4) The game ticket may not be counterfeit or a duplicate of a winning ticket.

(5) The game ticket must have been validly issued.

(6) The game ticket data shall have been recorded on the Lottery Central Computer System and the game ticket data shall match the computer record in every respect.

(7) The game ticket must not be defectively printed or printed or produced in error such that it cannot be processed or validated by the Lottery.

(8) The game ticket must pass other confidential security checks of the Lottery.

(b) *Invalid or defective game tickets*. A game ticket not passing the validation requirements in subsection (a) will be considered invalid and no payment will be made on account of any play recorded thereon. The determination of the Secretary in this regard is final.

10. Procedures for claiming and payment of prizes:

(a) A prize may be claimed through an authorized retailer or the Lottery, as provided in this section. A prize must be claimed within 1 year of the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket.

(b) An authorized retailer is authorized to pay prizes of \$2,500 or less. The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play representing a prize of \$2,500 or less may be paid by a participating authorized retailer if a proper validation pay ticket was issued by the retailer's Lottery Terminal.

(c) The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play representing a prize in excess of \$2,500 may present the game ticket to an authorized retailer, Lottery District Office, or Lottery Headquarters.

(d) The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play shall present the ticket, in person, to an authorized retailer, Lottery Headquarters or a Lottery District Office. The retailer or the Lottery will issue payment if:

(1) The game ticket is scanned, and the play is validated through the Lottery Terminal or the Lottery Central Computer System;

(2) A claim form is properly and fully completed;

(3) The identification of the claimant is confirmed; and

(4) The winning ticket has not expired, pursuant to this section or section 12 (relating to unclaimed prizes).

(e) The Commonwealth shall not be responsible for a winning play paid in error by an authorized retailer.

(f) In the event a prize described in these rules is not available, the Lottery may either provide a substitute prize, determined by the Secretary to have an equivalent value to the prize won, or make a cash payment to the winner, in an amount determined by the Secretary to have an equivalent value to the prize won.

11. Funding for prizes: Moneys will be drawn from the State Lottery Fund, to the extent necessary, to fund the payment of prizes under this section. If this lottery game is terminated for any cause, prize moneys remaining undistributed will remain in the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes otherwise provided for by law.

12. Unclaimed prizes: Unclaimed prize money on winning Fast Play lottery game tickets will be retained by the Secretary for payment to the persons entitled thereto for 1 year from the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket. If no claim is made within 1 year from the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket, the right of a ticket holder to claim the prize represented by that ticket, if any, shall expire.

13. Purchase and prize restrictions: A Fast Play lottery game ticket may not be purchased by, and a prize may not be paid, to an officer or employee of the Lottery, Lottery professional services contractors or subcontractors, or to a spouse, child, brother, sister or parent residing in the same household of an officer, employee, contractor or subcontractor who is involved in the production, distribution or operation of systems for the validation or accounting of Fast Play games.

#### 14. Governing law:

(a) By purchasing a ticket, the purchaser agrees to comply with and abide by the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101—3761-314), this notice, instructions, conditions and final decisions of the Secretary, and procedures established by the Secretary for the conduct of the Fast Play Quick Buck lottery game.

(b) Decisions made by the Secretary, including the declaration of prizes and the payment thereof, in interpretation of this notice are final and binding on players and persons making a claim in respect thereof.

15. Retailer compensation:

(a) Authorized retailers may be entitled to compensation as determined by the Lottery.

(b) No authorized retailer or employee of an authorized retailer shall request, demand, or accept gratuities or any compensation other than as provided in subsection (a) in exchange for the performance of duties authorized pursuant to the Lottery retailer's license without the Lottery's prior written authorization. 16. *Retailer Incentive Programs*: The Lottery may conduct a separate Retailer Incentive Program for retailers who sell Pennsylvania Fast Play Quick Buck lottery game tickets.

17. Retailer bonus: The Lottery may offer a retailer bonus in connection with the sale of Pennsylvania Fast Play lottery game tickets. If a retailer bonus is offered, a Lottery retailer shall be eligible for a bonus as described in this section. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$100,000 and not exceeding \$500,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$500. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$500,001 and not exceeding \$1,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$5,000. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$1,000,001 and not exceeding \$10,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$10,000. A Lottery retailer is entitled only to the largest bonus for which they qualify on a winning ticket. A bonus will be initiated for payment after the Fast Play game ticket is claimed and validated. A bonus will not be awarded to a Lottery retailer that sells a non-winning Pennsylvania Lottery Fast Play game ticket used to enter a Pennsylvania Lottery second-chance drawing or promotion that is subsequently selected to win a prize.

18. *Termination of the game*: The Secretary may announce a termination date, after which no further tickets from this game may be sold. The announcement will be disseminated through media used to advertise or promote Quick Buck or through normal communications methods.

19. *Applicability*: This notice applies only to the Quick Buck lottery game announced in this notice.

C. DANIEL HASSELL,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-503. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### **DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE**

#### Pennsylvania Super Mom Fast Play Game 5157

Under the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101— 3761-314) and 61 Pa. Code § 803.11 (relating to powers and duties of the Secretary of Revenue), the Secretary of Revenue hereby provides public notice of the rules for the following lottery game:

1. *Name*: The name of the lottery game is Pennsylvania Super Mom (hereinafter "Super Mom"). The game number is PA-5157.

2. Definitions:

(a) *Authorized retailer* or *retailer*: A person who is properly licensed by the Lottery pursuant to 61 Pa. Code §§ 805.1—805.17.

(b) *Bar code:* The symbology on the ticket containing certain encrypted validation and accounting data used for identifying winning and losing tickets.

(c) *Game Ticket*: A bearer instrument produced through a Lottery Terminal that is the player's record of a play for a Fast Play lottery game and sold by an

authorized retailer containing the play and validation data as published in this game notice.

(d) Lottery Central Computer System: The computer gaming system on which all Fast Play plays are recorded.

(e) Lottery Terminal: A device authorized by the Lottery to function in an interactive mode with the Lottery Central Computer System for the purpose of issuing plays, executing Quick Pick selections, and entering, receiving, and processing lottery transactions, including making purchases, validating plays, transmitting reports and performing inventory functions.

(f) *MOM WINALL NUMBER*: The area at the bottom of a Super Mom lottery game ticket containing one play symbol that, when matched against the play symbols in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area according to the instructions, determines whether the player wins all 12 prizes shown in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area.

(g) *Play*: A chance to participate in a particular Fast Play lottery game.

(h) *Play Area*: The area on a ticket which contains one or more play symbols.

(i) *Play Symbol*: A number, letter, symbol, image or other character found in the play area which is used to determine whether a player wins a prize.

(j) *Prize*: A non-monetary item, money, or experience that can be won as specified in section 6 (relating to prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners) of this game notice.

(k) *STAR*: The visual representation of a "STAR" printed around certain play symbols in the "YOUR NUM-BERS" area. When a "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol is printed within a "STAR" and matches any "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbol, the player multiplies the prize won in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area by the multiplier shown in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area.

(1) SUPER MULTIPLIER: The area at the top of a Super Mom lottery game ticket containing one "SUPER MULTIPLIER" play symbol that, when played according to the instructions, determines whether the player multiplies the prize won in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area by the multiplier shown in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area. "MOM WINALL NUMBER" prizes cannot be multiplied.

(m) WINNING NUMBERS: The numbers, letters, symbols or other characters found in the play area that, when matched against the play symbols in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, determine whether a player wins a prize.

(n) *Winning ticket*: A game ticket which has been validated and qualifies for a prize.

(o) YOUR NUMBERS: The numbers, letters, symbols or other characters found in the play area that, when matched against the play symbols in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area, determine whether a player wins a prize.

3. Price: The price of a Super Mom ticket is \$5.

4. Description of Super Mom Fast Play lottery game:

(a) Super Mom lottery game is an instant win game printed from a Lottery Terminal. All prizes are predetermined, and the player does not have the ability to select their own play symbols. Super Mom tickets may be purchased from an authorized retailer or at a Lottery self-service terminal that sells terminal-based Lottery game tickets. Tickets purchased from an authorized retailer shall be printed on-demand at the time of purchase and may not be preprinted by the retailer. (b) Super Mom is played by matching any of the play symbols located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area to any of the play symbols located in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area. A player matching play symbols in this manner will win the prize shown under the matching "YOUR NUM-BERS" play symbol. A bet slip is not used to play this game.

(c) Super Mom tickets contain a "SUPER MULTI-PLIER" area. Whenever any of the play symbols located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area matches any of the play symbols located in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area and the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appears on a "STAR," the player multiplies any prize won in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area by the multiplier shown.

(d) Super Mom is also played by matching any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols to the "MOM WINALL NUMBER." Players matching play symbols in this manner will win all 12 prizes shown in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area.

(e) Players can win the prizes identified in section 6 (relating to prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners).

(f) Super Mom tickets cannot be canceled or voided once printed by the Lottery Terminal, even if printed in error.

(g) To purchase a ticket at an authorized retailer, a player must remit the purchase price to the retailer and verbally request a Super Mom ticket. The ticket shall be the only valid proof of the bet placed and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize.

(h) To purchase a ticket at a Pennsylvania Lottery self-service terminal, the player must insert into the self-service terminal a dollar amount equal to the total purchase price of a Super Mom ticket and select the Super Mom option on the Lottery self-service terminal. The ticket shall be the only valid proof of the bet placed and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize.

5. Super Mom ticket characteristics:

(a) Super Mom tickets shall contain a play area, the cost of the play, the date of sale and a bar code.

(b) Play Symbols: Super Mom tickets will contain a "WINNING NUMBERS" area, a "YOUR NUMBERS" area, a "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area and a "MOM WINALL NUMBER" area. The play symbols and their captions, located in the "WINNING NUMBERS" area, the "YOUR NUMBERS" area and the "MOM WINALL NUM-BER" area, are: 1 (ONE), 4 (FOUR), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR), 25 (TWYFIV), 26 (TWYSIX), 27 (TWYSVN), 28 (TWYEGT), 29 (TWYNIN) and 30 (THIRT). The play symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUM-BERS" area and printed on a "STAR," are: 1 (ONE), 4 (FOUR), 6 (SIX), 7 (SEVEN), 8 (EIGHT), 9 (NINE), 10 (TEN), 11 (ELEVN), 12 (TWLV), 13 (THRTN), 14 (EOPTN), 15 (EIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (FORTN), 15 (FIFTN), 16 (SIXTN), 17 (SVNTN), 18 (EGHTN), 19 (NINTN), 20 (TWENT), 21 (TWYONE), 22 (TWYTWO), 23 (TWYTHR), 24 (TWYFOR), 25 (TWYFIV), 26 (TWYSIX), 27 (TWYSVN), 28 (TWYEGT), 29 (TWYNIN) and 30 (THIRT). The play symbols and their captions, located in the "MULTIPLIER" area, are: 1X (NOMULT) symbol, 2X (2TIMES) symbol, 3X (3TIMES) symbol and a 5X (5TIMES) symbol.

(c) *Prize Symbols*: The prize symbols and their captions, located in the "YOUR NUMBERS" area, are:  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL),  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL),  $$15^{.00}$  (FIFTEEN),  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY),  $$50^{.00}$  (FIFTY), \$100 (ONE HUN), \$200 (TWO HUN), \$1,000 (ONE THO) and \$50,000 (FTY THO).

(d) *Prizes*: The prizes that can be won in this game, are: \$5, \$10, \$15, \$20, \$50, \$100, \$200, \$1,000 and \$50,000. Super Mom contains a feature that can multiply certain prizes. For a complete list of prizes, and how those prizes can be won, see section 7 (relating to number and description of prizes and approximate chances of winning). A player can win up to 12 times on a ticket.

(e) Approximate number of tickets available for the game: Approximately 600,000 tickets will be available for sale for the Super Mom lottery game.

6. Prizes available to be won and determination of prize winners:

(a) All Super Mom prize payments will be made as one-time, lump-sum cash payments.

(b) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$50,000 (FTY THO) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50,000.

(c) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$1,000 (ONE THO) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(d) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "WIN-NING NUMBERS" play symbols match the "MOM WINALL NUMBER" play symbol, and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in five of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in six of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in one of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$1,000.

(e) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$200 (TWO HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(f) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(g) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "WIN-NING NUMBERS" play symbols match the "MOM WINALL NUMBER" play symbol, and a prize symbol of  $$20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in six of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $$15^{.00}$  (FIFTEEN) appears in five of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in one of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(h) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "WIN-NING NUMBERS" play symbols match the "MOM WINALL NUMBER" play symbol, and a prize symbol of  $20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in five of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in four of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in two of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in one of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$200.

(i) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$150.

(j) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$100 (ONE HUN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(k) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(1) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(m) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "WIN-NING NUMBERS" play symbols match the "MOM WINALL NUMBER" play symbol, and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>-00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in two of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$10<sup>-00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in two of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>-00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in eight of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(n) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "WIN-NING NUMBERS" play symbols match the "MOM WINALL NUMBER" play symbol, and a prize symbol of  $$15^{.00}$  (FIFTEEN) appears in two of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $$10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in four of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $$5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in six of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(o) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "WIN-NING NUMBERS" play symbols match the "MOM WINALL NUMBER" play symbol, and a prize symbol of  $10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in eight of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in four of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(p) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "WIN-NING NUMBERS" play symbols match the "MOM WINALL NUMBER" play symbol, and a prize symbol of \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in six of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in five of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of \$15<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTEEN) appears in one of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100. (q) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "WIN-NING NUMBERS" play symbols match the "MOM WINALL NUMBER" play symbol, and a prize symbol of  $10^{.00}$  (TEN DOL) appears in five of the "Prize" areas, a prize symbol of  $5^{.00}$  (FIV DOL) appears in six of the "Prize" areas and a prize symbol of  $20^{.00}$  (TWENTY) appears in one of the "Prize" areas, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$100.

(r) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$50<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(s) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$50.

(t) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$15<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTEEN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$45.

(u) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$40.

(v) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$15<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTEEN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$30.

(w) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 5X (5TIMES) multiplier symbol

appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$25.

(x) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$20<sup>.00</sup> (TWENTY) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(y) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$20.

(z) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$15<sup>.00</sup> (FIFTEEN) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(aa) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 3X (3TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$15.

(bb) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$10<sup>.00</sup> (TEN DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(cc) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols, with the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol appearing on a "STAR," and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, and upon which a 2X (2TIMES) multiplier symbol appears in the "SUPER MULTIPLIER" area, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$10.

(dd) Holders of tickets upon which any of the "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbols match any of the "WINNING NUMBERS" play symbols and a prize symbol of \$5<sup>.00</sup> (FIV DOL) appears in the "Prize" area under the matching "YOUR NUMBERS" play symbol, on a single ticket, shall be entitled to a prize of \$5.

7. Number and description of prizes and approximate chances of winning: The following table sets forth the approximate number of winners, amounts of prizes and approximate chances of winning:

When Any Of "YOUR NUMBERS" Match Any "WINNING NUMBER," Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 600,000 Tickets:
\$5	\$5	9.17	65,400
$$5 \times 2$	\$10	100	6,000

When Any Of "YOUR NUMBERS" Match Any "WINNING NUMBER," Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 600,000 Tickets:
\$5 w/ 2X	\$10	20	30,000
\$10	\$10	66.67	9,000
\$5 × 3	\$15	500	1,200
\$10 + \$5	\$15	142.86	4,200
(\$5 w/ 2X) + \$5	\$15	100	6,000
\$5 w/ 3X	\$15	40	15,000
\$15	\$15	200	3,000
\$5 × 4	\$20	125	4,800
\$10 × 2	\$20	2,000	300
$(\$5 \times 2) + \$10$	\$20	2,000	300
(\$5  w/  2X) + \$10	\$20	250	2,400
(\$5  w/  3X) + \$5	\$20	125	4,800
$(\$5 \times 2) \text{ w/ } 2X$	\$20	333.33	1,800
\$10 w/ 2X	\$20	125	4,800
\$20	\$20	1,000	600
\$10 × 5	\$50	12,000	50
\$20 + \$15 + \$10 + \$5	\$50	12,000	50
(\$5 w/ 5X) + \$15 + \$10	\$50	2,400	250
(\$15 + \$10) w/ 2X	\$50	12,000	50
(\$15 w/ 3X) + \$5	\$50	1,200	500
(\$20 + \$5) w/ 2X	\$50	12,000	50
$(\$5 \times 5) \text{ w/ } 2\text{X}$	\$50	12,000	50
\$10 w/ 5X	\$50	1,000	600
\$50	\$50	6,000	100
MOM WINALL MATCH w/ ((\$10 × 5) + (\$5 × 6) + \$20)	\$100	2,400	250
MOM WINALL MATCH w/ ((\$10 × 6) + (\$5 × 5) + \$15)	\$100	2,400	250
MOM WINALL MATCH w/ ((\$10 × 8) + (\$5 × 4))	\$100	2,400	250
	\$100	2,400	250
	\$100	2,400	250
\$20 w/ 5X	\$100	2,000	300
\$50 w/ 2X	\$100	6,000	100
\$100	\$100	24,000	25
MOM WINALL MATCH w/ (( $\$20 \times 5$ ) + ( $\$10 \times 4$ ) + ( $\$5 \times 2$ ) + $\$50$ )	\$200	120,000	5
	\$200	120,000	5
(\$20 w/ 5X) + \$100	\$200	120,000	5
(\$50 w/ 3X) + \$50	\$200	120,000	5
\$100 w/ 2X	\$200	120,000	5
\$200	\$200	120,000	5
MOM WINALL MATCH w/ ((\$100 × 5) + (\$50 × 6) + \$200)	\$1,000	120,000	5

When Any Of "YOUR NUMBERS" Match Any "WINNING NUMBER," Win Prize Shown Under The Matching Number. Win With:	Win:	Approximate Chances Of Winning Are 1 In:	Approximate No. Of Winners Per 600,000 Tickets:
\$1,000	\$1,000	120,000	5
\$50,000	\$50,000	120,000	5

When any WINNING NUMBER matches the MOM WINALL NUMBER, win all 12 prizes shown!

SUPER MULTIPLIER: When the matching number is on a STAR, multiply the prize won by the multiplier shown in the SUPER MULTIPLIER AREA. MOM WINALL NUMBER prizes cannot be multiplied.

Prizes, including top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of purchase.

#### 8. Ticket responsibility:

(a) A Fast Play lottery game ticket is a bearer document deemed to be owned by the person holding the game ticket, except that if a name is contained on the back of the game ticket, the person named will, for all purposes, be considered the owner of the game ticket.

(b) The holder of a Fast Play lottery game ticket has the sole responsibility for checking the accuracy and condition of the data printed on the game ticket.

(c) The Commonwealth shall not be responsible for a lost or stolen Fast Play lottery game ticket, or for a Fast Play ticket redeemed by a player in error.

9. Ticket validation and requirements:

(a) *Valid Fast Play lottery game tickets*. To be a valid Fast Play lottery game ticket, the presented game ticket must meet the following requirements:

(1) The game ticket's bar code shall be present in its entirety.

(2) The game ticket must be intact.

(3) The game ticket may not be mutilated, altered, reconstituted or tampered with.

(4) The game ticket may not be counterfeit or a duplicate of a winning ticket.

(5) The game ticket must have been validly issued.

(6) The game ticket data shall have been recorded on the Lottery Central Computer System and the game ticket data shall match the computer record in every respect.

(7) The game ticket must not be defectively printed or printed or produced in error such that it cannot be processed or validated by the Lottery.

(8) The game ticket must pass other confidential security checks of the Lottery.

(b) *Invalid or defective game tickets*. A game ticket not passing the validation requirements in subsection (a) will be considered invalid and no payment will be made on account of any play recorded thereon. The determination of the Secretary in this regard is final.

#### 10. Procedures for claiming and payment of prizes:

(a) A prize may be claimed through an authorized retailer or the Lottery, as provided in this section. A prize must be claimed within 1 year of the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket.

(b) An authorized retailer is authorized to pay prizes of \$2,500 or less. The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play representing a prize of \$2,500 or less may be paid by a participating authorized retailer if a proper validation pay ticket was issued by the retailer's Lottery Terminal.

(c) The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play representing a prize in excess of \$2,500 may present the game ticket to an authorized retailer, Lottery District Office, or Lottery Headquarters.

(d) The holder of a game ticket evidencing a winning play shall present the ticket, in person, to an authorized retailer, Lottery Headquarters or a Lottery District Office. The retailer or the Lottery will issue payment if:

(1) The game ticket is scanned, and the play is validated through the Lottery Terminal or the Lottery Central Computer System;

(2) A claim form is properly and fully completed;

(3) The identification of the claimant is confirmed; and

(4) The winning ticket has not expired, pursuant to this section or section 12 (relating to unclaimed prizes).

(e) The Commonwealth shall not be responsible for a winning play paid in error by an authorized retailer.

(f) In the event a prize described in these rules is not available, the Lottery may either provide a substitute prize, determined by the Secretary to have an equivalent value to the prize won, or make a cash payment to the winner, in an amount determined by the Secretary to have an equivalent value to the prize won.

11. Funding for prizes: Moneys will be drawn from the State Lottery Fund, to the extent necessary, to fund the payment of prizes under this section. If this lottery game is terminated for any cause, prize moneys remaining undistributed will remain in the State Lottery Fund and used for purposes otherwise provided for by law.

12. Unclaimed prizes: Unclaimed prize money on winning Fast Play lottery game tickets will be retained by the Secretary for payment to the persons entitled thereto for 1 year from the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket. If no claim is made within 1 year from the sale date of the Fast Play lottery game ticket, the right of a ticket holder to claim the prize represented by that ticket, if any, shall expire. 13. Purchase and prize restrictions: A Fast Play lottery game ticket may not be purchased by, and a prize may not be paid, to an officer or employee of the Lottery, Lottery professional services contractors or subcontractors, or to a spouse, child, brother, sister or parent residing in the same household of an officer, employee, contractor or subcontractor who is involved in the production, distribution or operation of systems for the validation or accounting of Fast Play games.

#### 14. Governing law:

(a) By purchasing a ticket, the purchaser agrees to comply with and abide by the State Lottery Law (72 P.S. §§ 3761-101—3761-314), this notice, instructions, conditions and final decisions of the Secretary and procedures established by the Secretary for the conduct of the Fast Play Super Mom lottery game.

(b) Decisions made by the Secretary, including the declaration of prizes and the payment thereof, in interpretation of this notice are final and binding on players and persons making a claim in respect thereof.

#### 15. Retailer compensation:

(a) Authorized retailers may be entitled to compensation as determined by the Lottery.

(b) No authorized retailer or employee of an authorized retailer shall request, demand, or accept gratuities or any compensation other than as provided in subsection (a) in exchange for the performance of duties authorized pursuant to the Lottery retailer's license without the Lottery's prior written authorization.

16. *Retailer Incentive Programs*: The Lottery may conduct a separate Retailer Incentive Program for retailers who sell Pennsylvania Fast Play Super Mom lottery game tickets.

17. Retailer bonus: The Lottery may offer a retailer bonus in connection with the sale of Pennsylvania Fast Play lottery game tickets. If a retailer bonus is offered, a Lottery retailer shall be eligible for a bonus as described in this section. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$100,000 and not exceeding \$500,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$500. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$500,001 and not exceeding \$1,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$5,000. Lottery retailers who sell a winning ticket that entitles the ticket holder to a prize, either payable in a single installment or having a guaranteed minimum payout, of at least \$1,000,001 and not exceeding \$10,000,000 shall be paid a bonus of \$10,000. A Lottery retailer is entitled only to the largest bonus for which they qualify on a winning ticket. A bonus will be initiated for payment after the Fast Play game ticket is claimed and validated. A bonus will not be awarded to a Lottery retailer that sells a non-winning Pennsylvania Lottery Fast Play game ticket used to enter a Pennsylvania Lottery second-chance drawing or promotion that is subsequently selected to win a prize.

18. *Termination of the game*: The Secretary may announce a termination date, after which no further tickets from this game may be sold. The announcement will be disseminated through media used to advertise or promote Super Mom or through normal communications methods.

19. *Applicability*: This notice applies only to the Super Mom lottery game announced in this notice.

C. DANIEL HASSELL,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-504. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

## DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

#### Contemplated Sale of Land No Longer Needed for Transportation Purposes

The Department of Transportation (Department), under the Sale of Transportation Lands Act (71 P.S. §§ 1381.1— 1381.3) intends to sell certain land owned by the Department.

The following property is available for sale by the Department.

Richmond Township, Berks County. The parcel contains 1.48 acres of unimproved land located on the southwest corner of State Route 0222 and State Route 0662. The estimated fair market value is \$140,000.

Interested public agencies are invited to express their interest in purchasing the site within 30 calendar days from the date of publication of this notice to the Department of Transportation, Engineering District 5-0, Attn: Right-of-Way, 1002 Hamilton Street, Allentown, PA 18101. YASSMIN GRAMIAN,

Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-505. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

#### Findings

Under section 2002 of The Administrative Code of 1929 (71 P.S. § 512) establishing the Department of Transportation (Department), the Director of the Bureau of Design and Delivery, as delegated by the Secretary of Transportation, makes the following written findings:

The Department is planning the projects listed as follows. Environmental and Section 4(f) Documentation have been developed for the following identified projects to evaluate the potential environmental impacts caused by these projects. The Section 4(f) documents also serve as the Section 2002 Evaluation. The approved documents are available in the CE/EA Expert System at http:// www.dotdom2.state.pa.us/ceea/ceeamain.nsf. The environmental, economic, social and other effects of the proposed projects have been considered. Based upon studies, there is no feasible and prudent alternative to the use of the Section 2002 resources for the proposed identified projects, and all reasonable steps have been taken to minimize the effects.

# • SR 0026, Section 147—Marion Township, Centre County.

*Project Description*: The project involves an overlay, road widening, vertical curve improvements, drainage improvements and guide rail updates along SR 0026.

*Environmental Documents*: CE BRPA Evaluation approved on November 2, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Public Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and/or Waterfowl Refuges, State Forest Land and State Game Land approved on July 20, 2021.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resource: Approximately 0.012-acre of right-of-way (ROW) will be required from the 2,967-acre State Game Land # 323, which qualifies as a Section 4(f)/2002 resource.

# • SR 2011, Section A07—Millheim Borough, Centre County.

*Project Description*: The project is the replacement of the existing structure that carries Penn Street (SR 2011) over Mill Race.

*Environmental Documents*: ED BRPA Reevaluation approved on October 25, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Historic Properties approved March 25, 2020.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resources: The Millheim Historic District is listed on the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP). The Penns Valley and Brush Valley Rural Historic District was determined to be eligible for listing on the NRHP. Approximately 0.008-acre of ROW will be required from both historic districts.

# • SR 3014, Section 153—State College Borough, College, Harris and Patton Townships, Centre County.

*Project Description*: The project is the reconstruction of drainage and pavement along Atherton Street (SR 3014). Additionally, pedestrian and streetscape improvements will be included.

*Environmental Documents*: CE BRPA Reevaluation approved on November 23, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Historic Properties approved on November 23, 2021.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resources: Approximately 0.012-acre of ROW will be required from the 96-acre Farmers' High School Historic District, which is listed on the NRHP.

# • SR 0287, Section 141—Pine Township, Lycoming County.

*Project Description*: The project is the replacement of the structure that carries SR 287 over Lick Run.

*Environmental Documents*: CE 1b Evaluation approved on November 2, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Public Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and/or Waterfowl Refuges, State Forest Land and State Game Land approved on October 28, 2021.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resources: Approximately 0.361-acre of ROW and a permanent channel easement of 0.147-acre will be required from the 27,499-acre State Game Land # 75, which qualifies as a Section 4(f)/2002 resource.

#### • SR 0081, Section 511—New Milford Township, New Millford Borough, Great Bend Township and Great Bend Borough, Susquehanna County.

*Project Description*: The project is the reconstruction of 9 miles of Interstate 81 including replacement of multiple structures.

*Environmental Documents*: CE 2 Reevaluation approved on November 1, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Public Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and/or Waterfowl Refuges, State Forest Land and State Game Land approved on September 23, 2021.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resources: Approximately 1.8306-acres of ROW and 0.7120-acre of slope easement will be required from the 7,772-acre State Game Land # 35, which qualifies as a Section 4(f)/2002 resource.

#### • SR 0248, Section 05S—Bath Borough, Northampton County.

*Project Description*: The project involves the realignment and improvement of the West Main Street and West Northampton Street intersection in Bath Borough and the replacement of the bridge carrying West Northampton Street (SR 0248) over Monocacy Creek.

*Environmental Documents*: CE 2 Evaluation approved on October 4, 2021, a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Public Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and/or Waterfowl Refuges, State Forest Land and State Game Land approved on May 30, 2021, a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Historic Properties approved on May 21, 2021, a Nationwide/Programmatic Section 4(f) Evaluation for Projects that Necessitate the Use of Historic Bridges approved on May 30, 2021 and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Historic Properties approved on May 20, 2021.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resources: Approximately 0.017-acre of ROW and 0.006-acre of drainage easement will be required from the 0.7-acre Monocacy Creek Park. Approximately 0.038-acre of ROW will be required from the 0.23-acre Old Forge Tot Lot. The Monocacy Creek Park and the Old Forge Tot Lot both qualify as Section 4(f)/2002 resources. Approximately 0.204-acre of ROW and 0.009-acre of drainage easement will be required from the 122.5-acre Bath Historic District, which was determined to be eligible for listing on the NRHP. The existing West Northampton Street Bridge is considered a contributing element to the Bath Historic District. Approximately 0.016-acre of ROW will be required from the Daniel Steckel House, which is listed on the NRHP.

# • SR 7210, Section MBR—Lower Saucon Township, Northampton County.

*Project Description*: The project is the removal of the structure carrying Meadows Road over Saucon Street (T376) over Saucon Creek.

*Environmental Documents*: CE 2 Evaluation approved on November 9, 2021, and a Nationwide/Programmatic Section 4(f) Evaluation for Projects that Necessitate the Use of Historic Bridges approved on November 2, 2021.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resources: The existing structure, Northampton County Bridge No. 15/ Meadows Road Bridge, is listed on the NRHP.

# • SR 1012, Section BRC—Tinicum Township, Bucks County.

*Project Description*: The project is the replacement of the existing structure that carries Headquarters Road over Tinicum Creek.

*Environmental Documents*: CE 2 Reevaluation approved on October 4, 2021, and a Final Section 4(f) Evaluation approved August 21, 2018.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resources: Approximately 0.015-acre of ROW and approximately 0.005-acre of slope easement will be required from the Ridge Valley Rural Historic District. The existing bridge is also considered a contributing resource to the Ridge Valley Rural Historic District.

# • SR 2049, Section BLW—Middletown Township, Bucks County.

*Project Description*: The project consists of improvements to two signalized intersections, Langhorne-Yardley Road (SR 2049) and Woodbourne Road (SR 2033).

*Environmental Documents*: CE 2 Evaluation approved on October 27, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Public Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and/or Waterfowl Refuges, State Forest Land and State Game Land approved on March 30, 2020.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resource: Approximately 2.88-acres of ROW and 0.03-acre of drainage easement will be required from the 1,185-acre Core Creek Park, which qualifies as a Section 4(f)/2002 resource.

# • SR 7023, Section 237—Folcroft Borough and Darby Township, Delaware County.

*Project Description*: The project is the replacement of the existing Delaware County Bridge # 237 that carries Tribbett Avenue over Hermesprota Creek.

*Environmental Documents*: CE 1b Reevaluation approved on October 5, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Public Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and/or Waterfowl Refuges, State Forest Land and State Game Land approved on August 15, 2013.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resource: Approximately 0.7-acre of ROW and 0.076-acre of slope easement will be required from the 5.43-acre Arnold L. Covert, Sr. Park, which qualifies as a Section 4(f)/2002 resource.

# • SR 7046, Section 275—Cheltenham Township, Montgomery County.

*Project Description*: The project is the replacement of the Waverly Road Bridge over Tacony Creek.

*Environmental Documents*: CE 1b Evaluation approved on October 21, 2021, a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Public Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and/or Waterfowl Refuges, State Forest Land and State Game Land approved on September 16, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Historic Properties approved on September 16, 2021.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resource: Approximately 0.027-acre of ROW will be required from the 8.278-acre Harry S. Renninger Recreation Area, which qualifies as a Section 4(f)/2002 resource. Approximately 0.009-acre will be required from the Glenside War Memorial Hall, which is listed on the NRHP.

#### • SR 0949, Section 554—Eldred Township, Heath Township and Washington Township, Jefferson County.

*Project Description*: The project is the replacement of the existing bridge that carries SR 0949, Waverly Road Bridge, over Pine Run.

*Environmental Documents*: CE 1b Reevaluation approved on December 2, 2021, and a Determination of Section 4(f) De Minimis Use Section 2002 No Adverse Use Public Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and/or Waterfowl Refuges, State Forest Land and State Game Land approved on July 24, 2019.

Proposed Use of Section 4(f)/2002 Resource: Approximately 0.42-acre of ROW will be required from the 16,229-acre Clear Creek State Forest, which qualifies as a Section 4(f)/2002 resource.

CHRISTINE A. SPANGLER, PE, Director Bureau of Design and Delivery [Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-506. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

#### Mark J. Rusnak and Victoria E. Rusnak v. Department of Environmental Protection and Strishock, LLC, Permittee; EHB Doc. No. 2022-018-L

Mark J. Rusnak and Victoria E. Rusnak have appealed the issuance by the Department of Environmental Protection of NPDES Permit No. PA0257613, for discharges from an unnamed tributary to Little Laurel Run, located in Decatur Township, Clearfield County.

The appeal is filed with the Environmental Hearing Board (Board). The notice of appeal, and other filings related to the appeal, may be reviewed by any interested person through the Board's web site at http:// ehb.courtapps.com. If information concerning this notice is required in an alternative form, contact the Secretary to the Board at (717) 787-3483. TDD users may telephone the Board through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Center at (800) 654-5984. A date for the hearing on the appeal has not yet been scheduled.

Petitions to intervene in the appeal may be filed with the Board by interested parties under 25 Pa. Code § 1021.81 (relating to intervention). Copies of the Board's rules of practice and procedure are available online and upon request from the Board.

> THOMAS W. RENWAND, Chairperson

Chian per oo

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-507. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD

#### Meeting Cancellation

The April 19, 2022, meeting of the Environmental Quality Board (Board) is cancelled. The next regular meeting of the Board is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, May 18, 2022. The meeting will begin at 9 a.m. in

Room 105, Rachel Carson State Office Building, 400 Market Street, Harrisburg, PA. Individuals may attend the meeting in person or remotely.

Information on how to join the meeting remotely, as well as agenda and meeting materials, will be available on the Board's webpage, found through the Public Participation tab on the Department of Environmental Protection's (Department) web site at www.dep.pa.gov (select "Public Participation," then "Environmental Quality Board," then "2022 Meetings").

Individuals are encouraged to visit the Board's webpage to confirm meeting date, time and location prior to each meeting. Questions concerning the May 18, 2022, meeting can be directed to Laura Griffin at laurgriffi@pa.gov or (717) 783-8727.

Persons in need of accommodations as provided for in the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 should contact the Department at (717) 783-8727 or through the Pennsylvania Hamilton Relay Service at (800) 654-5984 (TDD users) or (800) 654-5988 (voice users) to discuss how the Department may accommodate their needs.

> PATRICK McDONNELL, Chairperson

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-508. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### GAME COMMISSION

#### Rabbit Hemorrhagic Disease Importation Ban # 2

#### **Executive Order**

Whereas, Rabbit Hemorrhagic Disease (RHD) is a rapidly spreading, fatal disease in lagomorphs and is considered a foreign animal disease in the United States; and

*Whereas*, The viruses causing RHD can be transmitted by direct contact with infected rabbits and hares, or indirectly through carcasses, food, water, and any contaminated materials, and are very resistant to extreme environmental conditions; and

Whereas, RHD has been designated a "dangerous transmissible disease" of animals by order of the Secretary of Agriculture under the provisions of the Domestic Animal Law (3 Pa.C.S. §§ 2301 et seq.) at 3 Pa.C.S. § 2321(d); and

Whereas, The Pennsylvania Game Commission (Commission) has determined that eastern cottontails (Sylvilagus floridanus), Appalachian cottontails (Sylvilagus obscurus), and snowshoe hares (Lepus americanus), members of the family Leporidae, are native and familiar species to the public and important prey and game species with impacts on the vegetation structure of their ecosystems; and

Whereas, Rabbit Hemorrhagic Disease Virus Serotype 2 (RHDV2), a unique variant of RHD, has been detected in the United States in recent years and can infect all ages of a wide range of domestic and wild lagomorphs, including North American wild species of hares, jackrabbits, and cottontails; and

Whereas, RHDV2 has not yet been detected in wild or domestic lagomorph populations within the Common-wealth; and

Whereas, The Commission desires to prevent the emergence of RHDV2 within the Commonwealth; and Whereas, RHDV2 is of particular concern to the Commonwealth because of its potential to have a detrimental impacts on both wild and domestic lagomorph populations; and

Whereas, The Commission has determined that importation of any wild lagomorphs or their products (meat, pelts, hides, carcasses, etc.), associated equipment or other items and materials from locations where RHDV2 has been detected in wild or domestic lagomorph populations into the Commonwealth poses an unacceptable risk of introduction and spread of RHDV2 to the Commonwealth; and

Whereas, The Game and Wildlife Code (34 Pa.C.S. §§ 101, et seq.) regulations promulgated thereunder (58 Pa. Code §§ 131.1, et seq.) collectively provide broad authority to the Commission to regulate activities relating to the protection, preservation, and management of all game and wildlife and their respective habitats (C.f. 34 Pa.C.S. §§ 322, 2101, and 2102); and

Whereas, Section 137.34 of the Code (58 Pa. Code § 137.34) provides specific emergency authority to the Executive Director of the Commission to mitigate risk factors and determine the prevalence and geographic distribution of transmissible wildlife diseases of wild birds and mammals, excluding those species under Federal jurisdiction, if the introduction or spread of such diseases poses a threat to human, domestic and wild animal, or environmental health and safety within or adjacent to this Commonwealth; and

*Whereas*, A previous executive order concerning the rabbit hemorrhagic disease importation ban within this Commonwealth was issued by the Commission on July 9, 2021; and

*Whereas*, The Commission has determined that further development of this ban is required to implement necessary updates to the Commission's RHDV2 Response Plan.

*Now Therefore*, I, Bryan J. Burhans, Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Game Commission, pursuant to the authority vested in me by the Code and regulations promulgated thereunder, do hereby order and direct the following:

1. The importation of any wild lagomorphs and their products (meat, pelts, hides, carcasses, etc.) into the Commonwealth from any Commonwealth, State, Territory, or Country where RHDV2 has been detected in wild or domestic lagomorph populations in the 12 months prior to the importation or where RHDV2 has been declared endemic in domestic or wild lagomorph populations is hereby prohibited.

2. This Order shall not be construed in any manner to limit the Commission's authority to establish additional or further authorizations or limitations relating to the monitoring for RHD and mitigation of any risk factors associated with its introduction or spread.

3. The previous executive order concerning the rabbit hemorrhagic disease importation ban within this Commonwealth was issued by the Commission on this Commonwealth that was issued by the Commission on July 9, 2021 and published in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* on July 24, 2021 at 51 Pa.B. 4034 is hereby rescinded in its entirety and replaced by this Order.

4. This Order is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until rescinded or modified by subsequent order. Given under my hand and seal of the Pennsylvania Game Commission on this 23rd day of March, 2022.

> BRYAN J. BURHANS, Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-509. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# INDEPENDENT REGULATORY REVIEW COMMISSION

#### Actions Taken by the Commission

The Independent Regulatory Review Commission met publicly at 10 a.m., Monday, March 21, 2022, and announced the following:

Regulation Deemed Approved Pursuant to Section 5(g) of the Regulatory Review Act—Effective March 20, 2022

Department of Agriculture # 2-195: State Food Purchase Program Regulations (amends 7 Pa. Code Chapter 160)

Action Taken—Regulations Approved:

Department of Education # 6-349: Charter Schools and Cyber Charter Schools (amends 22 Pa. Code Chapter 713)

Department of Labor and Industry # 12-114: Minimum Wage (amends 34 Pa. Code Chapter 231)

#### **Approval Order**

Public Meeting Held March 21, 2022

Commissioners Voting: George D. Bedwick, Chairperson; John F. Mizner, Esq., Vice Chairperson, Dissenting; John J. Soroko, Esq., Dissenting; Murray Ufberg, Esq.; Dennis A. Watson, Esq.

> Department of Education— Charter Schools and Cyber Charter Schools Regulation No. 6-349 (# 3315)

On September 8, 2021, the Independent Regulatory Review Commission (Commission) received this proposed regulation from the Department of Education (Department). This rulemaking amends 22 Pa. Code Chapter 713. The proposed regulation was published in the September 18, 2021 *Pennsylvania Bulletin* with a public comment period ending on October 18, 2021. The final-form regulation was submitted to the Commission on February 10, 2022.

This regulation adds Chapter 713 (relating to charter schools and cyber charter schools) to clarify elements of the Charter School Law, and sets conditions that emphasize accountability, equity, quality, and transparency.

We have determined this regulation is consistent with the statutory authority of the Department (24 P.S. §§ 17-1701-A—17-1751-A) and the intention of the General Assembly. Having considered all of the other criteria of the Regulatory Review Act, we find promulgation of this regulation is in the public interest. By Order of the Commission:

This regulation is approved.

#### **Approval Order**

Public Meeting Held March 21, 2022

Commissioners Voting: George D. Bedwick, Chairperson; John F. Mizner, Esq., Vice Chairperson; John J. Soroko, Esq.; Murray Ufberg, Esq.; Dennis A. Watson, Esq.

> Department of Labor and Industry— Minimum Wage Regulation No. 12-114 (# 3322)

On November 5, 2021, the Independent Regulatory Review Commission (Commission) received this proposed regulation from the Department of Labor and Industry (Department). This rulemaking amends 34 Pa. Code Chapter 231. The proposed regulation was published in the November 20, 2021 *Pennsylvania Bulletin* with a public comment period ending on December 20, 2021. The final-form regulation was submitted to the Commission on February 17, 2022.

This final-form regulation adopts provisions governing tipped employees including the rate of minimum wage, tip credit for non-tipped duties, tip pooling, payment processing fees and administrative charges. The finalform regulation also adopts the regular rate for salaried employees eligible for overtime.

We have determined this regulation is consistent with the statutory authority of the Department (43 P.S. §§ 333.104 and 333.109) and the intention of the General Assembly. Having considered all of the other criteria of the Regulatory Review Act, we find promulgation of this regulation is in the public interest.

By Order of the Commission:

This regulation is approved.

GEORGE D. BEDWICK,

Chairperson

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-510. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

#### United Healthcare, Inc.; Small Group Quarterly Update Filing (UHLC-133185996); Rate Filing

United Healthcare, Inc. is requesting approval to adjust the premium on 21,213 lives in groups renewing in the fourth quarter of 2022. The filing lowers the fourth quarter rates by 2.1% over those approved in the prior annual filing.

Unless formal administrative action is taken prior to June 17, 2022, the subject filing may be deemed approved by operation of law.

A copy of the filing is available on the Insurance Department's web site at www.insurance.pa.gov (hover the cursor over the "Consumers" tab, then select "Pending Long Term Care Rate Filings").

Interested parties are invited to submit written comments, suggestions or objections to James Laverty, Actuary, Insurance Department, Insurance Product Regula-

tion, Room 1311, Strawberry Square, Harrisburg, PA 17120, jlaverty@pa.gov within 30 days after publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

MICHAEL HUMPHREYS, Acting Insurance Commissioner

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-511. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### **INSURANCE DEPARTMENT**

#### United Healthcare of Pennsylvania, Inc.; Small Group Quarterly Update Filing (UHLC-133185995); Rate Filing

United Healthcare of Pennsylvania, Inc. is requesting approval to adjust the premium on 1,263 lives in groups renewing in the fourth quarter of 2022. The filing lowers the fourth quarter rates by 2.1% over those approved in the prior annual filing.

Unless formal administrative action is taken prior to June 17, 2022, the subject filing may be deemed approved by operation of law.

A copy of the filing is available on the Insurance Department's web site at www.insurance.pa.gov (hover the cursor over the "Consumers" tab, then select "Pending Long Term Care Rate Filings").

Interested parties are invited to submit written comments, suggestions or objections to James Laverty, Actuary, Insurance Department, Insurance Product Regulation, Room 1311, Strawberry Square, Harrisburg, PA 17120, jlaverty@pa.gov within 30 days after publication of this notice in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.

> MICHAEL HUMPHREYS, Acting Insurance Commissioner

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-512. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Service of Notice of Motor Carrier Applications

The following temporary authority and/or permanent authority applications for the right to render service as a common carrier or contract carrier in this Commonwealth have been filed with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission). Formal protests, petitions to intervene and answers must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code (relating to public utilities) on or before April 18, 2022. Filings are recommended to be made electronically through eFiling to the Secretary of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120, with a copy served on the applicant by April 18, 2022. Individuals can sign up for a free eFiling account with the Secretary of the Commission through the Commission's eFiling system at https://www.puc.pa. gov/efiling/Default.aspx. A protest shall indicate whether it applies to the temporary authority application, the permanent authority application, or both. Protests may only be filed if there is evidence that the applicant lacks fitness. Protests based on endangering or impairing operations of an existing carrier will not be honored. The

documents filed in support of the application are only available for inspection through the Commission's web site at www.puc.pa.gov by searching under the previously listed docket number or by searching the applicant's web site.

#### Applications of the following for approval to *begin* operating as *common carriers* for transportation of *persons* as described under each application.

**A-2022-3031130. AC Transportation, LLC** (110 East High Street, Allentown, Northampton County, PA 18055) for the right to begin to transport, as a common carrier, by motor vehicle, persons in nonemergency medical paratransit service, between points in the Counties of Bucks, Carbon, Lehigh, Montgomery, Northampton and Schuylkill.

A-2022-3031398. American Christian Transportation, LLC (3632 Old York Road, Philadelphia, PA 19140) for the right to begin to transport, as a common carrier, by motor vehicle, persons, in paratransit service, limited to elderly and disabled clients, in wheelchair vans, mini vans and sedans, between points in the Counties of Bucks, Chester, Delaware and Montgomery, and the City and County of Philadelphia, and return.

**A-2022-3031401.** Alliance Family Transportation, LLC (One PPG Place, Floor 31, Pittsburgh, Allegheny County, PA 15222) for the right to begin to transport, as a common carrier, by motor vehicle, persons in limousine service, between points in Pennsylvania, excluding service that is under the jurisdiction of the Philadelphia Parking Authority. *Attorney*: Stephen H. Lebovitz, Esquire, Lebovitz & Lebovitz, PA, 2018 Monongahela Avenue, Pittsburgh, PA 15218.

> ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-513. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Wastewater Service

**A-2022-3031502.** Aqua Pennsylvania Wastewater, Inc. In the matter of the application of Aqua Pennsylvania Wastewater, Inc. for approval to begin to offer, render, furnish and supply wastewater service to the public in an additional portion of Mount Joy Township, Adams County.

Formal protests and petitions to intervene must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code (relating to public utilities) on or before April 18, 2022. Filings must be made with the Secretary of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, 2nd Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17120, with a copy served on the applicant. The documents filed in support of the application are available only online for inspection and copying on the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission's (Commission) web site at www.puc.pa.gov and at the applicant's business address. Parties to proceedings pending before the Commission must open and use an eFiling account through the Commission's web site at www.puc.pa.gov or may submit the filing by overnight delivery to the Secretary, Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120. If a filing contains confidential or proprietary material, the filing is required to be submitted by overnight delivery. Large filings containing confidential or proprietary material may be submitted through the Commission's Share Point File system with advanced notice to the Commission prior to submittal.

Applicant: Aqua Pennsylvania Wastewater, Inc., 762 West Lancaster Avenue, Bryn Mawr, PA 19010

Through and By Counsel for: Thomas T. Niesen, Esquire, Thomas, Niesen and Thomas, LLC, 212 Locust Street, Suite 302, Harrisburg, PA 17101, (717) 255-7600, tniesen@tntlawfirm.com

> ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-514. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

#### Water Service

**A-2022-3031498.** Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. In the matter of the application of Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. for approval to begin to offer, render, furnish and supply water service to the public in an additional portion of Mount Joy Township, Adams County.

Formal protests and petitions to intervene must be filed in accordance with 52 Pa. Code (relating to public utilities) on or before April 18, 2022. Filings must be made with the Secretary of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, 2nd Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17120, with a copy served on the applicant. The documents filed in support of the application are available only online for inspection and copying on the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission's (Commission) web site at www.puc.pa.gov and at the applicant's business address. Parties to proceedings pending before the Commission must open and use an eFiling account through the Commission's web site at www.puc.pa.gov or may submit the filing by overnight delivery to the Secretary, Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120. If a filing contains confidential or proprietary material, the filing is required to be submitted by overnight delivery. Large filings containing confidential or proprietary material may be submitted through the Commission's Share Point File system with advanced notice to the Commission prior to submittal.

Applicant: Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., 762 West Lancaster Avenue, Bryn Mawr, PA 19010

Through and By Counsel for: Thomas T. Niesen, Esquire, Thomas, Niesen and Thomas, LLC, 212 Locust Street, Suite 302, Harrisburg, PA 17101, (717) 255-7600, tniesen@tntlawfirm.com

> ROSEMARY CHIAVETTA, Secretary

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-515. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

### PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT BOARD

#### **Hearing Scheduled**

A hearing has been scheduled, as authorized by 24 Pa.C.S. Part IV (relating to Public School Employees' Retirement Code), in connection with the Public School Employees' Retirement System's (System) denial of claimant's request concerning the indicated account.

The hearing will be held before a hearing examiner at the Public School Employees' Retirement System, 5 North Fifth Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101:

May 17, 2022	Account of Candida Baez-	10 a.m.	
	Vizcaino		
	(Effective Date of Retirement)		

Persons with a disability who wish to attend the previously listed hearing and require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to attend the proceeding should contact the Appeal Docket Clerk at (717) 720-4888 to discuss how the System may best accommodate their needs.

Parties may appear with or without counsel and offer relevant testimony or evidence to support their respective positions. The hearing will be held in accordance with the requirements of 2 Pa.C.S. §§ 501—508 and 701—704 (relating to Administrative Agency Law). Under 22 Pa. Code § 201.1 (relating to applicability of general rules), procedural matters will be in conformance with 1 Pa. Code Part II (relating to General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure) unless specific exemption is granted.

> TERRILL J. SANCHEZ, Interim Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-516. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# STATE BOARD OF VEHICLE MANUFACTURERS, DEALERS AND SALESPERSONS

#### Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs v. Melissa A. Kovalewski, Respondent; File No. 20-60-001880

#### Notice to Melissa A. Kovalewski:

On October 8, 2021, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of State, Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs, instituted a formal administrative action against you by filing an Order to Show Cause, before the State Board of Vehicle Manufacturers, Dealers and Salespersons, alleging that you have violated certain provisions of the Pennsylvania Board of Vehicles Act, act of December 22, 1983, P.L. 306, No. 84 ("Act"), as amended, 63 P.S. §§ 818.101—818.704; 63 Pa.C.S. Chapter 31 ("Chapter 31"). Pursuant to 1 Pa. Code § 33.31 and Rule 430 of the Pennsylvania Rules of Civil Procedure, 231 Pa. Code Rule 430, providing for service of process upon you by publication.

#### Notice

Formal disciplinary action has been filed against you. You may lose your license, certificate, registration or permit to practice your profession or occupation. You may be subject to civil penalties of up to \$10,000 for each violation, and the imposition of costs of investigation.

If you wish to defend against the charges in the attached Order to Show Cause or to present evidence to mitigate any penalty that may be imposed, the procedures for doing so are explained in the Order to Show Cause. You may obtain a copy of the Order to Show Cause from the Prothonotary for the Department of State, 2601 North Third Street, P.O. Box 2649, Harrisburg, PA 17105, telephone number, (717) 772-2686.

You have the right to retain an attorney. Although you may represent yourself without an attorney, you are advised to seek the help of an attorney. You also have the right to have an interpreter provided should you request one.

All proceedings are conducted under the Administrative Agency Law and the General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedures.

You are directed to respond to the charges by filing a written answer within thirty (30) days of this NOTICE. IF YOU DO NOT FILE AN ANSWER, DISCIPLINARY ACTION MAY BE TAKEN AGAINST YOU WITHOUT A HEARING. To file your answer, you must bring or send an original and three (3) copies of your answer and any pleadings or other documents related to this matter to the following address:

Prothonotary Department of State 2601 North Third Street P.O. Box 2649 Harrisburg, PA 17105

You must also send a separate copy of your answer and any other pleadings or documents related to this case to the prosecuting attorney named in the Order to Show Cause.

> KIRK A. DAVIS, Chairperson

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-517. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

# SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION

#### Actions Taken at March Meeting

As part of its regular business meeting held on March 17, 2022, from Harrisburg, PA, the Susquehanna River Basin Commission (Commission) approved the applications of certain water resources projects, and took additional actions, as set forth in the Supplementary Information as follows.

The business meeting was held on March 17, 2022.

For further information contact Jason E. Oyler, General Counsel and Secretary, (717) 238-0423, Ext. 1312, fax (717) 238-2436, joyler@srbc.net. Regular mail inquiries may be sent to the Susquehanna River Basin Commission, 4423 North Front Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110-1788. Also see the Commission web site at www.srbc.net.

#### Supplementary Information

In addition to the actions taken on projects identified in the previous summary and the listings as follows, the following items were also acted upon at the business meeting: (1) approved one grant agreement, a land acquisition agreement and a lease agreement; and (2) accepted staff recommendations for waiver of regulatory requirements related to renewal application deadlines for two projects.

#### **Project Applications Approved**

1. Project Sponsor and Facility: Artesian Water Company, Inc., New Garden Township, Chester County, PA. Application for renewal of the transfer of water of up to 3.000 mgd (30-day average) from the Chester Water Authority (Docket No. 19961105).

2. Project Sponsor and Facility: Columbia Water Company, West Hempfield Township, Lancaster County, PA. Applications for groundwater withdrawals (30-day averages) of up to 0.474 mgd from Chickies Well 2 and 0.596 mgd from Chickies Well 3.

3. Project Sponsor and Facility: Commonwealth Environmental Systems, LP, Foster, Frailey and Reilly Townships, Schuylkill County, PA. Application for renewal of consumptive use of up to 0.150 mgd (peak day) (Docket No. 20070304).

4. Project Sponsor: Compass Quarries, Inc. Project Facility: Allan Myers Materials—Paradise Quarry, Paradise Township, Lancaster County, PA. Modification to increase consumptive use (peak day) by an additional 0.068 mgd, for a total consumptive use of up to 0.150 mgd (Docket No. 20040608).

5. Project Sponsor: Corning Incorporated. Project Facility: Sullivan Park, Town of Erwin, Steuben County, NY. Applications for renewal of groundwater withdrawals (30-day averages) of up to 0.800 mgd from Well 2 and 0.800 mgd from Well 3 and consumptive use of up to 0.350 mgd (peak day) (Docket No. 19970705).

6. Project Sponsor and Facility: Coterra Energy, Inc. (Meshoppen Creek), Lemon Township, Wyoming County, PA. Application for renewal of surface water withdrawal of up to 1.000 mgd (peak day) (Docket No. 20170302).

7. Project Sponsor: County of Lycoming. Project Facility: Lycoming County Resource Management Services, Brady Township, Lycoming County, PA. Application for renewal of consumptive use of up to 0.099 mgd (30-day average) (Docket No. 20070302).

8. Project Sponsor and Facility: Deep Woods Lake, LLC, Dennison Township, Luzerne County, PA. Applications for groundwater withdrawal of up to 0.200 mgd (30-day average) from Well SW-5 and consumptive use of up to 0.467 mgd (peak day).

9. Project Sponsor and Facility: Eagles Mere Country Club, Eagles Mere Borough and Shrewsbury Township, Sullivan County, PA. Application for renewal of consumptive use of up to 0.120 mgd (peak day) (Docket No. 19970302).

10. Project Sponsor and Facility: EQT ARO, LLC (West Branch Susquehanna River), Nippenose Township, Lycoming County, PA. Application for renewal of surface water withdrawal of up to 0.720 mgd (peak day) (Docket No. 20170301).

11. Project Sponsor: Farmers Pride, Inc. Project Facility: Bell & Evans Plant 3, Bethel Township, Lebanon County, PA. Applications for groundwater withdrawals

(30-day averages) of up to 0.108 mgd from Well PW-1, 0.139 mgd from Well PW-2 and 0.179 mgd from Well PW-4.

12. Project Sponsor and Facility: Geisinger Health System, Mahoning Township, Montour County, PA. Applications for renewal of consumptive use of up to 0.499 mgd (peak day) and groundwater withdrawal of up to 0.075 mgd (30-day average) from Well 3, as well as recognizing, assessing and regulating historical withdrawals from the Mine Shaft Well (Docket No. 19910103).

13. Project Sponsor: Hampden Township. Project Facility: Armitage Golf Club, Hampden Township, Cumberland County, PA. Application for renewal of consumptive use of up to 0.290 mgd (peak day) (Docket No. 19920101).

14. Project Sponsor and Facility: Millersburg Area Authority, Upper Paxton Township, Dauphin County, PA. Application for renewal of groundwater withdrawal of up to 0.117 mgd (30-day average) from Well 14 (Docket No. 19930301).

15. Project Sponsor and Facility: Repsol Oil & Gas USA, LLC (Sugar Creek), West Burlington Township, Bradford County, PA. Application for renewal of surface water withdrawal of up to 0.750 mgd (peak day) (Docket No. 20170308).

#### Project Scheduled for Action Involving a Diversion

16. Project Sponsor and Facility: Chester Water Authority, New Garden Township, Chester County, PA. Applications for renewal of consumptive use and for an out-of-basin diversion of up to 3.000 mgd (30-day average) (Docket No. 19961104).

#### Project Tabled

17. Project Sponsor and Facility: Municipal Authority of the Township of East Hempfield, d/b/a Hempfield Water Authority, East Hempfield Township, Lancaster County, PA. Applications for renewal of groundwater withdrawals (30-day averages) of up to 0.353 mgd from Well 6, 0.145 mgd from Well 7, 1.447 mgd from Well 8, and 1.800 mgd from Well 11 and Commission-initiated modification to Docket No. 20120906, which approves withdrawals from Wells 1—5 and Spring S-1 (Docket Nos. 19870306, 19890503, 19930101 and 20120906).

Authority: Pub.L. No. 91-575, 84 Stat. 1509 et seq., 18 CFR Parts 806—808

Dated: March 21, 2022

#### ANDREW D. DEHOFF, Executive Director

[Pa.B. Doc. No. 22-518. Filed for public inspection April 1, 2022, 9:00 a.m.]

2092